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> BAJIAJ

open new life

Bajaj Electricals takes
immense pride in
celebrating an eight-
decade-long journey of
togetherness. Of providing
products and solutions
that make your everyday
living better and simpler.
Of illuminating India and
Indian homes. Of earning
your trust and your
confidence. Eight decades
of being a part of every
Indian home and every life.
This is our most precious
asset and a legacy that we
are proud of.

As India moves forward, our
needs too continue to evolve.
And we all continue to change
and adapt. And yet, with

this transition, comes the
responsibility to retain and
nurture our anchors and our
unique values. And that which
is most familiar and dear to
us. Bajaj Electricals has been
and will continue to be an
integral part of this journey
with you, even as India enters
a new chapter of life. We will
build the future with you.
Because our relationship with
you is timeless.

Beginnings.

Challenges.

« Corporate Overview » Statutory Reports ¢ Financial Statements |
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We continue to move on

the path towards a new
tomorrow with our ideology
of “Building the Future,
Preserving Legacy”. We
have our eyes firmly on the
future and will continue

to drive innovations and
leverage technology to craft
new products and solutions
that will deliver greater
convenience, comfort and
well-being to you. And yet,
we will continue to cherish
our values from yesterday

— care and concern for you
and for the wider community,
built on a platform of trust.

Bajaj - Open New Life |

We welcome you to this

new life, which is a beautiful
blend of new-age technology
and our old-age values. A
new life of fresh confidence
and happiness. A new life
that leads us on to a better
tomorrow. Welcome to our
new brand vision —

“Open
New Life”.
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ABOUT —
BAJAJ GROUP Lj3 group

A globally renowned and diversified conglomerate, Bajaj Group
today has firmly cemented its position as one of the largest
business groups in India. Founded by late Shri Jamnalal Bajaj,
the group has grown manifold over the last nine decades of its
existence, establishing its presence across industries including
Automobile (two and three wheelers), Consumer Products, EPC,
lron & Steel, Insurance, Financial Services and Travel.

With 59 companies catering to diverse consumer needs,
we remain committed to add value with our innovation

& vision. Acting as a catalyst for social empowerment,
the group continuously engages in notable contributions
to uplift and endow millions across the country, thereby
creating a significantly meaningful position for itself.

» Corporate Overview « Statutory Reports « Financial Statements |
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ABOUT

BAJAJ ELECTRICALS

One of the most trusted and preferred names in Consumer Products
and EPC segment, Bajaj Electricals Limited (Bajaj Electricals) is
renowned for its exceptional range of innovative products and
solutions, catering to a wide customer base — meeting varied

requirements efficiently.

As an integral part of Bajaj Group,
at Bajaj Electricals we leverage
our expertise, knowledge, research
& manufacturing capabilities to
meet the evolving needs of our
consumers and customers. Our
widespread distribution network,
along with our innovative and
best-in-class product portfolio
delivers superior performance,
consistently.

We have been making steady
progress to align our activities
with our vision of ‘Enhancing
quality of life and bringing
happiness with sustainability’
by being responsive and

agile to a changing business
environment. At Bajaj Electricals,
we are constantly adopting

and implementing new-age
technologies to serve our
customers better by focussing on
advanced, feature-rich products.
Our products continue to be
easily accessible and affordable,
reaching out to a maximum
number of consumers.

Our values underpin our business philosophy, with a commitment to

conduct business responsibly and fulfil the objective of sustainable growth

through:

o ef 2

Integrity ~ Teamwork  Empowerment

Our Business Segments

Consumer Product

With an aim to be a modern and
contemporary consumer durable
brand, Bajaj Electricals offers a
range of unique and innovative
products within its Kitchen
Appliances, Domestic Appliances,

Key statistics for FY 2019-20

Product sub-categories

Retailers

New products launched

Consumer care centres
across the country

Ranked brand in terms of
market share and digital
visibility in SHA (Small
Home Appliances) categony
on E-Commerce space

% Read more on Page @

of the Report

Customer Innovation Trust
Delight

Fans and Lighting categories.

We also cater to the premium
home appliance and cookware
segment through our acquired
brands, Morphy Richards and Nirlep
Appliances.

» Corporate Overview ¢ . ‘

About Bajaj Electricals ‘

EPC

Our EPC portfolio encompasses the power transmission, distribution and illumination verticals. With years of
experience and proven expertise in project execution, we have established a firm footing as a market leader
in the EPC segment.

lllumination: We have decades of experience, Power Distribution: We specidlise in building and

expertise and proven track record of providing strengthening power distribution infrastructure to
top-notch functionality, energy efficient and ensure uninterrupted electricity supply across the

aesthetically appealing solutions to our customers country, especially in the rural areas.

New products launched lllumination projects
in FY 2019-20 executed in FY 2019-20

Number of villages Number of BPL connections
electrified in FY 2019-20  in FY 2019-20

Power Transmission: We are
one of the leading companies
in power transmission sector
undertaking turnkey solutions
for transmission line towers.
Through our manufacturing
facility in Pune, we manufacture
transmission line towers,

monopoles and other fabricated

structures.

Manufacturing capacity.
of the plant

Power transmission
projects executed in
FY 2019-20

|-|_§‘ Read more on Page @

of the Report
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BUSINESS
MODEL

Key Inputs

Financial
Resources

g

Y

Our
People

=

Research and
Development

Strengthening
Capabilities

>

Brand

o2

Enduring
Relations

An appropriate mix of debt
and equity fund that empowers
us to grow and expand our
business

Our diverse, skilled and
competent workforce plays
a key role to achieve our set
goals and objectives.

Our ability to develop
innovative and effective
solutions for our customers is
driven by our R&D activities.

Our manufacturing facilities,
robust supply chain and

OEM partners are integral in
our promise to produce high
quality and efficient products.

We aim to foster a renowned
brand that stands for
innovation and superior
quality, designed to exceed the
expectations of our consumers.

We value our strong and
healthy relationship with our
key stakeholders including
customers, suppliers, trade
partners, E-commerce
platforms, execution partners,
vendors, distributors, investors
and society at large.

Our Process

Product/Solutions

Market research
and analysis

» Corporate Overview ¢

Customer
designing and response and
development feedback

Output

Our business segments

Consumer products

[\ "
=D
Kitchen Appliances

Mixers, Food Processors,
JMG, Induction Cookers,
Rice Cookers, OTG,
Microwave Oven, NEKA,
Pressure Cooker and
Gas Stoves

Domestic Appliances

Water Heaters, Irons,
Air Coolers & Room
Heaters

Ceiling Fans, Table,
Pedestal and Wall
(TPW) fans, Air
Circulators, Exhaust
Fans

\

Lighting

LED Lamps, Battens,
Panels and Electrical
Accessories

Sourcing and Marketing,
Manufacturing Distribution and
Execution

EPC

v

lllumination

Smart Lighting Solutions,
meeting requirements

of Indoor, Outdoor and
Solar Powered Lighting

Power Transmission

Transmission Lines,
Monopoles and EHV
Substation

‘PO\VNeI’ Distribution

Rural Electrification
Works, Feeder
Separation Works,
System Strengthening
and Substation

Outcomes

Business Model ‘

e Sustained market
capitalisation

e Sustained return on
investment

® Robust balance sheet

Y

® Availability of superior
quality products at
affordable price

e Operational
excellence with a
focus on continuous
improvement

>

e Well-trained and
ethical working
culture across our
operations

e High retention rate

¢ Engaged and
committed workforce

e Safe working
environment for
employees across
locations

o Consistent launch of
new products year
after year

o Established brand
value

e Strong brand recall
and trust among
customers across the
globe

* High customer
satisfaction

® Quality supplier base
and wider distribution
network

® Long-term
sustainable
relationship with
business partners

e Upliftment of
communities in which
we operate through
various corporate
social responsibility
initiatives.
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CHAIRMAN'’S
COMMUNIQUE

Shekhar Bajaqj
Chairman & Managing Director

66 During the

year, your Company
generated positive
cashflow from
operations at

% 627.41 crore,
compared to a
negative cashflow
of ¥ 601.92 crore in
the previous year.
Further, our debt-
equity ratio showed
a remarkable
improvement from
1.47 as on 31st
March, 2019 to 0.69
as on 31st March,
2020. 99

Dear Shareholders,

It gives me immense pleasure to
share with you, your Company’s
performance for the year 2019-20.

Fiscal 2019-20 was a year of slow
growth for the Indian economy, a
trend that has been carried over
from the previous year and weak
sentiments were noted globally
even before the outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic. However,
challenging times and slowdowns
offer perfect opportunities for us
to reinvent ourselves and become
more resilient. So, it has been a
particularly important year for your
Company as we mark the start of a

transformational journey to build a
future-ready Bajaj Electricals. Over
the past eight decades, we have
constantly reinvented ourselves
and we have now begun laying the
foundation for our next decade of
growth. Last year, we spoke about
‘Building the Future, Preserving
Legacy’ — we will stay true to

that ideology as we undergo this
transformation.

In the preceding year, we had
enjoyed strong growth in our
revenues and profitability, but a
large part of this was driven by the
rapid growth of our EPC business
and was accompanied by negative
operating cashflows. This had led
to a significant increase in debt,
akin to many other companies in
India. So we took a strategic call

in early 2019 to focus on fiscal
consolidation and work aggressively
on building a stronger balance
sheet. This also necessitated
reviewing our business models.
While we continued to drive growth
in our Consumer Products business,
for the EPC business we decided to
focus on the execution of ongoing
projects while adopting a more
calibrated-risks approach towards
fresh bidding. As a result, we have
seen significant changes in our
Profit and Loss Account and our
Balance Sheet during the year
under review.

» Corporate Overview ¢

In FY 2019-20, we saw a decline

in total revenue from operations

to T 4,97709 crore from T 6,673.14
crore in the previous fiscal year.
We recorded an EBITDA of % 259.56
crore. Our PAT declined to ¥ (0.13)
crore from % 167.07 crore in

FY 2018-19. This decline in revenues
was on account of the strategic
intent shared above and the
decline in PAT was led by increased
interest costs due to high debt
build-up. However, the real measure
of our performance lies in the
sharp balance-sheet turnaround
delivered during the year. During
the year, your Company generated
positive cashflow from operations
at ¥ 62741 crore, compared to a
negative cashflow of ¥ 601.92 crore
in the previous year. Total debt
reduced from ¥ 1,582.21 crore as on
31st March, 2019 to ¥ 95715 crore
as on 31st March, 2020. We also
raised our equity capital through

a successful rights issue, thanks

to your participation. Consequent
to all these actions, our debt-
equity ratio showed a remarkable
improvement from 1.47 as on 31st
March, 2019 to 0.69 as on 31st
March, 2020. Given the sudden
outbreak of COVID-19 towards

the end of the year, all these fiscal
measures and improvements proved
to be extremely useful and hold

us in very good stead to brace the
post COVID-19 economic impact.

é é Our Consumer Products
segment continued to deliver
healthy double-digit growth, ahead
of industry growth, implying an
increase in overall market shares. 99

Chairman’s Communique ‘

Our Consumer Products segment
continued to deliver healthy double-
digit growth, ahead of industry
growth, implying an increase in
overall market shares. This was
achieved through a strong focus on
our product portfolio with several
new launches as well as a very
robust go-to-market approach.

We have continued to push growth
across all distribution channels viz.
general trade, modern format retail,
e-commerce and institutional and
government business. Our most
valuable asset remains our brand,
especidlly in the modern, pull-based,
hyper-competitive marketplace.
Recognising this, we have also
embarked upon a fresh and a
renewed push for various brand-
building initiatives. This includes our
new brand vision: “Open New Life".

For our EPC segment, our strategic
priority remains the execution of
current projects. We have continued
to make healthy progress on

that front, across various Power
Distribution projects in India.

Our Power Transmission business
continued to grow at a steady pace
and achieved multiple milestones.
This includes the construction of
the longest 400 kV Transmission
Line on Monopoles and the
successful testing of 5 types of
in-house designed monopoles for
four different clients, demonstrating
our in-house ‘concept to
commissioning’ capabilities. In order
to maintain our advantage in this
segment, we have built a dedicated
team of engineers, designers and
marketing officers along with
investments in state-of-the-art
manufacturing units, equipped with
latest machinery and innovative
procedures required for critical
manufacturing processes.
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éé We completed the architectural
illumination of the prestigious Bogibeel
rail-cum-road bridge. It is India’s longest
and Asia’s second longest rail-cum-road
bridge spanning over 4.94 km over the
mighty Brahmaputra River in Assam. 99

Our lllumination business continues
to maintain its dominating position
across various sub-segments such
as street lighting, industrial lighting
and commercial lighting. With
evolving consumer preferences,

we strongly emphasised on
connected and smart solutions.
Our robust end-to-end capabilities
under one-roof, right from R&D,
production and supply to execution
and services, enabled us to stay
ahead of our peers. During the
year under review, we completed
the architectural illumination of
the prestigious Bogibeel rail-cum-
road bridge. It is India’s longest and
Asia’s second longest rail-cum-
road bridge spanning over 494

km over the mighty Brahmaputra
River in Assam. This project was
highly appreciated globally and
was recognised with the ISA -
International Solid State Lighting
Alliance, SSL Top 100 Award in 2019.

While our businesses continue

to evolve and progress, the true
foundation for our next decade
of growth is being laid through

a comprehensive Organisational
Transformation. We have initiated
multiple initiatives in this regard.
We are strengthening our talent
pool, including at the senior most
levels, with the induction of key
senior executives. We are revamping
various processes and systems
across the Company to drive

more collaborative, responsive,
robust and secure operational
performance. We have also recently
implemented and launched SAP
Success Factors, a key platform to
support our people practices. We
are in the process of revamping
our Performance Management
Systems to build a best-in-class,
high performance framework.

And above all, we are weaving
together a strong organisational
culture that binds our people and
channelises their energy and talent
to deliver exceptional growth for
the Company. | believe all these
transformative initiatives will
equip us with greater agility and
resilience, driving us to ensure
excellence across our operations.

While we drive our business and
organisation, we have always
been proud of our values and
contributions to society. Through
our CSR activities, we strive to
contribute towards a holistic
development of society at large,
with an emphasis on environment,
education, healthcare, community
development and promotion of
art and culture. We also inspire
our people to contribute towards
the upliftment of society, through
participation in various activities
and initiatives and encourage them
to offer monetary contributions,
wherever necessary.

As the last fiscal came to a close,
we have all faced major challenges
posed by the COVID-19 outbreak
and the subsequent nationwide
lockdown. This has impacted the
economy as well as business
performances in the last quarter
of the year and is expected to
affect performances in FY 2020-21.
However, we have braced ourselves
for it and our teams have been
efficiently responding to it. This is

a testimony to the agility that we
are developing as an organisation.
So, while the environment remains
challenging, | am confident that we,
as an industry and as a company,
will recover faster, relative to many
others. And even as we address
the short-term cautiously, we shall
remain firmly focused on our longer
term strategic objective of driving
growth.

| would like to acknowledge and
thank our entire management
team, employees, and business
associates for all their contributions
and efforts and for being a part

of this transformative journey. |
specially take this opportunity to
thank our Executive Director, Anuj
Poddar for his contributions to Bajaqj
Electricals’ transformation journey.
Finally, to my colleagues on the
Board, your support and guidance

is invaluable for the Company. Most
importantly, | remain grateful to you,
our shareholders, and as we embark
on our journey to the future we all
remain committed to continuously
deliver value to you.

Yours sincerely,

Shekhar Bajaj
Chairman & Managing Director

» Corporate Overview ¢ .

Financial Overview - Sustaining Growth Year-on-Year |

FINANCIAL ®OVERVIEW -
SUSTAINING GROWTH YEAR-ON-YEAR

Gross Revenue (Z in crore) Net Worth (T in crore)
10-11 2763 10-11 611
11-12 3125 11-12 700
12-13 3396 12-13 729
13-14 4,059 13-14 710
14-15 4,282 14-15 693
15-16 4,675 15-16 756
16-17 4,334 16-17 872
17-18 4770 17-18 945
18-19 6,739 18-19 1078
19-20 5,030 19-20 me————————————————— 379
EBITDA (Z in crore) Market Capitalisation (% in crore)
10-11 259 10-11 2318
11-12 252 11-12 1952
12-13 128 12-13 1742
13-14 97 13-14 2905
14-15 113 14-15 2332
15-16 282 15-16 1922
16-17 273 16-17 3171
17-18 347 17-18 5756
18-19 414 18-19 5715
19-20 I 260 19-20 EEEE—— 3,054
Total Debt  in crore) Debt-Equity Ratio (in times)
10-11 116 10-11 002
11-12 192 11-12 027
12-13 166 12-13 023
13-14 348 13-14 049
14-15 409 14-15 0.60
15-16 275 15-16 0.37
16-17 624 16-17 072
17-18 723 17-18 077
18-19 1,582 18-19 147

957 0.69

19-20 —

19-20 I—
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
(ADDITIONAL)
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EMPOWERING LIVES -
CREATING A DIFFERENCE

Bajaj Electricals
continues to focus
on the larger goal

of nation building,
aligned to our Vision
of ‘Enhancing quality
of life and bringing
happiness with
sustainability’.

Through our social investments, we
address the needs of communities
& stakeholders with dedicated
programmes pertaining to tobacco
control, education, environment
conservation & waste management,
renewable energy, infrastructure

& community development, and
response to natural calamities.

- ?5.1"‘ crore

INVESTED TOWARDS CSRACTIVITIES

— ~196,875 —

BENEFICIARIES IN FY 2019-20

— 2,413 ——

LOCATIONS COVERED

The major CSR initiatives
undertaken during the year were
across five focus areas, namely:

S &

Environmental Education and
Sustainability Community
Development

Promotion of Arts & Culture
Preventive

Healthcare t

Other Initiatives

Environmental
" Sustainability
Bajaj Electricals stands committed
to not only plant trees each year
but educate and involve our diverse
stakeholders to be a part of our
journey to ensure environmental
sustainability. Trees play an integral
role to ensure ecological viability
by providing oxygen, improving air
quality, conserving water, preserving
soil and supporting wildlife. The
tree plantation sites are identified
by employees and NGO partners.
Plantations are done on a pan-India
basis in areas such as schools,
colleges, central police canteens,
wasteland /community farms for
economically weaker farmers. To
check the number of trees planted
and to provide access to saplings,
a database has been created
and sapling nurseries have been
set up at specific locations. Our
employees/NGO partners engage in
tree plantation and also take care
of its maintenance. It, thus creates
a participative approach towards
this initiative. We planted 90,535
trees as of March, 2020.

In addition, under our ‘Clean India’
initiative, we addressed the concern
of garbage dumping & associated
Green House Gas (GHG) emissions,
by means of municipal solid waste
management initiatives and beach
cleanup drives. We managed over
3 Tonnes of waste scientifically, at
the ward level, Gram Panchayat
level and with individuals, creating
a positive impact on the lives of
over 35,000 people. Similarly,

to reduce the dependence on
kerosene lamps and encourage the
use of sustainable energy, we have
installed solar projects in remote
areas of North East, North West

& Central India. The solar projects
have also created employment
opportunities for people in

these areas and have therefore,
empowered people with new means
of livelihood.

These projects were implemented
through Hariyali, Swacch
Association, Seva Sahyog
Foundation, Raah Foundation,
Global Himalayan Expedition and
Bajaj Electricals Foundation.

Education and
Community
Development

During the year, through Bajgj
Electricals Foundation, we
concentrated our efforts to promote
education and offer resources
through our Bridge the Gap -
Shiksha- Vikas programme. Through
this programme, we supported
government aided, non-aided
schools and anganwadis to provide
access to better educational
infrastructure and nurture children
through various capacity building
programmes that ensure holistic
development of students from
socio-economically disadvantaged
backgrounds.

These projects were implemented
in partnership with Seva Sahayog
Foundation, Prafulla Dahanukar
Art Foundation, Ramakrishna
Lokshiksha Parishad, AIM for
Seva, United Way of Mumbai and
benefitted 174 schools.

» Corporate Overview ¢

Empowering Lives - Creating a Difference |

' Promotion of
v Preventive

Healthcare

We have taken initiatives for
‘Tobacco Control’ under the

larger umbrella of promoting
preventive healthcare to promote
the message ‘Yes to Life, No to
Tobacco’, thus focusing on our
mission of eradicating tobacco
consumption from society.

Through several initiatives such

as Anti-tobacco awareness and
cessation programmes, we are
working on creating tobacco free
environments, while emphasising on
the importance of our tobacco free
mission. To achieve this objective,
Bajaj Electricals has adopted a
threefold strategy:

Tobacco Free School programme
focuses on educating and
equipping the youth about the
menace of tobacco by making their
school environment tobacco free.
The programme is implemented in
collaboration with partner NGOs
and it aims at implementing

the Tobacco Free Educational
Institution Guideline set by Ministry
of Health and Family Welfare, Govt.
of India.

Tobacco Free Workplace
Programme focuses on protecting
the internal employees as

well as employees of vendor
organisations from the threats of
tobacco. Awareness programmes
and cessation services are also
organised to prevent tobacco
consumption.

Employee participation forms an
important part of our commitment
to create a sustainable ecosystem
for all. The employees of Bajqj
Electricals spearhead the tobacco
free mission by creating awareness
programmes and driving tobacco
cessation services to the masses.
The employees help to implement
the Tobacco awareness and
cessation programme in schools
and among vendor organisations.

This was done with our NGO
partner, Salaam Mumbai
Foundation.
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A Arts & Culture

In the last one year, in the area

of arts and culture, our focus was
on the ‘Sadanand’ project. It is a
community based interactive arts
initiative that has been introduced
in old age homes. The theme of the
project is Yoy of Art’ and has been
undertaken in collaboration with

‘Bajaj Electricals Limited (BEL)

local artisans to create murals with
specific themes in four locations

— Aurangabad, Mumbai, Igatpuri
and Kolhapur. Under this project,

a team of artists, in consultation
with the residents, created specific
themes that were translated into
murals in various old age homes.

Other Initiatives

We also participated in major
running events across 4 cities

in India, where 581 employees
participated in support of our
charity partners working in the field
of environment and promotion of
arts & culture.

Bajaj Electricals’ employees
contributed an amount equivalent
to their one-day salary and an
equivalent amount was contributed
by us, via our CSR funds, to revive
and refurbish Anganwadis impacted
by floods in Maharashtra, through
our NGO partner United Way of
Mumbai. A total of 340 children
benefitted from this initiative.

Besides, we undertook employee-
volunteering activities across

our four focus areas - Green
India, Clean India, Shiksha Vikas
and Tobacco Control, wherein

our employees clocked 4,873
volunteering days across India.

» Corporate Overview « Statutory Reports « Financial Statements |

NEW COLLECTION:

ESSENTIALS AND MORE

A

D, Consumer Appliances
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AWARDS &
ACCOLADES

Bajaj Electricals was honoured
in USA with The 2019
Association of Supply Chain
Management (ASCM) Award
of Excellence- Corporate
Transformation

w

Felicitated with Express
Computer IT Award in Mumbai,
India

v

The Global SSL Showcase 100,
2019 Award by International
SSL Alliance (ISA) was
presented to Bajaj Electricals
in Shenzhen, China for
illuminating the Bogibeel Rail-
cum-Road Bridge in Dibrugarh,
Assam, India

“BAJAJ ELECTRIGALS WINS ASGM CORFORATE AWAKD OF EXCELLENCE

CORPORATE TRANSFORMATION"

/

® TOCICO, a global organisation,
felicitated Bajaj Electricals with
Process of Ongoing Improvement
(POOGI) Award 2019 in Chicago,
USA

w

® Conferred with Fire and Security
Association of India (FIST) Award for
Safe and Secure Mall for our project
Market City Kurla, Mumbai which is
run on Bajaj Electricals’ IBMS
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Notice ‘

Notice of the Annual General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013

NOTICE is hereby given that Eighty-first (81st) Annual
General Meeting ("“AGM") of Bajaj Electricals Limited will
be held on Friday, the 28th day of August, 2020 at 02.30
p.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing (“VC")/Other
Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following
business:

Ordinary Business:

1

To receive, consider and adopt: (a) the audited
financial statement of the Company for the financial
year ended March 31, 2020 and the reports of the
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and (b)
the audited consolidated financial statement of
the Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2020 and the report of Auditors thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Smt. Pooja Baijaqj
(DIN: 08254455), who retires by rotation and, being
eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

To appoint a Director in place of Shri Anuj Poddar
(DIN: 01908009), who retires by rotation and, being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Special Business:

4.

To appoint Shri Shailesh Haribhakti (DIN: 00007347)
as an Independent Director and in this regard, to
consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 149, 152, 161, Schedule IV and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 (the “Act”) and the Rules made thereunder,
the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, (including any statutory
amendment(s), modification(s), clarification(s),
substitution(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the
time being in force), and in terms of Articles of
Association of the Company, Shri Shailesh Haribhakti
(DIN: 00007347), who was appointed by the Board of
Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as
the “Board”, which term shall be deemed to include,
unless the context otherwise require, any committee
of the Board or any director(s) or officer(s)
authorised by the Board to exercise the powers

conferred on the Board under this Resolution) as an
Additional Director (Non-Executive & Independent)
of the Company with effect from August 7, 2019
and in respect of whom the Company has received
a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act
from a Member proposing his candidature for the
office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an
Independent Director of the Company to hold office
for a term of five consecutive years upto August 6,
2024, not liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is
hereby authorised to do all acts, deeds, matters
and things, and to take all such steps as may be
necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this
Resolution and to settle any questions, difficulties or
doubts that may arise in this regard.”

To ratify the remuneration of Cost Auditors for the
financial year ending March 31, 2021 and in this
regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or
without modification(s), the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory amendment(s), modification(s),
clarification(s), substitution(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof for the time being in force) and pursuant
to the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
the remuneration payable to Messrs R. Nanabhoy &
Co., Cost Accountants (Firm Registration Number:
000010), appointed by the Board of Directors of
the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”,
which term shall be deemed to include, unless the
context otherwise require, any committee of the
Board or any director(s) or officer(s) authorised by the
Board to exercise the powers conferred on the Board
under this Resolution) as Cost Auditors to conduct
the audit of the cost records of the Company for the
financial year ending March 31, 2021, amounting to
¥1,43,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Forty Three Thousand
only) (excluding all taxes and reimbursement of out-
of-pocket expenses) be and is hereby ratified and
confirmed.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is
hereby authorised to do all acts, deeds, matters



‘ 81t Annual Report 2019-20
‘Bajaj Electricals Limited (BEL)

and things, and to take all such steps as may be
necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this
Resolution and to settle any questions, difficulties or
doubts that may arise in this regard.”

To approve the Borrowing by way of Issue of Securities
and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to
pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 42 and 71 of the Companies Act, 2013
(the “Act”) read with the Companies (Prospectus
and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 and all
other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, as may be applicable, and other
applicable guidelines and regulations issued by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or
any other law for the time being in force (including
any statutory amendment(s), modification(s),
clarification(s), substitution(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof for the time being in force) and in terms of
the Articles of Association of the Company, approval
of the Members of the Company be accorded to
authorise the Board of Directors of the Company
(hereinafter referred to as the “Board”, which term
shall be deemed to include, unless the context
otherwise require, any committee of the Board or
any director(s) or officer(s) authorised by the Board
to exercise the powers conferred on the Board under
this Resolution) to borrow from time to time, by way
of securities including but not limited to secured/
unsecured redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures
(NCDs) and/or Commercial Papers (CPs) to be issued
under private placement basis, in domestic and/or
international market, in one or more series/tranches
aggregating upto an amount not exceeding ¥ 500
crore (Rupees Five Hundred Crore only), issuable/
redeemable at discount/par/premium, under one
or more shelf disclosure documents, during the
period of one year from the date of this Annual
General Meeting, on such terms and conditions as
the Board may, from time to time, determine and
consider proper and most beneficial to the Company
including as to when the said NCDs and/or CPs be
issued, the consideration for the issue, utilisation
of the issue proceeds and all matters connected
with or incidental thereto; provided that the said
borrowings shall be within the overall borrowing limit
of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is
hereby authorised to do all acts, deeds, matters
and things, and to take all such steps as may be

necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this
Resolution and to settle any questions, difficulties or
doubts that may arise in this regard.”

To approve giving loan or guarantee or providing
security in connection with loan availed by any of
Company’s subsidiary or other person specified
under section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013
and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to
pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of earlier special
resolution passed by the Members of the Company
through postal ballot dated March 26, 2019 and
pursuant to the provisions of Section 185 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 (the “Act”) andthe Companies (Meeting of Board
and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
amendment(s), modification(s), clarification(s),
substitution(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the
time being in force) and in terms of the Articles
of Association of the Company, approval of the
Members of the Company be accorded to the Board
of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to
as the “Board”, which term shall be deemed to include,
unless the context otherwise require, any committee
of the Board or any director(s) or officer(s) authorised
by the Board to exercise the powers conferred on
the Board under this Resolution) for giving loan(s)
including loan represented by way of Book Debt (the
“Loan(s)”) to, and/or giving of guarantee(s), and/
or providing of security(ies) in connection with any
Loan(s) taken/to be taken by any entity which is
a subsidiary or associate or joint venture or group
entity of the Company or any person in which any
director of the Company is deemed to be interested
(hereinafter referred to as the “Entity/Entities”),
upto a sum not exceeding ¥ 675 crore (Rupees Six
Hundred and Seventy Five Crore Only) at any point in
time, in its absolute discretion deem beneficial and
in the interest of the Company, provided that such
Loan(s) is/are utilised by the Entity/Entities for its/
their principal business activities.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of
giving effect to this Resolution, the Board be and is
hereby authorised to negotiate, finalise and agree to
the terms and conditions of the aforesaid Loan(s)/
guarantee/security, and to take all necessary
steps, to execute all such documents, instruments
and writings and to do all necessary acts, deeds,
matters and things in order to comply with all the
legal and procedural formalities, including but not
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limited to making requisite filings with any statutory
authorities/regulatory bodies, in India or abroad, and
to do all such acts, deeds, matters or things incidental
or expedient thereto and as the Board may think fit
and suitable in the interest of the Company and to
settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may
arise in this regard.”

Notice ‘

employee from 40,000 (Forty Thousand) Options
to 1,00,000 (One Lakh) Options under the Scheme
and accordingly update the Sub-clause 3.2 of the
Scheme by replacing the 40,000 (Forty Thousand)
Options with 1,00,000 (One Lakh) Options.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of
the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”,

8. To approve amendments in the ‘Bajaj Electricals which term shall be deemed to include, unless the
Limited Employee Stock Option Plan 2015’ and in this context otherwise require, any committee of the
regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or Board or any director(s) or officer(s) authorised
without modification(s), the following resolution as a by the Board to exercise the powers conferred on
Special Resolution: the Board under this Resolution) be and is hereby

authorised on behalf of the Company to do all such
“RESOLVED THAT in partial modification of earlier acts, deeds, matters and things and sign deeds,
special resolution passed by the Members of the documents, letters and such other papers as may be
Company through postal ballot dated January necessary, desirable and expedient, as it may in its
21, 2016 approving the ‘Bajaj Electricals Limited absolute discretion deem fit or necessary or desirable
Employee Stock Option Plan 2015 ("ESOP 20157/ for such purpose including giving effect to this
“Scheme”), pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 7 resolution with power on behalf of the Company to
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may
Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 read arise in this regard in conformity with the provisions
with the Circular No. CIR/CFD/POLICY CELL/2/2015 of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI SBEB Regulations,
issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
on June 16, 2015 (Collectively referred to as “SEBI Company and other applicable laws.”
SBEB Regulations”), the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure )
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the provisions of By Order of the Board of Directors
the Section 62(1)(b) and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made Ajay Nagle
thereunder, the provisions of the Memorandum and EVP and Head - Legal & Company Secretary
Article of Association of the Company, subject ICSI Membership No. A9855
further to such other approvals, permissions and Mumbai, June 19, 2020
sanctions as may be necessary, subject to such
conditions and modifications as maybe prescribedor ~ Registered Office:
imposed while granting such approvals, permissions 45/47, Veer Nariman Road, Mumbai 400 001, India
and sanctions, the approval of the Company be and CIN: L31500MH1938PLC0O09887
is hereby accorded to amend the Scheme by way of ~ Website: www.bajajelectricals.com
increasing the maximum number of employee stock E-mail: legal@bajajelectricals.com
options (“Options”) to be granted to an individual Tel: +91 22 6110 7800 / 6149 7009

Notes: Members at a common venue. In compliance with the

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI

1. In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”") has vide its
circular dated May 5, 2020 read with circulars dated
April 8,2020 and April 13,2020 (collectively referred
to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted the holding of the
Annual General Meeting ("AGM”) through Video
Conferencing (“VC")/Other Audio Visual Means
(“OAVM"), without the physical presence of the

Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and
MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being
held through VC/OAVM.

2. The Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act,
setting out the material facts in respect of special
businesses under Item Nos. 4-8 is annexed hereto.


http://www.bajajelectricals.com
mailto:legal%40bajajelectricals.com?subject=
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Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member
entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled
to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her
behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the
Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant
to the MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM, physical
attendance of Members has been dispensed with.
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies
by the Members will not be available for the AGM
and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are
not annexed to this Notice.

As per Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
as amended, securities of listed companies can
be transferred only in dematerialised form with
effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of request
received for transmission or transposition of
securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks
associated with physical shares and for ease of
portfolio management, Members holding shares in
physical form are requested to consider converting
their holdings to dematerialised form. Members can
contact the Company or Company’s Registrars and
Transfer Agents, Link Intime India Private Limited
(“LinkIntime”) for assistance in this regard.

To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who
have not yet registered their email addresses are
requested to register the same with their Depository
Participant (DP) in case the shares are held by them
in electronic form and with Linkintime in case the
shares are held by them in physical form.

Members are requested to intimate changes, if
any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email
address, telephone/mobile numbers, Permanent
Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations,
power of attorney, bank details such as, name of
the bank and branch details, bank account number,
MICR code, IFSC code, etc, to their DP in case the
shares are held by them in electronic form and to
LinkIntime in case the shares are held by them in
physical form.

Members holding shares in physical form who
have not registered their email addresses with the
Company can get their email addresses registered by
clicking on the link: https://linkintime.co.in/femailreg/
email_registerhtml on the website www.linkintime.
co.in at the Investor Services tab by choosing the
e-mail registration heading and update their details
such as Name, Folio number, Certificate number,
PAN, mobile number and email id by uploading

10.

11.

12.

scanned copy of share certificate (front and back)
in pdf or jpeg format (uptolMB).

Members holding shares in demat form are requested
to update their email address with their respective DPs.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)
vide its earlier circulars have made the PAN as
the sole identification number for all participants
transacting in the securities market, irrespective
of the amount of the transaction. Members are
requested to submit their PAN details to their
respective DP in case of holdings in dematerialised
form or to Linkintime in case of holdings in physical
form, mentioning the correct folio number.

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act,
the facility for making nomination is available
for the Members in respect of the shares held by
them. Members who have not yet registered their
nomination are requested to register the same by
submitting Form No. SH-13. The said form can be
downloaded from the Company’s website. Members
are requested to submit the said details to their DP
in case the shares are held by them in electronic
form and to LinkIntime in case the shares are held in
physical form.

Members holding shares in physical form, in identical
order of names, in more than one folio are requested
to send to the Company or Linkintime, the details
of such folios together with the share certificates
for consolidating their holdings in one folio. A
consolidated share certificate will be issued to such
Members after making requisite changes.

In case of joint holders, the Member whose name
appears as the first holder in the order of names as
per the Register of Members of the Company will be
entitled to vote at the AGM.

Members, intending to require information about the
Financial Accounts to be approved at the Meeting,
are requested to inform the Company at least a
week in advance of their intention to do so, so that
the papers relating thereto may be made available,
if the Chairman permits such information to be
furnished.

Members are requested to note that, dividends if not
encashed for a consecutive period of 7years from the
date of transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of the
Company, are liable to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”). The shares in

13.

14.

15.

16.
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respect of such unclaimed dividends are also liable
to be transferred to the demat account of the IEPF
Authority. In view of this, Members are requested to
claim their dividends from the Company, within the
stipulated timeline. The Members, whose unclaimed
dividends/shares have been transferred to IEPF, may
claim the same by making an online application to
the IEPF Authority in web Form No. IEPF-5 available

on www.iepf.gov.in.

It is in the Members’ interest to claim any un-
encashed dividends and for future, opt for Electronic
Clearing Service, so that dividends paid by the
Company are credited to the investor's account on
time. Members who have not yet encashed their
dividend warrant(s) from the financial year ended
March 31,2013 and onwards are requested to forward
their claims to Linkintime at Unit: Bajaj Electricals
Limited, C 101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West),
Mumbai - 400 083, Maharashtra. It may be noted
that once the unclaimed dividend is transferred to
IEPF as above, no claim shall rest with the Company
in respect of such amount. It may also be noted that
the unclaimed dividend amounts which were lying
with the Company upto the year ended on March
31, 2012, have already been transferred to IEPF. The
details of the unclaimed dividends are available on
the Company’'s website: www.bajajelectricals.com

and Ministry of Corporate Affairs website: www.mca.
gov.in.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars
and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, Notice of
the AGM along with the Annual Report 2019-20 is
being sent only through electronic mode to those
Members whose email addresses are registered
with the Company/Depositories. Members may
note that the Notice and Annual Report 2019-20
will also be available on the Company’s website
www.bajajelectricals.com, websites of the Stock
Exchanges ie. BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and

www.nseindia.com respectively, and on the website

of LinkIntime at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in.

Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM
shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the
quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

At the seventy-eighth AGM held on August 3, 2017
the Members approved appointment of S R B C &
Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration
No0.324982E/E300003) as Statutory Auditors of the
Company to hold office for a period of five years

17.

18.

19.

20.
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from the conclusion of that AGM till the conclusion
of the eighty-third AGM, subject to ratification of
their appointment by Members at every AGM, if so
required under the Act. The requirement to place
the matter relating to appointment of auditors for
ratification by Members at every AGM has been done
away by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 with
effect from May 7, 2018. Accordingly, no resolution
is being proposed for ratification of appointment of
statutory auditors at the eighty-first AGM.

Pursuant to Finance Act 2020, dividend income will
be taxable in the hands of shareholders w.ef. April
1, 2020 and the Company is required to deduct tax
at source from dividend paid to shareholders at the
prescribed rates. For the prescribed rates for various
categories, the shareholders are requested to refer
to the Finance Act, 2020 and amendments thereof.
The shareholders are requested to update their PAN
with the Company/Linkintime (in case of shares
held in physical mode) and Depositories (in case of
shares held in demat mode).

A Resident individual shareholder with PAN and
who is not liable to pay income tax can submit a
yearly declaration in Form No. 15G/15H, to avail
the benefit of non-deduction of tax at source by
email to rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in. Shareholders

are requested to note that in case their PAN is not
registered, the tax will be deducted at a higher rate
of 20%.

Non-resident shareholders can avail beneficial
rates under tax treaty between India and their
country of residence, subject to providing necessary
documents ie. No Permanent Establishment and
Beneficial Ownership Declaration, Tax Residency
Certificate, Form 10F, any other document which
may be required to avail the tax treaty benefits by
sending an email to rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in.

The Company has designated an exclusive e-mail
id legal@bajajelectricals.com to enable investors to

register their complaints/queries, if any.

Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the
Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

Instructions for e-voting and joining the AGM are as
follows:

VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the
Act and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and


http://www.iepf.gov.in
http://www.bajajelectricals.com
http://www.mca.gov.in
http://www.mca.gov.in
http://www.bajajelectricals.com
http://www.bseindia.com
http://www.nseindia.com
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in
mailto:rnt.helpdesk%40linkintime.co.in?subject=
mailto:rnt.helpdesk%40linkintime.co.in?subject=
mailto:legal%40bajajelectricals.com?subject=
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Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to
time and the provisions of Regulation 44 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, the Members are provided with
the facility to cast their vote electronically, through
the remote e-voting services provided by LinkIntime
on all Resolutions set forth in this Notice.

The remote e-voting period commences on August
25,2020 (9:00 AM.IST) and ends on August 27,2020
(5:00 PM. IST). During this period Members of the
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialised form, as on the cut-off date of August
21, 2020, may cast their vote by remote e-voting.
The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by
Linkintime for voting thereafter. Once the vote on
resolution is cast by the Member, the Member shall
not be allowed to change it subsequently.

Remote e-Voting Instructions for shareholders:

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL:
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in.

Those who are first time users of LinkIntime’s
e-voting platform or holding shares in physical
mode have to mandatorily generate their own
Password, as under:

«  Click on “Sign Up" under ‘SHARE HOLDER'
tab and register with your following details: -

A. User ID: Enter your User ID

«  Shareholders/Members holding
shares in CDSL demat account
shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID.

«  Shareholders/Members holding
shares in NSDL demat account
shall provide 8 Character DP ID
followed by 8 Digit Client ID.

«  Shareholders/Members holding
shares in physical form shall provide
Event Number + Folio Number
registered with the Company.

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent
Account Number (PAN) (Members who
have not updated their PAN with the
Depository Participant (DP)/Company
shall use the sequence number provided
to you, if applicable.

C. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth
(DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As

recorded with your DP / Company - in
DD/MM/YYYY format).

D. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank
Account Number (last four digits), as
recorded with your DP/Company.

«  Shareholders/Members holding
shares in CDSL demat account
shall provide either ‘C’ or ‘D', above.

«  Shareholders/Members holding
shares in NSDL demat account
shall provide ‘D', above.

+  Shareholders/Members holding
shares in physical form but have not
recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, shall provide
their Folio number in ‘D’ above.

« Set the password of your choice (The
password should contain  minimum 8
characters, at least one special Character
(@'#S8&*), at least one numeral, at least one
alphabet and at least one capital letter).

« Click “confirm” (Your password is now
generated).

NOTE: If Shareholders/Members are holding
shares in demat form and have registered on to

e-Voting system of LinkIntime: https://instavote.

linkintime.co.in, and/or voted on an earlier event

of any company then they can use their existing
password to login.

Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER' tab.

Enter your User ID, Password and Image
Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on
‘Submit’.

After successful login, you will be able to see the
notification for e-voting. Select ‘View' icon.

E-voting page will appear.

Refer the Resolution description and cast your
vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour /
Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution
details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link).

After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour /
Against, click on ‘Submit’. A confirmation box
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your
vote, click on ‘Yes', else to change your vote, click
on ‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote.

10.

11.

12.

13.
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Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than
Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians
are required to log on the e-voting system of
Linkintime at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

and register themselves as ‘Custodian / Mutual
Fund / Corporate Body'. They are also required to
upload a scanned certified true copy of the board
resolution /authority letter/power of attorney
etc. together with attested specimen signature
of the duly authorised representative(s) in
PDF format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund
/| Corporate Body’ login for the Scrutiniser to
verify the same.

If you have forgotten the password:

a. Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER' tab
and further Click forgot password?’

b. Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image
Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and Click on
‘Submit’.

In case Shareholders/Members is having valid
email address, Password will be sent to his/her
registered e-mail address.

Shareholders/Members can set the password
of his/her choice by providing the information
about the particulars of the Security Question
and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account
Number (last four digits) etc. as mentioned
above.

The password should contain minimum 8
characters, at least one special character
(@'#8&*), at least one numeral, at least one
alphabet and at least one capital letter.

It is strongly recommended not to share your
password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential.

For Shareholders/Members holding shares in
physical form, the details can be used only
for voting on the resolutions contained in this
Notice. During the voting period, Shareholders/
Members can login any number of time till they
have voted on the resolution(s) for a particular
“Event”. Shareholders/Members holding multiple
folios/demat account shall choose the voting
process separately for each of the folios/demat
account.

In case Shareholders/Members have any
queries regarding e-voting, they may refer
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the Frequently Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) and
InstaVote e-Voting manual available at https://
instavote.linkintime.co.in, under Help section or

send an email to enotices@linkintime.co.in or
contact on: - Tel: 022 —4918 6000.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING
THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER

Shareholders/Members are entitled to attend the
AGM through VC/OAVM provided by Linkintime by
following the below mentioned process:

a. Open the internet browser and launch the URL:
https://instameet.linkintime.co.in.

b. Select the ‘Company’ and ‘Event Date’ and
register with your following details:

A. Demat Account No. or Folio No.: Enter your
16 digit Demat Account No. or Folio No

«  Shareholders/Members holding shares
in CDSL demat account shall provide 16
Digit Beneficiary ID

«  Shareholders/Members holding shares
in NSDL demat account shall provide
8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit
Client ID

«  Shareholders/Members holding shares
in physical form shall provide Folio
Number registered with the Company

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account
Number (PAN) (Members who have not updated
their PAN with the Depository Participant
(DP)/Company shall use the sequence number
provided to you, if applicable.

C. Mobile No. Enter your mobile number.

D. Email ID: Enter your email id, as recorded
with your DP/Company.

c. Click ‘Go to Meeting’ (You are now registered for
InstaMeet and your attendance is marked for
the meeting).

Note: Shareholders/Members are encouraged to join
the Meeting through Tablets/Laptops connected
through broadband for better experience.

Shareholders/Members are required to use Internet
with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download
stream) to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.
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Please note that Shareholders/Members connecting
from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/
Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network. It is
therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fl or LAN
connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

In case the Shareholders/Members have any queries
or issues regarding e-voting, you can write an email
to instameet@linkintime.co.in or Call on Tel : 011 -
4941 1000 InstaMeet Support Desk, Link Intime
India Private Limited.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS/MEMBERS
TO REGISTER THEMSELVES AS SPEAKERS DURING
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

a. Shareholders/Members who would like to
express their views/ask questions during the
meeting may register themselves as a speaker
by sending their request mentioning their name,
demat account number/folio number, email id,
mobile number at least 3 days in advance with
the Company at legal@bajajelectricals.com.

b. Shareholders/Members will get confirmation on
first cum first basis depending on the availability
of time for the AGM.

c. Shareholders will receive ‘speaking serial number’
once they mark attendance for the meeting.

d. Shareholders/Members, who would like to ask
questions, may send their questions in advance
mentioning their name demat account number/
folio number, email id, mobile number at legal@
bajajelectricals.com. The same will be replied by
the Company suitably.

e. Please remember speaking serial number
and start your conversation with panelist by
switching on video mode and audio of your
device.

f. For a smooth experience of viewing the AGM
proceedings, Shareholders/Members who
are registered as speakers for the event are
requested to download and install the ‘Webex
Meetings’ application by clicking on the link:
https://wwwwebex.com/downloads.html/

g. Shareholders/Members are requested to
speak only when moderator of the meeting/
management will announce the name and serial
number for speaking.

Note: Those Shareholders/Members who have
registered themselves as a speaker will only be
allowed to express their views/ask questions during
the meeting. The Company reserves the right to
restrict the number of speakers depending on the
availability of time for the AGM.

Shareholders/Members should allow to use camera
and are required to use Internet with a good speed
(preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS/MEMBERS
TO VOTE DURING THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
THROUGH INSTAMEET

Once the electronic voting is activated by the
Scrutiniser during the meeting, Shareholders/
Members who have not already exercised their vote
through the remote e-Voting can cast the vote as
under:

a. On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link
for e-Voting “Cast your vote”.

b. Enter Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP
(received on the registered mobile number/
registered email Id) received during registration
for InstaMeet and click on ‘Submit’.

c. After successful login, you will see “Resolution
Description” and against the same the option
“Favour/ Against” for voting.

d. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option
i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number
of shares (which represents no. of votes) as on
the cut-off date under “Favour/Against’.

e. After selecting the appropriate option ie.
“Favour/Against” as desired and you have
decided to vote, click on “Save”. A confirmation
box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your
vote, click on “Confirm”, else to change your
vote, click on “Back” and accordingly modify
your vote.

f.  Once you confirm your vote on the resolution,
you will not be allowed to modify or change your
vote subsequently.

Note: Shareholders/Members, who will be present
in the AGM through InstaMeet facility and have not
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote
e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing
so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting facility
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during the meeting. Shareholders/Members who have
voted through Remote e-Voting prior to the AGM will
be eligible to attend/participate in the AGM through
InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote
again during the meeting.

Other Instructions

1. The Scrutiniser shall, immediately after the
conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the
votes cast during the AGM, thereafter unblock the
votes cast through remote e-voting and make, not
later than 48 hours of conclusion of the AGM, a
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consolidated Scrutiniser's Report of the total votes
cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman
or a person authorised by him in writing, who shall
countersign the same.

2. The result declared along with the Scrutiniser's
Report shall be placed on the Company’s website
www.bajajelectricalscom and on the website

of Linklntime https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

immediately. The Company shall simultaneously
forward the results to National Stock Exchange of
India Limited and BSE Limited, where the shares of
the Company are listed.

Explanatory Statement in respect of the Special Business
pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

Item No.4

In terms of policy(ies) of the Company for the
Appointment and Remuneration of Directors, and
pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (the “Committee”), the Board
of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) at its meeting
held on August 7,2019, appointed Shri Shailesh Haribhakti
as an Additional Director in the category of Independent
Director with effect from the said date. Pursuant to
the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the “Act”) and the Articles of Association of the
Company, Shri Shailesh Haribhakti hold office upto the
date of ensuing AGM and is eligible for appointment as
Director of the Company. As per Section 149 of the Act,
an Independent Director shall hold office for a term upto
five consecutive years on the Board of a company and
shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

Notice under Section 160 of the Act has been received
from a Member intending to propose the candidature of
Shri Shailesh Haribhakti for appointment as Director of the
Company. Shri Shailesh Haribhakti has given his consent to
act as Director. He is not disqualified from being appointed
as Director interms of Section 164 of the Act. The Company
has also received declaration from him stating that he
meets the criteria of independence as stipulated under
Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (the “SEBI Listing Regulations”).

Additional information in respect of Shri Shailesh
Haribhakti, pursuant to the SEBI Listing Regulations
and the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings, is
appearing in Annexure to this Notice.

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice
and Statement setting out material facts on Item
No4 will be made available for inspection through
electronic mode by writing to the Company at legal@
bajajelectricals.com from the date of circulation of the
AGM Notice till the date of the AGM i.e. August 28, 2020.

A copy of the draft Letter of Appointment for
Independent Directors, setting out terms and conditions
of appointment of Independent Directors is available
for inspection on the website of the Company
www.bajajelectricals.com.

Shri Shailesh Haribhakti, the proposed appointee, and his
relatives are interested in the resolution set out at Item
No.4 of the Notice. None of the other Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company, or their relatives,
are interested, financially or otherwise, in this Resolution.

In the opinion of the Board, Shri Shailesh Haribhakti,
the proposed appointee, fulfils the conditions specified
in the Act and the Rules made thereunder and the SEBI
Listing Regulations and that he is independent of the
management.

The Board is of the view that high acumen of Shri Shailesh
Haribhakti combined with his rich knowledge gained
from decades of experience will be of immense benefit
and value to the Company and, therefore, recommends
his appointment as set out at Item No.4 of the Notice
for the approval of the Members by way of an Ordinary
Resolution.
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Item No.5

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”),
at its Meeting held on June 19, 2020, upon the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved
the appointment of Messrs R. Nanabhoy & Co., Cost
Accountants, having Firm Registration Number 000010,
as Cost Auditors of the Company for conducting
the audit of the cost records of the Company, for the
financial year ending March 31, 2021, at a remuneration
of ¥1,43,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Forty Three Thousand
only) (excluding all taxes and reimbursement of out-of-
pocket expenses).

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, Members of the Company are
required to ratify the remuneration to be paid to the Cost
Auditors of the Company.

Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought for
passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at ltem No.5 of
the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable
to the Cost Auditors for conducting the audit of the cost
records of the Company for the financial year ending
March 31, 2021.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company, or their relatives, are interested, financially
or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No.5 of the
Notice.

The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item
No.5 of the Notice for approval of the Members by way of
an Ordinary Resolution.

Item No.6

In terms of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
“Act”) read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus
and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 (the “Rules”),
a company shall not make private placement of its
securities unless the proposed offer of securities or
invitation to subscribe to securities has been previously
approved by the members of the company by a special
resolution. In case of an offer or invitation for offer of non-
convertible debentures, the company can pass a special
resolution once a year for all the offers or invitations to
be made for such debentures during the year.

In order to augment resources for, inter-alia, the ongoing
capital expenditure, long term working capital/short
term working capital and for general corporate purposes,
the Company may offer or invite subscription for
securities including but not limited to secured/unsecured
redeemable  Non-Convertible Debentures and/or

Commercial Papers, in one or more series/tranches on a
private placement basis, in domestic and/or international
market, issuable/redeemable at discount/par/premium.

The Company seeks to pass an enabling resolution to
borrow funds from time to time by offer of securities
including but not limited to Non-Convertible Debentures
and/or Commercial Papers for an amount not exceeding
T 500 crore (Rupees Five Hundred Crore only), at a
discount or at par or at a premium and at such interest
as may be appropriate considering the prevailing money
market conditions at the time of borrowing.

The details of the Paid-up Capital & Free Reserves and
Outstanding Borrowings are as under:

(Amount: ¥ in crore)

Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
I
Paid-up Capital and Free 70946 758.15
Reserves
Outstanding Borrowings 95715 158221

The approval sought for offer of securities including
but not limited to Non-Convertible Debentures and/or
Commercial Papers, shall be within the overall borrowing
limit of the Company in terms of Section 180 of the Act.

Subject to the approval of the Members, the Board of
Directors of the Company (the “Board”) has approved
the aforesaid proposal vide its resolution dated June 19,
2020.

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice
and Statement setting out material facts on Item
No.6 will be made available for inspection through
electronic mode by writing to the Company at legal@
bajajelectricals.com from the date of circulation of the
AGM Notice till the date of the AGM i.e. August 28, 2020.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company, or their relatives, are interested, financially
or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Iltem No.6 of the
Notice.

The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item
No.6 of the Notice for approval of the Members by way of
Special Resolution.

Item No.7

The Members of the Company, vide their Special Resolution
dated March 26, 2019 passed by way of Postal Ballot,
authorised the Board of Directors of the Company (the
“Board”) under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013
(the “Act”) for giving loan(s) including loan represented by
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way of Book Debt to, and/or giving of guarantee(s), and/
or providing of security(ies) in connection with any loan
taken/to be taken by any entity which is a subsidiary or
associate or joint venture or group entity or to any person
in whom any of the director of the Company is deemed
to be interested (hereinafter referred to as the “Entity/
Entities”), upto a sum not exceeding T 450 crore at any
point in time, in its absolute discretion deem beneficial
and in the interest of the Company.

The details of aforesaid limit under Section 185 of the
Act vis-a-vis utilisation by the Company are as under:

(Amount: ¥ in crore)

Particulars Amount

Approval obtained under Postal Ballot from 450.00
Shareholders
Utilisation:

(i) Exposures of Loans/Guarantees given to/

on behalf of Subsidiary(ies):

Nirlep Appliances Private Limited 26.00
(ii) Exposures of Loans/Guarantees given to/

on behalf of Joint Venture(s):

Starlite Lighting Limited 271.80
(iii) Exposures of Loans/Guarantees given to/

on behalf of Associate Company(ies):

Hind Lamps Limited 2729
Total utilisation of limit 325.09
Available Limit 12491

The Company may have to render further financial
assistance to Entity/Entities from time to time for
principal business activities of such Entity/Entities and
therefore it is proposed to increase the aforesaid limit
from T 450 crore to ¥ 675 crore, with the approval of
Members under Section 185 of the Act by way of special
resolution.

The Members may note that Board would carefully
evaluate proposals and provide such loan, guarantee
or security through deployment of funds out of internal
resources/accruals and/or any other appropriate sources,
from time to time, only for principal business activities of
such Entity/Entities.

Subject to the approval of the Members, the Board has
approved an increase in the aforesaid limit from ¥ 450
crore to T 675 crore vide its resolution dated June 19, 2020.

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice
and Statement setting out material facts on Item No.7 will
be made available for inspection through electronic mode
by writing to the Company at legal@bajajelectricals.com
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from the date of circulation of the AGM Notice till the
date of the AGM i.e. August 28, 2020.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company, or their relatives, are interested, financially
or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No.7 of the
Notice except to the extent of the equity shares held
by them in the Company and/or to the extent that the
said Director(s) are common director(s) of such Entity/
Entities and/or to the extent that the KMPs are holding
shares in such Entity/Entities as a nominee and/or
to the extent that the said Director(s), KMPs and their
respective relatives are the directors, members of the
companies that hold shares in such Entity/Entities.

The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item
No.7 of the Notice for approval of the Members by way of
Special Resolution.

Item No.8

The Company had implemented the ‘Bajaj Electricals
Limited Employee Stock Option Plan 2015’ (“ESOP 2015"/
“Scheme”), with a view to attract and retain key talents
by way of rewarding their performance and motivate
them to contribute to the overall growth and profitability
of the Company. The Scheme was originally approved
by the Members of the Company by way of a special
resolution through postal ballot dated January 21, 2016
in due compliance of the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with relevant rules and
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 read with relevant
circular issued thereunder (“SEBI SBEB Regulations”).

With a view to retain and incentivise critical talents
and create entrepreneurial teams for ensuring superior
shareholders’ return and to facilitate employee cost
rationalisation by use of employee stock options
(“Options”),itisthought expedient to increase the erstwhile
individual limit from 40,000 (Forty Thousand) Options to
1,00,000 (One Lakh) Options per employee under Sub-
clause 3.2 of the Scheme by way of amendment.

As per provisions of Regulation 7 of the SEBI SBEB
Regulations, a company may vary the terms of the
Scheme provided that such variation is not prejudicial
to the interests of the option grantees/employees and
that the proposal is approved by the shareholders of the
Company by way of a special resolution.

The aforesaid proposed variation is not detrimental
to the interests of any option grantees/employees.
The beneficiaries of such variation shall be the option
grantees to whom options would be granted in future.
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Given the details of amendments, rationale thereof and
beneficiaries of such variation, consent of the Members
is being sought by way of a Special Resolution pursuant
to Regulation 7 of the SEBI SBEB Regulations read with
Section 62(1)(b) and all other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Act.

Features of the Scheme shall remain same as originally
approved except as stated above.

Subject to the approval of the Members, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors of
the Company have respectively approved the aforesaid
proposed amendment vide their respective resolutions
dated June 19, 2020.

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice
and Statement setting out material facts on Item
No.8 will be made available for inspection through
electronic mode by writing to the Company at legal@
bajajelectricals.com from the date of circulation of the
AGM Notice till the date of the AGM i.e. August 28, 2020.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company including their relatives are interested or

concerned in this resolution, financially or otherwise, in
the resolution set out at Item No.8 of the Notice, except
to the extent they may be lawfully granted options under
the Scheme.

The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item
No.8 of the Notice for approval of the Members by way of
Special Resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Ajay Nagle

EVP and Head - Legal & Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No. A9855

Mumbai, June 19, 2020

Registered Office:

45/47, Veer Nariman Road, Mumbai 400 001, India
CIN: L31500MH1938PLC009887

Website: www.bajajelectricals.com

E-mail: legal@bajajelectricals.com
Tel.: +91 22 6110 7800 / 6149 7009

Annexure

Information pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with the provisions of the Secretarial Standard on General
Meetings issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India regarding the Directors proposed

to be appointed/re-appointed:

Smt. Pooja Bdjaj

Director Identification Number

08254455

Date of Birth/Age

May 06, 1982 (38 years)

Qualifications

Experience (including expertise in
specific functional area)/Brief Resumes

Smt. Pooja Bajaj holds a bachelor's degree in commerce with
specialisation in foreign trade and a post-graduate diploma in human
resource management from Osmania University, Hyderabad. She is
a 1999-00 batch gold medalist from Nasr School, Hyderabad (A.P.)
having secured first position in commerce with 97% (ISC Board) and
was appointed as a Head Girl of the School for her leadership qualities.
She was awarded certificate of merit in college for securing 2nd position
in educational general proficiency in the year 2000-01. She was also
awarded a certificate of participation at the Fourth Commonwealth-
India Small Business Competitiveness Development Programme in
2006 and a certificate of accomplishment for participating in Mini-
MBA Management Essentials Programme in 2012 from Think Education.
She has been a Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director of the
Company since November 1, 2018.

Appointment/Re-appointment

Re-appointment on retirement by rotation.
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Terms and Conditions of Appointment/
Re-appointment

In terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Smt. Pooja Bajaj
who was appointed as Non-Executive Director at the Annual General
Meeting held on August 7, 2019, is liable to retire by rotation.

Remuneration last drawn (including
sitting fees, if any)

T 6.79 lakhs in the financial year 2019-20 (for remuneration details, please
refer the Corporate Governance Report).

Remuneration proposed to be paid

As per existing approved terms and conditions.

Date of first appointment on the Board

November 1, 2018

Shareholding in the Company as on
March 31, 2020

1,46,319 (0.13%) equity shares of T 2 each.

Relationship with other Directors/Key
Managerial Personnel

Daughter-in-law of Shri Shekhar Bajaj, Chairman & Managing Director.

Number of meetings of the Board
attended during the year 2019-20

5

Directorships of other Boards as on
March 31, 2020

Nil

Membership/Chairmanship of
Committees of other Boards as on
March 31, 2020

Nil

Shri Anuj Poddar

Director Identification Number

01908009

Date of Birth/Age

July 15, 1974 (45 years)

Qualifications

Experience (including expertise in
specific functional area)/Brief Resume

Shri Anuj Poddar has schooled in Mumbai, India and Michigan, USA and
is a rank-holding Chartered Accountant. He is a Fellow of the Inaugural
Class of Aspen Institute’s India Leadership Initiative and member of
Aspen Global Leadership Network, Trustee of Ananta Centre, a member
of BMW Foundation’s World Young Leaders’ Forum and has been on the
Governing Council of CllI-Young Indians.

He was a member of the Leadership Team at Viacoml8. In his over-
decade long stint with Viacom18 he had a string of accomplishments.
He spearheaded the formation of Viacoml8, its foray into mass
entertainment with Colours and architected its very successful journey of
becoming one of India’s leading media and entertainment conglomerates.
He also set-up Viacom18's operations in USA and UK, led the acquisition
of the Indian Film Company leading to the set-up of Viacom18 Motion
Pictures and has led strategy for MTV Networks Asia. He was also
engaged in successfully repositioning and redefining the scale of the
regional entertainment space in India.

Prior to joining Viacom 18, he has had over a decade of myriad professional
experience in strategy consulting, mergers & acquisitions, advisory and
assurance with Arthur Andersen and KPMG, besides running his own
entrepreneurial ventures. In all his pursuits, he brings to fore a unique
blend of business acumen, diverse experience and deep insight into
human and consumer behaviour that enable him to build and run strong
successful businesses.

He has been an Executive Director of the Company since November 1,
2018.

Appointment/Re-appointment

Re-appointment on retirement by rotation.
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Terms and Conditions of Appointment/
Re-appointment

In terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Shri Anuj Poddar
who was appointed as an Executive Director at the Annual General
Meeting held on August 7, 2019, is liable to retire by rotation.

Remuneration last drawn (including
sitting fees, if any)

T 292.65 lakhs in the financial year 2019-20 (for remuneration details,
please refer the Corporate Governance Report)

Remuneration proposed to be paid

As per existing approved terms and conditions.

Date of first appointment on the Board

May 30, 2016 (As an Independent Director)

Shareholding in the Company as on
March 31, 2020

Nil

Relationship with other Directors/Key
Managerial Personnel

Not related to any Director/Key Managerial Personnel.

Number of meetings of the Board
attended during the year 2019-20

5

Directorships of other Boards as on
March 31, 2020

+ The Indian Society of Advertisers

Membership/Chairmanship of Nil
Committees of other Boards as on

March 31, 2020

Shri Shailesh Haribhakti

Director Identification Number 00007347

Date of Birth/Age

March 12, 1956 (64 years)

Qualifications

Experience (including expertise in
specific functional area)/Brief Resume

Shri Shailesh Haribhakti is an eminent chartered accountant. He is the
Chairman of New Haribhakti Business Services LLP and Mentorcap
Management Private Limited.

Having considerable experience in audit, tax and consulting, he is a Board
Chairman, Audit Committee Chair and Independent Director at some of
the country’'s most prominent organisations. He serves on the board of
several companies and advisory boards.

He is a well-known thought leader on the Indian Economy and Public
Policy. He is an ExTech (Exponential Technologies), ESG (Environmental,
Social, Governance) and IR (Integrated Reporting) evangelist.

He is also an author of two books - “The Digital Professional” and “Audit
Renaissance”. He is a strong supporter of clean and green environment
and is a pioneer of the concept of ‘innovating to zero’ in the social context.

Appointment/Re-appointment

Appointment

Terms and Conditions of Appointment/
Re-appointment

As per the resolution at Iltem No. 5 of the Notice convening this Meeting
and explanatory statement thereto read with terms and condition as
enumerated in the draft Letter of Appointment for Independent Directors.

Remuneration last drawn (including
sitting fees, if any)

T 951 lakhs in the financial year 2019-20 (for remuneration details, please
refer the Corporate Governance Report).

Remuneration proposed to be paid

As per existing approved terms and conditions.

Date of first appointment on the Board

August 7, 2019

Shareholding in the Company as on
March 31, 2020

Nil

Relationship with other Directors/Key
Managerial Personnel

Not related to any Director/Key Managerial Personnel.
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Number of meetings of the Board
attended during the year 2019-20

4

Directorships of other Boards as on
March 31, 2020

« ACC Limited

+  Ambuja Cements Limited

+ Bennett Coleman and Company Limited

+  Blue Star Limited

» Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited

« L&T Finance Holdings Limited

+  L&T Mutual Fund Trustee Limited

+  NSDL E-Governance Infrastructure Limited

+ Torrent Pharmaceuticals Limited

«  Bluevine Technologies Private Limited

+ Cloud Infosolutions Private Limited

- Epigeneres Biotech Private Limited

+ Gaja Trustee Company Private Limited

« IBS Fintech India Private limited

* Intuit Consulting Private Limited

» Mentorcap Management Private Limited

+ Planet People and Profit Consulting Private Limited

+ Foundation for Audit Quality

Membership/Chairmanship of
Committees of other Boards as on
March 31, 2020

ACC Limited
Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee — Member

Bennett Coleman & Company Limited
Audit Committee — Chairperson

Blue Star Limited
Audit Committee — Member

Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited
Audit Committee — Member

L&T Finance Holdings Limited
Audit Committee — Chairperson

L&T Mutual Fund Trustee Limited
Audit Committee — Member

NSDL e-Governance Infrastructure Limited
Audit Committee — Chairperson

Torrent Pharmaceuticals Limited
Audit Committee — Chairperson

Securities Transfer & Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee — Member
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Directors’ Report

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 81st Annual Report of the Company, together with the audited financial
statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2020. This Report states compliance as per the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and other rules & regulations as applicable to the

Company.

Financial Results

The highlights of the Standalone Financial Results are as under:

(Amount: T in crore, except for Earnings Per Share (“EPS"))

Particulars FY 2019-20 FY 2018-19
Revenue from Operations & Other Income 502972 6,738.57
Gross Profit before Finance Cost and Depreciation 25956 413.78

Less: Finance Cost 16916 115.88
Less: Depreciation 68.01 3846

Profit / (Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax 22.39 25944
Exceptional Items - -
Profit/(Loss) before Taxes 22.39 25944

Less: Provision for Tax expenses 2252 92.37
Profit/(Loss) after Tax (0.13) 16707
Less: Other Comprehensive Income 8.54 4.29
Add: Balance in Profit & Loss Account 314.12 19445
Less: Dividend including Dividend Distribution Tax paid during the year 4322 4310

Balance available for appropriation 26223 31412
Amount transferred to General Reserves - -
Basic EPS (%) (0.01) 1617
Diluted EPS (%) (0.01) 1613

The highlights of the Consolidated Financial Results are as under:

(Amount: T in crore, except for EPS)

Particulars FY 2019-20 FY 2018-19
Revenue from Operations & Other Income 5,033.39 6,744.36
Profit / (Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax 10.01 24351
Exceptional Items - -
Profit/(Loss) before Taxes 10.01 24351
Share of Profit / (loss) of subsidiaries, associates & joint ventures (2.85) (2.39)
Profit/(Loss) before Taxes 716 24112

Less: Provision for Tax expenses 1744 87.55
Profit/(Loss) for the period (10.29) 153.58
Basic EPS (3) (099) 14.87
Diluted EPS (%) (099) 14.83
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Return on Net Worth, Return on Capital Employed and EPS for the last four years and for the year ended March 31, 2020,

are given below:

Particulars

2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16

I
Return on Net Worth (%) (0.01) 15.50 8.85 12.35 1272
Return on Capital Employed (%) 8.20 1413 1343 1754 26.89
Basic EPS (after exceptional items) (%) (0.01) 16.34 8.23 10.65 948

The financial results of the Company are elaborated in
the Management Discussion and Analysis Report, which
forms part of the Annual Report.

State of Company Affairs / Operations

+  Revenue from Consumer Product Segment increased
by 12.55% to ¥3,084.62 crore.

+  Revenue from EPC Segment decreased by 51.89% to
¥1,891.76 crore.

+  Exportincreased by 24.17% to ¥113.86 crore.

As at March 31, 2020, the gross property, plant and
equipment, investment property and other intangible
assets including leased assets, stood at I452.24 crore
and the net property, plant and equipment, investment
property and other intangible assets, including leased
assets, at ¥283.73 crore. Capital Expenditure during
the year amounted to 2921 crore (¥54.60 crore in the
previous year).

The Company's cash and cash equivalent as at March
31, 2020 was ¥101.61 crore. The Company manages cash
and cash flow processes assiduously, involving all parts
of the business. The Company continues to focus on
judicious management of its working capital. Receivables,
inventories and other working capital parameters were kept
under strict check through continuous monitoring. Foreign
Exchange transactions are partly covered and there are no
materially significant uncovered exchange rate risks in the
context of Company’s imports and exports. The Company
accounts for mark-to-market gains or losses every quarter
end, are in line with the requirements of Ind AS 21.

During the year under review, the Company raised ¥34992
crore through Rights Issue with an objective to utilise
the proceeds for prepayment or repayment of all or a
portion of certain borrowings availed by the Company
and general corporate purposes.

The Company has not transferred any amount to the
General Reserves from retained earnings during the
current financial year.

During the year under review, there has been no change
in the nature of business of the Company.

Detailed information on the operations of the different
business segments of the Company are covered in the
Management Discussion and Analysis Report, which
forms part of the Annual Report.

Material changes and commitments affecting
the financial position of the Company which
occurred between the end of the Financial Year
to which this financial statement relate till the
date of this Report

Coronavirus (COVID-19) Pandemic

COVID-19 has set foot in India and across the globe
and has led the country towards a major slowdown.
This major health crisis has forced governments across
the globe to take unprecedented measures to protect
people’s lives. In a bid to combat the COVID-19 threat,
the nationwide lockdown in India was first announced by
the Government of India on March 24, 2020 which was
further extended in a phased manner.

The lockdown and restrictions imposed on various
activities due to COVID-19 pandemic, while being a
necessary measure to contain its spread, have also
posed unprecedented challenges to all businesses, and
the business operations of the Company have been no
exception to this.

The impact of COVID-19 has been disruptive on the
operations of the Company. With the lockdown in many
States/Union Territories across the country, the supply
chains have been put under stress which has resulted in
loss of business and temporary pressure on cash flows/
liquidity/profitability/margins due to lower collection of
receivables, operating expenses, payment obligations
towards vendors and statutory authorities, etc.

However, the management of the Company is confident
that the business operations will pick up progressively.
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Deposits

During the year under review, the Company has not
accepted any deposits covered under Chapter V of the
Act. Accordingly, no disclosure or reporting is required in
respect of details relating to deposits.

Share Capital

The paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on
March 31, 2020 was 2275 crore. The increase in number
of shares during the year is on account of (i) allotment of
11,287956 equity shares of ¥2 each to the eligible applicants
under Rights issue, details of which are provided later in
this Report; and (ii) allotment of 80,150 equity shares of 2
each to the employees upon their exercise of stock options.
These shares were included, on weighted average basis,
for the computation of EPS. The Company has not issued
shares with differential voting rights.

No disclosure is required under Section 67(3)(c) of the
Act, in respect of voting rights not exercised directly by
the employees of the Company, as the provisions of the
said Section are not applicable.

The equity shares of the Company continue to remain
listed on BSE Limited (“BSE”) and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”, and together with BSE,
“Stock Exchanges”). The listing fees for financial year
2020-21 have been paid to the Stock Exchanges.

Rights Issue

The Board at its Meeting held on January 6, 2020, had
approved the issuance of fully paid-up equity shares of
the Company for an amount not exceeding ¥350 crore
(Rupees Three Hundred Fifty Crore) by way of a rights
issue (the “Issue”) to eligible equity shareholders of the
Company on a record date and on such other terms
in accordance with applicable law, including the Act
and the rules made thereunder and the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended.

For the purposes of the Issue and incidental matters
thereof, a Rights Issue Committee of the Board,
consisting of Shri Shekhar Bajaj, Chairman & Managing
Director, Dr. (Smt.) Indu Shahani, Non- Executive
Independent Director, Shri Siddharth Mehta, Non-
Executive Independent Director and Shri Anuj Poddar,
Executive Director was formed.

The Rights Issue Committee at its Meeting held on
January 31, 2020 approved the issuance of upto
1,12,90,142 Equity Shares of face value of ¥2 each by way
of rights issue at a price of 310 per rights equity share
(including a premium of ¥308 per rights equity share)
aggregating up to T34999 crore (“Issue Size") on a rights
basis to the eligible equity shareholders in the ratio of 13
rights equity shares for every 118 equity shares held by
the eligible equity shareholders on the record date, that
is, February 6, 2020.

The Issue was opened for subscription on February 18,
2020 and closed on March 3, 2020, inclusive of both
days (“Issue Period”). For the purposes of the Issue, the
Designated Stock Exchange was BSE.

During Issue Period, the Issue was subscribed by the
eligible applicants up to 128.79% of the Issue Size. After
due consultation with BSE, the Right Issue Committee
at its Meeting held on March 13, 2020 approved the
allotment of 11,287956 Rights Equity Shares, to the
eligible applicants in the Issue. The said Equity Shares
were listed and permitted to trade on the Stock
Exchanges with effect from March 18, 2020.

Further, in light of the Ministry of Finance (Department of
Financial Services) (Banking Division) and Reserve Bank
of India imposing a moratorium on Yes Bank Limited
("Yes Bank") with effect from 18.00 hours on March 5,
2020 until April 3, 2020, 2,186 Rights Equity Shares of
48 applicants who had made application for the Rights
Equity Shares using Applications Supported by Blocked
Amount ("ASBA") facility of Yes Bank, were kept in
abeyance and the same were to be allotted post receipt
of the requisite funds. The Company had given an option
to these applicants to make the payment within 15 days
from the date of lifting of moratorium on Yes Bank by
regulatory authorities, which shall thereafter be forfeited.

The moratorium on Yes Bank was lifted w.ef. March 19,
2020. Thereafter, during the given period of 15 days i.e.
upto April 2, 2020, the Company has received %2170
from 1 applicant in respect of 7 Rights Equity Shares.

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 14,
2020, has considered and approved the allotment of
these 7 Rights Equity Shares kept in abeyance, pursuant
to the Issue, to 1 applicant, at an issue price of ¥310 per
Rights Equity Share, including a premium of ¥308 per
Rights Equity Share. Further, since the Company has not
received the requisite funds from other 47 applicants,
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despite giving reminder, the balance 2,179 Rights Equity
Shares kept in abeyance for these applicants have
been forfeited pursuant to the approval of the Board
of Directors at the same meeting. The said 7 Equity
Shares were listed and permitted to trade on the Stock
Exchanges with effect from June 3, 2020.

The Company has fully utilised the proceeds of the Issue
with no deviation from the objects stated in the Offer
Document.

Depository System

The Company’s shares are compulsorily tradable in
electronic form. As on March 31, 2020, 98.52% of the
Company’s total paid up capital representing 112,084,851
equity shares are in dematerialised form.

In light of the provisions of Notification No. SEBI/LAD/
NRO/GN/2018/24 dated June 8, 2018 and Press Release
dated December 3, 2018 issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI"), Members may please
note that, with effect from April 1, 2019, transfer of
shares (except transmission and transposition of shares)
will be in dematerialised form only. In view of the above
and to avail advantages offered by the Depository
system as well as to avoid frauds, Members holding
shares in physical mode are advised to avail the facility
of dematerialisation from either of the Depositories
viz. National Securities Depository Limited and Central
Depository Services (India) Limited.
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Dividend & Dividend Distribution Policy

The Board of Directors has not recommended any
dividend on the Equity Shares of the Company for the
financial year 2019-20.

The Dividend Distribution Policy containing the
requirements mentioned in Regulation 43A of the SEBI
Listing Regulations is attached as Annexure A and forms
part of this Report. This Policy can also be accessed on
the Company’s website: www.bajajelectricals.com.

Non-Convertible Debentures Issued on Private
Placement Basis

During the financial year 2018-19, the Company issued
1850 Unsecured Listed Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures (“NCDs") of ¥10,00,000 each, aggregating to
%185 crore, on private placement basis, in 3 options viz,
Option A of 350 NCDs, Option B of 750 NCDs and Option C
of 750 NCDs, which are listed on National Stock Exchange
of India Limited under ISIN ‘INE1I93EO8038’, INE193E08020’
and ‘INE1I93EO8012, respectively. Out of the said NCDs,
Option A NCDs are due for redemption on February 19, 2021.

Axis Trustee Services Limited is the Debenture Trustee for
the Debenture holders, whose details are provided in the
Corporate Governance Section which forms a part of the
Annual Report. Further, pursuant to Regulation 53 of the
SEBI Listing Regulations, disclosures in compliance with
the Accounting Standard on “Related Party Disclosures”
are given in the notes to the financial statements.

Credit Rating

The below table depicts Company’s credit ratings profile in a nutshell:

Instrument Rating Agency

Line of Credit (“LOC") of 4,742.50 crore ICRA Limited

Rating Outlook
[ICRA]A- (for long-term LOC)
[ICRA]JA2+ (for short-term LOC)

N ti
NCD programme of 2350 crore ICRA Limited [ICRAJA- egative
Commercial Paper (“CP”) programme of ICRA Limited [ICRA]JA2+
Z500 crore CARE Ratings Limited CARE Al (A One) -

Note: Consequent to the Company'’s full repayment of CPs, the CARE Ratings Limited and ICRA Limited, at the request of the Company, have
taken cognisance of the same and subsequently as a process the above credit ratings of the Company’s CP programme have been withdrawn.

Further, at the request of the Company, ICRA Limited has also communicated withdrawal of the provisional credit rating assigned to Company’s
proposed NCD Programme of ¥150 crore (out of total NCD Programme of ¥350 crore) since the Company has not issued these NCDs.
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Related Party Transactions

Inline with the requirements of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated a Policy on Materiality
of Related Party Transactions which is also available on the Company’s website at www.bajajelectricals.com. The Policy
intends to ensure that proper reporting, approval and disclosure processes are in place for all transactions between
the Company and its Related Parties.

Allrelated party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for review and approval. Pursuant to the provisions
of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations with respect to omnibus approval, prior omnibus approval is obtained for
related party transactions on a yearly basis for transactions which are of repetitive nature and entered in the ordinary
course of business and are at arm'’s length. Transactions entered into pursuant to omnibus approval are verified by
the Finance Department and a statement giving details of all related party transactions are placed before the Audit
Committee and the Board for review and approval on a quarterly basis.

All transactions entered with related parties for the year under review were in ordinary course of business and at
arm’s length basis. No Material related party transactions, i.e. transactions exceeding 10% of the annual consolidated
turnover as per the last audited financial statement, were entered during the year by the Company. Accordingly, the
disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act, in Form AOC-2 is not applicable.
Further, there are no material related party transactions during the year under review with the Promoters, Directors or
Key Managerial Personnel, which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

All related party transactions are mentioned in the notes to the accounts. The Directors draw attention of the members
to Note No. 38 to the standalone financial statements which sets out related party disclosure.

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 34(3) and 53(f) read with clause 2 of Part A of Schedule V of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, the listed entity shall make disclosures in respect of loans and advances in compliance with the
Accounting Standard on Related Party Disclosures. The required disclosure is as under:

(Amount: T in crore)

Name Category Balance of loans and advances Maximum outstanding
as on March 31, 2020* during the year*

Nirlep Appliances Private Limited Subsidiary 2600 2600

(“Nirlep”)

Hind Lamps Limited (“Hind Lamps”) Associate 15.77 15.77

Starlite Lighting Limited (“Starlite”) Joint Venture - -

* Excluding trade advances.

During the year under review, the following person(s) or Particulars of Loans and Advances, Guarantees
entity(ies) belonging to the promoter/promoter group or Investments

which held 10% or more share in the paid-up equity
share capital of the Company: Pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the Act and
the rules framed thereunder, the particulars of the loans

Name of the person/entity Shareholding (%) given, investments made or guarantees given or security

Jamnalal Sons Private Limited 19.69
16.52 financial statements.

provided are given in the Notes to the standalone

Bajaj Holdings and Investment
Limited

Significant and Material Orders Passed by the

Disclosures of transactions pursuant to the provisions of Regulators or Courts

Regulation 34(3) and 53(f) read with clause 2A of Part A

of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations is attached There are no significant and material orders passed by
as Annexure B and forms part of this Report. the Regulators/Courts/Tribunal which would impact the
going concern status of the Company and its operations

in the future.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company is having a Policy on Corporate Social
Responsibility (“CSR”) and has constituted a CSR
Committee as required under the Act for implementing
various CSR activities. The CSR Committee comprised of
Shri Shekhar Bajaj, as the Chairperson of the Committee
and Dr. (Smt) Indu Shahani and Shri Siddharth Mehta, as
the members of the Committee. The CSR policy is available
on the website of the Company: www.bajajelectricals.com.

Other details about the CSR Committee are provided in
Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this
Report.

The Company has implemented various CSR projects
directly and/or through implementing partners and the said
projects undertaken by the Company are in accordance
with its CSR Policy and Schedule VIl to the Act.

Report on CSR activities asrequired underthe Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is
given in Annexure C, which forms part of this Report.

Business Responsibility Report

As per the provisions of Regulation 34(2) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, as amended, the Annual Report of the
top 1000 listed entities based on market capitalisation
shall include a Business Responsibility Report (“BRR").

The Company, being one of such top 1000 listed entities,
has included BRR for financial year 2019-20, as part
of this Annual Report, describing initiatives taken from
an environmental, social and governance perspective.
The BRR has also been hosted on the website of the
Company: www.bajajelectricals.com.

Corporate Governance

Maintaining high standards of Corporate Governance
has been fundamental to the business of the Company
since its inception.

As per Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, a separate section on corporate
governance practices followed by the Company, together
with the following declarations/certifications forms an
integral part of this Corporate Governance Reporting:

1. Adeclaration signed by Shri Shekhar Bajaj, Chairman
and Managing Director, stating that the members of
board of directors and senior management personnel
have affirmed compliance with the Company’s Code
of Business Conduct and Ethics;

Directors’ Report ‘

2. A compliance certificate from the Company's
Statutory Auditors confirming compliance with the
conditions of Corporate Governance;

3. A certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors
from the Secretarial Auditor of the Company; and

4. A certificate of the CEO and CFO of the Company,
inter alia, confirming the correctness of the financial
statements and cash flow statements, adequacy
of the internal control measures and reporting of
matters to the Audit Committee, is also annexed to
the Report on Corporate Governance.

Extract of Annual Return

As per provisions of Section 92(3) of the Act read
with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of Annual Return
in the Form MGT-9 is given in Annexure D, which forms
part of this Report.

Further, the Annual Return in the prescribed Form MGT-
7 is available on the website of the Company: www.
bajajelectricals.com.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report on the
operations of the Company, as required under the SEBI
Listing Regulations is provided in a separate section and
forms an integral part of this Annual Report.

Vigil Mechanism

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy to report
genuine concerns or grievances about any poor or
unacceptable practice and any event of misconduct and
to provide adequate safeguards against victimisation
of persons who may use such mechanism. The Whistle
Blower Policy has been posted on the website of the
Company: www.bajajelectricals.com.

Employees Stock Option Scheme

The Company implemented the Employees Stock Option
Scheme (“ESOP Scheme”) in accordance with the SEBI
(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014
(“SEBI SBEB Regulations”) as a measure to reward and
motivate employees as also to attract and retain talent.
There has been no material change in the ESOP Schemes
during the year under review and the ESOP Schemes are
in compliance with SEBI SBEB Regulations.
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During financial year under review, 4,65000 stock
options were granted to the eligible employees at the
market price prevailing on NSE as on the date of their
grant. Details of the shares issued under ESOP Scheme,
as also the disclosures in compliance with SEBI SBEB
Regulations is uploaded on the website of the Company
www.bajajelectricals.com, which forms part of this Report.
No employee has been issued stock options, during the
year, equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital of
the Company at the time of grant. The issuance of equity
shares pursuant to exercise of stock options does not
affect the profit and loss account of the Company, as
the exercise is made at the market price prevailing as on
the date of the grant plus taxes as applicable.

The Company has obtained a Certificate from the
Statutory Auditors stating that ESOP Scheme has been
implemented in accordance with the SBEB Regulations.
The said Certificate will be made available for inspection
through electronic mode by writing to the Company at
legal@bajajelectricals.com from the date of circulation of
the AGM Notice till the date of the AGM i.e. August 28,2020.

The Board, at its meeting held on June 19, 2020, has
approved the amendment to the ‘Bajaj Electricals Limited
Employee Stock Option Plan 2015 (“Scheme”) of the
Company by increasing the limit for maximum number
of employee stock options (“Options”) to be granted to
an individual employee from 40,000 (Forty Thousand)
Options to 1,00,000 (One Lakh) Options under the
Scheme, subject to the approval of the shareholders at
the ensuing 81st AGM of the Company.

Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate

Details of subsidiary/associate companies/joint ventures
of the Company:

Name of the % of shareholding Status
Company(ies) of the Company as
on March 31, 2020

Nirlep 79.85 Subsidiary
Hind Lamps 1900 Associate
Starlite 4700 Joint Venture

Performance of Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate

Nirlep: Total income of Nirlep for financial year 2019-
20 stood at ¥42.21 crore (Previous Year: T48.83 crore).
Loss for the year was at ¥4.36 crore (Previous Year Loss:
2198 crore).

Hind Lamps: Total income of Hind Lamps for financial year
2019-20 stood at 5909 crore (Previous Year: ¥57.71 crore).
Loss for the year was at ¥11.06 crore (Previous Year Loss:
¥12.58 crore).

Starlite: Total income of Starlite for financial year 2019-
20 stood at T173.44 crore (Previous Year: ¥13946 crore).
Loss for the year was at 4929 crore (Previous Year Loss:
39752 crore).

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act, a
Report on the performance and financial position of the
subsidiary, associate and joint venture included in the
Consolidated Financial Statement and their contribution
to the overall performance of the Company in Form AOC-
1is given in Annexure E, which forms part of this Report.

In accordance with the third provision to Section 136(1) of
the Act, the Annual Report of Company, containing therein
its Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements are
available on the Company’s website: www.bajajelectricals.
com. Further, as per fourth proviso to the said Section,
the annual accounts of the subsidiary, joint venture
and associate of the Company are also available on the
Company's website: www.bajajelectricals.com. Any member
who may be interested in obtaining a copy of the aforesaid
documents may write to the Company Secretary at the
Company’s Registered Office. Further, the said documents
will be available for examination by the shareholders of the
Company at its Registered Office during all working days
except Saturday, Sunday, Public Holidays and National
Holidays, between 11.00 a.m. to 01.00 p.m.

The Policy For Determining Material Subsidiary as
approved by the Board may be accessed on the
Company’s website: www.bajajelectricals.com.

Scheme of Arrangement for Demerger of
Manufacturing Business of Hind Lamps Limited
into the Company

The equity shareholders, unsecured creditors and
secured creditors at their respective meetings convened
by Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Bench at
Mumbai (“NCLT, Mumbai”) on February 21, 2019, February
22, 2019 and March 19, 2019, respectively, approved the
Scheme of Arrangement for demerger of manufacturing
business (“Demerged Undertaking”) of Hind Lamps
Limited into the Company under Sections 230-232
and other applicable provisions of the Act (“Scheme”).
Subsequently, the Company has filed a Petition with the
Hon’ble NCLT on March 28, 2019.

Similar Petition was filed by Hind Lamps Limited with
the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Bench at
Allahabad (“NCLT, Allahabad”) after receipt of approvals
from its equity shareholders, unsecured creditors and
secured creditors at their respective meetings convened
by NCLT, Allahabad.
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The NCLT, Allahabad and NCLT, Mumbai vide their orders
dated January 7, 2020 and May 21, 2020, respectively,
have approved the Scheme.

The Scheme shall be effective from the date on which
the certified copies of the order of the NCLT, Mumbai is
filed with the Registrar of Companies at Mumbai.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, pursuant to a
Scheme, the Company shall issue and allot 471420 fully
paid-up equity shares of the Company of the face value
of 2 each to the shareholders of Hind Lamps Limited
(except to the Company itself) as a consideration for the
demerger in compliance with the provisions of Section
2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, which was based
on the Share Entitlement Ratio (i.e. 97 equity shares of
the Company of the face value of T2 each for 1000
equity shares of HLL of the face value of ¥25 each),
as recommended by Messrs Katre Barwe & Associates,
Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, the independent
valuation firm, who were appointed as Independent
Valuer by the Company and Hind Lamps Limited.

Further, upon this Scheme coming into effect, the
Demerged Undertaking of Hind Lamps Limited shall
stand transferred to and be vested in or deemed to have
been transferred to or vested in, as a going concern, to
the Company with effect from the Appointed Date of
March 31, 2014 pursuant to a Scheme.

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors also present the audited consolidated
financial statements incorporating the duly audited
financial statements of the subsidiary, associate and
joint venture prepared in compliance with the Act,
applicable Accounting Standards and the SEBI Listing
Regulations and they form part of this Report.

Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2020 as per Schedule lll to the Act
forms part of this Report.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”)

During the year under review, pursuant to the provisions
of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder, the SEBI
Listing Regulations and the Articles of Associations of
the Company, the shareholders at the 80th AGM of the
Company approved the appointment of:

1. Smt.Pooja Bajaj (DIN: 08254455) as a Non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from November
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1, 2018, liable to retire by rotation, by way of passing
an ordinary resolution;

2. Shri Munish Khetrapal (DIN: 08263282) as Non-
executive Independent Director of the Company to
hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years
from November 1, 2018 to October 31, 2023, not
liable to retire by rotation, by way of passing an
ordinary resolution;

3. Shri Rajiv Bajaj (DIN: 00018262) as a Non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from May 22,
2019, liable to retire by rotation, by way of passing an
ordinary resolution; and

4. Shri Anuj Poddar (DIN: 01908009) as an Executive
Director in the whole-time employment of the
Company, with effect from November 1, 2018, liable
to retire by rotation, for a period of 5 (five) years
on such terms and conditions, by way of passing a
special resolution, as enumerated in the Notice of
the said AGM, including remuneration.

Further, on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the Board at its Meeting held
on August 7, 2019, appointed Shri Shailesh Haribhakti
(DIN: 00007347) as an Additional Director on the Board
of the Company in the category of Non-Executive &
Independent Director to hold office for a term of 5 (five)
consecutive years from August 7, 2019 to August 6, 2024,
subject to approval of the shareholders. Shri Shailesh
Haribhakti will hold office as an Additional Director
upto the ensuing AGM of the Company to be held on
August 28, 2020 and thereafter, subject to the approval
of the Members at the said AGM, as a Non-Executive
Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation. Brief
profile of Shri Shailesh Haribhakti has been given in the
Notice convening the ensuing AGM.

The Board is of the view that the high acumen of Shri
Shailesh Haribhakti combined with his rich knowledge
gained from decades of experience and his professional
integrity will be of immense benefit and value to the
Company and, therefore, it recommends his appointment
as an Independent Director. Further, Shri Shailesh
Haribhakti, owing to his experience is exempted from the
applicability of the online proficiency self-assessment
test as required to be undertaken by an Independent
Director under the provisions of Section 150 of the Act
and the rules framed thereunder.

Also during the year under review, based on the
recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, the Board at its meeting held on August 7,

2019, approved the re-appointment of Shri Shekhar Bajaj
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(DIN: 00089358) as a Managing Director of the Company
subject to approval of the Members by way of a special
resolution for a period of 5 (five) years, with effect from
November 1, 2019. Subsequently, with the approval of the
shareholders by a Special Resolution passed by postal
ballot on December 23, 2019, Shri Shekhar Bajaj was
re-appointed as a Managing Director with effect from
November 1, 2019, not liable to retire by rotation, for a
term of 5 (five) years.

As on the date of this Report, the Company’'s Board
comprises of eleven (11) Directors, out of which, nine (9)
are Non-Executive Directors (“NEDs") including two (2)
Women Directors of which one (1) is Woman Independent
Director. NEDs represent 81.82% of the total strength
of the Board. Further, out of the said nine (9) NEDs, six
(6) are independent directors representing 54.55% of
the total strength of the Board. The composition of the
Board is in conformity with the provisions of the Act and
also with Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Director coming up for retirement by rotation

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the
Act and the Company’s Articles of Association, Smt.
Pooja Bajaj (DIN: 08254455) and Shri Anuj Poddar (DIN:
01908009), are the Directors liable to retire by rotation
at the forthcoming AGM and being eligible offers
themselves for re-appointment. The Board recommends
their re-appointment for the consideration of the
Members of the Company at the forthcoming AGM. Brief
profiles of Smt. Pooja Bajaj and Shri Anuj Poddar have
been given in the Notice convening the ensuing AGM.

Independent Directors

All Independent Directors of the Company have given
declarations under Section 149(7) of the Act that they
meet the criteria of independence as laid down under
Section149(6) of the Act and Regulation16(1)(b) and other
applicable provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations. In
terms of Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
the Independent Directors have confirmed that they are
not aware of any circumstance or situation, which exists
or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair
or impact their ability to discharge their duties with
an objective independent judgement and without any
external influence. The Independent Directors hold office
for a fixed term of five years and are not liable to retire by
rotation. All Independent Directors of the Company have
valid registration in the Independent Director’'s databank
of Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs as required
under Rule 6(1) of the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Director) Fifth Amendment Rules, 2019.

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors,
fulfil the conditions of independence specified in Section
149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) and other
applicable provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The terms and conditions of appointment of the
Independent Directors are placed on the website of the
Company: www.bajajelectricals.com.

In compliance with the requirement of SEBI Listing
Regulations, the Company has put in place a
familiarisation programme for the independent directors
to familiarise them with their role, rights and responsibility
as directors, the working of the Company, nature of
the industry in which the Company operates, business
model, etc. The details of familiarisation programme are
explained in the Corporate Governance Report and the
same are also available on the website of the Company:
www.bajajelectricals.com.

Key Managerial Personnel

During the year under review, Shri Mangesh Patil
(FCS 4752) resigned as the Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer of the Company with effect from
January 6,2020. In view of the resignation of ShriMangesh
Patil, based on the recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, the Board at its Meeting
held on January 6, 2020, approved the appointment of
Shri Ajay Nagle (ACS 9855) as a Company Secretary
and Compliance Officer and designated him as a Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company with effect from
January 6, 2020.

Apart from the above there were no changes in the Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company during the year.

Number of Meetings of the Board

Five (5) Board meetings were held during the financial
year 2019-20. The intervening gap between the meetings
was within the period prescribed under the Act and SEBI
Listing Regulations. The details of the meetings of the
Board held during the financial year 2019-20 forms part
of the Corporate Governance Report.

Committees of the Board

The Board of Directors have the following Committees:
Audit Committee;
Nomination and Remuneration Committee;

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee;

F PR

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee;
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Risk Management Committee;
Finance Committee;
QIP Committee;

Rights Issue Committee; and

© ® N o«

Debenture Committee.

The details of the Committees along with their
composition, number of meetings and attendance at
the meetings are provided in the Corporate Governance
Report which forms a part of this Annual Report.

Board Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the SEBI
Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out the annual
performance evaluation of the Directors individually as
well as evaluation of the working of the Board and of
the Committees of the Board, by way of individual and
collective feedback from Directors. The manner in which
the evaluation was conducted by the Company and
evaluation criteria has been explained in the Corporate
Governance Report which forms part of this Annual
Report.

The Board of Directors expressed their satisfaction with
the evaluation process.

Policy on Directors’ Appointment and
Remuneration

The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays
down a framework in relation to appointment and
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel,
Senior Management and otheremployees of the Company
(“Policy”). The Policy broadly lays down the guiding
principles, philosophy and the basis for payment of
remuneration to Executive and Non-executive Directors
(by way of sitting fees and commission), Key Managerial
Personnel, Senior Management and other employees.
The Policy also provides the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of
Director and criteria for appointment of Key Managerial
Personnel/Senior Management and  performance
evaluation which are considered by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors
whilst taking a decision on the potential candidates.

The Board has made changes in the said Policy in
its meeting held on June 19, 2020 to align it with
the amendments made in the Act and SEBI Listing
Regulations.
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The above Policy is given in Annexure F, which forms part
of this Report, and has also been posted on the website
of the Company: www.bajajelectricals.com.

Risk and Internal Controls Adequacy

The Company’s internal control systems are
commensurate with the nature of its business and the
size and complexity of its operations. These are routinely
tested and certified by Statutory as well as Internal
Auditors and cover all offices, factories and key business
areas. Significant audit observations and follow up
actions thereon are reported to the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee reviews adequacy and effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control environment and monitors
the implementation of audit recommendations, including
those relating to strengthening of the Company’s risk
management policies and systems.

Based on the report of the Statutory Auditors, the internal
financial controls with reference to the standalone financial
statements were adequate and operating effectively.

Compliance with Secretarial Standards

The Company has complied with the applicable
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

Reporting of Fraud

There was no instance of fraud reported during the year
under review, which required the Statutory Auditors, Cost
Auditor or Secretarial Auditor to report the same to the
Audit Committee of the Company under Section 143(12)
of Act and Rules framed thereunder.

Risk Management

The Company has formulated a risk management policy
and has in place a mechanism to inform the Board
about risk assessment and minimisation procedures and
periodical review to ensure that executive management
controls risk by means of a properly designed framework.

Audit Committee

The Board at its meeting held on November 6, 2019, re-
constituted the Audit Committee and appointed Shri
Shailesh Haribhakti as the Member of the Committee. The
Board subsequently elected Shri Shailesh Haribhakti as the
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Chairman of the Committee with effect from January 7,
2020. The Committee comprises of four Directors viz. Shri.
Shailesh Haribhakti as the Chairman of the Committee,
Dr. (Smt.) Indu Shahani, Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh and Shri
Siddharth Mehtaq, as the members of the Committee.

During the year under review all the recommendations of
the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board. Other
details related to the Audit Committee are discussed in
the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of
this Annual Report.

Auditors and Auditor’s Report
Statutory Auditors

The Members at their 78th Annual General Meeting
(“78th AGM") of the Company held on August 3, 2017,
had appointed Messrs S R B C & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants (ICAI Registration No.324982E/E300003)
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office
for a term of five years i.e. from the conclusion of 78th
AGM till the conclusion of 83rd Annual General Meeting
of the Company to be held in 2022, subject to ratification
of their appointment by the shareholders, every year. In
accordance with the Companies Amendment Act, 2017,
enforced on May 7, 2018, by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, the appointment of Statutory Auditors is not
required to be ratified at every AGM.

The Company has received a certificate from Messrs S R
B C & Co. LLP, confirming that they are not disqualified
from continuing as Statutory Auditors of the Company.

The Auditors’ Report on the financial statements
forms part of this Annual Report. There has been no
qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer
given by the Auditors in their Report.

Cost Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the
Act read with the Rules framed thereunder, the cost
audit records maintained by the Company in respect
of its manufacturing activities are required to be
audited. Messrs R. Nanabhoy & Co. (Firm Registration
No.OO0010), Cost Accountants carried out the cost
audit for applicable businesses during the year.

Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
the Board of Directors have appointed Messrs R.
Nanabhoy & Co. (Firm Registration No.OOOO010), Cost
Accountants as Cost Auditors for the financial year
2020-21. The Company has received a certificate from

Messrs R. Nanabhoy & Co., confirming that they are not
disqualified from being appointed as the Cost Auditors
of the Company.

The remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors is required
to be placed before the members in the general meeting for
their ratification. Accordingly, a resolution seeking members’
ratification for the remuneration payable to Messrs R.
Nanabhoy & Co., Cost Accountants, is included at ltem No.5
of the Notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The particulars of the Cost Auditors and cost audit
conducted by them for financial year 2018-19 are
furnished below:

ICWA Membership No. 7464

Registration No. of Firm 000010

Address Jer Mansion, 70, August
Kranti Marg, Mumbai 400 036

Cost Audit Report Financial year 2018-19

Due date of filing of September 30, 2019

Report

Actual date of filing of  September 7, 2019

Report

Cost Records

As per Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, your Company is
required to maintain cost records and accordingly, such
accounts and records are maintained.

Secretarial Auditors

The Board had appointed Messrs Anant B. Khamankar
& Co., Practicing Company Secretaries (Membership
No. FCS 3198; CP No. 1860) as Secretarial Auditor to
conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for
the financial year ended March 31, 2020, as per the
provisions of Section 204 of the Act read Rules framed
thereunder. The Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3
is given as Annexure G and forms part of this Report.
The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any
qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 24A of the SEBI
Listing Regulations read with SEBI Circulars issued in
this regard, the Company has undertaken an audit for
the financial year 2019-20 for all applicable compliances
as per SEBI Regulations and Circulars/Guidelines issued
thereunder. The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report
duly signed by Messrs Anant B. Khamankar & Co,
Practicing Company Secretaries (Membership No. FCS
3198; CP No. 1860) has been submitted to the Stock
Exchanges within 60 days of the end of the Financial Year.
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Transfer to Investor Education and Protection
Fund

a) Transfer of Unpaid/Unclaimed Dividend to Investor
Education and Protection Fund:

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 124 and 125 of
the Act read with Investor Education and Protection
Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and
Refund) Rules, 2016 (“IEPF Rules”), as amended,
unpaid and/or unclaimed dividend of ¥11,67163.20
pertaining to the financial year ended on March 31,
2012 were transferred during the year to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”).

b) Transfer of shares to IEPF:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Act
read with the IEPF Rules, 14,192 equity shares of
face value of T2 each, in respect of which dividend
was not paid or claimed by the members for seven
consecutive years or more, have been transferred
by the Company to IEPF during the year. Details
of shares transferred have been uploaded on the
website of IEPF as well as the Company.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption
and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The information on conservation of energy, technology
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo
stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with
Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is
annexed herewith as Annexure H which forms a part of
this Report.

Human Resources and Industrial Relations

The Company takes pride in the commitment,
competence and dedication shown by its employees
in all areas of its business. The Company considers
people as its biggest assets and hence has put in
concerted efforts in talent management and succession
planning practices, strong performance management
and learning and training initiatives to ensure that it
consistently develops inspiring, strong and credible
leadership. Apart from continued investment in skill and
leadership development of its people, the Company has
also focused on employee engagement initiatives and
drives aimed at increasing the culture of innovation and
collaboration across all strata of the workforce. These
are discussed in detail in the Management Discussion
and Analysis Report forming part of the Annual Report.
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The relations with the employees of the Company have
continued to remain cordial.

Environment, Health and Safety

The Company is conscious of the importance of
environmentally clean and safe operations. The
Company’s policy requires conduct of operations in
such a manner so as to ensure safety of all concerned,
compliances of environmental regulations and
preservation of natural resources.

Protection of Women at Workplace

In order to comply with provisions of the Sexuadl
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules
framed thereunder, the Company has formulated and
implemented a policy on prevention, prohibition and
redressal of complaints related to sexual harassment of
women at the workplace. All women employees either
permanent, temporary or contractual are covered under
the above policy. The said policy has been uploaded on
the internal portal of the Company for information of
all employees. This has been widely disseminated. An
Internal Complaint Committee (ICC) has been set up in
compliance with the said Act.

There were two (2) cases of sexual harassment complaints
received by the Company in financial year 2019-20, and
both these complaints were disposed-off during the
year and therefore, no complaints were pending as at
March 31, 2020.

Particulars of Employees

Disclosures relating to remuneration and other details as
requiredinterms of the provisions of Section197(12) of the
Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
are given in Annexure |, which forms part of this Report.
Further, in terms of the first proviso to Section 136 of
the Act, the Reports and Accounts are being sent to
the shareholders excluding the information required
under Rule 5(2) and (3) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014. The said information will be made available for
inspection through electronic mode by writing to the
Company at legal@bajajelectricals.com from the date of
circulation of the AGM Notice till the date of the AGM i.e.
August 28, 2020.
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement
The Directors confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for
the year ended March 31, 2020, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures, if
any;

b) they have selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company at the end of the financial year and
of the loss of the Company for that period;

c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities;

d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going
concern basis;

e) they have laid down internal financial controls to
be followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating
effectively; and

f) they have devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

Relaxation granted by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (“MCA”) and Green Initiative

In view of continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the MCA
vide its general Circular Nos. 14/2020, 17/2020 and
20/2020 dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 5,
2020, respectively (collectively referred as “Circulars”),
permitted holding of the Annual General Meeting through
Video Conferencing or through other audio-visual means
facility, without the physical presence of the Members at
a common venue. Further, vide these Circulars, MCA has

also dispensed with the printing and dispatch of annual
reports to shareholders. In view of these Circulars and as
commitment to keep in line with the Green Initiative and
going beyond it to create new green initiatives, electronic
copy of the Annual Report 2019-20 of the Company,
inter-alia comprising Notice of 81st AGM, is sent to all
Members whose email addresses are registered with the
Company/Depository Participant(s).

Appreciation and Acknowledgement

The Directors place on record their deep appreciation
to employees at all levels for their hard work, dedication
and commitment, which is vital in achieving the over-all
growth of the Company.

The Board places on record its appreciation for the
support and co-operation the Company has been
receiving from its suppliers, distributors, business
partners and others associated with it as its trading
partners. The Company looks upon them as partners in
its progress and has shared with them the rewards of
growth. It will be the Company’s endeavour to build and
nurture strong links with the trade based on mutuality of
benefits, respect for and co-operation with each other,
consistent with consumer interests. The Directors also
take this opportunity to thank all Shareholders, Clients,
Vendors, Banks, Government and Regulatory Authorities
and Stock Exchanges, for their continued support.

The Directors regret the loss of life due to COVID-19
pandemic globally and are deeply grateful and have
immense respect for every person who risked their life
and safety to fight this pandemic.

Annexures
The following annexures form part of this Report:
a) Dividend Distribution Policy — Annexure A;

b) Disclosures of transactions pursuant to the
provisions of Regulation 34(3) and 53(f) read with
clause 2A of Part A of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing
Regulations — Annexure B;

c) Annual Report on CSR Activities — Annexure C;

d) Extract of Annual Return — Annexure D;
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e) Statement containing salient features of the
financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures — Annexure E;

f) Policy for Appointment and Remuneration of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior
Management and other employees of the Company
— Annexure F;

For and on behalf of
Board of Directors of Bajaj Electricals Limited

Shekhar Bajaj
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00089358

Anant Purandare
President & CFO

Mumbai
June 19,2020
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g) Secretarial Audit Report — Annexure G;

h) Report on Conservation of Energy, Technology
Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo — Annexure H; and

i) Disclosuresunder Section197(12) of the Actread with
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 — Annexure |.

Anuj Poddar
Executive Director
DIN: 01908009

Ajay Nagle
EVP & Head - Legal and Company Secretary
ACS No.: 9855
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Annexure A

Dividend Distribution Policy

Preamble

The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing
Regulations”) require the top 500 listed companies,
based on market capitalisation as on March 31
of every financial year, to disclose a Dividend
Distribution Policy in the annual report and on the
corporate website.

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of Bajaj Electricals
Limited (“Company”) has adopted this Dividend
Distribution Policy (“Policy”) to comply with the
Listing Regulations.

The Company currently has only one class of shares,
i.e. equity, for which this Policy is applicable. The
Policy is subject to review if and when the Company
issues different classes of shares.

Dividend distribution philosophy

The Company is deeply committed to driving
superior value creation for all its stakeholders’.
The Company’s focus will continue to be on the
sustainable returns, through an appropriate capital
strategy for both medium term and longer term value
creation. Accordingly, the Board would continue to
adopt a progressive and dynamic dividend policy,
ensuring the immediate as well as long term needs
of the business.

Dividend

Dividend represents the profit of the Company, which
is distributed to shareholders in proportion to the
amount of the paid-up shares they hold. Dividend
includes interim dividend.

Circumstances under which shareholders
can expect dividend

The Board will assess the Company’s financial
requirements, including present and future organic
and inorganic growth opportunities and other
relevant factors (as mentioned elsewhere in this
Policy) and declare dividend in any financial year.

The dividend for any financial year shall normally be
paid out of the Company’s profits for that year which
will be arrived at after providing for depreciation in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“Act”). If the circumstances require, the
Board may also declare dividend out of accumulated
profits of any previous financial year(s) inaccordance
with provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations, as
may be applicable.

Interim and Final Dividend

The Board may declare one or more interim
dividends during the year. Additionally, the Board
may recommend final dividend for the approval of
the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.
The date of the Board meeting in which the dividend
proposal will be considered, shall be intimated to
the stock exchanges and post board meeting, the
outcome of the meeting shall also be provided to
the stock exchanges, as required under the Listing
Regulations.

Financial parameters and other internal and
external factors that would be considered
for declaration of Dividend

«  Distributable surplus available with the Company;

+  Company’s liquidity position and future cash
flow needs;

» Track record of dividend distribution of the
Company;

« Dividend payout ratios of the comparable
companies;

*  Prevailing taxation policy or any amendments
expected thereof, with respect to dividend
distribution;

«  Capital expenditure requirements considering
the expansion and acquisition opportunities;

» Cost and availability of alternative sources of
financing;

. Stipulations/covenants of loan agreements;

. Macroeconomic and business conditions in
general; and
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«  Any other relevant factors that the Board may
deem fit to consider before recommending/
declaring Dividend.

Utilisation of retained earnings

Subject to the applicable provisions, the retained
earnings of the Company shall be applied for:

« Funding inorganic and organic growth needs
including working capital, capital expenditure,
repayment of debt, etc;

+  Buyback of shares subject to applicable limits;
+  Payment of dividend in future years;
. Issue of Bonus Shares; and

»  Any other permissible purpose.

8.
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Modification of the Policy

The Board is authorised to change/amend this Policy
from time to time at its sole discretion, as it may
deem fit, and/or in pursuance of any amendments
made in the Act, the Listing Regulations, etc.

Disclaimer

This document neither solicits investment in the
Company’s securities nor gives any assurance of
guaranteed returns (in any form) for investments in
the Company’s equity shares.

Mumbai Shekhar Bajaj

March 29, 2017

Chairman & Managing Director
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Annexure B

Disclosures of transactions of the Company with any person or entity belonging to the promoter/
promoter group which hold(s) 10% or more shareholding in the Company pursuant to the provisions
of Regulation 34(3) and 53(f) read with clause 2A of Part A of Schedule V of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

(Amount: T in lakhs)

Name of the Nature of Transaction FY 2019-20 FY 2018-19
person or entity Transaction Outstanding Transaction Outstanding
Value for receivable Value for receivable
the year / (payable) the year / (payable)
carried in the carried in the
Balance Sheet Balance Sheet
Jamnalal Sons Rent Paid 3540 (2.70) 33.04 (2.70)
Private Limited Rent Deposit Advanced - 150.00 50.00 150.00
Reimbursement of Expenses 5.59 = 726 (6.80)
Inter Corporate Deposit taken 20,000.00 - - -
Interest on Inter Corporate 676.44 = - -

Deposit

Dividend Paid 706.05 - 695.55 -
Right Shares Issued 6,889.53 = - -
Bajaj Holdings and  Dividend Paid S584.42 - S584.42 -
Investment Limited Right Shares Issued 6,497.60 - - -
Sales 2.53 2.53 - -

Mumbai
June 19, 2020

For and on behalf of
Board of Directors of Bajaj Electricals Limited

Shekhar Bajaj
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00089358
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Annexure C

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) Activities for the financial year 2019-20

1.

Brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy,
including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken and a reference
to the web-link to the CSR Policy and
projects or programs.

At Bajaj Electricals Limited, CSR encompasses not
only what we do with our profits, but also how we

make them. CSR is a very useful platform to engage

in all key spheres of influence such as market place,
workplace, supply chain and society.

The four pillars of CSR:

a.

Sustainability — To ensure that the long-term
business goals are aligned with sustainable
development without compromising on the
economic, environmental and social factor.

Gender Diversity — To have a high performing
inclusive work culture and commitment to
attract and retain capable talent maintaining
gender sensitivity and balance.

Employee Volunteering — To reach out to all
employees and drive the volunteering programs
of the Company through collective social
responsibility and strong individual commitment.

Community Outreach Programs - To ensure
the communities where we operate should also
benefit.

Priorities under Community Outreach Programs:

q.

Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition,
promoting health care including preventive
health care and sanitation including contribution
to Swach Bharat Kosh set-up by the Central
Government for the promotion of sanitation and
making available safe drinking water.

*  Promoting health care including preventive
health care - continued support to Anti-
Tobacco Program and campaign.

Promoting  education, including  special
education and employment enhancing vocation
skills especially among children, women,
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elderly and the differently abled and livelihood
enhancement projects.

«  Support technical and vocational programs
to generate employment.

«  Support social enterprises to enhance
livelihoods, to reach the last mile who can
have access to quality products & services.

*  Nurturing and mentoring schools and
working towards their betterment.

Promoting gender equality, empowering women,
setting up homes and hostels for women and
orphans; setting up old age homes, day care
centers and such other facilities for senior citizens
and measures for reducing inequadlities faced by
socially and economically backward groups.

Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological
balance, protection of flora and fauna, animal
welfare, agroforestry, conservation of natural
resources and maintaining quality of soil, air
and water [including contribution to the Clean
Ganga Fund set-up by the Central Government
for rejuvenation of river Gangal.

« Initiatives such as solar projects, off
grid lighting, tree plantation and waste
management.

« Initiatives to support education and
awareness on protecting the environment.

Protection of national heritage, art and culture
including restoration of buildings and sites of
historical importance and works of art; setting
up public libraries; promotion and development
of traditional art and handicrafts.

« Initiatives such as promotion of traditional
arts & crafts & encouraging young artists.

Measures for the benefit of armed forces
veterans, war widows and their dependents.

Training to promote rural sports, nationally
recognised sports, paralympic sports and
Olympic sports.
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Contribution to the Prime Minister's National Core CSR Programs: (Amount: ¥ in lakhs)

Relief Fund or any other fund set up by the central . Sr. Name of CSR project / Sector in which Location Amount Amount Cumulative

government for socio economic development a. Green & Clean India. No. implementation Agency activity identified the project is of project / outlay / spent amount of

and relief and welfare of the schedule caste, b. Tobacco Control Program. covered programme approved direct / expenditure

tribes, other backward classes, minorities and c. Shiksha Vikas — Bridge the Gap program. ov:':::: r::::t‘i::;

women. . the year eriod

d. Promotion of Art & Culture. B. CSR through implementing agencies g ’

Contribution to incubators funded by Central e. Any other activities covered under Schedule VII i. Green Solution Green India - Tree Ensuring Pan India 122 122 122

Government or State Government orany agency or of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. ii. Centre for Plantation Environmental Pan India 1319 1013 1319

Public Sector Undertaking of Central Government Environmental Research Sustoinabili'ty '

or State Government, and contributions to public The CSR Pol.icy of the Company has OISO. b.een pc.osted and Eddication " :gjcp;;:]:tmg e harash

funded Universities, Indian Institute of Technology onthe website of the Company: www.bajajelectricals. - S:‘g;oit:;fcs‘;\:g T‘:S:t Maharashtra 4270 L7k 3309

(IITs), National Laboratories and Autonomous com: C. CSR though the Trust established by the Company exclusively for undertaking CSR activities

Bodies (established under the auspices of Indian 2. Composition of the CSR Committee: i. Bajqj EIe'ctricols Contribuifion to 0] Ensuring PAN India 59232 43670 536.70

Council of Agricultural Research (ICAR), Indian Foundation (BEF) BrEOFef:tr :'ifsrjsntﬁee zn:x::;ﬁtﬂl

Council of Medical Research (ICMR), Council a. Shri Shekhar Bajaj, Chairperson — Chairman & Emjntqtio:, Shiksha q:d promotizg

of Scientific and Industrial Research (CSIR), Managing Director Vikas, Promotion its education;

Department of Atomic Energy (DAE), Defence b. Dr(Smt.) Indu Shahani, Member - Independent Zreﬁ;tqsei:/zzte (ii) Promotion of

Research and Development Organisation Director: and quage'menty Solar educ"t'_"”?

(DRDO), Department of Science and Technology o power, contribution () Promotion of

(DST), Ministry of Electronics and Information c. Shl’l Siddharth Mehta, Member - Independent to incubators, :r:td& Culture;

Technology) engaged in conducting research in Director. ‘(I;SQcco Gontrol (iv) Promoting

science, technology, engineering and medicine 3. Average net profit of the Company for last preventive

aimed at promoting Sustainable Development three financial years: $25296.21 lakhs : healthcare

Goals (SDGs). D. Admin & Overhead expenses - 956 -
4. Prescribed CSR expenditure (2% of the Total - 51438 -

* Co-funding the Creation of ‘ldeas Hub’ to average net profit of the last three financial

support social entrepreneurship years): The Company, during the financial year 2019-

6. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the

20, was required to spend ¥50592 lakhs towards CSR. . N .
q P last three financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not

Rural development projects.

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial spending the amount in its Board report: Not Applicable
Slum area development. car:
) ) ) ) year: 7. Responsibility Statement by the CSR Committee: The implementation and monitoring of CSR activities
Disaster management, including relief, . . L. . . . . .
o ) ~ a. Total amount spent for the financial year: is in Compliance with the CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.
rehabilitation and reconstruction activities.
¥514.38 lakhs
«  Supportingrelief activities post Maharashtra b. Amount unspent: Nil For and on behalf of
floods. Board of Directors of Bajaj Electricals Limited
Shekhar Bajaj Dr. (Smt.) Indu Shahani Siddharth Mehta
Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below: ) Mumbai Chairman & Managing Director Director Director
(Amount: 2 in lakhs) June 19, 2020 DIN: 00089358 DIN: 00112289 DIN: 03072352
Sr. Name of CSR project / Sector in which Location Amount Amount Cumulative
No. implementation Agency activity identified the project is of project / outlay / spent amount of
covered programme approved direct /| expenditure
overhead upto the
during reporting
the year period

A. CSR by the Company in its own capacity

i. Direct Implementation Green India — Tree Ensuring Pan India 5113 37.30 37.30
Plantation Environmental
Clean India - Sustainability Maharashtra 1521 774 1131

Waste Management ~ and promoting its
Projects education
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Annexure D

Form No. MGT-9
Extract of Annual Return
As on the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. Registration & Other Details

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) L31500MH1938PLC0O09887

Registration Date July 14,1938

Name of the Company Bajaj Electricals Limited

Q0|0 |

Category / Sub-category of the Company Public Company Limited by Shares /

Non-govt company

45/47, Veer Nariman Road,
Mumbai - 400 001

Tel.: (022) 6149 7000

E-mail: legal@bajajelectricals.com

e. Address of the registered office & contact Details

Website: www.bajajelectricals.com

f.  Whether a listed company Yes (listed on BSE and NSE)

Link Intime India Private Limited

C 101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, Vikhroli West,
Mumbai 400 083.

Tel No: 022-4918 6000; Fax: 022-4918 6060
E-mail: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

g. Name, address & contact details of the Registrar &
Share Transfer Agent

Website: www.linkintime.com

Il. Principal Business Activities of the Company

Sr. Name and description of main products/services National Industrial Classification % to total turnover

No. Code of the product/service of the Company
a. Consumer Products 2813, 2710, 2740, 2750, 2790 41.07
b.  Engineering, Procurement and Construction 2410, 2431 5892

lll. Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies

Sr. Name and address of the company CIN or Global Location
No. Number

Holding / % of  Applicable
Subsidiary / shares Section
Associate held

a.  Nirlep Appliances Private Limited
Gut no. 16, Naigavahan, Khandewadi
Taluk Paithan, Paithan road Naigavahan

U27200MH1979PTCO021470  Subsidiary 79.85

Aurangabad 431105 Sections
b. Starlite Lighting Limited U31300MH1995PLC090213 Joint 4700 2(87), 2(6)
6, MIDC, Satpur, Trimbak Road, Nashik — Venture and 2(27)
422 007 of the Act

c.  Hind Lamps Limited U27302UP1951PLC0O02355 Associate 1900
Shikohabad, Firozabad,

Uttar Pradesh - 283 141
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IV. Shareholding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as Percentage to Total Equity)

A. Category-wise shareholding

Sr.

Category of

No. Shareholders

Shareholding of
Promoter and
Promoter Group

Shareholding at the beginning of the year

Shareholding at the end of the year

Demat Physical Total % of
Total
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of
Total
Shares

%
Change
during
the year

Indian

Individuals / Hindu
Undivided Family

21287678 - 21287678 2079

23881865 - 23881865 2099

0.20

Central Government /
State Government(s)

Financial Institutions
/ Banks

Any Other (Specify)

- Bodies Corporate

41254607 - 41254607 40.29

46102387 - 46102387 40.52

0.23

- Trusts

1676200 - 1676200 1.64

1886606 - 1886606 1.66

002

Sub Total (A)(1)

64218485 - 64218485 6271

71870858 - 71870858 63.17

0.46

Foreign

Individuals / Hindu
Undivided Family

Central Government /
State Government(s)

Financial Institutions
/ Banks

Any Other (Specify)

Total Shareholding
of Promoter and
Promoter Group(A) =
(A)(1)+(A)(2)

64218485 - 64218485 62.71

71870858 - 71870858 63.17

0.46

Public Shareholding

Institutions

Mutual Funds / UTI

8352294 - 8352294 816

12992828 - 12992828 1142

326

Venture Capital Funds

o|T|a M@

Alternate Investment
Funds

449405 - 449405 044

561744 - 561744 049

0.05

Foreign Venture
Capital Investors

Foreign Portfolio
Investor

5834717 - 5834717 570

Q051464 - 9051464 796

Financial Institutions
/ Banks

69894 17220 87114 0.09

10655 15720 26375 0.02

(0.06)

Insurance Companies

592839 - 592839 0.52

0.52

Provident Funds/
Pension Funds

Others

Sub-total (B1)

14706310 17220 14723530 14.38

23209530 15720 23225250 20.41

6.04

Central Government/
State Government(s)/
President of India

Sub Total (B)(2)

Non - Institutions

Individuals

14911648 1775556 16687204 16.30

11715421 1656186 13371607 1175

(4.54)

Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital upto %1 lakh

12907163 694356 13601519 13.28

10726294 574986 11301280 993

(3.35)
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Sr. Category of Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year %
No. Shareholders Demat Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total % of  Change
Total Total during
Shares Shares the year
ii. Individual shareholders 2004485 1081200 3085685 301 989127 1081200 2070327 1.82 (1.19)
holding nominal share
capital in excess of
T1 lakh
b. NBFCs registered with 2577 - 2577 0.00 810 - 810 0.00 (0.00)
RBI
c.  Any Other (Specify) 6754595 13210 6767805 6.61 5288232 10950 5299182 466 (1.95)
- |IEPF 234016 - 234016 0.23 246758 - 246758 0.22 (0.01)
- Trusts 1903672 - 1903672 1.86 2126655 - 2126655 1.87 0.01
- Foreign Nationals 45 - 45 0.00 195 - 195 0.00 0.00
- Hindu Undivided 318685 - 318685 0.31 294924 - 294924 0.26 (0.05)
Family
- Non-Resident 1336539 1500 1338039 131 1035605 - 1035605 091 (0.40)
Indians
- Foreign Portfolio 1200 - 1200 0.00 - - - - (0.00)
Investor (Individual)
- Clearing Member 206963 - 206963 0.20 78932 - 78932 0.07 (0.13)
- Bodies Corporate 2753475 11710 2765185 270 1505163 10950 1516113 1.33 (1.37)
Sub Total (B)(3) 21668820 1788766 23457586 2291 17004463 1667136 18671599 16.41 (6.50)
Total Public 36375130 1805986 38181116 37.29 40213993 1682856 41896849 36.83 (0.46)
Shareholding (B) = (B)
(1) + (B)(2) + (B)(3)
Total (A)+(B) 100593615 1805986 102399601 100.00 112084851 1682856 113767707 100.00 -
C. Non-Promoter and - - - - - - - - -
Non-Public
1. Custodian/DR Holder - - - - - - - - -
2. Employee Benefit Trust - - - - - - - - -
(under SEBI (Share
based Employee
Benefit) Regulations,
2014)
Total (A)+(B)+(C) 100593615 1805986 102399601 100.00 112084851 1682856 113767707 100.00 -
B. Shareholding of Promoters’ and Promoter Group of the Company
Sr. Shareholder’'s Name Shareholding at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of the %
No. the year year Change
No. of % of % of shares No. of % of % of shares during
shares total pledged/ shares total pledged/ the year
shares encumbered shares encumbered
1. Jamnalal Sons Private Limited 20172830 1970 - 22395260 19.69 - (0.01)
2. Badjaj Holdings and Investment 16697840 16.31 - 18793840 16.52 - 021
Limited
3. Kiran Bajaj 5252819 513 - 5912179 5.20 - 0.07
4. Anant Bajaqj 4981823 4.87 - 5530667 4.86 - (0.01)
S. Shekhar Bajaj 2500735 244 - 2814639 2.47 - 0.03
6. Niraj Bajaj 1893235 1.85 - 2130882 1.87 - 0.02
7. Rahulkumar Bajaj 1392580 136 - 2355252 207 - 071
8.  Hind Musafir Agency Limited 1258000 123 - 1288000 113 - (0.10)
9. Kiran Bajaj (as Trustee of 1210000 118 - 1361885 1.20 - 0.02
Geetika Trust no. 2)
10 Sunaina Kejriwal 965325 094 - 298630 0.26 - (0.68)
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Sr. Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of the %
No. the year year Change
No. of % of % of shares No. of % of % of shares during
shares total pledged/ shares total pledged/ the year
shares encumbered shares encumbered

11. Neelima Bajaj Swamy 900000 0.88 - 1012973 0.89 - 0.01

12.  Madhur Bajaj 815035 0.80 - 917342 0.81 - 0.01

13. Bajaj International Private 800000 078 - 900421 079 - 001
Limited

14. Baroda Industries Private Limited 770000 0.75 - 975248 0.86 - 011

15. Minal Bajqj 617200 0.60 - 69L674 0.61 - 0.01

16. Geetika Bajaj 608346 059 - 684709 0.60 - 0.01

17.  Nimisha Jaipuria 558000 0.54 - 628043 0.55 - 0.01

18. Hercules Hoists Limited 554937 0.54 - 624596 0.55 - 0.01

19.  Shekhar Holdings Private Limited 480000 047 - 540253 L7 - 001

20. Niraj Bajaj (as Trustee of 466200 046 - 524721 046 - 0.01
Niravnayan Trust)

21. Rahul Securities Private Limited 415000 041 - 467093 041 - 0.01

22. Niravnayan Bajaj 251000 0.25 - 282507 0.25 - 0.00

23. Kumud Bajqj 190200 019 - 214076 0.19 - 0.00

24. Pooja Bajaj 130000 013 - 146319 013 - 0.00

25.  Suman Jain 99645 010 - 110700 0.10 - -

26. Bachhraj Factories Private 95000 0.09 - 105466 0.09 - (0.00)
Limited

27.  Kriti Bajaqj 90000 009 - 101297 0.09 - 0.00

28. Shefali Bajaj 30000 0.03 - 33767 0.03 - 0.00

29.  Sanjivnayan Bajqj 10735 001 - 12083 0.01 - 0.00

30. Bajaj Sevashram Private Limited 5000 0.00 - 5550 0.00 - -

31. Bachhraj and Company Private 1000 0.00 - 1110 0.00 - -
Limited

32. Kamalnayan Investment & 1000 0.00 - 1110 0.00 - -
Trading Private Limited

33.  Madhur Securities Private 1000 0.00 - 1110 0.00 - -
Limited

34. Niraj Holdings Private Limited 1000 0.00 - 1110 0.00 - -

35. Rupa Equities Private Limited 1000 0.00 - 1110 0.00 - -

36. Sanraj Nayan Investments 1000 0.00 - 1110 0.00 - -
Private Limited

37. Deepa Bajqj 1000 0.00 - 1126 0.00 - -
Total 64218485 62.71 - 71870858 63.17 - 0.46

C. Change in Promoters’ and Promoter Group Shareholding

Sr. Name & Type of Transaction Shareholding at the Transactions during the year Cumulative
No. beginning of the year Shareholding at the end
of the year
No. of % of Date of No. of No. of % of
shares held total transaction shares  shares held total
shares shares
of the of the
Company Company
1. Jamnalal Sons Private Limited 20172830 1970
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 2222430 22395260 19.69
At the end of the year 22395260 19.69
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Sr. Name & Type of Transaction

Shareholding at the

Transactions during the year

Cumulative

No. beginning of the year Shareholding at the end
of the year
No. of % of Date of No. of No. of % of
shares held total transaction shares  shares held total
shares shares
of the of the
Company Company
2. Bajaj Holdings and Investment 16697840 1631
Limited
Rights Issue March 13,2020 2096000 18793840 16.52
At the end of the year 18793840 16.52
3. Kiran Bajgqj 5252819 513
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 659360 5912179 5.20
At the end of the year 5912179 520
4. Anant Bajaj (Refer Note below) 4981823 4.87
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 548844 5530667 4.86
At the end of the year 5530667 4.86
5. Shekhar Bajqj 2500735 244
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 313904 2814639 247
At the end of the year 2814639 247
6. Niraj Bajaj 1893235 1.85
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 237647 2130882 187
At the end of the year 2130882 1.87
7. Rahulkumar Bajaj 1392580 136
Gift received January 7, 2020 700000 2092580 2.04
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 262672 2355252 207
At the end of the year 2355252 207
8. Hind Musafir Agency Limited 1258000 123
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 30000 1288000 113
At the end of the year 1288000 113
9. Kiran Bajaj (as Trustee of Geetika 1210000 118
Trust no. 2)
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 151885 1361885 1.20
At the end of the year 1361885 120
10 Sunaina Kejriwal 965325 094
Gift given January 7,2020 (700000) 265325 0.26
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 33305 298630 0.26
At the end of the year 298630 0.26
11. Neelima Bajaj Swamy 900000 0.88
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 112973 1012973 0.89
At the end of the year 1012973 0.89
12. Madhur Bajqj 815035 0.80
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 102307 Q17342 0.81
At the end of the year 917342 081
13. Bajqj International Private Limited 800000 0.78
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 100421 900421 0.79
At the end of the year 900421 0.79
14. Baroda Industries Private Limited 770000 0.75
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 205248 975248 0.86
At the end of the year 975248 0.86
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Sr.

Name & Type of Transaction

Shareholding at the

Transactions during the year

Cumulative

No. beginning of the year Shareholding at the end
of the year

No. of % of Date of No. of No. of % of
shares held total transaction shares  shares held total
shares shares
of the of the
Company Company

15. Minal Bajaj 617200 0.60
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 77474 69L674 0.61
At the end of the year 69L674 0.61

16. Geetika Bajqj 608346 0.59
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 76363 684709 0.60
At the end of the year 684709 0.60

17. Nimisha Jaipuria 558000 0.54
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 70043 628043 0.55
At the end of the year 628043 0.55

18. Hercules Hoists Limited 554937 0.54
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 69659 624596 0.55
At the end of the year 624596 0.55

19. Shekhar Holdings Private Limited 480000 47
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 60253 540253 47
At the end of the year 540253 047

20. Niraj Bajaj (as Trustee of 466200 046

Niravnayan Trust)

Rights Issue March 13, 2020 58521 524721 046
At the end of the year 524721 046

21. Rahul Securities Private Limited 415000 041
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 52093 467093 041
At the end of the year 467093 o411

22. Niravnayan Bajaj 251000 0.25
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 31507 282507 0.25
At the end of the year 282507 0.25

23. Kumud Baijaj 190200 019
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 23876 214076 019
At the end of the year 214076 019

24. Pooja Bajqj 130000 013
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 16319 146319 013
At the end of the year 146319 013

25. Suman Jain Q9645 0.10
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 11055 110700 010
At the end of the year 110700 010

26. Bachhraj Factories Private Limited 95000 0.09
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 10466 105466 0.09
At the end of the year 105466 0.09

27. Kriti Bajaj 90000 0.09
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 11297 101297 0.09
At the end of the year 101297 0.09

28. Shefali Bajaj 30000 0.03
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 3767 33767 0.03
At the end of the year 33767 0.03

29. Sanjivnayan Bajqj 10735 001
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D. Shareholding pattern of Top Ten Shareholders (Other than directors, promoters, promoter group and holders of

Sr. Name & Type of Transaction Shareholding at the Transactions during the year Cumulative
No. beginning of the year Shareholding at the end GDRs and ADRs)
of the year
No. of % of Date of No. of No. of % of Sr. Name & Type of Transaction Shareholding at the Transactions during the year Cumulative
shares held total transaction shares  shares held total No. beginning of the year Shareholding at the end
shares shares of the year
of the of the No. of % of Date of transaction No. of No. of % of
Company Company shares held total (Refer Note below) shares  shares held total
shares shares
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 1348 12083 0.01 of the of the
At the end of the year 12083 001 Company Company
30. B.ojoj Sevashram Private Limited 5000 0.00 1. Nirqj Bajaj 750000 073 No change 750000 0.66
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 550 5550 0.00 2. HDFC Small Cap Fund 720000 063
Atthe end of the year 5950 000 Transfer April5,2019 590200 1310200 115
31. Bachhraj and Company Private 1000 000 Transfer April 12, 2019 41800 1352000 119
Limited Transfer April 19, 2019 174792 1526792 134
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 110 1110 000 Transfer April 26,2019 873208 2400000 211
At the end of the year . 110 000 Transfer May 3,2019 60000 2460000 216
32. K?molna.yc.n Investment & Trading 1000 0.00 Transfer May 10, 2019 32018 2492018 219
Private Limited Transfer June7,2019 300000 2792918 245
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 110 1110 000 Transfer July 5,2019 50730 2843648 250
Attheendof theyear Hio 000 Transfer July12,2019 228000 3071648 270
33. M.odhur Securities Private Limited 1000 0.00 Transfer July 19, 2019 502000 3663648 322
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 110 1110 000 Transfer August 2,2019 261000 3924648 345
Atthe end of the year 110 000 Transfer August 9,2019 517700 4442348 390
34. Niraj Holdings Private Limited 1000 000 Transfer August 16,2019 169200 4611548 405
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 110 1110 000 Transfer August 23,2019 1099000 5710548 502
Atthe end of the year 110 000 Transfer August 30,2019 174200 5884748 517
35. Rupa Equities Private Limited 1000 000 Transfer September 6,2019 586500 6471248 569
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 10 110 . 000 Transfer September 20,2019 69600 6540848 575
At the end of the year : 110 000 Transfer September 27,2019 13000 6553848 576
36. S.qn.roj Nayan Investments Private 1000 0.00 Transfer October 4, 2019 100000 6653848 585
Limited Transfer October 11,2019 165475 6819323 599
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 110 110 000 Transfer October 18,2019 149306 6968629 613
At the end of the year 110 000 Transfer October 25,2019 72000 7040629 619
37. Deepa Bajqj 1000 000 Transfer November 8, 2019 55800 7096429 624
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 126 1126 000 Transfer November 22,2019 137056 7233485 6.36
At the end of the year 126 000 Transfer November 29,2019 117900 7351385 6146
Transfer December 6, 2019 14800 7366185 6.47
Note: Shri Anant Bajaj, who was a person belonging to the promoter group of the Company died on August 10, 2018. Late Shri Anant Bajaj held Transfer December 13, 2019 24000 7390185 650
49,81,823 faquity AshqrAes in BojojAEIectricoIs Lintmited ("the Comp?ny“) at the time of his demjse. In accordance with Regulation 31A(6)(c) <.3f the Transfer December 20, 2019 61100 7451285 655
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, he has automatically ceased to be a promoter/person belonging to
the promoter group on his death. However, in consideration of the application made to the Hon'ble High Court, Bombay for grant of Letter of Transfer December 27, 2019 159000 7610285 0.69
Administration in favour of his legal heirs namely, his wife, son and mother, who are already part of promoter/person belonging to the promoter Transfer January 3, 2020 40000 7650285 672
group, the equity shares that were held by the Late Shri Anant Bajaj are being continued to be classified as promoter shareholding. Transfer January 10, 2020 33000 7683285 6.75
During the year under review, under its Abridged Letter of Offer/Letter of Offer dated January 31, 2020, the Company offered 548,844 rights Transfer January 24, 2020 36000 7719285 6.79
equity shares to Late Shri Anant Bajaj on a right basis, in the ratio of 13 Rights Equity Shares for every 118 Equity Shares held, which were Transfer February 7, 2020 43390 7762675 6.82
subscribed by Smt. Pooja Bajaj, spouse of Late Shri Anant Bajaj and one of the legal heirs, on behalf of the estate of Late Shri Anant Bajaj, in Transfer February 14, 2020 19600 7782275 6.84
terms of the Order of Hon’ble Bombay High Court dated January 16, 2020, read with the modified Order dated January 30, 2020 in . A. No. 1 of
2020 in Petition No. 2972 of 2020. Poit cgllotment, the said 5,48?/844, rightsy equity shares were credited to the existingydenyﬁot account of Late Transfer February 21, 2020 16000 7798275 685
Shri Anant Bajaj and accordingly, the aggregate holding in the name of Late Shri Anant Bajaj increased to 55,30,667 equity shares, constituting Transfer February 28, 2020 72300 7870575 6.92
4.86% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company. Transfer March 6, 2020 1722 7872297 692
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 897385 8769682 771

At the end of the year 8769682 771
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Sr.
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Shareholding at the

Transactions during the year

Cumulative
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Sr.

Name & Type of Transaction

Shareholding at the

Transactions during the year

Cumulative

No. beginning of the year Shareholding at the end
of the year
No. of % of Date of transaction No. of No. of % of
shares held total (Refer Note below) shares shares held total
shares shares
of the of the
Company Company
3. Smallcap World Fund Inc. - -
Transfer December 6, 2019 8884 8884 0.01
Transfer December 13, 2019 89633 98517 0.09
Transfer December 20, 2019 73258 171775 015
Transfer December 27, 2019 236545 408320 0.36
Transfer December 31, 2019 25791 434111 0.38
Transfer January 3, 2020 287386 721497 0.63
Transfer January 10, 2020 190443 911940 0.80
Transfer January 17,2020 L4146 956086 0.84
Transfer January 24, 2020 84921 1041007 092
Transfer January 31, 2020 101357 1142364 1.00
Transfer February 7, 2020 309926 1452290 1.28
Transfer February 14, 2020 125396 1577686 1.39
Transfer February 21, 2020 67491 1645177 145
Transfer February 28, 2020 111231 1756408 1.54
Transfer March 6, 2020 182637 1939045 170
Transfer and Rights Issue March 13, 2020 199002 1983940 1.88
Transfer March 20, 2020 266808 2404855 211
Transfer March 27,2020 1479129 3883984 341
Transfer March 31, 2020 47980 3931964 346
At the end of the year 3931964 346
4. Reliance Capital Trustee Co 2333782 2.05
Limited a/c Nippon India Small
Cap Fund
Transfer December 27, 2019 (91515) 2242267 197
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 281462 2523729 222
Transfer March 27,2020 8000 2531729 223
At the end of the year 2531729 2.23
S. Caisse De Depot Et Placement 1750000 1.54
Du Quebec - Enam Asset
Management
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 219668 1969668 173
At the end of the year 1969668 173
6. Aditya Birla Sun Life Trustee 2526833 222
Private Limited a/c Aditya Birla
Sun Life Small Cap Fund
Transfer April 12,2019 (1908) 2524925 222
Transfer May 3, 2019 14500 2539425 223
Transfer May 10, 2019 16800 2556225 2.25
Transfer May 17, 2019 L4524 2600749 229
Transfer June 7, 2019 (18008) 2582741 2.27
Transfer June 21, 2019 (15000) 2567741 226
Transfer July 12, 2019 (126924) 2440817 215

No. beginning of the year Shareholding at the end
of the year
No. of % of Date of transaction No. of No. of % of
shares held total (Refer Note below) shares shares held total
shares shares
of the of the
Company Company
Transfer July 19, 2019 (8591) 2432226 214
Transfer August 23,2019 (1090146) 1342080 1.18
Transfer August 30, 2019 (2000) 1340080 118
Transfer September 6, 2019 (118169) 1221911 1.07
Transfer September 27, 2019 38000 1259911 111
Transfer September 30, 2019 (16700) 1243211 1.09
Transfer October 25, 2019 (2973) 1240238 1.09
Transfer November 1, 2019 (1858) 1238380 1.09
Transfer November 8, 2019 (67300) 1171080 103
Transfer December 20, 2019 18000 1189080 1.04
Transfer December 27,2019 (50000) 1139080 1.00
Transfer February 7,2020  (126480) 1012600 0.89
Transfer February 28, 2020 11880 1024480 090
Transfer March 6, 2020 (7850) 1016630 0.89
Transfer and Rights Issue March 13, 2020 128030 1144660 1.01
Transfer March 20, 2020 58094 1202754 1.06
At the end of the year 1202754 106
7. Bajaj Auto Employees Welfare 961900 0.85
Fund No-2
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 105972 1067872 094
At the end of the year 1067872 094
8. Long Term India Fund 1097000 096
Transfer September 6, 2019 (4006) 1092994 096
Transfer September 13, 2019 (49236) 1043758 092
Transfer October 18, 2019 (93758) 950000 0.84
Transfer January 3,2020 (100000) 850000 0.75
Transfer January 24,2020 (76552) 773448 0.68
Transfer January 31, 2020 (23448) 750000 0.66
Transfer and Rights Issue March 13, 2020 19145 769145 0.68
At the end of the year 769145 0.68
9. Aditya Birla Sun Life Insurance 6802 0.01
Company Limited
Transfer April 12, 2019 23897 30699 0.03
Transfer May 10, 2019 268 30967 0.03
Transfer May 17, 2019 42577 73544 0.06
Transfer May 24,2019 67608 141152 012
Transfer May 31, 2019 79141 220293 0.19
Transfer June 7, 2019 2088 222381 0.20
Transfer June 14, 2019 87260 309641 0.27
Transfer June 21, 2019 6628 316269 0.28
Transfer June 29, 2019 28816 345085 0.30
Transfer July 5, 2019 2703 347788 031
Transfer July 12, 2019 61000 408788 0.36
Transfer July 19, 2019 33100 441888 039
Transfer August 2, 2019 92120 534008 047
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 58831 592839 0.52
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Sr. Name & Type of Transaction Shareholding at the Transactions during the year Cumulative
No. beginning of the year Shareholding at the end
of the year
No. of % of Date of transaction No. of No. of % of
shares held total (Refer Note below) shares shares held total
shares shares
of the of the
Company Company
At the end of the year 592839 0.52
10. Bajaj Auto Employees Welfare 500000 044
Fund No. 1
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 55084 555084 0.49
At the end of the year 555084 049
11. UTI - Long Term Advantage 839797 0.74
Fund Series VI
Transfer May 17, 2019 (18000) 821797 072
Transfer May 24,2019 (27000) 794797 0.70
Transfer May 31, 2019 (18000) 776797 0.68
Transfer June 7, 2019 (45000) 731797 0.64
Transfer June 14, 2019 (36000) 695797 0.61
Transfer June 21, 2019 (36000) 659797 0.58
Transfer June 29,2019 (18000) 641797 0.56
Transfer July 12, 2019 (9000) 632797 056
Transfer August 2, 2019 (9000) 623797 0.55
Transfer August 9, 2019 (9000) 614797 0.54
Transfer September 27, 2019 (760) 614037 0.54
Transfer September 30, 2019 (L44240) 569797 0.50
Transfer October 11, 2019 (45000) 524797 046
Transfer October 18, 2019 (10114) 514683 045
Transfer October 25, 2019 (122219) 392464 0.35
Transfer November 1, 2019 (12667) 379797 0.33
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 41841 421638 0.37
At the end of the year 421638 0.37
12. Principal Trustee Co. Pvt. Ltd 1478739 1.30
A/c - Principal Mutual Fund -
Principal Hybrid Equity Fund
Transfer April 5, 2019 (4000) 1474739 1.30
Transfer April 26, 2019 (59500) 1415239 1.24
Transfer May 31,2019 (200000) 1215239 1.07
Transfer June 7, 2019 (178034) 1037205 091
Transfer July 5, 2019 9000 1046205 092
Transfer July 12, 2019 147 1046352 092
Transfer August 2, 2019 (311215) 735137 0.65
Transfer August 23, 2019 (66899) 668238 0.59
Transfer August 30, 2019 9000 677238 0.60
Transfer November 1, 2019 (44050) 633188 056
Transfer November 8, 2019 (128373) 504815 044
Transfer November 22,2019 (100000) 404815 0.36
Transfer November 29, 2019 (26065) 378750 0.33
Transfer December 20, 2019 (98944) 279806 0.25
Transfer December 27, 2019 (35431) 244375 0.21
Transfer December 31, 2019 (19559) 224816 0.20
Transfer January 3, 2020 (112560) 112256 0.10
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Sr. Name & Type of Transaction Shareholding at the Transactions during the year Cumulative
No. beginning of the year Shareholding at the end
of the year
No. of % of Date of transaction No. of No. of % of
shares held total (Refer Note below) shares shares held total
shares shares
of the of the
Company Company
Transfer January 10, 2020 (112256) - -
At the end of the year - -
13. Madhulika Agarwal 700000 0.62
Transfer April 26,2019 (700000) - -

At the end of the year

Notes: Dates as per weekly Benpo data received from RTA, except in case of Rights Issue transaction.

E. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Sr. Name & Type of Transaction Shareholding at the Transactions during the year Cumulative
No. beginning of the year Shareholding at the end
of the year
No. of % of Date of No. of No. of % of
shares held total transaction shares  shares held total
shares shares
of the of the
Company Company
1. Madhur Bajqj 815035 0.72
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 102307 917342 0.81
At the end of the year 917342 081
2. Shekhar Bajqj 2500735 220
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 313904 2814639 247
At the end of the year 2814639 247
3. Pooja Bajqj 130000 011
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 16319 146319 013
At the end of the year 146319 013
4. Anant Purandare (CFO) 14096 0.0124
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 1552 15648 001
At the end of the year 15648 001
5. Mangesh Patil (CS) 3217 0.00
(upto January 6, 2020)
6. Ajay Nagle (CS) 231 0.00
(As at January 6, 2020)
Rights Issue March 13, 2020 25 256 0.00
At the end of the year 256 0.00
Notes:
1.  Shareholding of all the other Directors—Nil.
2. Shri Mangesh Patil ceased to be the Company Secretary and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company with effect from January 6, 2020.

3.

Shri Ajay Nagle was appointed as the Company Secretary and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company with effect from January 6,2020.



| 81° Annual Report 2019-20
‘quaj Electricals Limited (BEL)

V. Indebtedness of the Company Including Interest Outstanding/Accrued But Not Due for Payment

(Amount: T in lakhs)

Sr. Particulars Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
No. excluding deposits Loans Indebtedness
a. Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i. Principal amount 12,37910  145,841.42 - 158,220.52
ii. Interest due but not paid 219 186.24 - 188.42
iii. Interest accrued but not due 15.75 60926 - 62501
Total [(i) + (ii) + (iii)] 12,397.04 146,636.92 - 159,033.96
b. Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
Addition 14,271.49 15,247.19 - 29,518.68
Reduction (9365.28) (83,263.31) - (92,628.59)
Interest due but not paid 61.70 (82.60) (2020)
Interest accrued but not due (15.75) 191955 1,903.80
Change in exchange difference - 604.61 604.61
Net Change 4,952.16 (65,574.56) - (60,622.40)
c. Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i. Principal amount 17,285.31 7842991 - 95,715.22
ii. Interest due but not paid 63.89 103.64 - 16753
iii. Interest accrued but not due - 2,528.81 - 2,528.81
Total [(i) + (ii) + (iii)] 1734920 81,062.35 - 98,411.56

V1. Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager
(Amount: T in lakhs)

Sr. Particulars of remuneration Shekhar Bajaj, Anuj Poddar, Total
No. Chairman & Executive
Managing Director Director

a. Gross salary

i. Salary as per the provisions contained in Section 17(1) 24842 28271 53113
of the Income-tax Act, 1961 (“IT Act”)

ii. Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) of IT Act 5698 040 57.38
iii. Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of IT Act - -
b. Stock Option - - -

c. Sweat Equity - - -
d. Commission provided for FY 2019-20 3794 - 3794
- as % of Profit 200 200
e. Others, please specify
- Co. Contribution to PF 25.86 9.54 3540
- Co. Contribution to Superannuation 32.33 - 32.33
- Gratuity 1795 - 1795
Total (A) 419.48 292.65 712.13
Overall ceiling as per the Act [Refer Note No.3 below] 94.85 94.85 189.70
Notes:

1. Shri Shekhar Bajaj is appointed as the Chairman & Managing Director of the Company, for a period of 5 (five) years, with effect from
November 1, 2019, not liable to retire by rotation, as approved by the shareholders by a Special Resolution passed by postal ballot on
December 23, 2019.

2. Shri Anuj Poddar is appointed as an Executive Director in the whole-time employment of the Company for a period of 5 (five) years, with effect
from November 1, 2018, liable to retire by rotation on such terms and conditions as enumerated in the Notice of the 80th AGM of the Company.

3. Since the profits of the Company for financial year 2019-20 are inadequate, the then current remunerations of Managing Director and
Executive Director were paid to them as minimum remuneration as per the terms of their remuneration approved by shareholders by way of
respective special resolutions under sections 196, 197, 198, 203, Schedule V and any other applicable provisions of the Act.
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B. Remuneration to other Directors
(Amount: T in lakhs)

Sr. Name of the Director Fee for attending Commission Others, Total
No. Board/Committee provided for please
Meetings FY 2019-20 specify
I
a. Independent Director(s)
i. Harsh Vardhan Goenka 3.00 107 - 4.07
ii. Shailesh Haribhakti 750 251 - 1001
iii. Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh 12.00 3.58 - 15.58
iv. Dr.Indu Shahani 12.50 251 - 1501
v. Siddharth Mehta 16.00 394 - 1994
vi. Munish Khetrapal 4.00 143 - 543
Total (B1) 55.00 15.03 - 70.03
b. Other Non-executive Director(s)
i. Madhur Bajqj 4.00 143 - 543
ii. Pooja Bajqj 700 179 - 8.79
iii. Rajiv Bajqj 200 0.72 - 272
Total (B2) 13.00 394 - 1694
Total (B) (B1+B2) 68.00 1897 - 8698
Overall ceiling as per the Act [Refer Note No.1 below] 18.97
Notes:

1. Being 1% of the net profit of the Company calculated as per Section 198 of the Act. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 197(2) of the Act,
the sitting fees paid shall not be considered while computing the said ceiling of 1%.

2. Considering the ceiling of 1% of the net profit of the Company prescribed under the Act, for the financial year 2019-20, the Board at its
meeting held on June 19, 2020 approved a commission to Non-executive Directors at ¥35,792/- for each meeting of the Board and Audit
Committee attended by the Director during the said year.

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD / WTD / Manager
(Amount: T in lakhs)

Sr. Particulars Anant Purandare, Mangesh Patil, Ajay Nagle, Total
No. Chief Financial Company Company
Officer Secretary  Secretary

a. Gross salary

i. Salary as per the provisions contained in 101.22 8395 34.65 219.82
Section 17(1) of the IT Act

ii. Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) 2.54 4.53 O4L 751
of IT Act

iii. Profits in lieu of salary under Section - - - -
17(3) of IT Act
b. Stock Option - 8.34 - 8.34
Sweat Equity - - - -
d. Commission provided for FY 2019-20 - - - -
- as % of Profit - - - -
e. Others, please specify

0

- Co. Contribution to PF 257 181 106 S4b
- Co. Contribution to Superannuation 3.22 - - 322
- Gratuity 099 - - 099
Total (A) 110.55 98.63 36.15 245.33

Notes:
1. Shri Mangesh Patil ceased to be the Company Secretary and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company with effect from January 6, 2020.
2. Shri Ajay Nagle was appointed as the Company Secretary and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company with effect from January 6, 2020.
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VII. Penalties/Punishment/Compounding of Offences

During the year under review, no penalty was levied against the Company, its Directors or any of its Officers under
the Companies Act, 2013 and also there was no punishment or compounding of offences against the Company, its
Directors or any of its Officers under the Act.

For and on behalf of
Board of Directors of Bajaj Electricals Limited

Shekhar Bajaj
Mumbai Chairman & Managing Director
June 19, 2020 DIN: 00089358
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Annexure E

Form AOC-1
[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiary, associate and
joint venture

Part A: Subsidiary
(Amount: T in lakhs)

Sr. Particulars Nirlep Appliances
No. Private Limited
1.  Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company’s Not applicable
reporting period
2. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year in Not applicable
the case of foreign subsidiaries
3. Share capital 743.56
4 Reserves & surplus (2968.25)
5. Total assets (3,187.75)
6. Total Liabilities (5412.46)
7. Investments 171
8 Turnover 4,221.40
9. Profit before taxation (423.67)
10. Provision for taxation 12.55
11. Profit after taxation (436.22)
12. Proposed Dividend -
13. % of shareholding of the Company in the subsidiary 79.85

Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Nil

Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil

Part B: Associate and Joint Venture

Sr. Particulars Hind Lamps Limited Starlite Lighting
No. (Associate) Limited

(Joint Venture)
1 Date on which the associate or joint venture was associated January 7, 1952 February 23,2007

or acquired
2 Latest audited Balance Sheet date March 31, 2020 March 31, 2020
3 Shares of associate/joint venture held by the Company on

the year end

Number of equity shares 1140000 5875000
Amount of investment in associate / joint venture T684.53 lakhs Nil*
Extent of holding % 1900 4700
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Description of how there is significant influence

Hind Lamps Limited Starlite Lighting
(Associate) Limited
(Joint Venture)

As per Section 2(6) of the Act, “associate
company”, in relation to another company,
means a company in which that other company
has a significant influence, but which is not
a subsidiary of the Company having such
influence and includes a joint venture company.

For the purposes of this clause, “significant
influence” means control of at least 20% of
total share capital, or of business decisions
under an agreement.

Since the Company is in a position to influence
the operating and financial policies of both
these companies, their financial statements
are consolidated with the Company’s financial

Reason why the associate / joint venture is not consolidated

Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited /
unaudited Balance Sheet

statements.
Not Applicable Since impaired
¥(1,439.61) lakhs ¥(14,211.15) lakhs

Profit / (Loss) for the year

Considered in Consolidation

¥(1,501.15) lakhs -

Not Considered in Consolidation

- %(4,929.05) lakhs*

*Since impaired.

June 19, 2020

Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: Nil

Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil

For and on behalf of
Board of Directors of Bajaj Electricals Limited

Shekhar Bajaj
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00089358
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Nomination and Remuneration Policy

Regulatory Framework

. This policy (“Policy”) of Bajaj Electricals Limited

(“Company”/“BEL") has been prepared and adopted
in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”)
and the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR Regulations”)
alongwith circulars issued thereunder, including any
statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof
for the time being in force.

. Section 178(3) of the Act and Part D of Schedule Il

of SEBI LODR Regulations requires the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (“Committee”) to
formulate the criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of a director,
recommend to the Board a policy relating to the
remuneration for the directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees, criteria for evaluation
of performance, board diversity etc.

. The Committee shall review the Policy periodically

and may amend the same from time to time, as
deemed necessary.

Objectives of this Policy

This policy aims to formulate certain criteria for
the following activities with regards to its directors,
key managerial personnel, senior management and
employees:

21. Selection, appointment and removal;
2.2. Remuneration;
2.3. Evaluation of performance;

2.4. Board diversity.

Definitions

. “Key Managerial Personnel” or “KMP” in relation to

the Company, means-

31.1. the Chief Executive Officer or the managing
director or the manager;

3.1.2. the company secretary;

3.1.3. the whole-time director;
3.1.4. the Chief Financial Officer;

3.1.5. such other officer, not more than one level
below the directors who is in Whole-time
employment, designated as key managerial
personnel by the Board; and

3.1.6. such other officer as may be prescribed.

. “Net Profit” shall be calculated as per section 198 of

the Act.

. “Senior Management” shall mean officers/personnel

of the Company who are members of its core
management team excluding board of directors
and normally this shall comprise all members of
management one level below the chief executive
officer/managing director/whole time director/
manager (including chief executive officer/manager,
in case they are not part of the board) and shall
specifically include company secretary and chief
financial officer.

Criteria for Appointment of Directors, Kmp
and Senior Management

. The Committee shall formulate criteria for

determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director. The Committee may
consider this Policy and the below provisions of this
Policy as guidance.

. The person to be appointed as a Director, KMP or in

the senior management should possess adequate
qualification, experience and expertise for the
position he or she is considered for, considering
various factors including the Company’s strategy
and requirements.

. The Committee shall have the discretion to decide

whether such qualification, experience and expertise
of the person is sufficient for him or her to effectively
discharge duties of the concerned position.

. The person to be appointed as Director, KMP or in

the senior management, should possess impeccable
reputation for integrity, efficiency, expertise and



4.5,

4.6.

4.7

4.8.

51

52.

53.

‘ 81t Annual Report 2019-20
‘Bajaj Electricals Limited (BEL)

insight in sectors or areas relevant to the Company’s
industry or otherwise demonstrate relevant qualities.

In case of a Director, such person’s personal and
professional standing must be such that it helps him
or her to best complement the other Board members
thereby contributing effectively towards Company’s
growth.

The Committee shall consider the potential
candidates on merit alone.

In case of a Director, such person must also fulfil the
minimum and/or maximum age criteria as applicable
under the provisions of the Act and SEBI LODR
Regulations and take necessary approvals from the
shareholders in this regard in case of directors above
the maximum age criteria as well as comply with
other requirements of law at the time.

In case of an Independent Director, he or she should
meet the requirements of the Act and SEBI LODR
Regulations concerning independence of directors.

Appointment and Removal of Directors,
Kmp and Senior Management

The Committee shall ensure that the size and
composition of the Board satisfies the applicable
law including provisions of the Act and SEBI LODR
Regulations.

The Committee shall identify persons who are
qualified to become directors, KMP’'s and who may
be appointed in the senior management with regard
to the attributes as specified under clause 4 of this
Policy and such other qualifications or attributes as
the Committee or board may deem necessary from
time to time.

Explanation — For the purpose of this clause,
“appointed in the senior management” means:

(i) induction/appointment of persons/officers/
personnel of the Company as members of the
core management team of the Company as on

date called as the ‘Executive Committee’; and

(ii) appointment of person/officer/personnel as the
company secretary or chief financial officer of
the Company.

The Committee while considering a person for
appointment as director, shall verify that the said
person has not been debarred or disqualified from

S4.

55.

5.6.

57.

5.8.

59.

being appointed as directors of companies by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI")
and/or Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other
statutory authority.

The Committee shall then recommend the identified
candidates to the Board for final selection and
appointment.

In case of directors, the Committee shall ensure
that the number of directorships held by each
director in other companies is below the specified
limit under the Act and SEBI LODR Regulations and
amendments made from time to time.

The Committee shall also ensure that any person
appointed as independent director does not have any
material pecuniary relationship with the Company,
its holding, subsidiary or associate company, or
company’s promoters or directors, except receiving
remuneration as a director or having transaction not
exceeding 10% of his total income or such amount
as prescribed, during the current financial year or
two immediately preceding financial years and also
satisfies other criteria for determining independence
as specified under the Act, SEBI LODR Regulations
and amendments made from time to time.

A whole-time KMP of the Company shall not hold
office at the same time in more than one Company
except in its subsidiary company. However, a whole-
time KMP can be appointed as a director in any
company subject to the provisions of the Act and/or
SEBI LODR Regulations and in accordance with the
policy of the Company.

The Committee shall review the performance of the
Board from time to time.

The Board shall ensure and satisfy itself that plans
are in place for orderly succession of the board of
directors and senior management.

510.The Committee may recommend removal of any

director or KMP to the Board with reasons in writing
explaining the breach of company policy or any
disqualifications or other such criteria for removal in
line with the provisions of the Act and/or SEBI LODR
Regulations or for other reasons.

511.The Board will have the discretion to retain the

whole-time directors, KMP and senior management
personnel in the same position/remuneration or
otherwise, even after attaining the retirement age, if
they deem fit for the benefit of the Company.

6.1.

6.2
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Terms of Appointment

Managing Director /| Whole - Time Director [
Executive Director / Non-executive Director

6.11. The Board shall appoint or re-appoint any
person as a managing director, whole-time
director, executive director or manager for a
term not exceeding five years (5 years) at a
time subject to approval by the members at
the next general meeting.

6.1.2. Not less than two-thirds of the total number
of directors (excluding independent directors)
shall be persons whose period of office is liable
to determination by retirement of directors by
rotation and be appointed by the Company in
general meeting; and at every annual general
meeting, one-third of such of the directors for
the time being as are liable to retire by rotation,
or if their number is neither three nor a multiple
of three, then, the number nearest to one-third,
shall retire from office as per the provisions of
the Act.

6.1.3. The directors retiring by rotation at every
annual general meeting shall be those who
have been longest in the office since last
appointment; the retiring director amongst
directors appointed on the same day shall be
determined by a lot.

6.14. At the annual general meeting at which a
director retires by rotation, the Company may
fill up the vacancy either by appointing the
retiring director or some other person as may
be deemed fit.

Independent Director

6.21. The term of appointment of an Independent
Director shall be up to five (5) years but he
or she shall be eligible for re-appointment on
passing of a special resolution by the Company
and disclosure of such appointment shall be
made in the Board’s Report.

6.22. No independent director shall hold office
for more than two consecutive terms but
shall become eligible for appointment after
expiration of three years (3 years) cool off
period, provided that he or she shall not be
appointed or associated with the Company in
any other capacity, either directly or indirectly
during such period.
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6.3. KMP and senior management

7.1.

6.31. The term of appointment and subsequent
retirement of KMPs and senior management
shall be as per the provisions of the law
including the Act, SEBI LODR Regulations, and
prevailing policy of the Company.

Criteria for Recommendation of

Remuneration

Executive Directors / Whole- Time Directors /
Managing Directors

711. The remuneration to the Managing Director
and other Executive directors shall be broadly
divided into fixed and variable components.
The fixed components shall comprise of
monthly  salary, allowances, perquisites,

amenities and other retirement benefits.

The variable component shall comprise of

performance based annual commission and/

or incentives. The performance criteria are
individual performance based on annual
targets, Company’s performance and recent

compensation trends in the industry.

71.2. Subject to provisions of the Act and SEBI
LODR Regulations, the remuneration payable
shall be approved by the Board of Directors at
the time of appointment subject to approval
by shareholders of the Company.

71.3. The overall remuneration payable to all the
directors of the Company including managing
director and whole-time directors in respect of
any financial year shall not exceed 11% of the
net profits of the Company.

714. Remuneration payable to any one managing
director; or whole-time director or manager
shall not exceed 5% of the net profits of the
Company and if there is more than one such
director, the remuneration shall not exceed
10% of the net profits of all such directors and
manager taken together.

71.5. Payment of remuneration in excess of the
above statutory limits shall be done by
recording of clear reason and justification and
obtaining approval of shareholders through
special resolution as per the provisions of the
Act, SEBI LODR Regulations and amendments
made thereto from time to time.
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71.6. The fees and compensation payable to
executive directors who are promoters or
members of the promoter group, shall be
subject to the approval of the shareholders by
special resolution in general meeting if —

i. The annual remuneration payable to such
executive director exceeds rupees five crore
(5 crore) or 2.5 percent (25%) of the net
profits of the Company, whichever is higher;
or

ii. Where there is more than one such director,
the aggregate annual remuneration to such
directors exceeds 5 percent (5%) of the net
profits of the Company.

Such approval shall be valid only till the expiry
of the term of such director.

717 In any financial year, if the Company has
no profits or its profits are inadequate, the
remuneration payable to its directors, including
Managing Director andfor other Executive
Director(s), shall be governed by the provisions
of Schedule V to the Act subject to the approval
of the shareholders of the Company.

7.2. Independent Directors / Non-executive Directors

72.1. The remuneration to Non-Executive Directors
shall consist of sitting fees for attending
Board/ Committee meetings, commission and
other reimbursements.

7.2.2. Non-Executive Directors shall be paid
commission upto an aggregate amount not
exceedingl % of the net profits of the Company
for the year. The payment of commission shall
be based on their attendance at the board and
the committee meetings as member.

72.3. All the Non-executive Directors shall be paid
commission on uniform basis.

7.2.4. The Independent directors shall not be entitled
to any stock options under the stock option
scheme of the Company.

72.5. The Company shall undertake Directors and
Officers insurance (‘D and O insurance’) for all
their independent directors of such quantum
and for such risks as may be determined by the
board of directors.

7.3.

74

b

7.5.

KMP, Senior Management and other employees

7.3.1. Inrespect KMPs, senior management and other
employees the remuneration shall be payable
based on the person’s performance, Company’s
performance, targets achieved, industry
benchmark and compensation trends in the
industry.

7.32. The remuneration shall consist of monthly
salary, bonus, perquisites, KPlI and other
retirement benefits as per the prevailing policy
of the Company.

733. The Committee shall recommend to the
Board and finalise the salary and other perks
remuneration in whatever form payable to the
senior management.

Employee Stock Options

As permissible under the provisions of the SEBI
(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014
(as re-enacted), the eligible permanent employees
and directors (other than promoter directors and
independent directors) of the Company shall be
eligible for Stock Options pursuant to Employee
Stock Option Scheme of the Company.

Other common criteria

The Committee shall also consider the following criteria
with regards to recommendation of remuneration:

751. the level and composition of remuneration
shall be reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate potential candidates
of the quality required to run the Company
successfully;

75.2. relationship of remuneration to performance
shall be clear and able to meet appropriate
performance benchmarks;

75.3. in line with best governance practices and
legal requirements;

754. remuneration to directors, KMPs and senior
management shall involve a balance between
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and
long-term performance objectives appropriate
to the working of the Company and its goals; and

75.5. ensure high quality of work.

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

85.

8.6.

87

8.8.
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Criteria for Evaluation of Performance of
Directors

The evaluation process for performance of the
Board, its Committees and directors shall be carried
out as per the provisions of the Act and the SEBI
LODR Regulations.

The Committee shall specify the manner for
effective evaluation of performance of Board, its
committees and individual directors to be carried
out by the Board and also review its implementation
and compliance.

Each director shall be provided with a questionnaire
to be filed up, providing feedback on the overall
functioning of the Board and its committees.

The questionnaire shall cover various parameters
such as composition structure with independent
directors and woman director with relevant skills,
experience, knowledge and diversity, understanding
of members on their respective roles and
responsibilities, discharge of key functions & other
responsibilities under the law, etc.

The directors shall also be asked to provide their
suggestions for areas of improvements to ensure
higher degree of engagement with the management.

The Independent Directors shall have a meeting at
least once in a year to review the performance and
evaluation of the non-independent directors and the
entire Board as a whole including the Chairman.

The evaluation of individual directors shall be
carried out considering factors such as their
attendance & participation, approach to board &
senior management especially for risk management
& meeting competition challenges, maintaining
confidentiality and other related factors as may be
deemed necessary in this exercise.

The evaluation of independent directors shall be
done by the entire board of directors (excluding the
directors being evaluated) with respect to -

8.8.1. performance of the directors; and

8.8.2. fulfillment of the independence criteria as
per the provisions of the Act and SEBI LODR
Regulations and their independence from the
management.

AN

Q.2.

9.3.

QL.
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Board Diversity

Board diversity is an important aspect that
makes use of differences in the skills, regional and
industrial experience, background, gender and other
distinctions to gain competitive advantage in the
market.

Board diversity shall be such that it ensures that the
Board is comprised of adequate number of members
with diverse experience and skills, such that it best
serves the governance and strategic needs of the
Company.

The Committee shall periodically review the size and
composition of the Board to ensure its structure in
terms of different perspectives, skills and expertise
in the board room.

The Committee shall strive to maintain a proper
balance in terms of diversity in gender, thought,
experience, knowledge and perspective when
recommending persons for appointment to the
Board.

10. Disclosure Requirements

101.The Company shall disclose in its Corporate

Governance Report, a chart or a matrix setting out
the skills/expertise/competence of the board of
directors specifying the following:

101.1.The list of core skills/ expertise/ competencies
identified by the board of directors as required
in the context of its business(es) and sector(s)
for it to function effectively and those actually
available with the board; and

101.2The names of directors who have such skills/
expertise/ competence.

102.The Company shall also disclose in its Corporate

Governance Report a confirmation that in the
opinion of the board, the independent directors fulfill
the conditions specified in SEBI LODR Regulations
and are independent of the management.

103.The Corporate Governance Report shall also

include detailed reasons for the resignation of any
independent director who resigns before the expiry
of his or her tenure along with a confirmation by such
director that there are no other material reasons
other than those provided.



‘ 81t Annual Report 2019-20
‘Bajaj Electricals Limited (BEL)

104.This policy shall be uploaded on the website of the
Company i.e. www.bajajelectricals.com.

10.5.The salient features of this policy and any changes
made therein in brief along with a weblink to the
policy shall be provided in the Board's Report.

11. Limitation and Amendment

11.1.In the event of any conflict between the provisions of
this policy and the Act or SEBI LODR Regulations or
any other statutory requirements, rules, regulations,

enactments, the provisions of such Act or SEBI LODR
Regulations or any other statutory requirements,
rules, regulations, enactments, the provisions shall
prevail over this policy.

11.2.Any subsequent amendment/modification in SEBI
LODR Regulations, Act and/ or applicable laws in this
regard shall automatically apply to this policy.

Mumbai Shekhar Bajaj

June 19, 2020 Chairman & Managing Director
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FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
[PURSUANT TO SECTION 204(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 & RULE 9 OF THE COMPANIES
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Bajaj Electricals Limited
45/47, Veer Nariman Road,
Mumbai - 400001,
Maharashtra, India.

We have conductedthe secretarial auditofthe compliance
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by Bajaj Electricals Limited
(hereinafter called "the Company"). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books,
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also
the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorised representatives during the
conduct of the Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that
in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2020
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board processes
and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company for the financial year ended on March 31,
2020, according to the provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act') and the Rules
made thereunder;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
('SCRA) and the Rules made thereunder;

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and
Bye-laws framed thereunder;

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the
Rules and Regulations made there under;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial  Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share
Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014,

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;

- Not applicable as the Company has not
delisted / proposed to delist its equity
shares from any stock exchange during the
financial year under review;

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 -Not
applicable as the Company has not bought
back/ proposed to buy back its securities during
the financial year under review; and

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;
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Other Applicable Laws:

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

Xi.

xii.

xiii.

XiV.

XV.

XVi.

XVii.

XViii.

XiX.

XX.

XXi.

The Factories Act, 1948 & the Central Rules or
concerned State Rules, made thereunder;

Boilers Act, 1923 & Rules made thereunder;
Environment Protection Act,1986;

The Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act,
1974 read with water (Prevention & Control of
Pollution) Rules, 2011;

The Legal Metrology Act, 2009 read with the Legal
Metrology (Packaged Commodity) Rules, 2011;

The Copyright Act, 1957;
The Patents Act, 1970;
The Trade Marks Act, 1999;

The Contract Labour (Regulations and Abolition)
Act, 1970 & its Central Rules /concerned State Rules;

Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952 and Rules/ Scheme thereunder;

Employers Liability Act, 1938;
The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976;

Employees State Insurance Act, 1948 and Rules
made thereunder;

The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 & its Central Rules/
concerned State Rules/ Notification of Minimum
Wages applicable to various class of industries /
Trade;

The Payment of Wages Act, 1936 & its Central
Rules/ concerned State Rules, if any;

The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 & its Central
Rules/ concerned State Rules, if any;

The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 & its Central
Rules/ concerned State Rules, if any;

The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 & its Rules;

The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act,
1946 & its Rules;

The Apprentices Act, 1961 & its Rules;

The Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923;

xxii. The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947;

xxiii. The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013;

xxiv. The Information Technology Act, 2000;
xxv. The Competition Act, 2002;

xxvi. The Goods and Services Tax, 2017;
xxvii. The Customs Act, 1962;

xxVviii.The Income Tax Act, 1961; and

xxiXx. The Central Excise Act, 1944.

We have relied on the representations made by the
Company, its Officers and Reports of the Statutory
Auditor for the systems and mechanism framed by the
Company for compliances under other Acts, Laws and
Regulations applicable to the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable
clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by The
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period underreview the Company has complied
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings
are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes
book, while the dissenting members' views, if any, are
captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and
processes in the Company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.
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We further report that during the audit period:

1. The Company during the financial year 2019-2020
has allotted 80,150 (Eighty Thousand One Hundred
and Fifty) equity shares of ¥2 each fully paid up,
on the following dates, to the employees of the
Company on their exercise of stock options granted
to them under the Company's ESOP Schemes and
vested in their favour:

a) On June 11, 2019 - 36,350 equity shares;

b) On September 17, 2019- 20,500 equity shares;
c) On December 2, 2019 - 12,675 equity shares;
d) On January 23,2020 - 10,625 equity shares;

2. The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting
held on August 7, 2019 have given their approval
to borrow funds by way of short term loans/ inter
corporate deposits from the promoter group which
includes Jamnalal Sons Private Limited, Bachhraj
& Co. Private Limited, Bachhraj & Factories Private
Limited and Bachhraj Sevashram Private Limited
upto a limit of ¥500 Crore (Rupees Five Hundred
Crore Only) for a period of 6 months at the rate of
12% interest per annum.

3. A Corporate guarantee of 25 Crore (Rupees
Twenty-Five Crore Only) has been issued in favour

Annexure to Directors’ Report‘

of Tata Capital Financial Services Limited on behalf
of Starlite Lighting Limited, a joint venture of the
Company. The said guarantee has been given for
availing bill discounting facility from Tata Capital
Financial Services Limited. The same was approved
by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on
November 6, 2019.

4. The Board of Directors of the Company in its
meeting held on January 6, 2020 constituted Rights
Issue Committee for issue of equity shares by way of
fast track rights issue. The Rights Issue Committee
in its meeting held on March 13, 2020 have allotted
112,87956 (One Crore Twelve Lakhs Eighty-Seven
Thousand Nine Hundred and Fifty Six) Equity shares
of ¥2/- (Rupees Two Only) each at ¥310/- (Rupees
Three Hundred and Ten Only) per equity share
including premium of ¥308/- (Rupees Three Hundred
and Eight Only) per share on rights basis.

For Anant B Khamankar & Co.

Anant Khamankar

FCS No. -3198

CP No. -1860
UDIN:FO03198B000336278

Date : June 11, 2020
Place : Mumbai
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Annexure to Secretarial Auditors' Report

To,

The Members,

Bajaj Electricals Limited
45/47, Veer Nariman Road,
Mumbai - 400 OO01.

Our Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020, of even date is to be read along with this
letter.
Management’s Responsibility

1. Itisthe responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise proper systems
to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are
adequate and operate effectively.

Auditor's Responsibility

2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures followed by the
Company with respect to the secretarial compliances.

3. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company's management is adequate and
appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management's representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.
Disclaimer

5. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

6. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the

Company.
For Anant B Khamankar & Co.
Anant Khamankar
Date : June 11, 2020 FCS No. -3198
Place : Mumbai CP No. -1860
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Annexure H

Report on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
[Pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

A. Conservation of Energy
I. Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

+  Unity power factor maintained throughout the financial year 2019-20 at Ranjangaon Unit 1 (RU1) and
Ranjangaon Unit 2 (RU2).

» 126 Nos. of 150 watt High Pressure Sodium Vapour (HPSV) Lamps were replaced by 80 watt Light Emitting
Diode (LED) Lamps at RU2.

» 14 Nos. 40 watt Compact Fluorescent Lamp (CFL) Tube Lights were replaced by 18 watt LED Tube Lights at RUL.
* 34 Nos. 28 watt CFL Tube Lights were replaced by 18 watt LED Tube Lights at RU2.
«  Timer-control circuits were installed in wall mounted fans at the shop floors of RU1 and RU2.

. 2 Nos. of Variable Frequency Drive (VFDs) were installed in Electric Overhead Traveling (EOT) cranes in Galva
shop at RUL, resulting into savings of £0.28 lakh per annum.

2 Nos. of VFDs were installed in the motors of loading conveyor at RU1, resulting into savings of ¥0.02 lakh per
annum per drive.

«  Air Saving Unit installed in machine shop at Chakan Unit.

« 14 Nos. 40 watt CFL Lights were replaced by 20 watt LED Lights at Chakan Unit, resulting into savings of
0.08 lakh per annum.

Il. Steps taken for utilising alternate sources of energy:
+  Rooftop Solar Panels are being installed at RU1 and RU2.
lll. Capital investment on energy conservation equipment:

+  Capital investment of ¥4.48 lakhs on energy conservation equipment viz. LED Lamps, LED Tubes, VFDs and Air
Saving Unit.

IV. Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production: In the financial year 2019-20, total
energy consumption at RU1 & RU2 was 2,853,602 electricals units and at Chakan it was 1,256,992 electricals
units. The Average unit per ton of production at RU1 & RU2 was 116.48 KWH/MT in the financial year 2018-19, as
compared to 8594 KWH/MT in the financial year 2018-19.

V. Impact of the energy conservation measures for reduction of energy consumption and consequent impact on
the cost of production of goods:

. Obtained Power Factor (PF) Incentives of ¥4.86 lakhs and ¥1.90 lakhs for RU1 and RU2 respectively.
» Savings at RU1 and RU2:

Sr. Previous lights and fittings New LED batten and high bay fittings Energy savings Investment

No. HPSV Watt Power Cons. LED Lamp Watt Power Cons. KW KWH % [ Year ®)
(Qty.) (Watts) (Qty.) (Watts)

1. 126 150 18900 126 80 10080 882 38102 342918 3,58,000

27 34 28 952 34 18 612 034 12240 1,100 10,200

3.7 14 40 560 14 18 252 031 111.60 1,340 4,200

- Total 345358 372,400

+ Savings at Chakan: ¥0.58 lakh per annum.
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B. Technology Absorption

Annexure |

I. Efforts made towards technology absorption:

«  Upgradation of low-speed (400mm/minute) plasma cutting machine to high-speed (1300mm/minute) plasma DETAILS PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
cutting machine at RUZ. READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL
+ Installation of Tacking fixtures at RU2 in order to double monopole productivity. PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014
+ Installation of Flux recovery systems for SAW welding machines.
. . . .. Relevant Prescribed Requirement Particulars
Il. Benefits derived: Improvement in productivity. clause
lll. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the u/r 5(1)
financial year): Not applicable 0) Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the Name of the Director Category Ratio to
IV. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development (R&D): median remunerot!on Of_the employees of the med:an
(Amount: Z in lakhs) Company for the financial year remuneration
Shekhar Bajaj E ti 4970:1
(a) Capital 9577 exhar 2ajd) xeeutive - BRRES
- Anuj Poddar Director 34.67:1
(b) Recurring 2,514.37 Madhur Baiol N 0641
adhur Baja on- .64
(c) Total 2,61014 — e
(d) Total R&D expenditure as a percentage of turnover 0.52% Rajiv Bajo Exeoutive _ 082:1
P P 9 : Pooja Bajaj Director 104:1
Harsh Vardhan 048:1
C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo Goenka
Shailesh Haribhakti 119:1
The foreign exchange earned in terms of actual inflows and the foreign exchange outgo during the year in terms Dr. Rajendra Prasad Independent 185:1
of actual outflows during the year. . Singh Director
(Amount: ¥ in lakhs) Dr. Indu Shahani 178:1
Foreign Exchange Amount Siddharth Mehta 236:1
Munish Khetrapal 0.64:1
Earned (Export) 1144150 (ii) Percentage increase/(decrease) in remuneration - Shekhar Bajaj, CMD - (51.79%)
Used (Import) 3392931

of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief _ Anuj Poddar, ED - (4.84%)
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if

) ) : - Anant Purandare, CFO - 4.53%
any, in the financial year

- Mangesh Patil, CS - 63.68% [Refer Note below]

For and on behalf of - Ajay Nagle, CS — N.A. [Refer Note below]

Board of Directors of Bajaj Electricals Limited No change in the terms of remuneration of Non-executive

Directors during the financial year 2019-20. However,

Shekhar Bajaj considering the ceiling of 1% of the net profit of the
Mumbai Chairman & Managing Director Company prescribed under the Act, for the financial year
June 19, 2020 DIN: 00089358 2019-20, the Board at its meeting held on June 19, 2020

approved a commission to Non-executive Directors
at ¥35792/- for each meeting of the Board and Audit
Committee attended by the Director during the said year as
compared to ¥1,00,000/- per meeting in the previous year.

(iii) Percentage increase in the median remuneration of 6.71%
employees in the financial year
(iv) Number of permanent employees on the rolls of 3007

Company
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Relevant Prescribed Requirement Particulars

clause

u/r 5(1)

V) Average percentile increase/(decrease) already made - Average increase in remuneration of Managerial
in the salaries of employees other than the managerial ~ Personnel - (39.53%)

personnel in the last financial year and its comparison  _ Average increase in remuneration of employees other

with the percentile increase in the managerial than the Managerial Personnel — 926%
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if
th ) " | oi ¢ fP . The Managerial Personnel compensation is linked to
ere are any exceptional circumstances for increase
. Y . P . Profit Before Tax and linked to the performance of the
in the managerial remuneration
Company.

(vi) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the The remuneration is as per the Nomination and

remuneration policy of the Company Remuneration Policy for the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Other Employees of the Company,
formulated pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of

the Companies Act, 2013.

Notes:

1. ShriMangesh Patil ceased to be the Company Secretary and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company with effect from January 6, 2020.

Above change in remuneration is considering the payments made on his full and final settlement.

2. Shri Ajay Nagle was appointed as the Company Secretary and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company with effect from January 6,2020.

For and on behalf of
Board of Directors of Bajaj Electricals Limited

Shekhar Bajaj
Mumbai Chairman & Managing Director
June 19,2020 DIN: 00089358
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Report on Corporate

Governance

Report on Corporate Governance |

The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the
year ended March 31, 2020, in terms of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”)

“Business should be pursued with a view to benefit the poor,
not just to become a millionaire or a billionaire.”

Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

The ethical values are the foundation of Company’s
governance philosophy which overthe past eight decades
of the Company’s existence has become a part of its
culture. We feel proud to belong to a Company whose
visionary founders laid the foundation stone for good
governance long back and made it an integral principle
of the business. We strongly believe that in business,
there is something more important than just top line
and bottom line and hence, each of us needs to strive
towards producing our very best in all we do, so that, we
not only fulfill the needs of each and every consumer, but
also far exceed their expectations. This is what has set
us apart and this may be the very reason that we have
been able to enjoy a very special relationship with our
consumers. After all, when you strive, with every sinew to
be the best you can be, it will show.

Corporate Governance is about commitment to values
and ethical business conduct. Our actions are governed
by our values and principles, which are reinforced at all
levels within the Company. We are committed to doing
things the right way which means taking business
decisions and acting in a way that is ethical and is in
compliance with applicable legislation.

The Company emphasises on the need for complete
transparency and accountability in all its dealings
to protect stakeholders interests. The governance
framework encourages the efficient utilisation of
resources and accountability for stewardship. The
Board considers itself as the custodian of trust and
acknowledges its responsibilities towards stakeholders
for wealth creation sustainably and responsibly.

Jamnalal Bajqj

Governance Structure

The Corporate Governance structure of the Company is
as follows:

Board of Directors: The Board is entrusted with an
ultimate responsibility of the management, directions
and performance of the Company. As its primary role
is fiduciary in nature, the Board provides leadership,
strategic guidance, objective and independent view
to the Company’s management while discharging its
responsibilities, thus ensuring that the management
adheres to ethics, transparency and disclosures.

Committees of the Board: The Board has constituted the
following Committees viz, Audit Committee, Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee, Risk Management Committee, Finance
Committee, Debenture Committee, QIP Committee
and Rights Issue Committee. Each of the aforesaid
Committee has been mandated to operate within a given
framework.

Chairman & Managing Director: The primary role of the
Chairman & Managing Director is to provide leadership
to the Board in achieving goals of the Company. He is
responsible for transforming the Company into a world-
class organisation. He is responsible, inter-alia, for the
working of the Board and for ensuring that all relevant
issues are placed before the Board and that all Directors
are encouraged to provide their expert guidance on the
relevant issues raised in the meetings of the Board. He is
also responsible for formulating the corporate strategy
along with other members of the Board.
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Executive Director: The Executive Director, as a member
of the Board and Executive Committee, contributes to
the strategic management of the Company’s businesses
within Board approved direction and framework. He
assumes overall responsibility for strategic management of
business and corporate functions including its governance
processes and top management effectiveness.

Non-Executive Directors including Independent
Directors: Non-Executive Directors play a critical role
in balancing the functioning of the Board by providing
independent judgements on various issues raised in the
Board meetings like formulation of business strategies,
monitoring of performances, etc.

Executive Committee: The main function of the Executive
Committee is strategic management of the Company’s
businesses within the Board approved direction and
framework, ensuring that effective systems are in place
for appropriate reporting to the Board on important
matters. The Executive Committee is headed by the
Chairman & Managing Director and has business &
functional heads as its members, which looks after the
management of the day-to-day affairs of the Company.

Board of Directors

The Company’'s Board comprises people of eminence
and repute who bring the required skills, competence and
expertise that allow them to make effective contribution
to the Board and its Committees.

The Board takes care of the business and stakeholders’
interest. The Non-Executive Directors, including the
Independent Directors are well qualified, experienced
and renowned persons from the fields of industrial,
manufacturing, general corporate management, finance,
law, media, corporate strategy, technical, marketing
and other allied background. The Board Members take
an active part at the Board and Committee Meetings
and provide valuable guidance to the Management on
various aspects of business, governance and compliance,
amongst others. The Board’s guidance provides foresight,
enhances transparency and adds value in decision-
making. The Company is managed by the Board in co-
ordination with the senior management team.

None of the Directors have attained the age of Seventy-
five (75) years.

Composition and category of the Board as on March 31,
2020

As per Regulation 17(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
where the Chairman is executive or a promoter, at least
one half of the Board of the Company should consist of
independent directors. The composition and strength
of the Board is reviewed from time to time for ensuring
that it remains aligned with statutory as well as business
requirements.

The Board of Directors as at the end of March 31, 2020,
comprised of eleven (11) Directors viz. one (1) Executive
Director - Promoter, one (1) Executive Director — Non
Promoter, three (3) Non-Executive Directors — Promoters
including one Woman Director, one (1) Non-Executive
Director — Independent Woman Director, and five (5)
Non-Executive Directors - Independent Directors, and
accordingly, has the following composition:

Category of Directors No. of %
Directors

Executive Directors 2 18.18

Non-Executive Directors, 3 2727

non-independent

Non-Executive Directors, 6 5455

independent

The Chairman of the Board is an Executive Director.
Independent Directors constitute more than one-half of
the total Board strength.

Board Diversity

The Company has over the years been fortunate to have
eminent persons from diverse fields to serve as Directors
onits Board. Pursuant to the SEBI Listing Regulations, the
Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company
ensures diversity of the Board in terms of experience,
knowledge, perspective, background, gender, age and
culture. The Policy is posted on the Company’s website
at: www.bajajelectricals.com.

Directors’ profile

The brief profiles of allthe members of Board are available
on the website of the Company: www.bajajelectricals.

com.
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The Board has identified the following skill sets with
reference to its business and industry which are available
with the Board:

Name of the Core Skills/Competencies/Expertise

Director in specific functional area
Shri Shekhar Industrialist, Electrical Consumer
Bajaj Durables Industry domain, Experience

in managing a large business
conglomerate, Business Strategy and
Corporate Management

Shri Anuj A Chartered Accountant with strong

Poddar professional experience across
consumer and other industries,
Business Strategy and Corporate

Management
Shri Madhur Industrialist, Experience in managing
Bajaj a large industrial conglomerate

Shri Rajiv Bajaj  Industrialist, Experience in managing
a large industrial conglomerate

Smt. Pooja Strong commercial acumen

Bajaj

Shri Harsh Industrialist, Experience in managing
Vardhan a large business conglomerate
Goenka

Dr. Rajendra Experience in managing a large
Prasad Singh industrial conglomerate

Dr. (Smt.) Indu Academics, Education

Shahani

Shri Siddharth Solicitor with experience across India
Mehta and other international territories
in corporate and commercial laws,
litigation and arbitration
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Name of the Core Skills/Competencies/Expertise
Director in specific functional area

Shri Munish Technology professional with
Khetrapal extensive leadership experience

across global markets
Shri Shailesh Experience in Auditing, Tax and Risk

Haribhakti Advisory Services

Board meetings

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and
decide on business strategies/policies and review the
financial performance of the Company and its subsidiary.
The Board meetings are pre-scheduled and a tentative
annual calendar of the Board meeting is circulated to the
Directors well in advance to facilitate them to plan their
schedules accordingly. In case of business exigencies,
the Board's approval is taken through circular resolutions.
The circular resolutions are noted at the subsequent
Board meeting.

The notice and detailed agenda along with the relevant
notes and other material information are sent in advance
to each Director and in exceptional cases tabled at the
meeting with the approval of the Board. This ensures
timely and informed decisions by the Board. The Board
reviews the performance of the Company vis-a-vis the
budgets/targets.

Number of meetings of the Board

During the year 2019-20, the Board met five times, viz. May
22,2019, August 7, 2019, November 6, 2019, January 6, 2020
and February 4, 2020. The gap between any two meetings
has been less than one hundred and twenty days.

Attendance record of directors

Composition of the Board and attendance record of directors for 2019-20:

Name of the director Category Relationship with No. of Board Whether attended
other directors Meetings attended last AGM
Shri Shekhar Bajaj Chairman & Brother of 5/5 Yes
Managing Director, Madhur Bajaqj,
Executive father-in-law of
Pooja Bajqj
Shri Anuj Poddar Executive Director - 5/5 Yes
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Name of the director Category Relationship with No. of Board Whether attended
other directors Meetings attended last AGM
Shri Madhur Bajaj Non-executive Brother of 4/5 Yes
Shekhar Bajaj
Shri Rajiv Bajaj* Non-executive - 2/5 No
Smt. Pooja Bajqj Non-executive Daughter-in-law  5/5 Yes
of Shekhar Bajaj
Shri Harsh Vardhan Goenka Non-executive, - 3/5 No
independent
Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh Non-executive, - 5/5 Yes
independent
Dr. (Smt.) Indu Shahani Non-executive, - 3/5 Yes
independent
Shri Siddharth Mehta Non-executive, - 5/5 Yes
independent
Shri Munish Khetrapal Non-executive, - 4/5 Yes
independent
Shri Shailesh Haribhakti** Non-executive, - 4L/L NA
independent

*Appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Director on the Board w.ef. May 22, 2019, regularised by the shareholders at the AGM held on August 7, 2019.
**Appointed as an Additional Director on the Board of the Company from August 7, 2019 for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years subject to

approval of the shareholders.

Information placed before the Board

The Company provides the information as set out in
Regulation 17 read with Part A of Schedule Il of the
SEBI Listing Regulations to the Board and the Board
Committees to the extent it is applicable and relevant.
Such information is submitted either as a part of the
agenda papers in advance of the respective meetings or by
way of presentations and discussions during the meetings.

Post meeting mechanism

The important decisions taken at the Board / Committee
meetings are communicated to the concerned
department / division.

Board support

The Company Secretary attends the Board Meetings and
advises the Board on compliances with applicable laws
and governance.

Duties and Functions of the Board

The duties of Board of Directors have been enumerated
in SEBI Listing Regulations, Section 166 and Schedule IV
of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) (Schedule IV is
specifically for Independent Directors). There is a clear
demarcation of responsibility and authority amongst the
Board of Directors.

Meeting of Independent Directors

During the year under review, the Independent Directors
met on March 31, 2020, inter alia to discuss (i) evaluation
of the performance of Non Independent Directors and
the Board of Directors as a whole; (ii) evaluation of
the performance of the Chairman of the Company,
taking into account the views of the Executive and
Non-Executive Directors; (iii) evaluation of the quality,
content and timelines of flow of information between
the Management and the Board that is necessary for the
Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties;
and (iv) other related matters. The meeting was attended
by three independent directors.

Resignation of the Independent Director

During the year under review, none of the independent
directors on the Board of the Company has resigned.

Opinion of the Board

The Board hereby confirms that, in its opinion, the
independent directors on the Board fulfil the conditions
specified in the SEBI Listing Regulations and the Act,
and are independent of the management. A formal letter
of appointment to independent directors as provided in
the Act has been issued and disclosed on website of the
Company: www.bajajelectricals.com.
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Directorships and Memberships of Committees
Number of directorships/committee positions of directors as on March 31, 2020:

Name of director Directorships Committee positions in listed and
unlisted public limited companies

In equity In unlisted In private As Member As Chairman
Listed public limited limited (including as
companies companies companies Chairman)

Shri Shekhar Bajaj 3 4 5 3 1

Shri Anuj Poddar 1 1 - - -

Shri Madhur Bajgj 5 - 4 - -

Shri Rajiv Bajaj 5 - 3 - -

Smt. Pooja Bajqj 1 - - 1 1

Shri Harsh Vardhan Goenka 5 2 2 -

Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh 3 3 1 2 -

Dr. (Smt.) Indu Shahani 4 1 2 8 2

Shri Siddharth Mehta 3 - 2 3 1

Shri Munish Khetrapal 1 - - -

Shri Shailesh Haribhakti 7 3 9 10 5

Note:

None of the directors hold office as a director, including as an alternate director, in more than twenty companies at the same time. None of them
has directorships in more than ten public companies. For reckoning the limit of public companies, directorships of private companies that are
either holding or subsidiary company of a public company are included and directorships in dormant companies are excluded. No Independent
Director holds any alternate directorship.

As per declarations received, none of the directors serves as an independent director in more than seven equity listed companies. Further,
the Managing Director and Executive Director of the Company does not serve as an independent director in more than three equity listed
companies and in fact not even in a single entity.

None of the directors was a member in more than ten committees, nor a chairperson in more than five committees across all companies in
which he was a director.

For the purpose of considering the limit of the committees on which a director can serve, all public limited companies, whether listed or not, have
been included and all other companies including private limited companies, foreign companies and companies under Section 8 of the Act have
been excluded. Only audit committee and stakeholders' relationship committee are considered for the purpose of reckoning committee positions.

Directorships in equity listed Companies
Name of equity listed entities where directors of the Company held directorships as on March 31, 2020:

Name of director Name of listed entities Category

Shri Shekhar Bajaj a) Bajaj Electricals Limited Chairman & Managing Director,

executive

b) Bajaj Auto Limited
c) Hercules Hoists Limited

Non-executive, non-independent

Chairman, non-executive, non-

independent

Shri Anuj Poddar a) Bajaj Electricals Limited Executive

Shri Madhur Bajaqj a) Bajaj Electricals Limited
b) Bajaj Auto Limited Non-executive, non-independent
c) Bajaj Holdings & Investment Limited Non-executive, non-independent

Non-executive, non-independent

d) Bajaj Finserv Limited
e) Bajaj Finance Limited

Non-executive, non-independent
Non-executive, non-independent

Shri Rajiv Bajaj a) Bajaj Electricals Limited
b) Bajaj Auto Limited
c) Bajaj Finserv Limited

Non-executive, non-independent

Managing Director and CEO, executive
Non-executive, non-independent

d) Bajaj Finance Limited Non-executive, non-independent

e) Bajaj Holdings & Investment Limited Non-executive, non-independent
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Name of director

Name of listed entities

Category

Smt. Pooja Bajqj a) Bajaj Electricals Limited Non-executive, non-independent
Shri Harsh Vardhan Goenka a) Bajaj Electricals Limited Non-executive, independent
b) RPG Life Sciences Limited Chairman, non-executive, non-

independent

c) CEAT Limited

Chairman, non-executive, non-
independent

d) KEC International Limited

Chairman, non-executive, non-
independent

e) Zensar Technologies Limited

Chairman, non-executive, non-
independent

Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh a) Bajaj Electricals Limited

Non-executive, independent

b) Techno Electric & Engineering Company  Non-executive, independent

Limited

Dr. (Smt.) Indu Shahani a) Bajaj Electricals Limited

Non-executive, independent

b) United Spirits Limited

Non-executive, independent

c) Clariant Chemicals (India) Limited

Non-executive, independent

d) Colgate-Palmolive (India) Limited

Non-executive, independent

Shri Siddharth Mehta a) Bajaj Electricals Limited

Non-executive, independent

b) TCI Industries Limited

Non-executive, independent

c¢) Indo Count Industries Limited

Non-executive, independent

Shri Munish Khetrapal a) Bajaj Electricals Limited

Non-executive, independent

Shri Shailesh Haribhakti a) Bajaj Electricals Limited

Additional non-executive, independent

b) Torrent Pharmaceuticals Limited

Non-executive, independent

c) ACC Limited

Non-executive, independent

d) Ambuja Cements Limited

Non-executive, independent

e) Blue Star Limited

Non-executive, independent

f) Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited

Non-executive, independent

g) L&T Finance Holdings Limited

Non-executive, independent

D&O Insurance for Directors

The Company has taken Directors and Officers Insurance
(D&QO) for all its Directors and Members of the Senior
Management for such quantum and for such risks as
determined by the Board.

Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors

At the time of appointing an Independent Director,
a formal letter of appointment is given to him / her,
which inter alia explains the role, function, duties and
responsibilities expected from him / her as a Director
of the Company. The Director is also explained in detail
the compliances required from him / her under the Act,
the SEBI Listing Regulations and other statutes and
an affirmation is obtained. The Chairman & Managing
Director also have a one to one discussion with the
newly appointed Director to familiarise him / her with
the Company’s operations. Further, on an ongoing basis
as a part of agenda of Board / Committee meetings,
presentations are regularly made to the Independent
Directors on various matters inter-alia covering the

Company’s and its subsidiary, associate and joint
venture companies operations, industry and regulatory
updates, strategy, finance, risk management framework,
role, rights, responsibilities of the IDs under various
statutes and other relevant matters. The details of the
familiarisation programme for Directors are available on
the Company’s website: www.bajajelectricals.com.

Governance Codes
Code of Business Conduct & Ethics

The Company has adopted Code of Business Conduct
& Ethics (“the Code”) which is applicable to the Board of
Directors and all employees of the Company. The Board
of Directors and the members of senior management
team of the Company are required to affirm annually
compliance of this Code. A declaration signed by the
Chairman & Managing Director of the Company to this
effectis placed atthe end of thisreport. The Code requires
Directors and employees to act honestly, fairly, ethically
and with integrity, conduct themselves in professional,
courteous and respectful manner. The Code is displayed
on the Company's website: www.bajajelectricals.com.
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Disclosure on conflict of interests

Each Director informs the Company on an annual basis
about the Board and the Committee positions he/she
occupies in other companies including as Chairman and
notifies changes during the year. The members of the
Board while discharging their duties, avoid conflict of
interest in the decision-making process. The members
of Board restrict themselves from participating in any
discussions and voting in transactions in which they
have concern or interest.

Insider Trading Code

The Company has adopted an ‘Internal Code of Conduct
for Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trades by
Designated Persons’ (“the Code”) in accordance with
the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 (“PIT Regulations”). The Code is applicable to
promoters, member of promoter group, all Directors
and such designated employees who are expected to
have access to unpublished price sensitive information
relating to the Company. The Company Secretary is the
Compliance Officer for monitoring adherence to the said
PIT Regulations. The Company has also formulated ‘The
Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure
of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (UPSI)" in
compliance with the PIT Regulations.

This Code is displayed on the Company’s website: www.
bajajelectricals.com.

Committees of the Board

The Board of Directors has constituted Board Committees
to deal with specific areas and activities which concern
the Company and require a closer review. The Board
Committees are formed with the approval of the Board
and they function under their respective Charters.
These Committees play an important role in the overall
management of the day-to-day affairs and governance
of the Company. The Board Committees meet at regular
intervals and take necessary steps to perform the duties
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entrusted by the Board. The minutes of the Committee
meetings are placed before the Board for noting.

(A) Audit Committee

Audit Committee is entrusted with the responsibility
to supervise the Company’s financial reporting
process and internal controls. The composition,
quorum, powers, role and scope are in accordance
with Section 177 of the Act and the provisions of
Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

During the year under review, the Board of the
Company, vide its resolution dated November
6, 2019 re-constituted the Audit Committee by
inducting Shri Shailesh Haribhakti, as a member of
the Committee. The Board subsequently elected
Shri Shailesh Haribhakti as the Chairman of the
Committee in its meeting held on January 6, 2020.

As on the date of this Report, the Audit Committee
comprised of four (4) Directors i.e. Shri Shailesh
Haribhakti as the Chairman and Dr. (Smt.) Indu
Shahani, Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh and Shri
Siddharth Mehta as its members. All members of
the Audit Committee are financially literate and
bring in expertise in the fields of finance, taxation,
economics, legal, risk and international finance. The
Committee functions in accordance with its terms
of reference that defines its authority, responsibility
and reporting function. The Company Secretary acts
as the convener to the Audit Committee.

Meetings and Attendance

The Audit Committee met six (6) times during the
financial year 2019-20. The maximum gap between
two meetings was not more than 120 days. The
Committee met on May 22, 2019, August 7, 2019,
November 6, 2019, January 6, 2020, February 4,
2020 and March 26, 2020. The requisite quorum was
present at all meetings. The then Chairperson of the
Audit Committee was present at the last AGM of the
Company held on August 7, 2019.

The attendance of the Audit Committee members:

Sr. No. Name of Directors Position Category No. of meetings attended
1 Shri Shailesh Haribhakti * Chairperson Independent Director 3/3
2. Dr. (Smt.) Indu Shahani Member Independent Director 4L/6
3. Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh Member Independent Director 5/6
4. Shri Siddharth Mehta Member Independent Director 6/6

* Appointed as member of the Audit Committee w.e.f. November 6, 2019 and as the Chairman w.e.f January 7, 2020.
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Terms of reference and functions of Audit Committee

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee as
stated below is in line with what is mandated in
Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and
Section 177 of the Act:

1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting
process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial
statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

2. Recommendationforappointment, remuneration
and terms of appointment of auditors of the
Company;

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any
other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual
financial statements and auditor's report
thereon before submission to the Board for
approval, with particular reference to:

a. mattersrequiredto beincludedinthe Director's
Responsibility Statement to be included in the
Board's report in terms of clause (c) of sub-
section 3 of Section 134 of the Act.

b. changes, if any, in accounting policies and
practices and reasons for the same.

c. major  accounting entries involving
estimates based on the exercise of judgment

by management.

d. significant adjustments made in the financial
statements arising out of audit findings.

e. compliance with listing and other legal
requirements relating to financial statements.

f. disclosure of any related party transactions.

g. modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report.

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly
financial statements before submission to
the Board for approval including the financial
statements, in particular, the investments made
by unlisted subsidiary(ies);

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement
of uses / application of funds raised through
an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilised for
purposes other than those stated in the offer
document / prospectus / notice and the report
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring
the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights
issue, and making appropriate recommendations
to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

Review and monitor the auditor’'s independence and
performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

Approval or any subsequent modification of
transactions of the Company with related parties;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the
Company, wherever it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk
management systems;

Reviewing, with the management, performance
of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of
the internal control systems;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function,
if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official
heading the department, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of internal audit;

Discussion with internal auditors of any
significant findings and follow up there on;

Reviewing the findings of any internal
investigations by the internal auditors into matters
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a
failure of internal control systems of a material
nature and reporting the matter to the Board;

Discussion with statutory auditors before the
audit commences, about the nature and scope
of audit as well as post-audit discussion to
ascertain any area of concern;

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults
in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment
of declared dividends) and creditors;

To review the functioning of the whistle blower
mechanism;
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19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e, the whole-
time Finance Director or any other person heading
the finance function or discharging that function)
after assessing the qualifications, experience and
background, etc. of the candidate;

20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned
inthe terms of reference of the Audit Committee;

21. To review the utilisation of loans, advances or both
in the subsidiary company(ies) which shall not
exceed T 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the
subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing
loans / advances / investments as on April 1, 2019.

The Audit Committee mandatorily reviews the
following information:

1. Management discussion and analysis of
financial condition and results of operations;

2. Statement of significant related party
transactions (as defined by the Audit
Committee) submitted by management;

3. Management letters / letters of internal control
weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

4. Internal audit reports relating to internal control
weaknesses;

5. Appointment, removal and terms of remuneration
of the Chief Internal Auditor; and

6. Statement of deviations:

a. quarterly statement of  deviation(s)
including report of monitoring agency, if
applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s)
in terms of Regulation 32(1) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations; and

b. annual statement of funds utilised for purposes
other than those stated in the offer document

(B)
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/ prospectus / notice in terms of Regulation
32(7) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

7. Compliance withthe provisions of Regulation 9 of
SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 at least once in a financial year and
verify that the systems for internal control are
adequate and are operating effectively.

Internal Controls and Governance Processes

The Company continuously invests in strengthening
its internal controls and processes. The Audit
Committee formulates a detailed audit plan for the
year for the internal auditor. The Internal Auditors
attend the meetings of the Audit Committee
and submit their recommendations to the Audit
Committee and provide a road map for the future.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

As on March 31, 2020, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee comprised of three
(3) Directors viz. Dr. (Smt.) Indu Shahani as the
Chairperson, and Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh and Shri
Siddharth Mehta as its members. On June 10, 2020,
the Committee was reconstituted by the Board by
inducting Shri Shekhar Bajaj, Chairman of the Board
as the member of the Committee. The Company
Secretary acts as the convener to the Committee.

Meetings and Attendance

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
met four (4) times during the financial year 2019-
20 ie. on May 22, 2019, August 7, 2019, November
6, 2019 and January 6, 2020. The requisite quorum
was present at all the meetings. The Chairperson of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was
present at the last AGM of the Company held on
August 7, 2019.

The attendance of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee members:

Sr. No. Name of Directors Position Category No. of meetings attended
1 Dr. (Smt.) Indu Shahani Chairperson Independent Director 3/4
2. Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh Member Independent Director 4j4
3. Shri Siddharth Mehta Member Independent Director 4Lk
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Terms of reference and functions of Nomination
and Remuneration Committee

The broad terms of reference of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee as stated below is
in compliance with Section 178 of the Act and
Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations:

1. To identify persons who are qualified to become
directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid
down,recommendtothe Boardtheirappointment
and removal, and shall specify the manner for
effective evaluation of performance of Board,
its Committees, Chairperson and individual
directors to be carried out by the Board, by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by
an independent external agency and review its
implementation and compliance.

2. To formulate the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and recommend to
the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration
for the directors, key managerial personnel and
other employees.

3. While formulating the policy, to ensure that:

a. the level and composition of remuneration
is reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate directors of the quality
required to run the company successfully;

b. relationship of remuneration to performance
is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and

c. remuneration to directors, key managerial
personnel and senior management involves
a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and long-term performance
objectives appropriate to the working of the
company and its goals.

4. To take into account financial position of the
company, trend in the industry, appointees
qualifications, experience, past performance, past
remuneration, etc, and bring about objectivity
in determining the remuneration package while
striking a balance between the interest of the
company and the shareholders while approving
the remuneration payable to managing director,
whole time director or manager.

5. To lay down / formulate the evaluation criteria
for performance evaluation of independent
directors and the Board.

6. To devise a policy on Board diversity.

7. To ensure 'Fit & Proper’ status of the proposed/
existing directors.

8. To recommend to Board, whether to extend
or continue the term of appointment of the
independent director, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of independent directors.

9. To review and approve the remuneration and
change in remuneration payable to whole-time
directors.

10. To recommend to Board, all remuneration payable
to senior management (i.e. members of the core
management team one level below the chief
executive officer/managing director/whole time
director and shall specifically include Company
Secretary and Chief Financial Officer); and

11. Toact asthe Compensation Committee under SEBI
(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014
(including amendment thereof) to determine the
quantum of Employee Stock Options to be granted
to the employees under Company’s ESOP Plans;
determine eligibility for grant of ESOPS; decide
the procedure for making a fair and reasonable
adjustment in case of corporate actions; procedure
and terms for the grant, vest and exercise of
Employee Stock Option; procedure for cashless
exercise of Employee Stock Options etc.

12. To undertake specific duties as may be
prescribed by the board from time to time.

Remuneration Policy

The Board on the recommendation of Nomination
and Remuneration Committee has framed a
Nomination and Remuneration Policy (“Policy”),
providing a) Selection, appointment and removal;
b) Remuneration; c¢) Evaluation of performance;
and d) Board diversity. The Policy is directed
towards rewarding performance, based on review of
achievements. It is aimed at attracting and retaining
high caliber talent. The Policy is displayed on the
Company’s website: www.bajajelectricals.com.

Criteria for recommendation of remuneration

a) Non-Executive Directors remuneration:

The remuneration of Non-Executive Directors
is determined within the limits prescribed
under Section 197 read with the Rules framed
thereunder and SEBI Listing Regulations. The
Non-Executive Directors of the Company
receive remuneration by way of sitting fees for
attending the Board and Committee meetings
and commission as detailed below:

b)
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(i) Sitting fees of ¥ 1,00,000 for each meeting
of the Board and Audit Committee, and
¥ 50000 for each meeting of other
Committees attended by the Director, as
approved by the Board within the overall
limits prescribed under the Act;

(ii) Payment of commission on an annual basis
of ¥1,00,000 for each meeting of the Board
and Audit Committee attended by the
Director, subject to the ceiling of 1% of the
net profit of the Company prescribed under
the Act as approved by the Members in the
Eightieth (80th) AGM held on August 7, 2019;

(iii) Reimbursement of travelling and other
related expenses incurred by the Non-
Executive Directors for attending the Board
and Committee meetings;

(iv) Independent Directors and any employee/
director of the Company, who is a promoter or
belongs to the promoter group are not entitled
to participate in ESOPs of the Company.

The service contract, notice period and
severance fees are not applicable to Non-
Executive Directors.

Executive Directors’ remuneration:

The appointment and remuneration of
Executive Directors, i.e. of Chairman & Managing
Director and Executive Director, is governed
by the recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and resolutions passed
by the Board and Shareholders of the Company.

The terms and conditions of appointment and
the remuneration payable to:

(i) Shri Shekhar Bajaj, Chairman & Managing
Director, as approved by the Members of the
Company by way of special resolution dated
December 23, 2019 passed through postal
ballot, can be accessed at weblink: www.
bajajelectricals.com.

(ii) Shri Anuj Poddar, Executive Director, as
approved by the Members of the Company
by way of special resolution passed at the
Annual General Meeting held on August
7, 2019, can be accessed at weblink: www.
bajajelectricals.com.

The remuneration package of Executive
Directors’ comprises of salary, commission,
perquisites and allowances, and contributions
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to provident fund and other retirement benefits
as approved by the shareholders at the general
meetings. Annual increments are linked to
performance and are decided by Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and recommended to
the Board for approval thereof. The Company
has no stock option plans for the promoter
executive directors/non-executive directors
and only non-promoter executive directors are
eligible for stock option plans.

During the financial year 2019-20, the Company
did not advance any loans to any of the directors.

The tenure of office of the Managing Director
and Executive Director is for 5 (five) years from
their respective dates of appointment and can
be terminated by either party by giving three
months’ notice in writing. There is no separate
provision for payment of severance fees.

c) Remuneration Policy for the Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP) and other employees:

Remuneration of KMP and other employees largely
consists of basic salary, perquisites, allowances
and performance incentives. The components of
total remuneration vary for different grades and are
governed by industry patterns, qualifications and
experience of the employee, responsibilities handled
by him/her, his/her annual performance, etc. The
performance pay policy links the performance pay
of each employee to his/her individual, business unit
and overall Company’s performance on parameters
aligned to the Company’s objectives.

Remuneration drawn by the Directors during the
financial year 2019-20

The remuneration paid to the Directors is in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and has
been duly approved by Members of the Company.None
of the Directors of the Company have any pecuniary
relationship with the Company. The remuneration
paid to the Non-Executive Directors does not exceed
the threshold specified in Regulation 17(6)(ca) of
the SEBI Listing Regulations and no approval of the
shareholders by Special Resolution was called for.
Also, since the profits of the Company for financial
year 2019-20 are inadequate, the then current
remunerations of Managing Director and Executive
Director were paid to them as minimum remuneration
as per the terms of their remuneration approved by
shareholders by way of respective special resolutions
under sections 196, 197, 198, 203, Schedule V and any
other applicable provisions of the Act.
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The remuneration drawn by the Directors during the year is set out below:

Executive Directors

(Amount: T in lakhs)

Name of the Director(s) Salaryand Perquisites Retiral Commission Total
allowances benefits payable

Shri Shekhar Bajaqj 248.42 5698 7614 3794 41948

Shri Anuj Poddar 28271* 040 954 - 29265

* Includes performance linked incentive of ¥ 27.38 lakhs.

Shri Anuj Poddar holds 40000 stock options under the Company’'s ESOP Scheme.

Non-Executive Directors

Commission Total (%)

Name of the Non- Executive Director(s) Sitting Number of equity
Fees (%) provided for shares and convertible

financial year instruments held as at

2019-20 (T)*** March 31, 2020

Shri Madhur Bajaj 4,00,000 143168 543,168 917342
Shri Rajiv Bajaj* 2,00,000 71584 271584 =
Smt. Pooja Bajqj 700,000 1,78,960 8,78960 146319
Shri Harsh Vardhan Goenka 3,00,000 1,07,376 4,07,376 =
Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh 12,00,000 3,57920 15,57920 -
Dr. (Smt.) Indu Shahani 12,50,000 250,544  1500,544 -
Shri Siddharth Mehta 16,00,000 393,712 1993,712 =
Shri Munish Khetrapal 4,00,000 1,43,168 543,168 -
Shri Shailesh Haribhakti** 750,000 2,50,544 10,00,544 -

*Appointed as an additional Non-Executive Director on the Board w.e.f. May 22, 2019, regularised by the shareholder at the AGM held on

August 7, 2019.

**Appointed as an additional Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. August 7, 2019. Further, appointed as a Member
and Chairman of the Audit Committee w.e.f. November 6, 2019 and January 7, 2020, respectively.

*** Considering the ceiling of 1% of the net profit of the Company prescribed under the Act, for the financial year 2019-20, the Board at its
meeting held on June 19, 2020 approved a commission to Non-executive Directors at ¥ 35,792/~ for each meeting of the Board and Audit

Committee attended by the Director during the said year.

Performance Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the SEBI
Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out
the annual evaluation of its own performance, its
Committees and Directors individually. A structured
questionnaire was prepared covering various aspects
of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the
composition of the Board and its Committees, Board
culture, execution and performance of specific
duties, obligations and governance.

The performance evaluation of independent directors
was done by the entire Board, excluding the director
being evaluated. A separate exercise was carried out

to evaluate the performance of Individual Directors.
The Chairman of the Board of Directors interacted
with all the Directors individually to get an overview of
the functioning of the Board/Committees, inter alia, on
the following broad criteria i.e. attendance and level of
participation at meetings of the Board/committees,
independence of judgment exercised by Independent
Directors, interpersonal relationship and so on.

The performance evaluation of the Non-Independent
Directors and the Board as a whole was carried out
by the Independent Directors. The performance
evaluation of the Executive Chairman of the
Company was also carried out by the Independent
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Directors, taking into account the views of the
Executive Director and Non- Executive Directors.

A consolidated summary of the ratings given by
each Director was then prepared. The report of
performance evaluation was then discussed and
noted by the Board.

Based on the inputs received from the Directors, an
action plan is being drawn up in consultation with
the Directors to encourage their greater engagement
with the Company.
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(C) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee comprises
of three (3) Directors i.e. Smt. Pooja Bajaj as the
Chairperson, and Dr. (Smt.) Indu Shahani and Shri
Shekhar Bajaj as its members. The Committee is
governed by a Charter.

Shri Ajay Nagle, Company Secretary has been
designated as Compliance Officer of the Company.
He has also been appointed as the nodal officer in
line with statutory requirements.

Meetings and Attendance

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee met four (4) times during the financial year 2019-20 i.e. on June 11, 2019,
September 17,2019, December 2, 2019 and January 23, 2020. The requisite quorum was present at all the meetings.

The attendance of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee members:

Sr. No. Name of Directors Position Category No. of meetings attended
1 Smt. Pooja Bajaj Chairperson Non- Executive Director 4Ljh
2. Shri Shekhar Bajqj Member Executive Director 4L
3. Dr. (Smt.) Indu Shahani Member Independent Director 3/4

Terms of reference

The terms of reference of Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee are as under:

1. To resolve the grievances of the security holders
of the Company including complaints related
to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt
of annual report, non-receipt of declared
dividends, issue of new / duplicate certificates,
general meetings etc.

2. Review of measures taken for effective exercise
of voting rights by shareholders.

3. Review of adherence to the service standards
adopted by the Company in respect of various
services being rendered by the Registrar &
Share Transfer Agent.

4. Review of various measures and initiatives taken
by the Company for reducing the quantum of
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt
of dividend warrants / annual reports / statutory
notices by the shareholders of the Company.

5. Issue and allotment of equity and/or preference
shares.

6. Issue of new share certificate on allotment.

7. Issue of duplicate / split / consolidated share
certificates.

8. To settle any question, difficulty or doubts of the
shareholders that may arise with regards to the
issue and allotment of shares.

9. Reference to Board of Directors in case of
any question, doubts or difficulty in respect
of issue, allotment, transfer of shares and any
shareholders grievances, if necessary.

The Secretarial Department of the Company and
the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Link Intime
India Private Limited attend to all grievances of the
shareholders received directly or through SEBI, Stock
Exchanges, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Registrar
of Companies, etc. The minutes of Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee meetings are circulated to
and noted by the Board.

Continuous efforts are made to ensure that grievances
are more expeditiously redressed to the complete
satisfaction of the investors. Shareholders are
requested to furnish their updated telephone numbers
and e-mail addresses to facilitate prompt action.
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Details of Shareholders’ complaints received, resolved
and pending during the financial year 2019-20:

No. of
complaints

Investors Complaints

Pending at the beginning of the year 1
Received during the year 2
Disposed off during the year 2
Remaining unresolved at the end of 1*
the year

* As on the date of this Report, the said pending complaint also

stands resolved.

All share transfer documents which were lodged with
the Company up to March 31, 2019 found to be duly
completed in all respects were processed within the
statutory period. Transfer of shares held in physical
form is not permitted after March 31, 2019 through
statutory notifications.

Risk Management Committee

Pursuant to Regulation 21 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, the Board of the Company, at its
meeting held on March 28, 2019, constituted Risk
Management Committee, to be effective from April
1, 2019, with the following as its members:

Shri Shekhar Bajaj, Chairman & Managing Director
Shri Anuj Poddar, Executive Director

Dr. (Smt) Indu Shahani, Independent Director
Shri Siddharth Mehtaq, Independent Director

Shri  Anant Purandare, President & Chief
Financial Officer

6. Shri Rishiraj Haldankar, Vice President & Head —
Internal Audit

o F 0o NP

The Company Secretary acts as the convenor of the
Committee.

The composition of the Committee is in conformity
with the SEBI Listing Regulations, with majority of
members being Directors of the Company. During the
year under review, the Committee met once on March
26,2020 which was attended by all the members.

Terms of Reference

The following are the responsibilities of the Committee:

a) To identify, assess, mitigate and monitor the
existing as well as potential risks to the Company
(including risks associated with cyber security
and financial risk), to recommend the strategies
to the Board to overcome them and review key
leading indicators in this regard.

b) To periodically review and approve the risk
management framework including the risk

(E)

management processes and practices of the
Company.

c) To evaluate significant risk exposures of the
Company and assess management’s actions to
mitigate the exposures in a timely manner.

d) To develop and implement action plans to
mitigate the risks.

e) To coordinate its activities with the Audit
Committee in instances where there is any
overlap with audit activities (e.g. internal or
external audit issue relating to risk management
policy or practice).

f) Tooversee at suchintervals as may be necessary,
the adequacy of Company's resources to
perform its risk management responsibilities
and achieve its objectives.

g) Toreview and periodically assess the Company'’s
performance against the identified risks of the
Company.

h) toreview and periodically reassess the adequacy
of this Charter and recommend any proposed
changes to the Board for approval.

i)  To regularly review and update the current list of
material business risks.

j) To make regular reports to the Board, including
with respect to risk management and
minimisation procedures.

k) To perform such other activities related to risk
management plan as requested by the Board
or to address issues related to any significant,
subject within its term of reference.

The Committee maydiverge fromtheseresponsibilities
and may assume such other responsibilities as it
deems necessary or appropriate in carrying out its
functions. The role and responsibilities of the Risk
Management Committee shall include such other
items as may be prescribed by applicable law or the
Board in compliance with applicable law, from time
to time. The performance of the Committee shall be
reviewed by the Board periodically.

Rights Issue Committee

The Rights Issue Committee was duly constituted
by the Board for the purposes of rights issue of the
Company with the composition consisting of Shri
Shekhar Bajaj, as the Chairman of the Committee
and Shri Anuj Poddar, Dr. (Smt.) Indu Shahani and
Shri Siddharth Mehta as its members.

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the
convenor of the Committee.

(F)

(G)

(H)
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Meetings and Attendance
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The Rights Issue Committee met two (2) times during the financial year 2019-20 i.e. on January 31, 2020 and
March 13, 2020. The requisite quorum was present at all the meetings.

The attendance of the Rights Issue Committee members:

Sr. No. Name of Director(s) Position Category No. of meetings attended
1. Shri Shekhar Bajaj Chairperson Executive Director 1/2
2. Shri Anuj Poddar Member Executive Director 2/2
3. Dr. (Smt.) Indu Shahani Member Independent Director 2/2
4. Shri Siddharth Mehta Member Independent Director 2/2

QIP Committee

The QIP Committee was duly constituted by the Board
for the purposes of Qualified Institutional Placement
of the Company with the composition consisting of
Shri Shekhar Bajaj, as the Chairman of the Committee,
and Shri Anuj Poddar and Shri Siddharth Mehta as its
members. The Company Secretary of the Company
acts as the convenor of the Committee.

During the financial year 2019-20, the Committee
met once on September 27, 2019 to deliberate on
various related matters and the said meeting was
attended by all the members of the Committee.

Finance Committee

The Company has Finance Committee comprising
of three Directors viz. Shri Shekhar Bajaj as its
Chairman and Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh and Smt.
Pooja Bajaj as its members. The Company Secretary
acts as the convenor of the Committee.

The Committee, inter-alia, looks into the matters
related to borrowings of the Company, if any, to be
made in the form of fund and non-fund based limits for
the business and working capital requirements of the
Company, review of the Company’s insurance program,
issues authority to or withdraws the authority given to
the officers of the Company to open / operate / close
bank accounts, besides the other powers granted to it
by the Board from time to time.

No meetings of the Committee held during the
financial year 2019-20.

Debenture Committee

The Debenture Committee was constituted for
the purpose of adallotment of Non-Convertible
Debentures (NCDs) to its subscribers / allottees with
the composition consisting of Shri Shekhar Bajaj,
as the Chairman of the Committee with Shri Anuyj

m

Poddar, Executive Director and Shri Siddharth Mehtq,
Independent Director of the Company as its members.

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the
convenor of the Committee. Axis Trustee Services
Limited is the Debenture Trustee for the Debenture
holders. The details of the Debenture trustee forms
part of this Report.

No meetings of the Committee held during the
financial year 2019-20.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was
constituted to undertake various corporate social
responsibility related activities as envisaged in the
Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
with the composition consisting of Shri Shekhar Bajaj,
as the Chairman of the Committee and Dr. (Smt.)
Indu Shahani and Shri Siddharth Mehta, Independent
Directors of the Company as its members.

During the financial year 2019-20, the Committee
met once on March 26, 2020 and the said meeting
was attended by all the members of the Committee.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

Management Discussion and Analysis Report has been
attached as a separate chapter and forms part of the
Annual Report.

Subsidiary Companies

The Company has a Policy for determining Material
Subsidiaries, which is in line with the SEBI Listing
Regulations as amended, and the same has been
uploaded on the website of the Company viz. www.
bajajelectricals.com. There is no material subsidiary

of the Company and hence requirements relating to
composition of Board of Directors of unlisted material
subsidiary do not apply to the Company.
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General Body Meetings
Details of last three AGMs held

AGM Financial Year Date and Time Venue

78th  2016-17 Thursday,

Details of Special Resolution Passed

Walchand Hirachand a. lIssue of Redeemable Non-Convertible
August 3,2017  Hall, 4th Floor, Indian

Debentures on private placement basis.

at 11.30 AM Merchants’ Chamber,
IMC Marg, Churchgate,

Mumbai 400 020

79th  2017-18 Thursday,

Kamalnayan Bajaj Hall,  a. Borrowing by way of Issue of Securities;

August 9,2018 Bajaj Bhavan, Jamnalal b. Promotion and re-designation of Shri Anant

at 12.00 PM Bajaj Marg, Nariman Bajaj as the Managing Director of the
Point, Mumbai 400 021 Company;

c. Maintenance of Statutory Registers at a
place other than the Registered Office of
the Company; and

d. Adoption of new set of Articles of
Association of the Company in conformity
with the Companies Act, 2013.

80th 2018-19 Wednesday, Kamalnayan Bajaj Hall,  a. Appointment of Shri Anuj Poddar as an
August 7,2019  Bajaj Bhavan, Jamnalal Executive Director;
at 12.30 PM. Bajaj Marg, Nariman b. Alteration of Articles of Association of the
Point, Mumbai 400 021 Company;

c. Borrowing by way of Issue of Securities; and
d. Further Issue of Securities.

Details of special resolution passed through postal
ballot, the persons who conducted the postal ballot
exercise and details of the voting pattern and procedure
of postal ballot

During the financial year 2019-20, the Company
conducted postal ballot for re-appointment of Shri
Shekhar Bajaj as a Managing Director of the Company
for a period of 5 years w.ef. November 1, 2019.

Messrs Anant B. Khamankar & Co., Practicing Company
Secretaries (Membership No. FCS 3198; CP No. 1860)
was appointed to act as the Scrutinizer for conducting
voting process in a fair and transparent manner. The
Result of the Postal Ballot was announced on December
24,2019 and details of voting result on the resolution are
as follows:

Sr. Description Votes (No. of shares
No. and %)
In favour Against

1. Re-appointment of Shri 74,822,508 8,197
Shekhar Bajaj as a Managing (9999%) (0.01%)
Director of the Company
for a period of 5 years welf.

November 1, 2019

The Company had sent the postal ballot notice dated
November 6, 2019 and postal ballot form along with
postage pre-paid business reply envelope to members/
beneficial owners through email at their registered email
IDs and through physical copy to the members who have
not registered their email IDs. The Company had also
published notice in the newspapers for the information of
the members. Voting rights were reckoned on the equity
shares held by the members as on the cut-off date.

The voting period for postal ballot and E-voting was from
Sunday, November 24, 2019 at 900 a.m. (IST) to Monday,
December 23, 2019 at 500 p.m. (IST). The postal ballot
results were intimated to the stock exchanges pursuant to
Regulation 44(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as well as
displayed on the Company’s website www.bajajelectricals.
com. The Company has also complied with the procedure
for Postal Ballot in terms of the provisions of Section 110 of
the Act, read with Rule 22 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014.

There is no immediate proposal for passing any resolution
through postal ballot. None of the businesses proposed to be
transacted in the ensuing Annual General Meeting requires
passing of a special resolution through postal ballot.

Means of Communication to Shareholders

(i) The Un-audited quarterly/half yearly results are
announced within forty-five (45) days of the close
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of the quarter. The audited annual results are
announced within sixty (60) days from the closure of
the financial year as per the requirement of the SEBI
Listing Regulations.

(ii) The approved financial results are sent to the Stock
Exchanges forthwith and published in ‘Free Press
Journal’ (English newspaper) and ‘Navshakti’ (local
language Marathi newspaper), within forty-eight
(48) hours of approval thereof. Presently the same
are not sent to the shareholders separately.

(iii) The Company’s financial results and official press
releases are displayed on the Company’s Website:
www.bajajelectricals.com.

(iv) All financial and other vital official news releases
and documents under the SEBI Listing Regulations
including any presentations made to the institutional
investors or/and analysts are also communicated
to the concerned stock exchanges, besides being
placed on the Company’s website.

(v) The quarterly results, shareholding pattern, quarterly
compliances and all other corporate communication
to the Stock Exchanges viz. BSE Limited (“BSE”) and
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”)
are filed electronically. The Company has complied
with filing submissions through BSE's BSE Listing
Centre. Likewise, the said information is also filed
electronically with NSE through NSE's NEAPS portal.

(vi) A separate dedicated section under “Investors
Relation”, on the Company’s website gives information
on unclaimed dividends, shareholding pattern,
quarterly/half yearly results and other relevant
information of interest to the investors/public.

(vii) SEBI processes investor complaints in a centralised
web-based complaints redressal systemi.e. SCORES.
Through this system a shareholder can lodge a
complaint against the Company for redressal of his
grievance. The Company uploads the action taken
report on the complaint which can be viewed by the
shareholder. The Company and shareholder can seek
and provide clarifications online through SEBI.

(viii)The Company has designated the email id: legal@
bajajelectricals.com for investor relations, and the
same is prominently displayed on the Company’s
website www.bajajelectricals.com.

Affirmations and Disclosures
a. Related Party Transactions

All transactions entered into with the related parties
as defined under the Act and Regulation 23 of the SEBI
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Listing Regulations during the financial year were inthe
ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis
and are in compliance with the provisions of Section
188 of the Act. There were no materially significant
transactions with related parties during the financial
year. Related party transactions have been disclosed
under significant accounting policies and notes
forming part of the financial statements in accordance
with “IND AS". A statement of transactions entered
into with the related parties in the ordinary course
of business and at arm’s length basis is periodically
placed before the Audit Committee for review and
recommendation to the Board for its approval.

As required under Regulation 23(1) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated a
policy on dealing with related party transactions. The
Policy is available on the website of the Company:
www.bajajelectricals.com.

Allthe transactions are carried out on an arm’s length
or fair value basis and have no potential conflict with
the interest of the Company at large.

Details of non-compliance by the Company,
penalties, and strictures imposed on the Company
by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory
authority, on any matter related to capital markets,
during last three financial years

There are no instances of non-compliances by the
Company necessitating imposition of penalties,
strictures on the Company by Stock Exchanges
or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter
related to capital markets, during the last three (3)
years except payment of fine of ¥ 10,000 each paid
to BSE and NSE for delay of one (1) day in submission
of voting results of Postal Ballot held on March 26,
2019 within time specified under Regulation 44(3) of
the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

Pursuant to provisions of Section 177(9) and (10) of
the Act and the rules framed thereunder, Regulation
22 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as
amended, the Company has formulated the Whistle
Blower Policy which is applicable to all employees
and all other persons dealing with the Company to
inter alia report unacceptable improper practices
and/or unethical practices and/or genuine concerns
and to create awareness to report instances of leak
of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information.
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The whistleblower shall address all the protected
disclosure to the Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer of the Company. Protected
disclosure against the Company Secretary should be
addressed to the Chairman & Managing Director of
the Company and protected disclosure against the
Chairman & Managing Director should be addressed
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Policy provides for adequate safeguards against
victimisation to all whistleblowers who use such
mechanism.

During the year under review, none of the personnel of
the Company have been denied access to the Audit
Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy is displayed on
the Company’s website: www.bajajelectricals.com.

Details of Adoption of Non-Mandatory
(Discretionary) Requirements

The status of compliance with the non-mandatory
requirements under Regulation 27 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations are as under:

The Board - The requirement relating to maintenance
of office and reimbursement of expenses of Non-
Executive Chairman is not applicable to the
Company since the Chairman of the Company is an
Executive Director.

Shareholders rights - The Company has not adopted
the practice of sending out half-yearly declaration of
financial performance to shareholders. Quarterly results
as approved by the Board are disseminated to Stock
Exchanges and updated on the website of the Company.

Modified opinion(s) in audit report - There is no
modified opinion in the audit reports.

Reporting of Internal Auditor - In accordance
with the provisions of Section 138 of the Act, the
Company has appointed an Internal Auditor who
reports to the Audit Committee. Internal audit
reports submitted on quarterly basis are reviewed by
the Audit Committee and suggestion / directions, if
any, are given for necessary action.

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and
hedging activities

The Company has adequate risk assessment
and minimisation system in place including for
commodities. The Company does not have material
exposure of any commodity and accordingly,
no hedging activities for the same are carried
out. Therefore, there is no disclosure to offer in
terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/
CIR/P/2018/0000000141 dated November 15, 2018.

Details of utilisation of funds raised through
preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement as specified under Regulation 32(7A)

The Company has issued on private placement
basis and allotted, Unsecured, Redeemable Non-
convertible Debentures (NCDs) of face value of
¥ 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakh) each, aggregating
to ¥ 185 crore during the financial year 2018-19 in
three series as per the terms of issue. The funds raised
through issuance of NCDs have been fully utilised for
the purposes specified in the issue documents and
there is no deviation in the use of proceeds.

A certificate from a Company Secretary in practice
that none of the directors on the board of the
company have been debarred or disqualified from
being appointed or continuing as directors of
companies by the Board / Ministry of Corporate
Affairs or any such statutory authority

The Company has received a certificate from Messrs
Anant B. Khamankar & Co, Practicing Company
Secretaries (Membership No. FCS 3198; CP No. 1860) to
the effect that none of the directors on the Board of the
Company has been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as directors of the companies
by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other
statutory authority. The same forms part of this report.

Where the Board had not accepted any
recommendation of any committee of the Board
which is mandatorily required, in the relevant
financial year. Not Applicable

Fees paid to the Statutory Auditors paid by the
Company and its subsidiary

Total fees for all services paid by the Company and
its subsidiary, on a consolidated basis,to SR B C &
CO LLP, having ICAI Registration number 324982E/
E300003, statutory auditors of the Company
and other firms in the network entity of which the
statutory auditors are a part, during the year ended
March 31, 2020, is as follows:

(Amount: T in lakh)

Particulars SRBC&COLLPand
their network entities**

Fees for audit and related 239.35*
services***

Other fees 745
Total 246.80

*Excluding out of pocket expenses, which were reimbursed at
actuals.

**During the year under review, no payment was made to
network entities of SRB C & CO LLP.

***This includes ¥ 75.35 lakhs towards rights issue expenses.

. » Statutory Reports ‘
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j- Disclosures inrelation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)

Act, 2013

The details of number of complaints filed and disposed off during the year and pending as on March 31, 2020 is
given in the Directors’ Report.

k. CEO and CFO Certification

Certificate issued by Shri Shekhar Bajaj, Chairman & Managing Director (CEO) and Shri Anant Purandare,
President & Chief Financial Officer of the Company, for the financial year under review, was placed before the
Board at its meeting held on June 19, 2020, in terms of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and the
said certificate is annexed to this Report. The Chairman & Managing Director (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer
also gave quarterly certification on financial results while placing the financial results before the Board in terms
of Regulation 33(2)(a) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

. Compliance Certificate of the Auditors
Certificate from the Company’s Auditors, SR B C & Co. LLP confirming compliance with conditions of Corporate

Governance as stipulated under Clause E of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations, is attached to this Report.

The Disclosures of the Compliance with Corporate Governance Requirements Specified in
Regulation 17 To 27 and Regulation 46(2) of the SEBI Listing Regulations

Sr. Particulars Regulations Compliance Brief Descriptions of the Regulations
No. Status
(Yes/No/N.A.)
1. Board of Directors 17 Yes « Composition and Appointment of Directors

» Meetings and quorum
» Review of compliance reports

+ Plans for orderly succession for appointments
+ Code of Conduct
+ Fees / compensation to Non-Executive

Directors Minimum information to be placed
before the Board

« Compliance Certificate by Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer

* Risk assessment and risk management plan

» Performance evaluation of Independent
Directors

+ Recommendation of Board for each item of
special business

2. Maximum number of 17A Yes + Directorships in listed entities
directorships
3. Audit Committee 18 Yes + Composition

+ Meetings and quorum

+ Chairperson present at Annual General

Meeting
+ Role of the Committee
4. Nomination and 19 Yes + Composition
Remuneration + Chairperson present at Annual General
Committee Meeting

+ Meetings and quorum

+ Role of the Committee
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Sr.

No.

Particulars

Stakeholders
Relationship Committee

Regulations Compliance
Status
(Yes/No/N.A))
20 Yes

Brief Descriptions of the Regulations

Composition

Chairperson present at Annual General
Meeting

Meetings

Role of the Committee

Risk Management
Committee

21 Yes

Composition

Meetings

Role of the Committee

Vigil Mechanism

22 Yes

Vigil Mechanism for Directors and employees

Adequate safeguards against victimisation

Direct access to Chairperson of Audit
Committee

Related Party
Transaction

23 Yes

Policy on Materiality of related party
transactions and dealing with related party
transactions

Prior approval including omnibus approval
of Audit Committee for related party
transactions

Periodical review of related party transactions

Disclosure on related party transactions

Subsidiaries of the
Company

24 Yes

Review of financial statements and
investments of subsidiaries by the Audit
Committee

Minutes of the Board of Directors of the
subsidiaries are placed at the meeting of the
Board of Directors

Significant transactions and arrangements of
subsidiaries are placed at the meeting of the
Board of Directors

10.

Secretarial Audit

24A Yes

Annual Secretarial Audit Report and Annual
Secretarial Compliance Report

11.

Obligations with
respect to Independent
Directors

25 Yes

Maximum directorships and tenure

Meetings of Independent Directors

Cessation and appointment of Independent
Directors

Review of Performance by the Independent
Directors

Familiarisation of Independent Directors

Declaration from Independent Director that he
/ she meets the criteria of independence

Directors and Officers insurance for all the
Independent Directors

» Statutory Reports ‘
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Sr. Particulars Regulations Compliance Brief Descriptions of the Regulations
No. Status
(Yes/No/N.A.)

12. Obligations with 26 Yes + Memberships / Chairmanships in Committees
respect to Directors and « Affirmation on compliance of Code of Conduct
Senior Management by Directors and Senior Management

« Disclosure of shareholding by Non-Executive
Directors

 Disclosures by Senior Management about
potential conflicts of interest

» No agreement with regard to compensation or
profit sharing in connection with dealings in
securities of the Company by Key Managerial
Personnel, Director and Promoter

13. Other Corporate 27 Yes « Filing of quarterly, half-yearly and yearly
Governance compliance report on Corporate Governance
Requirements

14. Website 46(2)(b) to (i) Yes « Terms and conditions of appointment of

Independent Directors

« Composition of various Committees of the
Board of Directors

+ Code of Conduct of Board of Directors and
Senior Management Personnel

+ Details of establishment of Vigil Mechanism /
Whistle-blower policy

 Policy on dealing with related party
transactions

« Policy for determining material subsidiaries

+ Details of familiarisation programmes
imparted to Independent Directors

General Shareholder Information

Company Information

The Company is registered in the State of Maharashtra, India. The Corporate Identity Number (CIN) allotted to the
Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is L315S00MH1938PLC009887.

Information on General Body Meetings
AGM for the financial year 2019-20

Day and date

Friday, August 28, 2020

Time

2:30 p.m. (IST)

Mode

Via video conferencing/other audio visual means

Financial year

April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020

No EGM/Court or Tribunal Conveyed Meeting was held during the financial year 2019-20.

Dividend: The Board of the Company has not proposed any dividend for the financial year 2019-20.
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Tentative calendar for financial year ending March 31, 2021
Financial Year — 1 April to 31 March.

The tentative dates for Board Meetings for consideration of quarterly financial results are as follows:

. * Statutory Reports ¢ |
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Market Price Data
BEL Share Price on BSE vis-a-vis BSE Sensex April 2019-March 2020

Particulars of Quarter

Tentative dates

Q1 Results 2nd Week of August 2020
Q2 and Half Yearly Results 2nd Week of November 2020
Q3 Results 2nd Week of February 2021

Q4 and Annual Results

4th Week of May 2021

The Board Meetings for approval of financial results during the year ended March 31, 2020 were held on the

following dates:

Particulars of Quarter

Tentative dates

Q1 Results August 7, 2019
Q2 and Half Yearly Results November 6, 2019
Q3 Results February 4, 2020

Q4 and Annual Results

June 19,2020

*As per relaxation/extension granted by SEBI.

Listing on stock exchanges & stock code

Equity Shares of the Company are currently listed on the following stock exchanges:

Name of the Stock Exchange(s) Address Stock Code

BSE Limited Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, 500031
Mumbai 400 001

Exchange Plaza, Bandra - Kurla Complex, BAJAJELEC
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051

National Stock Exchange of India Limited

The ISIN Number allotted to the Company’s equity shares of face value of ¥ 2 each under the depositories (NSDL
and CDSL) system is INE193E01025.

Un-secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of face value of ¥10,00,000 each are listed on the
Wholesale Debt Market segment of National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

For the financial year 2020-21, the Company has paid annual listing fees to both the stock exchanges and annual
custody/issuer fees to both the depositories.

The details of NCDs issued by the Company

Month BSE Sensex BEL Share Price Number of shares Turnover

Close High(Z) Low(3) Close(?) traded during the (%) Crore

month

Apr-19 39,031.55 58775 528.25 57015 793169 [iviyiviy
May-19 39714.20 57495 521.70 538.65 241866 13.29
Jun-19 39394.64 55030 49900 530.10 115328 597
Jul-19 3748112 54850 338.85 364.30 472572 2221
Aug-19 3733279 40610 340.30 39245 637220 24.20
Sep-19 38,667.33 42675 368.00 390.05 153784 6.07
Oct-19 40,129.05 41330 36700 378.65 100152 3.88
Nov-19 40,793.81 39890 306.30 33935 324627 1091
Dec-19 41,25374 35990 316.00 357.85 181666 6.07
Jan-20 40,723 .49 40415 346.55 373.50 304748 11.42
Feb-20 38,297.29 45960 34595 403.00 406749 16.86
Mar-20 29468.49 434.65 264.05 26745 167680 5.78

BEL Share Price on BSE & BSE Sensex

12000

11000

TN

Series ISIN Principal amount Date of Maturity Coupon Rate %
(% In lakhs)

Option A INE193EO8038 3,500 February 19, 2021 NCDs with zero

Option B INE193EO8020 7,500 August 20,2021 coupon at a yield to

Option C INE193EO8012 7,500 February 18,2022  maturity of 11% p.a

10000\ WM ~ \\

9000
80.00 L/\\ K
7000 VAN “WW WV
6000 R Vﬂ A/\J \\
5000 \“
4000

3000
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—— Bajaj Electricals —— BSE Sensex

Note: Share price of Bajaj Electricals Limited and BSE Sensex have been indexed to 100 on April 1, 2019.
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BEL Share Price on NSE vis-a-vis NSE Nifty April 2019-March 2020

Month NSE Nifty BEL Share Price Number of shares Turnover
Close High(Z) Low (%) Close(?) traded duringthe (?)Crore
month
Apr-19 11,748.15 58770 528.05 571.85 4746266 266.32
May-19 1192280 57400 521.60 53740 3518790 19290
Jun-19 11,788.85 54940 49835 529.25 1551091 80.19
Jul-19 1111800 54100 33845 364.75 4083201 178.04
Aug-19 11,02325 40600 34700 39250 3273402 122.89
Sep-19 1147445 42780 36740 39095 1742457 6890
Oct-19 11,87745 41380 370.00 378.65 1741395 67.55
Nov-19 1205605  394.65 306.70 33970 4255095 144.02
Dec-19 1216845 36000 31520 35815 2980059 101.16
Jan-20 1196210 404.60 346.85 37355 4098145 15556
Feb-20 1120175 46000  347.65 403.30 5072878 21092
Mar-20 8,59775 43500 26355 268.45 3641869 12442
BEL Share Price on NSE & NSE Nifty
120.00
11000
10000
9000
80.00
70.00
60.00
5000
4000
30.00
ZOOO T T T T T T T T T T T T
Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19  Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20

— Bajaj Electricals

Note: Share price of Bajaj Electricals Limited and NSE Nifty have been indexed to 100 on April 1, 2019.

—— NSE Nifty
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h. Share Transfer System/Dividend and Other related
matters

Share Transfer System

In light of the provisions of Notification No. SEBI/
LAD/NRO/GN/2018/24 dated June 8, 2018 and
Press Release dated December 3, 2018 issued
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India,
Members may please note that, with effect
from April 1, 2019, transfer of shares (except
transmission and transposition of shares) will be
in dematerialised form only.

The shareholders holding shares in physical form
are requested to get their shares dematerialised
at the earliest to avoid any inconvenience in
future while transferring the shares.

Nomination facility for shareholding

In terms of the provisions of Section 72 of the
Act, facility for making nomination is available
for the Members in respect of shares held by
them. Members holding shares in physical form
may obtain a nomination form (Form SH-13),
from the Company’s RTA or download the same
from the Company’s website. Members holding
shares in dematerialised form should contact
their Depository Participants (DP) in this regard.

Permanent Account Number

Members who hold shares in physical form are
advised to register their PAN card details since
SEBI has made it mandatory that a copy of the
PAN card of the transferor(s), transferee(s),
surviving joint holders/legal heirs shall be
submitted to the Company while obtaining the
services of transfer, transposition, transmission
and issue of duplicate share certificates.

Subdivision of shares

The Company had subdivided the face value
of its equity shares from ¥ 10 to ¥ 2 in 2009
Members still holding share certificates of ¥
10 are requested to send the certificates to
the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the
Company (contact details given below) for
exchange with shares of the face value of ¥ 2
each.

Report on Corporate Governance |

Dividend / Unclaimed Dividend / Unclaimed
Shares

a) Payment of dividend through Automated
Clearing House (ACH)

The Company provides the facility for direct
credit of the dividend to the Members’ Bank
Account. SEBI Listing Regulations also
mandate companies to credit the dividend
to the members electronically. Members are
therefore urged to avail this facility to ensure
safe and speedy credit of their dividend into
their bank account through the banks” ACH
mode.

Members who hold shares in demat mode
should inform their depository participant,
whereas Members holding shares in physical
form should inform Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent of the Company (contact details given
below) of the core banking account details
allotted to them by their bankers. In cases
where the core banking account details are
not available, the Company will issue demand
drafts mentioning the existing bank details
available with the Company.

b) Unclaimed dividends

The Company is required to transfer
dividends, which have remained unpaid/
unclaimed for a period of seven (7) years
from the date the amount is transferred to
Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company
to the Investor Education & Protection Fund
(“IEPF”) established by the Government.
Accordingly, during the financial year 2020-
21, unclaimed final dividends pertaining to
the final year ended March 31, 2013 will be
transferred to IEPF.

Before transferring the unclaimed
dividends to I|EPF, individual letters/email
communications/newspaper notice are sent/
given to those Members whose unclaimed
dividends are due for transfer to enable them
to claim the dividends before the due date for
such transfer. The information on unclaimed
dividend is also posted on the Company’s
website at www.bajajelectricals.com.
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c)

Details of Unclaimed Dividend as on March 31, 2020 and due dates for their transfer:

Sr. Financial Year

Date of declaration

Unclaimed Due Date for transfer to

No. of Dividend Amount (3) IEPF Account
1 2012-13 August 6, 2013 821,198.00 September 5, 2020
2. 2013-14 July 31, 2014 852,670.50 August 30, 2021
3. 2014-15 August 6, 2015 961,720.50 September 5, 2022
4. 2015-16 March 10, 2016 1,815,755.20 April 9,2023
Z 2016-17 August 3, 2017 1,697253.60 September 1, 2024
6. 2017-18 August 9, 2018 1,472,233.00 September 7, 2025
7. 2018-19 August 7, 2019 9,66,385.00 September 5, 2026

Transfer of the ‘shares’ into Investor Education
and Protection Fund (“IEPF”) (in cases where
dividend has not been paid or claimed for
seven (7) consecutive years or more)

In terms of Section 124(6) of the Act read
with Investor Education & Protection Fund
Authority  (Accounting, Audit, Transfer
and Refund) Rules, 2016 as amended,
and Notifications issued by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs from time to time,
the Company is required to transfer the
shares in respect of which dividends have
remained unpaid/unclaimed for a period
of seven consecutive years or more to the
IEPF Account established by the Central
Government. As required under the said
Rules, the Company has transferred the
required number of shares to the IEPF.

Guidelines for investors to file claim in
respect of the unclaimed dividend or shares
transferred to the IEPF:

Investors/depositors whose unpaid
dividends, matured deposits or debentures
etc. have been transferred to IEPF under
the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 and/or
the Act, can claim the amounts. In addition,
claims can also be made in respect of shares
which have been transferred into the IEPF,
as per the procedures/guidelines stated as
follows:

i. Download the Form IEPF-5 from the
website of IEPF  (www.iepf.gov.in)
for filing the claim for the refund of
dividend/shares. Read the instructions
provided on the website/instruction kit,

along with the e-form carefully, before
filling the form.

After filling the form, save it on your
computer and submit the duly filled form
by following the instructions given in the
upload link onthe website. On successful
uploading, an acknowledgment will be
generated indicating the SRN. Please
note down the SRN details for future
tracking of the form.

Take a print out of the duly filled Form
No.l[EPF-5 and the acknowledgment
issued after uploading the form.

Submit an indemnity bond in original,
copy of the acknowledgment and self-
attested copy of e-form, along with
other documents as mentioned in the
Form No.I[EPF-5 to the Nodal Officer of
the Company at its Registered Office in
an envelope marked ‘Claim for refund
from IEPF Authority/Claim for shares
from IEPF’ as the case may be. Kindly
note that submission of documents to
the Company is necessary to initiate
the refund process.

Claim forms completed in all respects
will be verified by the concerned
Company and on the basis of
Company’s Verification Report, refund
will be released by the IEPF Authority in
favour of claimants’ Aadhar-linked bank
account through electronic transfer
and/or the shares shall be credited to
the demat account of the claimant, as
the case may be.

d)
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vi. The Nodal Officer of the Company for
IEPF Refunds Process is Shri Ajay Nagle,
Executive Vice President & Head -
Legal and Company Secretary.

Unclaimed Shares

Regulation 39(4) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations read with Schedule VI‘Manner of
dealing with Unclaimed Shares’, had directed
Companies to dematerialise such shares,
which have been returned as ‘undelivered’ by
the postal authorities and hold these shares
in an ‘Unclaimed Suspense Account’ to be
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opened with either one of the Depositories
viz. National Securities Depository Limited
(NSDL) or Central Depository Services Ltd.
(CDsL).

All  corporate benefits on such shares
viz. bonus, dividend etc. shall be credited
to the unclaimed suspense account as
applicable for a period of seven (7) years
and thereafter be transferred in accordance
with the provisions of Investor Education
and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting,
Audit, Transfer, and Refund) Rules, 2016 (IEPF
Rules) read with Section 124(6) of the Act.

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the details of the

shares in the Suspense Account are as follows:

Aggregate Number of Number of
Shareholders and the

Outstanding Shares in

shareholders
who approached

the suspense account the Company for

lying at the beginning of transfer of shares

the year from suspense
account during
the year

Nil Nil

Number of
shareholders
to whom

shares were
transferred

the year
Nil

Aggregate
number of

That the voting
rights on these
shareholders and  shares shall
remain frozen
till the rightful

the outstanding
shares in the

from suspense  suspense account owner of such
account during lying at the end of shares claims

the year the shares

Nil Nil

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

As required by the SEBI, quarterly audit of the Company’s share capital is being carried out by an independent

external auditor with a view to reconcile the total share capital admitted with NSDL, CDSL and held in physical form,
with the issued and listed capital. The Auditor’s Certificate with regard to the same is submitted to BSE Limited and
the NSE and is also placed before the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and the Board of Directors.

Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2020

Distribution of shareholding across categories:

Categories March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares capital shares capital
Promoters and Promoter Group 71870858 6317 64218485 6271
Individuals (including HUF) 13666531 1201 17005889 16.61
Mutual Funds 12992828 1142 8352294 816
Flls Q051464 796 5834717 570
Indian Bodies Corporates 1516113 1.33 2765185 270
Trusts 2126655 187 1903672 1.86
NRIs and OCBs 1035605 091 1339239 131
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m. Credit Ratings

Categories March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
No. of % of total No. of % of total The Company has obtained credit rating from ICRA Limited and CARE Ratings Limited. During the financial year
5 q 2019-20, there has been downgrade in rating of the Company, the details of which are given below:
shares capital shares capital

Insurance Companies 592839 0.52 - - Rating Agency Particulars of Debt Particulars of Change/Downgrade
IEPF 246758 0.23 234016 0.23 . ) )
Clearing Members 78932 007 206963 020 ICRA Limited L!ne of Cred!t (long-term) From [ICRA]JA+ to [ICRA]A-
Alternate Investment Funds 561744 049 449405 04t Line of Credit (short-term) From [ICRAIAL to [IORAIAZ+
Banks, NBFCs and Fls 27185 002 89691 008 Commercial Paper From [ICRAIAL+ to [ICRAIAZY
Foreign Nationals 105 000 45 000 . - Non—conv.ertlble debenture From [ICRA]JA+ to [ICRA]A-
Total 113767707 100,00 102399601 100.00 CARE Ratings Limited Commercial Paper Form CARE Al+ to CARE Al

Distribution of shareholding according to size category as on March 31, 2020: n. Debenture Trustee

Axis Trustee Services Limited

Categories No. of folios % to total No. of shares % to total The Ruby, 2nd Floor, SW,
shareholders shares 29, Senapati Bapat Marg,
1to 1000 39136 9070 6926918 304 Dadar (West), Mumbai - 400028
1001 to 2000 1743 404 2489234 110 Tel: +91-22-62300451
2001 to 4000 953 221 2689720 118 Fax: +91-22-62300700
4001 to 6000 439 102 2192308 096 Email: debenturetrustee@axistrustee.com;
6001 to 8000 219 051 1524270 0.67 complaints@axistrustec.com
8001 to 10000 135 0.31 1223138 0.54
10001 to 20000 244 0.56 3403556 1.50 o. Address for Correspondence
20001 and above 280 0.65 207086270 9101 All Shareholders’ correspondence should be forwarded to Link Intime India Private Limited, Registrar & Share
Total 43149 100.00 227535414 100.00 Transfer Agents of the Company or to Compliance Officer at their following respective addresses:
Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity Link Intime India Private Limited Ajay Nagle, Compliance Officer
C101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, Legal & Secretarial Department
As on March 31, 2020, 112084851 (98.52%) equity shares of the Company were held in dematerialised form, Vikhroli (West), Bajaj Electricals Limited
compared to 100593615 (98.24%) equity shares as on March 31, 2019. Shares held in physical and electronic mode Mumbai 400 083. 45/47, Veer Nariman Road,
as on March 31, 2020 are given herein below. Tel.No.: 022-4918 6000 Mumbai 400 001
Fax No.: 022-4918 6060 Tel.No.: 022-6110 7800 / 6149 7000
Shares held in physical and electronic mode: E-mail: rnt.helpdesk®@linkintime.co.in E-mail: legal@bajajelectricals.com
Website: www.linkintime.com Website: www.bajajelectricals.com
Position as on Position as on Net change during
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 FY 2019-20
No. of % of total No. of % of total No. of % of total p. Factories/Plants Location
shares shareholding shares shareholding shares shareholding
Chakan Unit Ranjangaon Unit Wind Farm Shikohabad Unit Parwanoo Unit
Physical (A) 1682856 148 1805986 176 (123130) (0.28)
Demat (B) Village Mahalunge, MIDC - Ranjangaon Village Shikohabad, Plot No. 46-48,
NSDL 109086613 9589 97309327 9503 11777286 0.86 Vankusawade Sector- 5,
CDSL 2008238 263 3284288 321 (286050) (058) Chakan, Chakan Village : Dhoksanghavi  Tal: Patan Firozabad, Parwanoo, Solan,
Total Demat (B) 112084851 9852 100593615 9824 11491236 028 Talegaon Road,
Total (A) + (B) 113767707 10000 102399601 100,00 11363106 _ Tal: Khed, Dist: Pune, Tal: Shirur, Dist: Pune Dist: Satara Uttar Pradesh - Himachal Pradesh -
205 141 173 220

Maharashtra — 410 501 Maharashtra — 412210 Maharashtra -
Outstanding global depositoryreceipts or American depositoryreceipts or warrants or any convertible instruments, 415 206

conversion date and likely impact on equity: Not Applicable
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Compliance with
Code of Conduct

As provided under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board Members
and the Senior Management Personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code of Business Conduct & Ethics for
the year ended March 31, 2020.

For Bajaj Electricals Limited
Sd/-

Shekhar Bajqj

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00089358

Mumbai

May 14, 2020

Certificate of Non-
Disqualification of Directors

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015]

To,

The Members,

BAJAJ ELECTRICALS LIMITED
45/47, Veer Nariman Road,
Mumbai - 400001

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board
of Bajaj Electricals Limited have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of
companies by the Securities Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other statutory
authority as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2020.

For Anant B. Khamankar & Co.,
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

(Anant B. Khamankar)
Proprietor

FCS No. — 3198

CP No. - 1860

UDIN: FO03198B0O00349049
Date: June 17,2020

Place: Mumbai
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Chairman & Managing Director & Chief
Executive Officer (MD & CEO) and Chief
Financial Officer (CFO) Certification

To,

The Board of Directors,

BAJAJ ELECTRICALS LIMITED
45/47, Veer Nariman Road,
Mumbai - 400001

Dear members of the Board,

We, Shekhar Bajaj, Chairman & Managing Director and
CEO, and Anant Purandare, Chief Financial Officer of
Bajaj Electricals Limited, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, certify that:

1

We have reviewed the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2020, Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information of the Company, and the
Board’s report for the year ended March 31, 2020.

These statements do not contain any materially
untrue statement or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report.

The financial statements, and other financial
information included in this report, present in
all material respects a true and fair view of the
Company’s affairs, the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the Company as at, and
for, the periods presented in this report, and are in
compliance with the existing accounting standards
and/or applicable laws and regulations.

There are no transactions entered into by the
Company during the year that are fraudulent,
illegal or violate the Company’s Code of Conduct
and Ethics, except as disclosed to the Company’s
auditors and the Company’s audit committee of the
Board of Directors.

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures and internal
controls over financial reporting for the Company,
and we have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and
procedures or caused such disclosure controls
and procedures to be designed under our
supervision to ensure that material information
relating to the Company, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being
prepared.

b. Designed such internal control over financial
reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS).

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s
disclosure, controls and procedures.

d. Disclosed in this report, changes, if any, in
the Company's internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the Company’s
most recent fiscal year that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

We have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of the Company's internal control over
financial reporting, wherever applicable, to the
Company’s auditors and the audit committee of
the Company’s Board (and persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a. Any deficiencies in the design or operation of
internal controls, that could adversely affect the
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Company'’s ability to record, process, summarise
and report financial data, and have confirmed
that there have been no material weaknesses in
internal controls over financial reporting including
any corrective actions with regard to deficiencies.

Any significant changes in internal controls
during the year covered by this report.

All significant changes in accounting policies
during the year, if any, and the same have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Any instances of significant fraud of which we
are aware, that involve the Management or other

Chairman & Managing Director and CEO

employees who have a significant role in the
Company’s internal control system.

We affirm that we have not denied any personnel
access to the audit committee of the Company (in
respect of matters involving alleged misconduct)
and we have provided protection to whistleblowers
from unfair termination and other unfair or prejudicial
employment practices.

We further declare that all Board members and senior
management personnel have affirmed compliance
with the Code of Conduct and Ethics for the year
covered by this report.

Chief Financial Officer

Compliance Certificate
of the Auditors

Independent Auditor’s Report on compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
per provisions of Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended

To the Members

Bajaj Electricals Limited
45/47,Veer Nariman Road,
Mumbai - 400 001

of sub - regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D
and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“the
Listing Regulations”) (‘Applicable Criteria’) with
respect to Corporate Governance for the year ended
March 31, 2020 as required by the Company for
annual submission to the Stock exchange.

Management’s Responsibility

1. The Corporate Governance Report prepared by Bajaj We conducted our examination of the Corporate
Sd/- Sd/- Electricals Limited (“the Company”), contains details Governance Report in accordance with the Guidance
Shekhar Bajaj Anant Purandare as specified in regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes

and the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate
Governance, bothissued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI"). The Guidance Note on
Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes requires
that we comply with the ethical requirements of the
Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

We have complied with the relevant applicable
requirements of the Standard on Quality Control
(8QC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits
and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and
Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

2. The preparation of the Corporate Governance
Report is the responsibility of the Management The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
of the Company including the preparation and judgement, including the assessment of the
maintenance of all relevant supporting records and risks associated in compliance of the Corporate
documents. This responsibility also includes the Governance Report with the applicable criteria.
design, implementation and maintenance of internal Summary of procedures performed include:
control relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the Corporate Governance Report. i. Read and understood the information prepared
by the Company and included in its Corporate
3. The Management along with the Board of Directors Governance Report;

are also responsible for ensuring that the Company
complies with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations,
issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India.

Auditor’s Responsibility

4.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Regulations, our responsibility is to provide a
reasonable assurance in the form of an opinion
whether the Company has complied with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as specified in
the Listing Regulations.

ii. Obtained and verified that the composition of
the Board of Directors with respect to executive
and non-executive directors has been met
throughout the reporting period;

iii. Obtained and read the Register of Directors as
on March 31, 2020 and verified that at least one
independent woman director was on the Board
of Directors throughout the year;

iv. Obtained and read the minutes of the following
committee meetings held during April 1, 2019 to
March 31, 2020:
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(a) Board of Directors;

(b) Audit Committee;

(c) Annual General Meeting (AGM);

(d) Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
(e) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee;

(f) Risk Management Committee;

(g) Finance Committee;

(h) Debenture Committee;

(i) QIP Committee;

(j) Rights Issue Committee;

(k) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Meeting; and

(I) Independent Directors’ Meeting

v. Obtained necessary declarations from the
directors of the Company.

vi. Obtained and read the policy adopted by the
Company for related party transactions.

vii. Obtained the schedule of related party
transactions during the year and balances at
the year- end. Obtained and read the minutes
of the audit committee meeting where in such
related party transactions have been pre-
approved prior by the audit committee.

viii. Performed necessary inquiries with the
management and also obtained necessary
specific representations from management.

The above-mentioned procedures include examining
evidence supporting the particulars in the Corporate
Governance Report on a test basis. Further, our
scope of work under this report did not involve us
performing audit tests for the purposes of expressing
an opinion on the fairness or accuracy of any of the
financial information or the financial statements of
the Company taken as a whole.

Opinion

9. Based on the procedures performed by us, as referred
in paragraph7above, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion
that the Company has complied with the conditions
of Corporate Governance as specified in the Listing
Regulations, as applicable, for the year ended
March 31, 2020, referred to in paragraph 1 above.

Other matters and Restriction on Use

10. This report is neither an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

11. This report is addressed to and provided to the
members of the Company solely for the purpose of
enabling it to comply with its obligations under the
Listing Regulations with reference to compliance with
the relevant regulations of Corporate Governance
and should not be used by any other person or for
any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or
assume any liability or any duty of care or for any
other purpose or to any other party to whom it is
shown or into whose hands it may come without our
prior consent in writing. We have no responsibility
to update this report for events and circumstances
occurring after the date of this report.

ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Vikram Mehta

Partner

Membership Number: 105938

UDIN Number: 20105938AAAACT8520

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: June 19, 2020

» Statutory Reports ‘

Management Discussion and Analysis‘

Management Discussion

and Analysis

Economic Overview
Global Economy

The global economic environment remained uncertain in
2019, owing to geopolitical tensions, currency fluctuations
and economic unrest. The global GDP growth declined to
29% in 2019 A slump in global trade further contributed
to the slowdown in production and sales of consumer
durables.

Advanced economies declined further to register a GDP
growth of 1.7% in 2019, as compared to 2.2% in 2018.
The Euro Area too witnessed softening GDP growth
and settled at 1.2% in 2019, mainly due to a slowdown
in Germany's manufacturing units, and uncertainty
persisting over Brexit situation.?

Emerging Market and Developing Economies (EMDEs)
witnessed a challenging year, resulting in a decline
of GDP to 3.7% in 2019 as compared to 4.5% in 2018.
The decline was mainly on account of trade tensions
between China and the USA, leading to slowdown in
manufacturing activity and rising tariffs, which lowered
exports across the EMDEs!

Growth prospects for the year 2020 remain grim due
to significant disruptions caused by the COVID-19
pandemic. The GDP growth rate of the global economy is
expected to contract to 4.9% due to lockdowns imposed
in many countries, in an effort to curb the spread of
the virus. The disruptions in manufacturing activities
have also resulted in challenges in supply chain, thereby
cascading to subdued demand for goods and services.
However, countries across the world have introduced
fiscal and monetary measures to revive economic
growth. Going forward, the global economy is expected
to bounce back in 2021 to register a GDP growth of 5.4%,
when the pandemic recedes and normalcy returns*

Global economic growth (in %)

2019 2020P 2021P

I

World 29 -49 S4
Advanced Economies 17 -80 4.8
uUs 23 -80 45
Euro Area 13 -10.2 6.0
Japan 0.7 -5.8 24
United Kingdom 14 -10.2 6.3
Other Advanced 17 -4.8 4.2
Economies*

Emerging markets and 37 -30 59
Developing Economies

China 61 10 82
India® 4.2 -4.5 6.0

*Excludes the G7 (Canada, France, Germany, Italy, Japan, United
Kingdom, United States) and Euro Area countries

# Data and forecasts are presented on a fiscal year basis

P = Projections

[Source: International Monetary Fund (IMF)-World Economic Outlook
June 2020]

Indian Economy

The Indian economy witnessed a subdued GDP growth,
estimated to be 4.2% for FY 2019-20 The slowdown in the
economy was due to subdued demand, decline in Index of
Industrial Production (IIP) output and weakened investment
in private sector. Though the PMI activity stood above 50%
for FY 2019-20, the economy failed to register a growth
rate in line with expectations due to continued headwinds
- both at domestic and global scenarios.

Amidst the challenges, agriculture sector performed well
due to above-normal rainfall in FY 2019-20. The Indian
Meteorological Department (IMD) has predicted normal
monsoon for FY 2020-21. Based on this forecast, the
government has set an ambitious target of 298.3 million
tonnes of crop production in the current fiscal, against
291.2 million tonnes of crop production in the previous
fiscal year.

1 IMF World Economic Outlook June 2020
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The GDP growth of the Indian economy is projected to
contract to 4.5% in the coming fiscal year due to major
challenges posed by the COVID-19 outbreak. Corrective
measures taken by the government is expected to offer
a sustained long-term recovery of the economy with
challengesinthe hindsight. Favourable fiscal and monetary
reforms, ease in credit policies and concentrated stimulus
packages for distress sectors, is expected to revive the
economic growth to ~6% in the coming fiscal!

Manufacturing Activity
(As depicted by PMI)

553

517

T T T T T T T T T T T T 1
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
2019 2020

Source: IHS Markit

Company Overview

Bajaj Electricals Limited (Bajaj Electricals) is a globally
renowned and trusted brand spread across Consumer
Product segments (Appliances, Fans, Lighting), and EPC
(lllumination, Power Transmission and Power Distribution).
In addition to being among the leading companies in
Indiq, the Company has a market presence in more than
40 countries across South East Asia, SAARC nations,
the Middle East and Africa. Bajaj Electricals also markets
and services Morphy Richards products in India and
SAARC countries, offering customers a premium range
of home and kitchen appliances that meet international
quality standards. Further, post the acquisition of Nirlep
Appliances, a leading non-stick cookware manufacturer,
in 2018, today Bajaj Electricals has strategically
diversified its product offerings.

Bajaj Electricals in numbers*

— 34,977.09 crore

Revenue from operations

3,007

Employees

26

Branch offices across the globe

500

Distributors for CP Trade RREP

2.20 lakhs

Retail outlets

S44

Consumer care centres

* As on 31st March, 2020

Core Competencies

»  ‘Bajqj Electricals’ enjoys a strong brand reputation in
Indian and overseas markets, with a strong portfolio
of quality offerings spread across various segments
including Consumer Products (Appliances, Fans,
Lighting) and EPC (lllumination, Power Transmission
and Power Distribution).

« Strong supply chain and distribution network
ensuring steady supply of goods to 220,000 retail
outlets spread across the country, ensuring easy
availability of products.

«  Affordable and cost-effective products to cater to a
wider customer base.

«  Experienced management team providing the
required expertise and guidance to achieve
excellence.

« Scale and financial strength, backed by a strong
promoter group, to support sustained business
growth.

Consumer Facing Businesses

Kitchen Appliances Industry Overview

Indian Kitchen Appliances market is growing steadily
over the past few years and it is expected to grow further
owing to increased consumption, rise in per capita
income and a growing population. An increased demand
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for branded products from rural areas (nearly 65%?2 of
the Indian population still resides in rural areas) is also
noticed owing to growing awareness about quality and
durability. It serves as a key growth driver for the Indian
kitchen appliances market. Alongside, growing online
retail channels are offering strong impetus to the
market, encouraging them to venture into an emerging
distribution channel to maximise sales and meet
consumer demand efficiently.

Domestic Appliances Industry Overview

The Domestic Appliance segment is one of the fastest
growing segments in the Indian market which comprises
various small and large appliances including irons, water
heaters, room coolers and room heaters. As the working
population in India continues to grow, the concept
of nuclear families have become common. Owing to
shortage of time, appliances that save time and energy
have become a necessity for completing day-to-day
chores. It is especially true for bachelors, staying away
from families for work or study. Further, increasing
affordability, focus on energy-efficient products, growing
digital penetration and the aspirations of a young
population continues to play a vital role in the growth of
the industry.

The industry is expected to see significant growth in
the coming years as the consumer market continues to
expand due to rising disposable incomes, coupled with
enhanced purchasing power. The burgeoning middle class
in urban areas and the aspirational demands of rural
India will be a major impetus for the industry in the near
future. The rural areas continue to witness infrastructural
developments, enjoy access to electricity and internet
connections. Thereby, E-commerce is expected to be
a popular medium for accessing products that add
convenience to life.

Fan Industry Overview

One of the most widely used electrical appliances in
the market, fans are an indispensable part of any Indian
household. It belongs to the high market penetration
product category and has a high purchase priority among
consumer durable segment. As a product category, fans
generally do not have any major regional disparities in
demand and it is one of the largest selling items in the
consumer electronics segment. But, much of its sales in
the organised sector is concentrated in metros, tier | and
tier Il markets.

Management Discussion and Analysis‘

Consumer Lighting Industry Overview

The Consumer Lighting Industry witnessed a demand
surge in recent years due to growing population and rapid
urbanisation. With increasing electricity consumption,
consumers continue to demand innovative, environment
friendly and cost-effective lighting, which not only
reduces electricity consumption but, also enables
them to decorate homes with aesthetic and appealing
lights. As a result, LED lighting is gaining traction in
the Indian lighting market. The Government of India is
also promoting the use of efficient lighting, spreading
awareness about its role in reducing energy consumption
and its contribution to reduce carbon footprints.
Preference for LED lighting also continues to grow on
account of increasing awareness and adoption of LED

bulbs over conventional lights such as incandescent
bulbs, CFL and halogen lights.

2The World Bank
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Growth Drivers for Consumer Facing Business

¢ Nuclear families: The rising number of nuclear
families in Indiq, reduction in average household size
and the tendency to live in rented or shared facilities
has resulted in increased demand for mixer grinders,
microwave ovens, coolers, water heater, irons and
other consumer appliances.

¢ Growth of online retail platforms: In order to increase
its reach and sales volume, companies (global as well
as local) continue to sell products on E-commerce
platforms such as Amazon and Flipkart, driving up
sales volumes in urban as well as rural areas.

e Convenience and Ease: The demand for appliances
that make life easy and convenient have grown
manifold, increasing the dependence on various
consumer product categories.

¢ Modernisation: In today’s world of technology,
kitchens have become smaller and appliances have
become smarter. Consumers, therefore, continues
to prefer products with advanced features, offering
flexibility and ease of operation.

¢  Electrification: The Pradhan Mantri Sahaj Bijli Har
Ghar Yojana (Saubhagya) scheme was introduced in
2017 with an aim to provide electricity connections
to rural as well as urban areas. The scheme provides
free electricity connections to economically
disadvantaged Below Poverty Line (BPL) families.
Others, with slightly better financial standing were
offered new connections for a minimum amount of
I500. As more homes received electricity, the
demand for small appliances also increased.

Segment Overview

The consumer products segment offers a diverse range
of products including 4 broad categories —

. Kitchen Appliances (KAP)
- Domestic Appliances (DAP)
. Fans and

«  Lighting
These 4 broad categories have more than 25 sub-
categories among them, including multiple product

ranges. The segment contributed 62% of the total
revenue, amounting to ¥3,084.62 crore in FY 2019-20. The
Company continued to outperform the industry average,
registering a growth of 13% in FY 2019-20, against
an estimated industry growth of 6-7%. However, the
COVID-19 outbreak led to a slowdown in the month of
March, softening the overall growth of the segment.

The Company continued to focus on launching
differentiated products with innovative features,
facilitating its market growth. Growth in this segment
was further supported by Distribution and Product
strategies that improved market reach backed by an
enhanced portfolio of products. The Company continued
to strengthenits retailer base, increasing it from 201,000
in FY 2018-19 to 220,000 by the end of FY 2019-20.

Bajaj Electricals also introduced 230 new Stock Keeping
Units (SKUs) with an objective to introduce products
with distinct features as well as to address gaps in the
product portfolio. Unique features in Anti-bacterial Fans,
Anti-bacterial Air Coolers, CRI Plus LED, loT Cooler, Travel
Irons and Water Heaters and other innovative products
enhance demand for various products and make them a
preferred choice for a growing consumer base.
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19-20

Average number of products launched every month

~19,000

Retailers added during FY 2019-20

230

SKUs added in FY 2019-20

Product offering and share in revenue mix

Four broad Sub-category Percentage

category share in total
revenue mix
in FY 2019-20

I

Kitchen Mixers, Food Processors, 28%
Appliances  Juicer Mixer Grinders (JMG),

Induction Cookers, Rice

Cookers, Oven Toaster Grill

(OTG), Microwave Ovens,

Non-electric Kitchen

Appliances (NEKA), Pressure

Cookers and Gas Stoves

Domestic Water Heaters, Irons, Air 25%
Appliances  Coolers & Room Heaters
Fans Ceiling Fans, Table Wall 27%
Pedestal (TPW), Air
Circulators, Exhaust Fans
Lighting LED Lamps, Battens, Panels, 14%
Electrical Accessories

Go-to-market Strategy

In order to drive the Range Reach Expansion Programme
(RREP) further, the Company adopted strategies like
Extract & Expand, Commercialisation and updated the
Retailer Bonding Programme (RBP). This has enabled the
Company to increase its reach, improve range billing,
frequency and consistency of billing along with placement
of new launches, thereby covering all major aspects

related to distribution and business improvement.

The RREP programme focuses on ensuring sustained
availability of products and after-sales services across
the country and has achieved phenomenal results over the

past three years. The outcomes achieved so far include:
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- Differentiating factors that help to penetrate
markets.

« Consistent growth over the past two years with a
CAGR of 16% (as on March 2020) in the consumer
segment.

«  Earned the trust of channel partners with equal and
fair business policies for retailers.

«  RBP loyalty programme has become a powerful tool
to not just engage retailers but also to keep their
enthusiasm high.

. Increased direct reach to 220,000 retailers, covering
679 districts with 500 distributors across the country.

Expand & Extract: Through the Expand and Extract
strategy, Bajaj Electricals aims to expand its current
range of products in various outlets by increasing the
number of products available in each outlet. This will
increase its current wallet share and counter share,
offering more product options for consumers.

Commercialisation: To ensure successful launch and
placement of every new product, the Company has
implemented the Commercialisation process. Every
new launch will go through a detailed and systematic
placement drive to help create maximum visibility in
the market. It also aims to create awareness about new
product features.

Morphy Richards - Premium Home and Kitchen
Appliance Brand

Morphy Richards is a leading home & kitchen appliances
brand based in England, UK. Bajaj Electricals is marketing
and servicing Morphy Richards products in India since
2002 and recently started servicing in SAARC countries.
With a dominant presence in India, the brand has over 22
product categories.

During the year under review, Morphy Richards has
further consolidated its market position by widening its
range of Steam Irons, Coffee Makers, Induction Cookers,
Hair Dryers and Travel Kettles. The introduction of new
products across multiple categories has led to a steady
growth of the brand. For instance, there has been a growth
of ~35% in Room Heaters & Coffee Markers, 25% in Water
Heaters, 80% in Personal Grooming and 13% in Induction
Cookers.

To further augment its market share in the country, the
Company leverages RREP to strengthen its supply chain.
It also supports its alternate sales channels including
E-commerce to ensure product availability on online
platforms as well as across leading national/ regional
retail chains. With a well-established Pan-India Service
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network in over 450 cities, Morphy Richards provides
after-sales services to customers across the country.

Morphy Richards - Key Figures for FY 2019-20

22%

YoY sales growth through Govt. Channel

~245%

YoY growth in Institutional sales

18%

YoY growth in retail network presence

Nirlep Appliances - Non-Stick Cookware Brand

Nirlep Appliances is a pioneer in the Non-Stick cookware
segment. As a leading non-stick cookware brand, it
offers an exclusive range of products that ensure quality
and durability, endorsed by millions of customers over
five decades. The acquisition by Bajaj Electricals in
2018 has not only complemented its product offerings
but also enabled the Company to get exclusive access
of Nirlep Appliances’ manufacturing facility, employees,
distribution network and intellectual property rights.

During the year under review, it connected with its
audience through multiple marketing initiatives like TV
Campaigns in 8 languages, regular print ads in leading
dailies, retailer meets and installation of Wall Mount
units to enhance the brand visibility and presence.
The product packaging was given a new look through
standardised packaging design template with colour
variation differentiating the different range of products
and by defining a unique colour for each range based on

31

New SKUs launched in FY 2019-20

12,000

Retail counters as on 31st March 2020

its features.

Trade Sales

The Company'’s trade sales channel consists of a primary
network comprising of distributors and a secondary
network of retailers that ensure availability of Bajaj
Electricals’ products in the market. Trade sales contributed
around 70% to the total share of revenue from consumer
products. During the year under review, the Company
registered a healthy growth of 10% in sales value across
the consumer product segment, in comparison to the
previous year. The Company has constantly emphasised
on improving its distribution network and increasing
the number of retail outlets to boost sales volume and
increase market presence across all categories.

To increase engagement with distributors, the Company
works on a replenishment model which not only ensures
continuous supply but also offers better working capital
for distributors. Further, the Company undertakes a
detailed market mapping across the country and other
geographies to optimise its presence across the country.
To ensure greater focus on each outlet, the Company has
also reduced per capita outlet coverage for every sales
person. This has not only improved interaction with each
retailer, but has also helped to increase business in each
outlet. To support range billing, a nationwide drive was
undertaken to increase consistency among retailers.

Some of the key highlights during the year were:

*  The Fan segment saw growth in sales value at double
the speed of the industry, for sub economy ceiling
fan. The revamped distribution model has enabled
the Company to achieve significant value on a
sustained yearly basis.

+  The Company revamped its portfolio in the premium
segment and introduced value-added products in
the economy range. Both strategies were aimed at
increasing the volume of sales and it worked well for
the Company.

e In the Water Heater segment, the Company
consolidated its market position. Despite the
aggressive pricing route taken by competitors, Bajaj
Electricals’ position remained unchallenged.

« Despite price erosion of the LED product range, the
B2C business saw a significant value growth of ~9%
in lighting segment while industry and all other key
competitors registered a de-growth in value.
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No. of distributors
2017-18 G 342
2018-19 G 481

2019-20 G 500

Retail base (in lakhs)
2017-18 G 15
2018-19 G 201

2019-20 GEEE—— 2.2

Alternate Sales Channel

The Alternate sales channel comprises of three broad
categories ie. I&M (Institution and Malls), E-Commerce
and Government Channel. I&M comprises of 2 sub-
channels - Modern Format Retail and Corporate Institution
and the Government channel consists of 3 sub-channels
- Canteen Stores Department (CSD), Central Police
Canteens (CPC) & Government Institution Business. The
Company has covered almost all routes to reach out to
the end consumers both from B2C & B2B perspectives.

In FY 2019-20, this segment accounted for 31% of the total
consumer product revenue, registering a growth of 17%
over the previous year. The E-commerce business was the
main growth driver with an increase of 47% YoY, which was
way ahead of the industry growth. The I&M channel also
registered growth of 23% and the Government channel
accounted for 10% growth over the previous year. However,
the outbreak of COVID-19, leading to a lockdown in the
country impacted the numbers in the month of March.

The modern format retail or modern trade is a key pillar
of Bajaj Electricals’ consumer product business. It offers
an ideal shopping experience, allowing consumers to
conveniently explore a wide range of products under
one roof. This experience is hardly available in any
other channel and eventually helps to build consumer
confidence in the brand.

The Company’s products are also gaining traction over the
E-commerce platform. Bajaj Electricals has been working
closely with online giants such as Amazon, Flipkart, Paytm,
Snapdeal and TataClig. The Company is growing ahead of
the industry growth in almost all key categories including
Water Heaters, Air Coolers, Irons and Ovens (Oven Toaster
Grill - OTG). During the year under review, it also acquired
the numero uno position in Air Coolers on E-commerce
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platforms by displacing industry leaders. The success
of this category can be attributed to the use of right
technology and the availability of products at fair price.

On the other hand, Government Institution channel is a
complex channel with a different customer mix and varied
needs such as GEM Portal (Govt. e-market place), MES
(Army supplies), Govt. Contractors and Public utilities.
GEM Portal is one of the most important parts of the
business because the government diverts a majority of its
purchases through this channel and Bajaj Electricals has
been developing its resources around it to address the
same, holistically.

Top 2

Brands in terms of market share and digital visibility
in SHA (Small Home Appliances) category on
E-Commerce space

Sales break-up of Alternate Sales Channel for
FY 2019-20

41

B E-commerce
B Modern Format Retail
Institutional Sales

Govt. channel

After-Sales Services

At Bajaj Electricals, quality service and customer
satisfaction has been a priorityy. The Company
provides after-sales service for all its consumer and
illumination products. It offers an array of services
including installation of Water Heaters, demonstration
of Microwaves, OTGs, Food Processors, Coffee Makers
and repairing services for all consumer durables. Bajaqj
Electricals has set up a service network covering 17,856
pin codes across the country. It has 544 service centres,
42 resident service engineers and more than 2,500
service engineers in its network.

Further, the Company has almost completely digitised
its operations with more than 90% of the calls are
resolved without using paper. Customers can now lodge
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concerns by calling up the call centre or registering
online at Bajaj Electricals and Morphy Richards websites,
through mobile apps, RBP app or online Chatbot. For
call resolution confirmation, the Company takes digital
signatures on mobile screens and takes feedbacks after
completing services.

Customer satisfaction is measured online on a real-
time basis by a mobile app. The feedback received from
customers is used to improve services. The Company also
conducts training programmes to improve and enhance
customer experience.

Average call resolution of more than

92%

within 2 days

99%

Delighted and satisfied consumers

Outlook

Going forward, the Company aims to grow
disproportionately by leveraging its investments in
R&D, product development, distribution channel and
information technology.

Further, the Company plans to launch more than 100+
SKUs with differentiated features clubbed with innovative
channels and commercialisation strategies to achieve the
above objectives. With the available resources and planned
strategies, Bajaj Electricals is sure to deliver on its set
targets in FY 2020-21.

Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC)
Power Sector Overview

The Indian power sector has been a key socio-economic
growth driver since the country’s independence. With a
population of over 1.3 billion and as one of the world’s
fastest-growing economies, India will play a vital role for
the future of global energy markets.

The Government of India has made impressive progress in
recent years to increase access to electricity. With power
being one of the most critical infrastructure components
for economic growth, India’'s electricity demand has
increased significantly over the past decade, with peak

demand growing by over 66% from 110 GW in FY 2008-09
to 183 GW in FY 2019-20.

India’s power sector is one of the most diversified in the
world. Power is generated from conventional sources such
as codl, lignite, natural gas, oil, hydro and nuclear power
to viable non-conventional sources such as wind, solar,
agricultural and domestic waste. Electricity demand in
the country has also increased rapidly and is expected
to rise further in the years to come. The country has
set an ambitious target of 175 GW of renewable power
production by 2022 - including 100 GW of Solar power,
60 GW of Wind power, 10 GW of Biomass power, and 5
GW of Small Hydro power.?

Going forward, demand is expected to grow, leading
to increased volume creation and improved financial
strength of distribution companies. The demand is also
likely to be driven by a shift from fuel to electricity, in the
transport and agricultural sectors.

Table 1: The Plant Load Factor (PLF) in the country
(Coal & Lignite based) from FY 2017-18 to FY 2019-20
is as under

Year Peak
Peak Peak Met Surplus/
Demand Deficit
MW MW MW Change
2017-18 1,64,066 1,60,752 -3,314 -20%

° https://niti.gov.in/writereaddata/files/175- GW-Renewable-Energy.pdf
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2018-19 1,77022 1,75,528 -1,494 -0.8%
2019-20 1,83,804 1,82,533 -1271 -0.7%
[Source: Central Electricity Authority (CEA) *Upto February 2020]

Table 3: Total Installed Capacity (As on 29.02.2020)

Sector MW % of Total
Central Sector 93,097 25.2%
State Sector 103,292 28.0%
Private Sector 173,039 46.8%
Total 3,67,281

[Source: CEA]

Power Transmission and Distribution

The Indian power sector is going through rapid
transformation with an aggressive push to increase
energy generation. The country plans to increase capacity
to 131.31* GW between 2019 and 2022. Upgradation of
Transmission and Distribution (T&D) infrastructure is also
required to keep up with an increased power generation
capacity.

The T&D market is expected to significantly change
with the implementation of government initiatives like
Saubhagya. The market will now comprise of corridors
for renewal integration, automation, reconductoring

and smart or prepaid metering. Factors like increasing
urbanisation, smart cities, integrated utility services and
power requirements for expanding infrastructure will act
as growth drivers for the industry.

Another catalyst for growth is technology awareness and
acceptance in this sector, which is creating a demand for
advanced and sustainable technologies, in greenfield and
replacement equipment & solutions. Digital technology in
switchgear and relays, optimises safety and reliability of
distribution networks, modular, prefabricated structures

Management Discussion and Analysis‘

like power distribution. Additionally, this technology
renders greater efficiency and reduces carbon footprint
from infrastructure management and enables outage
optimisation, which is likely to contribute to the growth
of the sector.

Major Trends in the T&D Sector

* Low voltage, power theft and energy loss - The
distribution system suffers from an acute problem of
low voltage, power theft and high energy losses. The
issues of energy loss and voltage drop in distribution
feeders are dependent on each other and varies with
the pattern of loading on feeders. In the existing
system, large capacity transformers from one point
serve connections to each load via long Low Tension
(LT) lines. The length of LT lines are one of the major
reasons for low voltage issues faced by a majority
of consumers. Unauthorised connections and power
theft along the length of transmission lines also
result in low voltage problems.

* Innovative technologies contributing to sectoral
growth — The distribution network remains at the
core of the power supply ecosystem. Many companies
are developing and innovating best-in-class global
technologies to partner the building of a safer,
sustainable and more reliable power distribution
network in the country. Equipment to reduce carbon
footprints and address space requirements are some
of the major examples of innovative technology.
The country has some of the world's most populous
cities, each having close to 30,000 people per square
kilometer and with such a high population density, free
space is clearly limited. Prefabricated, modular power
distribution centers (PDCs), can be used to safeguard
power distribution and reduce carbon footprint.
Prefabricated modular nature of PDC is an engineering
innovation that optimises space, reduces construction
time and resources, and enhances public safety.

* Green energy corridors (GEC) - Transmission
schemes of around %432 billion® for renewable energy
zones with a potential capacity of 66.5 GW by 2022
has been approved by the central government. These
schemes will be implemented in two phases. Under
Phase |, transmission projects for 28 GW of renewable
capacity will be developed at an investment of 3168
billion. The remaining 38.5 GW will be developed under
Phase Il, at an investment of 3264 billion.

“ https://www.electricalindia.in/power-td-outlook/

S Transmission Trends by Power Line
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e Leveraging blockchain technology to increase
efficiency - The use of smart applications increases
the flow of information in various directions, making
the electric grid vulnerable to hackers. Blockchain
technology addresses this issue by managing
transactions through a decentralised tamper-proof
ledger and offers an efficient, secure and cost-
effective solution. Blockchains can make smart meters
infrastructure more robust by providing accurate
data to the supplier, without the need for a direct link
to specific users. With the rapid growth of electric
vehicles (EVs) in the country, blockchain can help in
peer-to-peer (P2P) sharing and interconnectivity,
thereby balancing the demand from multiple sources
and making the grid smarter and modular.

* Deployment of AMI infrastructure - As per the
CEA, the Government plans to replace all traditional
meters with smart meters by 2022. The Energy
Efficiency Services Limited’s (EESL) Smart Meter
National Programme (SMNP) is replacing 25 crore
conventional meters with smart meters across India.
These meters are expected to ease integration in
the power sector, reduce capital loss and enhance
efficiencyinbilling and collection. The rollout has been
proposed under the build-own-operate-transfer
(BOOT) model where EESL takes up all the capital
and operational expenditure with zero investment
from states and utilities. It then recovers the cost of
these smart meters through savings monetisation,
enhanced billing accuracy, avoided meter costs
and other losses caused due to inefficiencies. As of
August 2019, around 5 lac® meters have already been
installed by EESL in the states of Uttar Pradesh,
Delhi, Haryana, Bihar and Andhra Pradesh.

¢ Technologyinterventions in Distribution Companies
(DISCOMSs) - The smart combination of IT and
operational technology (OT) in DISCOMs will allow
optimisation on the supply as well as demand side
to achieve the goal of ensuring 24x7 uninterrupted
power supply to consumers. Some of the key
technology interventions include, but not limited to,
benefits such as:

o Advanced metering infrastructure and meter
data management (MDM) system

o IT-based metering, billing and collection system,
customer relation management (CRM) and
enterprise resource planning (ERP) system

o Advanced business analytics and forecasting
to ensure optimal resource planning in power
procurement

e  Tariff policy amendments - The government has
proposed to enact an amendment to the Tariff Policy,
2016, to ensure round the clock electricity to all the
citizens of the country. Here are some of the key
provisions under the proposed new tariff policy —

o The DISCOMs/licensees need to ensure before
respective commissions that they have signed
long-term and medium-term PPAs to meet the
power requirements

o Enable CEA to set rules of service and penalty
for inability to meet designated standards

o AT&C losses to be capped at 15% for
computation of tariff

o Simplification and rationalisation of retail tariff
by maintaining a lower number of consumer
categories and sub-categories, and making
them harmonious across all states

Given the shift in the generation mix, there is an increasing
focus on sustainability and advancement in technological
interventions driving operational efficiency in the power
sector. Significant coordination between policymakers,
investors and consumers will be necessary to drive
successful transformation of the sector. The amendments,
coupled with supportive resolutions, are expected to
pave way for the progress of the power distribution and
transmission sector in India.

Union Budget 2020-21

The Government of India announced that for FY 2020-21,
3220 billion” (~$3.08 billion) has been allocated for the
power and renewable sectors.

¢ Energy Efficiency Services Limited
7Union Budget 2020-21

* Statutory Reports ¢ |
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Table 4: Outlay for major programmes (Interim Union Budget FY 2020-21)

Major Central Sector Programmes 2017-18 Actuals

2018-19 Actuals 2019-20 BE 2019-20 RE 2020-21 BE

z ~$

Million Million

Solar Power 18,900 2641
Wind Power 7500 104.8
Kisan Urja Suraksha evam Utthaan Mahabhiyan - -
(KUSUM)

Green Energy Corridor 5000 699

Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojna (DDUGJY) 50,500 705.6

Integrated Power Development Scheme 39000 S449
Strengthening of Power Systems 11,600 1621
Power System Development Fund 10,000 1397
Scheme for Faster Adoption and Manufacturing of 1,650 231

(Hybrid and) Electric Vehicle in India -(FAME- India)

4 ~$ 4 ~$ k4 ~$ 4 ~$

Million Million Million Million Million Million Million Million

19040 2660 24,800 3465 17890 2500 21,500 3004
9,500 1327 9200 1285 10260 1434 12990 1815
- - - - - - 7000 978

5000 699 5000 699 - - - -
(BE)*

38,000 5309 40,660 5681 40,660 5681 45000 6282

33970 5445 52,800 7377 56,630 7913 53000 7405
28,020 3915 14,780 2065 18,600 2599 18430 2575
5440 760 10350 144.6 5,740 80.2 5,740 802
1450 203 5000 699 5000 699 6930 96.8

Note: BE- Budget estimates; RE- Revised Estimates: $1 = 371.57
[Source: Indiabudget.gov.in]

Lighting & Energy Efficiency Sector overview

Light-emitting diodes (LEDs) are revolutionising the
lighting market. With their high-energy efficiency,
versatility and cost competitiveness, LEDs have
spread quickly in the Indian household and commercial
markets. LEDs have been proved to be safe and much
more efficient than the products they are replacing.
LED lighting technology is evolving at a rapid rate and
therefore, keeping pace with this technology is of utmost
importance.

~r

India is the second most populous country in the world
and vyet, is only the third® largest electricity consumer
(2018) - a situation that has led to an ever-widening
demand-supply gap. Consequently, the market for
energy-efficient products such as LED lighting is growing,
riding on the initiatives that encourage the use of LED
lights, the focus on smart city projects, an efficient
public distribution system and the ever-increasing need
for a smart, connected lifestyle. The key factors that
are expected to boost the market include declining LED
prices coupled with favourable government initiatives
that provide LED lights at a subsidised cost and promote
LED street lighting projects through a special energy
services company (ESCO) model created by EESL.
Apart from rising consumer awareness about the cost-
effectiveness of LEDs, its energy-efficiency and eco-
friendly nature will continue to drive volume sales from
the industrial, residential and commercial sectors.

Government Initiatives to Promote Energy Conservation
and Energy Efficiency

* Standards and Labelling by the Bureau of Energy
Efficiency (BEE) - The Bureau of Energy Efficiency
(BEE) initiated the Standards & Labeling programme
for equipment and appliances to provide consumers
important information about energy saving and
also to help them make informed choices. The
energy efficiency labelling programmes under BEE
are intended to reduce the energy consumption of
appliances without diminishing its service quality.

o ‘Star Rating’ mobile app - This app is linked to
the Standards and Labeling database. It offers a

8 Global Energy Statistical Yearbook 2020 by Enerdata
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platform to compare personalised energy saving
devices across the same class and get real-time
feedback from consumers. This enables consumers
to make an informed purchase decision. Apart
from being a one-stop solution for customers, it's
also a valuable tool for policymakers to access
the accumulated data and analyse the market
feedback at any given point in time.

Energy Conservation Building Codes (ECBC) by the
Ministry of Power - The Energy Conservation Building
Code (ECBC) was launched in 2007 by Ministry of
Power for new commercial buildings. It sets minimum
energy standards for new commercial buildings. In
order to promote the market for energy efficient
buildings, Bureau of Energy Efficiency developed a
voluntary Star Rating Programme for buildings which
are based on the actual performance of a building.
The updated version of ECBC was introduced in
2017 and it sets certain parameters for builders,
designers and architects to integrate renewable
energy sources in the design, with the inclusion of
passive design strategies. The code aims to optimise
energy savings, keeping in mind the comfort level
of building occupants and it aims to achieve cost-
effective energy neutrality in commercial buildings.

Human Resource Development (HRD) — Awareness
about energy efficiency can improve its scope in
processes and equipment. A sound policy for creation,
retention and upgradation of Human Resource skills
is very crucial for penetration of energy efficient
technologies and practices in various sectors. The
component under HRD comprises of theory cum
practice-oriented training programme, providing
Energy Audit Instrument Support to the citizens.

Promotion of Energy Efficient LED Bulbs - UJALA
scheme - The initiative is part of the Government
of India’s efforts to spread the message of energy
efficiency in the country. UJALA scheme aims to
promote efficient use of energy at the residential
level, enhance awareness of consumers about the
efficacy of using energy efficient appliances and
aggregating demand to reduce the high initial costs.
It will thereby facilitate higher uptake of LED lights
by residential users. It may be noted that the scheme
was initially labelled DELP (Domestic Efficient
Lighting Programme) and was relaunched as UJALA.

Segment Overview
Power Distribution

The power distribution segment is engaged in delivering
EPC services for Rural Electrification works, Feeder
separation  works, System strengthening under
Restructured Accelerated Power Development and
Reforms Programme (R-APDRP) & Integrated Power
Development Scheme (IPDS) and commissioning of HV
Substations from 33 kV to 66 kV level in major parts of
the country. The segment accounted for 12.72% share
in the total revenue mix, amounting to ¥633.3 crore in
FY 2019-20. During the year under review, the Company
has decided to scale down volume and increase margin
accretive projects with larger value addition to portfolio.
As a result, the focus is on underground cabling in smart

cities with emphasis on monopole projects.

Major on-going projects in FY 2019-20

. Rural Electrification works of Haveri, Uttar Kannada
& Belgavi District in HESCOM, Karnataka under Deen
Dayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojana (DDUGJY).

«  Execution of works under Deen Dayal Upadhyaya
Gram Jyothi Yojana (DDUGJY) in MYSURU & Hassan
district.

* Statutory Reports ¢ |

. Electrification works in Tumkur District of Karnataka,
under the Integrated Power development Scheme
(IPDS).

+  Electrification work in the district of Shivamogga,
Karnataka.

. Electrification work in the districts of Birbhum, Bankura,
Malda, Jalpaiguri and Darjeeling in West Bengal.

*  Rural Electricity Infrastructure Development with the
Construction of new 33KV/11KV Substation along
with associated 33KV Incoming and 11KV outgoing
lines, along with new 33kv lines for existing 33/11 kV
Substations in Malda District Of West Bengal.

+  Rural/Urban Electrification and other related work in
16 districts of Uttar Pradesh under the government’s
Pradhan Mantri Sahaj Bijli Har Ghar Yojana
(Saubhagya).

*  RuralElectrification and otherrelated work on turnkey
basis, in 7 districts, against Tender Specification No.
EAV-185/17-18 under SAUBHAGYA YOJNA of Govt.
of India.

+ Design, supply and installation or extension of low
voltage single phase lines and service cables in
Nandi and Kakamega counties awarded by Kenya
Power Lighting Company.

. Rural electrification of 150 Localities in TOGO
(Lot 1) Mediterranean region.

Outlook

The Company is aggressively exploring opportunities
to augment its growth in various segments. Railway &
Substation projects have a huge electrification outlay
and the Company aims to capitalise on this opportunity
to improve its scope and reach in this field. Further, as
major towns and cities undergo rapid upgradation of
electricity transmission channels, through installation of
underground cables and use of monopoles, it provides
immense opportunity for Bajaj Electricals in this segment.
The Company also aims to explore opportunities in the
export market leveraging its domain expertise and owing
to less competition, predictable cash flows and better
margins.

—— 1,730 crore ———

Order book value as on 31st March 2020
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Power Transmission

The segment contributes around 13.55% of the total revenue
of the Company, amounting to 3674.23 crore in FY 2019-20.
The power transmission segment of Bajaj Electricals
involves setting up transmission lines ranging from 132kV to
765kV, across the length and breadth of the country, with an
aim to capitalise on growing opportunities. The substation
and monopole divisions under this segment are aimed at
further augmenting the final goal of providing end-to-end
customised solutions for electricity utilities across the world.

The Company has also undertaken EPC contracts in
lattice tower & monopole-based EHV transmission lines,
Air Insulated (AIS) & Gas Insulated (GIS) substation and
underground cabling. It's in-house manufacturing facilities
for lattice towers, monopoles & sub-station structures at
Ranjangaon, Pune, gives it a distinct advantage to maintain
high quality standards and ensure timely completion of
projects.

Key Highlights for FY 2019-20

«  With the commissioning of the 400kV Monopole
in Noida, under UPPTCL, Bajaj Electricals has
become a pioneer in long distance 400kV monopole
line construction, with in-house ‘concept to
commissioning’ capabilities, both in the domestic as
well as international front.

«  The Company accomplished a rare achievement to
successfully test 4 types of monopoles for three
different clients in India’s premier mechanical load
testing institute, CPRI Bangalore, within a span of 10
days, from 25th February to 4th March 2020.

+  The Company has ongoing projects in Uttar Pradesh,
Rajasthan, Madhya Pradesh, Gujarat, Telangana, West
Bengal, Karnataka, Bihar, Punjab and Tamil Nadu.

« Initiated its first international EPC project through
Zambia Electricity Supply Corporation Limited,
eyeing opportunities in the sub Saharan and SAARC
regions.

e The Company is building a dedicated team of
engineers, designers and marketing officers for
the same. Likewise, the manufacturing unit has
undertaken modernisation / upgradation procedures
for critical manufacturing processes.

Outlook

Moving forward, the Company plans to leverage its
experience in power transmission to actively bid for
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tenders, floated by Ministry of Railways, to electrify
railway tracks. In addition, the use of underground
cabling in Tier | and Il cities, to implement the smart city
mission, offers immense opportunities for the Company.
Power Transmission business unit is aiming to build
considerable order book from phase Il of Transmission
scheme announced by Gol under GEC project. It also
aims to strategically increase the quantum of monopole
business and develop its credentials in the high
voltage segment of substations along with its ongoing
conventional business.

lllumination

Through the illumination business, the Company provides
smart lighting solutions, meeting requirements of
indoor, outdoor and solar powered lighting. The segment
accounted for 11.74% of the total revenue mix during the
year under review. Further, the segment registered a de-
growth of 743% YoY in revenue from operations, which
stood at ¥584.23 crore for FY 2019-20. Its rich legacy
of 80 years, clubbed with its efficient R&D capabilities,
Production, Supplies, Execution (SITC) and service
capabilities under a single roof enables it to stay ahead
of the industry curve.

The Company's expertise in connected and smart
solutions is the need of the hour. It ranks number 2 in
smart city segment. Moreover, the Company enjoys first
mover advantage in Smart city projects and its first
project - Smart Cities with Jaipur (JDA) along with Cisco
was in 2016. For indoor solutions, it is the only lighting
company, perhaps in world, to have IBMS in its portfolio,
offering total building solutions for energy efficiency,
enhancing occupant comfort and increasing efficiency
in workspace management.

Key Highlights for FY 2019-20

»  Creation of special task force to work on the smart
cities proposal allowed Bajaj Electricals to win
several projects including the Nasik Smart City,
NKDA - Kolkata, Indore Smart City, Thoothukudi
in Tamil Nadu and Warangal in AP. It also received
order for Smart Luminaires and decorative poles in
Faridabad, Haryana.

+  Executed the prestigious Bogibeel rail-cum road
bridge in Assam. Bogibeel bridge is India’s longest and
Asia’s 2nd longest rail-cum-road bridge spanning
over 494 km, over the mighty Brahmaputra river in
Assam. Enhancing its visual appeal, Bajaj Electricals
completed the architectural illumination of the
bridge. The project has been appreciated globally and

was recognised with ISA — International Solid State
Lighting Alliance, SSL Top 100 Award in 2019.

« Highly efficient LED luminaires have been added in
all product segments to attain a correct market mix.

Product Segment USPs

e Indoor/commercial lighting: As modern office
spaces evolve, there is a growing trend towards
smart space utilisation and usage of light to increase
productivity and drive well-being of employees. In
order to meet these requirements, the Company
included Smart mood based, scene lighting and loT
building manager platform in its commercial range.
This has ensured two way control as well as efficient
usage of electricity. It has been further integrated
with 3rd party BMS to enhance and upgrade building
operations through its artistic planner range which
breaks the age old monotony of square designs and
offers architectural elegance with suspension lights,
tube lights and battens.

e Industrial lights: The Company’s smart ready
portfolio is aligned with the needs of futuristic digital
factories and warehouses. It comprises of features
such as state-of-the-art energy consumption
dashboard, day light harvesting, schedule based
dimming and digital monitoring. It has a robust and
efficient industrial LED portfolio catering to day-to-
day industrial requirements like high & hard-to-reach
ceilings, hazardous environments, small warehouses,
hot or cold temperatures and long operating hours.
The Company strives to solve these challenges with
its portfolio of products, keeping customer’s peace
of mind at the core of its development.

e Street lights: The Company has always been a
market leader in the street light space and is driving
the next change in Smart Infra with its Citisol solution
for smart cities. The Company delivered Smart
solutions for Radio Frequency (RF), LoRa (Long Range)
or Narrowband Internet of Things (NB-loT). It is also
capable of managing partner ecosystems, creating
innovative and effective solutions for its customers.

Outlook

Going forward, the Company plans to further widen its
portfolio with digitally enhanced illumination solutions
for indoor and outdoor lighting. Along with expanding
operations in new lighting applications, including facade/
architectural lighting and evaluating its proposition in Light
and Sound or Projection technologies, the Company intends
to have its own Lighting as a service (LaaS) platform.

» Statutory Reports ‘

Exports

The export division of Bajaj Electricals deals with consumer
products (including Fans, Appliances and Lighting products)
and indoor and outdoor lighting solutions (luminaires like
panel lights, down lights, battens, highbays, well glass,
flood lights and street lights as well as Octagonal poles,
distribution and street lighting poles, high mast, and stadium
masts). With an aim to build a global brand presence, the
Company has spread its footprint in more than 30 countries
around the world, including key export markets of Sri Lanka,
Bangladesh, UAE, Oman, Qatar, Ghana, Sudan, Nigeria,
Kenya, Uganda, Ethiopia, Mozambique, Egypt and Mauritius.
FY 2019-20 was a challenging year for the segment due to
various reasons like:

*  Mandatory requirement of certification for selling
products like fans, appliances, LED lighting and
luminaires in key markets such as Middle East,
Europe and Africa. This led to delay in processing
orders, which resulted in lower or delayed sales.

. Outbreak of coronavirus in the last quarter (Feb End
— March 2020) impacted sales.

However, the company managed to expand its footprint in
3 new countries during the year under review, in both B2B
and B2C segment. The segment accounted for 3.02% share
of total revenue, amounting to ¥1504 crore, in FY 2019-20.

Strategically, Bajaj Electricals is planning to consolidate,
penetrate and dive deep into the top 10-12 countries of
the Middle East and Africa. In the next 2 years, this will be
followed by Latin America & Commonwealth of Independent
States (CIS). In the B2B segment, the focus will be on West
African countries that have an increasing demand for power
distribution projects.

Key Highlights for FY 2019-20

+ The Company was a part of a delegation of the
Indian Lighting Industry, in association with Energy
Efficiency Services Limited (EESL, India), to visit
Riyadh in Saudi Arabia. The meet was aimed
at understanding the possible investments and
business opportunities in Saudi Arabia along with
TARSHID (National Energy Services Company).

+ The team was invited by the Ministry of Sports,
Youth and Special Duty along with the Ministry of
Energy (EDU state) Nigeriq, to discuss the possible
opportunities of Street Lighting, Stadium Lighting,
and Highmasts in the country.

+ Nirlep Appliances gained entry in major markets
of Nigeria, Kenya, UAE, Singapore & Sri Lanka. The
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Company intends to expand to more countries in the
coming years.

«  The Company’s Consumer Products have made in-
roads in Modern Format Retails like Cash-n-Carry,
Hub Mart, Bazar & Supermarkets in Nigeria, Sierra
Leone, Gambia, Sri Lanka, Singapore, Myanmar,
Hypermarket in Liberia; Lulu & AJ Supermarket in
Malaysia; Carrefour & Shoprite in East Africa; Al
Madina in Dubai & Sharjah.

30 countries

of presence

70 +

Dealers / wholesalers including distributors, utilities,
private contractors and Govt. agencies

Go-to-market Strategies

The Company is focusing on creating brand awareness
campaigns in its core markets. It is utilising various
strategies including TV and Press Campaigns in premium
markets and participating in exhibitions to showcase
various brands. Further, in developing countries it
plans to adopt traditional display media such as in-
shop, store and van branding to improve its reach.
Promotional activities through trade marketing was also
adopted by the company. Branding on pens, footballs,
key chains, umbrellas, notepads and T-shirts helped to
improve the Company’s visibility. With an aim to create
consumer delight, various schemes to support dealers/
distributors were designed along with a country specific
communication module.

With a constant focus on digital platforms, posts on
social media such as Instagram, Facebook and WhatsApp
are being used regularly to create brand awareness and
visibility. E-mailers are also used to inform customers
about latest product offerings.

Moving forward, the Company plans to focus on CRM
and social media marketing in countries like Nigeria,
Sri Lanka, Bangladesh, Kenya, UAE and create content-
specific visibility, both on ground and online, to support
its partners.
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Manufacturing

The Company undertakes manufacturing of Consumer
Products, Poles, Monopoles and EPC products through its
two manufacturing units located in Pune, Maharashtra.
Further, the Company also has 4 manufacturing units
through its joint venture / subsidiaries located in Nasik &
Aurangabad (Maharashtra), Shikohabad (Uttar Pradesh)
and Parawanoo (Himachal Pradesh).

The year under review was a challenging one for the
manufacturing operations owing to subdued demand
from EPC business. However, Bajaj Electricals continued
to focus on improving the operational efficiencies and
reducing its manufacturing costs. Further, the focus
was also on improving capacity utilisation by increasing
on-loading, reducing costs and improving efficiency
through Cross Functional Teams (CFTs) across plants
and logistics operations.

CFTs across operations were formed to improve the
operational and cost efficiency of the organisation. Cost
reduction strategies were implemented in areas such as
material sourcing, power &fuel cost,consumables cost, fixed
cost, manpower cost through productivity improvement,
transportation & warehousing cost and packing cost. On
the other hand, improvement of operational efficiency
was undertaken through initiatives such as line balancing,
Theory of Constraints (TOC) exploitation and Kaizen
method. All the managers and supervisors were a part of
these CFTs along with some workers.

The Company follows TOC based operating system in
its manufacturing plants. Accordingly, it maintains the
required raw material buffers in plants which enables
it to deliver products with minimum lead times. For the
consumer product business, it also maintains stock of
finished goods enabling the Company to supply goods
immediately from stocks.

Going forward, the Company plans to implement new
technologies such as Internet of Things (loT) in its
plants to improve the efficiency level as well as achieve
economies of scale. It is also driving Low Cost Automation
(LCA) projects across plants to achieve cost efficiencies.
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CFTs working across operations

T 30 crore

Capex for the year FY 2019-20

400

Permanent employees in two plants of Bajaj Electricals

Plant Key Annual Actual Average
Location Product Plant Production Capacity
Group capacity volume Utilisation
RU Monopoles 2,400 1,242 52%
(in metric
tonnes)
HM 4,200 4,055 97%
(in metric
tonnes)
Oct Poles 5,040 5,038 100%
(in metric
tonnes)
TLT 18,000 8,802 49%
(in metric
tonnes)
PD 6,000 1938 32%
(in metric
tonnes)
35,640 21,075 59%
Chakan Fans 15 10.3 69%
(in lakhs)
LED 240 179 75%
® in crore)
Starlite SWHs 33 29 88%
(in lakhs)
Mixers 15 0.6 40%
(in lakhs)
LED Bulbs 144 52 36%
(in lakhs)
AC 05 0.3 60%
(in lakhs)
Hindlamps LED Bulbs 120 80 67%
(in lakhs)
LED 12 7 58%
Battens (in
lakhs)
Nirlep Non stick 36 15 42%
Cookware
(in lakhs)
Quality

It has been Bajaj Electricals’ earnest endeavour to
improve the quality of its products. The Company’s
quality improvement initiatives are result oriented,
customer centric and focused on offering best-in-class
quality products.

» Statutory Reports ‘

Fundamental principles of quality policy:
+  Customer satisfaction.

« Timely introduction of innovative and energy
efficient products.

+  Quality products at affordable price.
»  Timely response to customer feedbacks/concerns.
+ Compliancetostatutoryandregulatoryrequirements.

Initiatives undertaken by the Company to improve
quality of products included:

«  Transformation from ‘QC2QA, by changing its
product oriented approach to a process oriented
approach, moving from defects detection to
prevention and employing reactive to pro-active
strategies. Kaizens, Quality Suggestion scheme, 8D,
Six-Sigma, Poka-yoke, Shinin Tools are some of the
initiatives that ensure it.

+ Initiated ‘QA in Market’ for capturing the voice of
customers by visiting BCCD/dealer/distributor.

+  Monitoring CRM data and analysing market
complaints on monthly basis.

*+ Product and process improvement through
standardisation of processes, raw material and
periodic re-assessment of vendors & sub-vendors.

+  Benchmarking study of products and processes in
comparison to competitors.

+  Performance improvement of vendors through audits
and infrastructure upgradation.

+ Development of in-house testing capabilities and
advanced measuring system.

Regular analysis of field failures, root cause analysis
and effectiveness monitoring of corrective action
was adopted by the Company to significantly reduce
failures over the past few years. Further, review of field
failure analysis with cross function teams - Quality,
Design, Consumer Care, Marketing and Supply Chain
Management (SCM), was also undertaken. Colours,
Materials, and Finishes (CMF) enhancement project was
also initiated to improve aesthetic of products.
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33

Selected products aesthetically revamped under CMF
enhancement project in FY 2019-20

15%

YoY reduction of field failure for 3 consecutive years, in

Consumer Products and Luminaires

—1S0 9001:2015

Certification for Quality Management Systems

Renewable Energy - Wind Energy

India was ranked as the fourth® most attractive
renewable energy market in the world in 2019 and the
total renewable capacity installations reached 86%°
gigawatt (GW) as of 31st December, 2019. Of the total,
wind energy became the biggest contributor with a 44%
share in the total renewable energy mix, followed by solar
with 39% share. In CY 2019, approximately 2.4 GW of new
wind capacity was added, an increase of 10% over 2018.
A total of 1.4 GW of new wind project installations with
commissioning happened in Gujarat, followed by Tamil
Nadu with 650 Megawatt (MW) and Maharashtra with
212 MW. The projects allocated in 2018 and scheduled
to commission in 2019 were delayed owing to multiple
headwinds, but primarily due to land availability issues
and lack of grid transmission. These projects are now
likely to be commissioned in CY 2020.

During the year under review, the Company generated
3070919.73 electrical units in its 2.8 MW wind farm at
Vankusawade village, in Satara district of Maharashtra.

Supply Chain Management System

At Bajqj Electricals, supply chain management system is
defined as a replenishment-based system for Made to
Stock products and a Made to Order based system for
products which are not sold regularly. The replenishment
model enables the Company to manage its inventories
better. Supply chain management is an integral part of
Bajaj Electricals’ operations as it directly impacts timely
availability of products and eventually, impacts sales

? https://www.investindia.gov.in/sector/renewable-energy

10 India Wind Energy Association
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and working capital blocked in Inventory. Strategies
adopted to increase the overall efficiency level of supply
chain consist of:

+  Automated capturing of real-time demand, in the form
of secondary sales from distributors and converting it
to demand for Bajaj Vendors on a daily basis.

+  Monthly Sales and Operations meetings to fine tune
rolling plans for the next 3-4 months.

«  Frequent changes of desired stock levels in response to
. increase / decrease of demand; and
« seasonal changes in demand.
«  Monthly meetings to plan actions for
+  slow moving inventory;
«  stock level changes; and
. inter branch / warehouse movement.

These strategies have enabled the Company to ensure
availability of products and order fulfillment with minimal
inventory.

Strategies to minimise supply and demand gap

Following strategies are employed to minimise loss of
sales due to nonavailability of goods:

+ The supply chain consists of Vendors, Company
Central Warehouses, Company Branch warehouses
and Bajaj Electricals Distributors. Supply to
Distributors is managed by a Replenishment based
Supply chain. Right from Bajaj Electricals vendors
to distributors, the entire system is automated and
adequate stocks are held at each node to ensure
higher availability even when the inventory levels are
low. This helps to service Trade distributor demands
as well and the method is followed for all Bajqj
Electricals products, except highly seasonal Room
Coolers and Room Heaters.

+ Alternate channels like Modern Format Stores,
Institutional Customers and CSD are serviced by
either of the two methods

o For regularly moving SKUs, certain stock levels
are maintained at the warehouses; and

o For other SKUs, manufacturing is triggered
based on the orders received from various
channels.

+ Sales and Operations meetings are conducted
on a monthly basis, wherein projections for the

next 3 months are discussed and jointly finalised.
Thereafter, the Supply Chain team takes necessary
actions to fulfil demand.

Research & Development (R&D)

The Company has a dedicated, world-class R&D centre
involved in developing new products and features.
The centre is involved in continuous development of
existing products and enhances its look and feel with
improvements in colour, material, fit & finish. The R&D
centre also houses testing labs for each category to avoid
dependence on external facilities. While most product
developments are done in-house, Bajaj Electricals also
collaborates with the country’s best Design Houses to
design some of its products.

During the year under review, it also developed the
capability for full-fledged third-party inspection of
illumination products. To further enhance its capabilities,
the Company has set up a hardware & software Lab, LED
Life Testing Lab, accelerated Switching, fan air delivery
lab and also initiated the set up for a gas stove lab. The
Company’s robust R&D activities ensure timely delivery
of new and improved products/solutions, allowing it
to maintain a competitive edge in an ever-changing
market, while aligning with latest business strategies
and creating intellectual properties for the organisation.

The Company also has a dedicated Digital centre which
is involved in learning new technologies from around the
world. They conduct extensive social listening procedures
to understand market realities and consumer needs,
round the clock. It also involves a dedicated team
working on the development of its loT range of products,
within its own ecosystem.

Innovative products launched in the market

Innovating new and improved products continuously
enables the Company to meet customer’s need, augment
growth opportunities in various market segments and
create Brand competitiveness through intellectual
property portfolio. Some of the innovative and first-of-
its-kind products launched by the Company include:

+  Berryl Mixer Grinders — Bacteriostatic and easy to
clean Mixer Grinders for Indian market.

« FX 1 Food Processor with Yam Pounding - Yam
pounding function to cater African market.

«  Family of streetlights designed with a strong visual
and aesthetic appeal.

. Launch of loT enabled water heater Smart.iNXT and
LED lamp Awe.
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Certified R&D centre

420+

New products introduced in FY 2019-20

79

Members in the R&D team as on 31st March 2020

3

Patents filed

10

Design registrations filed

36

National trademarks registered

3

International trademark registered

Product Marketing

The Company’s product marketing strategy is focussed
around three aspects - ‘Maintain & Grow’ in categories
where it is a market leader, achieve ‘Significant
Growth'’ in categories where it aspires to be in the top
three and ‘Create Impact’ in remaining high potential
categories with innovation & product differentiation.
Aligning with these focus areas, the Company has
developed its product marketing strategies including
Channel development, product development and Brand
development. Bajaj Electricals holds No. 1 position in
Mixing Appliances, Electric Water Heaters and Dry Irons.
It is also among top 3 players in four more categories.

Apart from this, Service has also played a pivotal role
in ensuring consumers delight. The Company has
an extensive service coverage that helps to support
stakeholders with various service needs such as
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installations, demonstrations and grievance redressal
within the given Turnaround Time (TAT), based on
respective product categories.

The Company has also developed strategic tie-ups with
global brands like Disney & Midea for its range of Ceiling
fans and Table Wall Pedestal (TPW) fans, respectively.
Tie-up with Disney has helped it create a popular range
for kids with its renowned fictional characters. Further,
the Company has also recently tied-up with National
Health Academy to get accreditation for its newly
launched range of Anti-bacterial Fans and Anti-bacterial
Honeycomb Pad coolers. For consumer financing, Bajaj
Electricals has tied-up with Bajaj Finserve and HDB
Financial services to promote its Air Coolers with special
offers.

The Company has always adopted a Product
differentiation strategy, showcasing unique features
to stay ahead of competitors. As a result, it has
implemented a product differentiation strategy across
all categories and have launched several new features
over the last one year. While it continues to focus on
innovation and feature rich products, it also ensures
affordability of products, with an objective of benefitting
maximum number of consumers.

Apart from consumers, the Company also focuses on
building relationships with its channel partners, as they
ensure uninterrupted supply of products. To strengthen
relations, Bajaj Electricals launched an extensive loyalty
programme called ‘Retailer Bonding Programme’ (RBP).
This programme was launched 3 years ago and has evolved
based on market feedbacks, improving benefits for
retailers. The Company has enrolled all its listed Retailers
in this programme and given points in real-time, against
every purchase of consumer products. The retailers have
an option to redeem these points against a huge variety
of gift items listed in the programme. The points are
extended to retailers based on a combination of products
bought, range of products, frequency of purchase and
consistency of purchase within a given period. The entire
programme is system driven and retailers can access their
performance dashboard on a specially designed mobile
app as well as from the web portal.

This programme has helped develop a high level of
engagement as well as excitement among retailers. In
return, it has also led to a substantial growth of retailers
and has contributed to the Company’s business growth.
Till date, it has already rewarded 34,657 retailers with
attractive performance based incentives.



| 81° Annual Report 2019-20

‘quaj Electricals Limited (BEL)

Table 5: Product marketing strategies linked with outcome achieved

Strategy

Channel
Development

Approach

The Company has constantly and
progressively worked on its RREP
programme to strengthen its distribution
network to ensure steady supply of goods
with minimum inventory.

The focus is on leveraging its numeric
reach with higher rate of extraction,
by extending the complete range of
products to all markets. A special drive
will be on commercialisation of new
launches of more than 100 SKUs in the
available network.

Outcome in FY 2019-20

The RREP programme has resulted in an extensive
numeric distribution with a direct coverage of 2 lakhs+
retail outlets across 600+ districts in the country.

With the Company’s ‘same price for all' approach and
systematic market working, it has developed a very
positive, sustainable and reliable relationship with the
channel partners.

Bajaj Electricals is a strong believer in omnichannel
presence and hence created a widespread presence
in not just trade channels but also in Modern Retail
formats and leading E-commerce platforms like
Amazon & Flipkart. The consumer can choose from
any of their preferred buying channels according to
their convenience.

Product
Development

The Company has identified three core
premise for its product development —

e Consumer Research: Detailed U&A
studies are conducted to identify the
real needs of consumers to ensure all
technology research & innovations
can address the same in terms of
product features.

« Orbit Shift Programme: All the
consumer pain-points, related ideas
and innovations are vetted through
a large team of experts to ensure
accuracy in addressing the needs.

¢ Benchmarking: A detailed and regular
benchmarking of the products is
conducted, vis-a-vis competition, to
ensure relevance of its products.

The product development strategy has led to the
launch of unique features which are clear market
differentiators. Products such as Anti-bacterial
Fans has created a unique positioning as well as
recognition of the brand in this category. The new
products launched during the year address varied
consumer needs - catering to functional, emotional
as well as health and wellness requirements. During
the year under review, 230+ SKUs were launched
under CP division.

Brand
Development

Along with Product Development, the
Company also focuses on product-led
Communication. During the year under
review, the Company made 8 new TVCs
and launched 10 campaigns for Nirlep
Appliances, Bajaj Water Heaters, Bajqj
Mixers (South specific), Bajaj Fans and
Bajaj Coolers. The Company has also
increased its media spends over the
years and has been able to conduct high
impact campaigns across categories.

The Brand development strategy with product led
brand campaigns have increased awareness and
consideration for the Company’s products. Forbes
Magazine recognised the Company as a part of
‘India’s 100 Most Respected Consumer Brand'.
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Branding

Bajaj Electricals aims to position itself as a contemporary
and aspirational consumer durable brand. With more
than 80 years of experience, the company recognises
the importance of blending its traditional beliefs with
modern values. To remain relevant and connect with its
diverse customer base, the Company constantly intends to
revamp and evolve its image through innovative branding
strategies — with a sharp focus on attracting the attention
of its audiences across social divides and age groups.

In keeping with its objectives to sustain its modern,
contemporary brand image, the Company launched loT
enabled Air coolers, Anti-Bacterial Coolers, Anti-Bacteria
& Bye Bye Dust Fans, Sunshine CRI with LEDs, Travel Irons
and Mixer Grinders in vibrant colours.

Further, the Company adopted an appropriate mix of
online and offline marketing channels to broaden its reach.
The Company’s presence on social media, across YouTube,
Facebook, Twitter, LinkedIn and Instagram, strengthens
its digital media marketing strategy. From utilising its
digital platforms as a support function to utilising it for
business purposes, Bajaj Electricals’ digital campaigns
have undergone a paradigm shift. The Company has
also revamped its E-commerce website (www.shop.
bajajelectricals.com) to boost online sales.

While the Company continued to explore online channels
for brand building, it also engaged in offline marketing
strategies including TV & Newspaper advertisements,
In-Shop Branding and Product Exhibitions to directly
communicate with consumers and enhance brand visibility.
During the year under review, Bajaj Electricals undertook
7 Major Brand Building campaigns for key categories
including Air Coolers, Fans, Water Heaters, Mixer Grinders
and Nirlep Appliances. For its illumination products,
a unique initiative, ‘nxt upgrade’, was undertaken in 5
Indian cities to showcase innovative products and service
offerings. Bajaj Electricals has also actively supported
various events such as Pinkathon, India’'s biggest women'’s
run and has partnered with Kidzania as a part of its brand
building initiative.

Besides, the Company standardised its logo across product
categories to further improve brand visibility. The trade
packs of Nirlep Appliances were also modified to promote
fresh and modern look and the Morphy Richards brand
was repositioned with an aim to target customers from all
segments.
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Key Brand Campaigns in FY 2019-20

¢ Cooler Campaign -
o Campaign Thought - HEAT KO KARO BEAT

o Objective: To showcase its range of Air Coolers.
Communication was around Surround Cooling,

Hexa Cool Technology & loT Air Cooler.

Scan the QR code or visit click here to view full video | EH#H

e Nirlep Campaign -

o Campaign Thought - ITNA STRONG; TIKEY
VERY VERY LONG

o Objective: To strengthen the Nirlep brand and
communicate its durability feature.

Scan the QR code or visit click here to view full video



https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=j-Qqs7fru0Y
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=rISrS2BHb3Q
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e Mixer Grinder Campaign -

o Campaign Thought - INDIA'S NO. 1 MIXING
APPLIANCE BRAND #CorrectHai

o Objective: With an objective to further
consolidate its position in the Mixer Grinder
Segment, Bajaj Electricals ran the Mixer Grinder
TV Campaign and it was telecast on key
channels across India.

.
Scan the QR code or click here to view full video

[

*  Mixer Grinder South Centric Campaign

o Campaign Thought - INDIA'S NO. 1 MIXING
APPLIANCE BRAND

o Objective - Three South centric campaigns for
Mixer Grinders, in regional languages (Onam-
Kerala, Pongal- Tamil Nandu & Ugadi- Andhra
Pradesh/Telangana &  Karnataka), clearly
stating that Bajaj Mixers are India’s No. 1 Mixing
Appliance Brand to increase its market share in
the South.

Water Heater Campaign - INDIA'S NO.1 WATER
HEATER BRAND

o

Campaign Thought - JAB BHI THANDA PAANI
SATAYE; EK HI NAAM YAAD AAYE

Objective: To establish Bajaj Electricals as a
market leader, it ran a water heater campaign
that was appreciated by Brand Equity. The
Communication was around India’s No. 1 Water
Heater Brand.

Scan the QR code or click here to view full video

Anti Bacterial Fan & Cooler Campaign -

o

o

Campaign Thought - HAWA KI DAWA and
BETTER HYGIENE KE LIYE

Objective: To showcase Anti Bacterial Fans and
Coolers.

Anti Bacterial Air Cooler Campaign
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Information Technology (IT)

At Bajaj Electricals, technology plays a vital role in
sustaining business growth year on year. As part of its
technology transformation strategy and roadmap, the
Company is leveraging state-of-the-art technologies to
ensure business excellence and scalability. Technology
such as Machine Learning (ML), Artificial Intelligence (Al),
Predictive Data Modelling, Advanced Analytics, Business
Intelligence (BI), Internet of Things (loT), Blockchain,
Robotic Process Automation (RPA) and Chatbots have
already been implemented as part of its transformation
initiatives. The Company has also enabled robust and
comprehensive IT infrastructure that provides agility and
competitive edge to its business.

Bajaj Electricals focuses on early adoption of new
technologies to evaluate new business opportunities and
scale up operations. This has enabled the Company to
expand its footprints across the globe and augment business.
Further, technology also helps to improve productivity,
optimise business processes, enhance performance,
increase employee efficiency and reduce cost.

In the initial implementation phase, the Company
automated complex financial processes such as generation
of financial statements, synchronisation of bank accounts,
automation of banking transactions and tax reconciliation
using various external portals. In the next phase, the
Company is planning to automate invoice processing which
can help to achieve improved efficiency, better accuracy,
cost optimisation and reduced manual errors.

54
Employees in IT team as on 31st March 2020

12.5 years

Average experience of employees

IDC Insights Award
2019 & Computer
Express Award

Won for WMS Development and Implementation in
FY 2019-20

Technology adoption to serve customers better

Chatbots: The Company has introduced Al based
Customer Service Chatbots to connect with customers
directly. It enables the Company to ensure round-the-
clock customer service. The customers can raise service
requests for Product Repairs, Product Demo and Product
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Installation without reaching out to the call centre.
Further, the Chatbot also offers other services related to
product catalogues, product registration and tracking of
service request.

ML and Advanced Analytics: The Company is
implementing ML and Advanced Analytics technologies
to analyse consumer insights and plan its customer
centric business strategies. Bajaj Electricals engages
with its customers through multiple digital channels to
get insights about products and services. The Company
has identified and created multiple touch points for
consumer engagement. Through these touch points, it
captures consumerinsights whichis utilised forenhancing
purchase and post purchase consumer experiences. ML
based predictive modelling is also optimising the spare
parts inventory and improving service time for customer
service requests.

ERP system: The Company uses core financial ERP
system to support the business in its day to day
operations. Recently, the Company upgraded the ERP
to incorporate latest changes. It allowed the system to
become more robust, secure and helped end users to
increase their productivity. Also, efforts were made to
enable e-Auction of Payable Invoices.

Cloud based system: During the year under review, major
illumination projects were brought under the purview of
Sales Cloud & CPQ (Configure, Price & Quote) solution.
It enables automation of pre-sales activities, provides
better response to customer enquiries and allows sales
funnel visibility for business users. Sales cloud is a key
technology used by the Company for its database
containing Leads, Customers & Contacts. On the other
hand, CPQ helps to generate complex offers as per
customer requirement and initiates internal approval
workflow for quote generation to reduce the sales cycle-
time. The Company is planning to integrate Pre-Sales and
Post-Sales functions in Sales Cloud and CPQ, which will
enable seamless conversion of sales enquires to orders
and facilitate order execution. It will also significantly
reduce sales cycle time required for order execution on
ERP and provide better services to customers. In the
next phase, Sales Cloud for EPC — T&D segments will be
implemented for better visibility of order pipeline.

Intranet based application: The Company uses numerous
Intranet based applications in its daily operations.
During the year under review, the Company implemented
Warehouse Management System (WMS) at its Central
and Branch Warehouses. WMS offers outstanding value
addition for warehouse operations. It improves labour
productivity, maximises space utilisation with system


https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=4oN8efS5SXA
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=f1FDAwTR_ug
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=wlI0h4O0yeI

‘ 81t Annual Report 2019-20
‘Bajaj Electricals Limited (BEL)

directed activities and reduces paperwork. WMS ensures
FMFO (First Manufactured First Out) based material
handling and reduces bad inventory. Bajaj Electricals
also implemented Freight Management System to enable
speedy processing of Transporter bills and automate
freight management. The Company also managed its
vendors and dealers through its extranet platform and
maintains the value chain to support its business.

The Company also leverages loT technology to develop
smart and connected products for consumers. It is
planning to launch various loT enabled consumer and
business products such as coolers, water heaters and
smart streetlights.

Financial Analysis

. . (R in crore)
Consumer Centric Digital Transformation
Particulars FY FY YoY Change
One of the main reasons for digital transformation is to 2019-20 2018-19 (%)
improve and empower customer experience throughunified —
. . Revenue 497709  6,67314 (25.4)
omni channels such as Websites, E-Commerce platforms,
Social Media, Whatsapp, E-Mails, SMS, Microsites, EBIDTA 25956 41378 (37.3)
Customised forms and Chatbots. The Company offers EEIT L 37532 (490)
. Finance Cost 16916 115.88 460
consumer centric products to serve consumer needs. It
. . . PBT 22.39 25944 (914)
listens to the voice of consumers on digital platforms to
understand them better and serve accordingly. PAT (o) 16707 (100.D)
Key Financial Ratios:
Particulars FY FY YoY Reasons for change, where change is significant
2019-20 2018-19 Change
(%)
I
EBIDTA Margin 522% 6.20% (159) Drop in EBIDTA margin is on account of degrowth in revenue
mainly in EPC segment by 51.89% and absorption of running
fixed costs in EPC Division.
EBIT (Operating) 3.85% 5.62% (31.6) Same as above.
Margin
PBT Margin 0.45% 3.89% (88.4) Lower EBIT margin and increase in Financing Cost from 3116
crore to 3169 crore (increase in Capital employed mainly in EPC,
funded by borrowed funds).
PAT Margin 0.00% 2.50% (100.1) Lower PBT and write off of deferred tax assets on account of
decreased tax rate from 34.94% to 25.17% of 316.62 crore.
Debtors 174 257 (32.3) Sharp drop in revenue mainly in EPC segment as compared to
Turnover reduction in debtors. Revenue dropped by 25.7 % whereas closing
debtors reduced by 19.3%, from 3,143 crore to 2,537 crore.
Inventory 4.82 7.37 (34.6) Sharp drop in cost of goods sold mainly in EPC segment as
Turnover compared to reduction in inventory. Cost of goods sold dropped
by 29.4% whereas closing inventory reduced by 159%, from
821 crore to 691 crore (approx 72.6% inventory pertains to
Consumer products segment).
Interest 1.13 324 (65.0) The ratio has worsened due to reduction in EBIDTA margin and
Coverage Ratio increase in finance cost as explained above
Current Ratio 112 105 6.7 Cash from operations of 3626 crore and proceed from Rights
issue of ¥350 crore are mainly used for repayment of Short term
borrowings.
Debt Equity 0.69 147 (527) Increase in Total Equity mainly on account of Infusion of Capital
Ratio through Rights Issue of 350 crore, and reduction in borrowings
of 3631 crore as mentioned above.
Return on Net (0.01) 1550% (100.1) Drop in profitability as explained in the profitability ratios, and
Worth reversal of DTA resulted in Loss at PAT level and increase in the

Total Equity.

Risk Mitigation

. » Statutory Reports
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As the Company expands its operations in international as well as domestic market, the risks and its impact on

business operations increases sequentially. The Company has a comprehensive Risk Management framework in

place which enables it to protect the interest of the stakeholders and mitigate any impact on its operations. The key

objective of the framework is to identify potential risks on time and take corrective actions to reduce any adverse

impact on business operations.

Key Risk

Macroeconomic and political

Political uncertainties and weak
macroeconomic  conditions  have
an indirect impact on consumer
sentiments, confidence and demand.
This might have an adverse impact
on the Company’s overall growth and
product demand.

Mitigation

Bajaj Electricals is constantly investing in the development
of capabilities to be agile and responsive to a changing
business environment and have the right strategies
to confidently mitigate any challenges. The Company
takes proactive steps to assess and manage risks and
opportunities in its business environment. Further, Bajqj
Electricals’ product portfolio caters to varied needs to
fulfill diverse consumer requirements.

Level of impact

Low

Unforeseen situation

An unforeseen situation like the
recent outbreak of COVID-19 has
led to lockdown in many countries
including Indiq, resulting in a slowdown
of economic activities. It led to major
disruptions in the supply chain and
decreased demand for goods. This
might have an adverse impact on the
Company’s operation and liquidity
position, raising questions on business
sustainability.

Bajaj Electricals has been proactively and responsibly
dealing with the pandemic. Initiatives such as work from
home and adherence to social distancing norms were
followed at several locations. Further, the Company also
undertook preemptive actions to boost production and
ensure distribution at all warehouses before the lockdown.
This enabled it to prevent supply chain disruptions in
secondary and tertiary sales. It is anticipated that demand
for branded goods are expected to rise as consumers
would prefer to spend on products that are reliable and
trustworthy. This is expected to benefit Bajaj Electricals.
In the long run, the Company does not see any challenges
as the demand for its products is unlikely to be impacted.

High

Business growth

Bajaj Electricals faces stiff
competition from domestic as well
as international players. Given the
current situation, reduced demand for
Bajaj Electricals’ consumer products
along with its inability to secure EPC
projects might pose challenges to
business growth and sustainability.

For its consumer product segment, the Company has
implemented strategies such as Range, reach, expansion
programme (RREP). This has enabled it to increase its
market presence, offer more value to customers and
enhance visibility of its products. Further, the Company
enjoys a strong brand reputation in the market which
enables it to stay ahead of its competitors.

For its EPC segment, the Company has been focusing
on securing high margin accretive projects for Railways,
Monopoles and Substations to boost its growth and
profitability. It is also working towards improving its order
book value by securing more projects.

Moderate
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Key Risk

Working capital management

Change in scope of work by clients
in EPC projects and unresolved
issues regarding Right of Way (ROW)
might result in non-utilisation of
material purchased for a particular
project. Further, delay in execution of
projects might delay the receivable
from clients. This might have adverse
impact on the working capital of the
Company and it might not be able to
meet its short term obligations.

Mitigation

The Company maintains proper communication with the
clients to identify additional work at respective projects
and also ensures proper utilisation of inventory procured
at respective sites. Further, the requirement of clients in
other sites are identified and unutilised inventory is shifted
to sites where it is necessary. This enables the Company
to ensure proper utilisation of inventory. Additionally, it
also coordinates with clients for recovery of receivables
by ensuring timely handover of sites and project closures.

Level of impact

Low

Liquidity

Inability to meet short term as well
as long term liability due to cash
constraints might have an adverse
impact on Company’s operations and
financial position.

The Company has a prudent liquidity management policy
in place. It raises long term funds to ensure matching of
liability with asset realisation. Further, equity capital was
also raised through rights issues to repay maturing debt.
The Company maintains the required cash and cash
equivalent balance at all times to meet its long and short-
term obligations.

Low

Human capital

New entrants and existing domestic
players may hire talent from the
Company, resulting in loss of
intellectual capital to competitors.
Further, inability to find the right fit for
a role might have an adverse impact
on the Company's operations.

The Company’s human resource management team
constantly focuses on building a robust and diverse talent
pipeline by hiring fresh management graduates to cater
to various businesses and functions, enhancing individual
and organisational capabilities for future readiness,
driving greater employee engagement and strengthening
employee relations. The Company has also undertaken
initiatives like employee satisfaction survey, management
training programmes, job rotations, quarterly/half
yearly/Annual recognitions and multiple development
programmes to retain and grow talents.

Low

Occupational health and Safety

During the course of daily operations,
the Company’s employees are exposed
to various health and safety hazards.

Safety of employees and workers is of utmost importance
to the Company. Bajaj Electricals has identified
Occupational Health & Safety as one of its key focus
areas. Various programmes involving safety training,
safety leadership and logistics safety programme has
been conducted at the plants and project sites to ensure
safety of employees. Further, a Safety Committee and
Safety Portal has been established to oversee safety

initiatives and ensure adherence across the organisation.

Low
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Internal Control

Commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its
operation, the Company has well defined and adequate
internal controls. Throughout the year, the internal controls
operated effectively. To test the robustness of these
controls and to cover all business units, offices, factories
and key areas of business, the Company had appointed
an external consultant as an Internal Auditor. External
consultant (Internal Auditor) and the statutory auditor
evaluate the design, adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the Internal financial controls of the Company. The
controls are designed in such a manner that they are
broadly in accordance with the criteria established under
the Companies Act, 2013 and Guidance Note issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

The Company has documented Standard Operating
Procedures (SOPs) and risk registers, encompassing
process flow, key risks and key controls for all business
units and functions. SOPs and risk registers in turn are
evaluated and appropriate amendments are made by
the business, depending on the changes in process of
workflow and controls. The external consultant (Internal
Auditor) on review of the internal financial controls did
not identify any significant control weaknesses. All the
non-significant control weaknesses identified have been
discussed with the process owner. Remedial action has
been taken or agreed upon, to 135 Corporate Overview
Statutory Reports Management Discussion and Analysis
Financial Statements eliminate the weaknesses in a time
bound manner. Adequate manual controls have been
deployed where control weaknesses have been identified
due to system limitation in IT application.

The external consultant (Internal Auditor) conducts
internal audits for the areas that agreed with the
management and Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee finalises the scope of internal audit. The
audits executed by the external consultant (Internal
Auditor) are monitored by the Internal Audit function. It is
ensured that internal audit and IFC reviews are conducted
objectively. Also, it is ensured that reviews evaluate the
efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in the
Company, its compliance with operating systems and
procedures, accounting procedures and policies of the
Company. The internal audit function reports to the
Chairman & Managing Director of the Company and the
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board so as to

maintain its objectivity and independence.

Management Discussion and Anclysis‘

The process owners undertake corrective action in their
respective areas within agreed timelines for significant
risks identified in the reports issued by Internal Auditors.
This helps to improvise and strengthen the controls. On
a quarterly basis, significant audit observations and
corrective actions are presented to the Audit Committee
of the Board.

Human Resource

The Company believes in empowering people to deliver
their best in a work environment that is diverse, inclusive
and friendly. As a result, the human resource (HR)
department at Bajaj Electricals has evolved from a
function performing an operational role to a more strategic
one, supporting the businesses and the organisation as a
whole to deliver its business objectives. It engages with
business leaders to understand priorities and accordingly,
carves a people strategy. This includes identifying right
talent for the organisation, grooming and nurturing them
through various people centric interventions, providing
opportunities to learn and grow and pursue career paths
unhindered.

The Company not only provides opportunities to its
internal talent pool, but also seeks to infuse fresh talent
from various Management/ Engineering Colleges or from
the market, to continuously strengthen its workforce. As
per the Company’s norms, each candidate is evaluated
by a multi-step process defined as per the Standard
Operating Procedures (SOP) with a mandatory cross-
functional panel evaluation.

3,007

Total number of employees as on 31st March 2020

7%

Gender diversity ratio as 31st March 2020

Training and Development Initiatives

All employees of Bajaj Electricals undergoes various
training and development programmes. The initiatives are
aimed at continuously upskilling its talent pool through
various internal and external training programmes, as per
the training needs captured through the Performance
Management System.
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New employees undergo a detailed orientation
programme called Anugam, which aims at providing
insights into each business unit and support functions.
They also participate in induction programmes along
with a Buddy Programme which allows new recruits to
deliver to the best of their abilities within a short period of
time. For the existing employees, the Company conducts
functional and behavioural training programmes to
increase their skills and knowledge. Further, the Company
through its signature ‘Pygmalion Programme’, continues
to identify employees with high potential and grooms
them through focussed learning interventions to make
them ready for future leadership roles, thus ensuring a
steady talent pipeline within the organisation.

169

Functional training programmes conducted in
FY 2019-20

1,735

Employees participated in functional training in
FY 2019-20

130

Behavioural training programmes in
FY 2019-20

2,585

Unique employees undergone training in
FY 2019-20

Various HR Initiatives

Rewards and Recognition: The Company strives to build
a performance driven culture. Its ‘Achieverz Programme’
aims to recognise and reward employees for their
extraordinary  contributions.  Annual  performance
evaluations also ensure differentiation of talent based on
achievements. High-performing employees are rewarded
with higher market-based merit pay and deserving
candidates are also promoted to positions of higher
responsibilities.

Employee engagement initiatives: The Company
strongly believes in an open culture where communication
flows freely, not only from top to bottom, but also
between employees and the organisation, where every
individual gets an opportunity to express views, opinion
and thoughts. The HR department has institutionalised
different platforms like International Townhall and
Catch-Up with Anuj, where the top management of the
Company shares business outlook and plans for the
future and also interacts directly with employees across
the globe by answering their queries.

Employee Engagement Survey: The Company conducts
an annual Employee Engagement Survey which gives
employees an opportunity to voice their opinions on
different parameters. The management also uses
its internal communication portal, Hi-Lites, to share
business updates and other important developments
with its employees continuously.

Digitisation: The Company is planning to leverage new-age
technology such as Artificial Intelligence (Al) and analytics
to strengthen and increase the efficiency of its HR practices.
As a result, it has decided to implement a best-in-class HR
solution, SAP Success Factor, which will provide a platform
to launch futuristic interventions for its employees.

Gender diversity: The Company acknowledges the
importance of gender diversity and undertakes
measures to promote the same. To sensitise its Leaders
and Managers towards women colleagues, the HR
department had conducted several awareness sessions
across locations, during the year. The Company's
Internal Complaints Committee constituted under the
policy of Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual
Harassment of Women at workplace ensures strict
adherence of the law and conducts quarterly reviews of
the same.

Employee Health & Safety: Employee well-being has
been another area of focus for the Company. To ensure
that its people stay healthy and engaged, perform well
and thrive in their professional and personal lives, the
Company has carried out several awareness programmes
for its employees across regions and at various times of
the year.
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Creating a Winning Culture: The five key behaviours which the Company believes will drive to make Bajaj Electricals

of the future are embodied in its Winning Culture and are as follows:

Winning Culture Definition

Agility Being quick in response, adaptable to new challenges and opportunities and

having ability to deal with ambiguity.

Simply the Best

Being best and chasing perfection in everything we do, delivering quality and

demanding quality from others to create best-in-class products, processes

and practices.

Think Straight Talk Straight

Communicating with clarity of thoughts, being fearless and truthful to self

and others to facilitate decisions and actions that are well informed.

Teamwork & Communication

Working together across functions, fostering collaboration over working in

silos; garnering synergy and oneness through seamless communication and

sharing information.

Ethics & Integrity

Demonstrating highest standards of business conduct and adherence to

rules and code of conduct of the company. Exhibiting high sense of purpose,

relentless commitment and passion towards organisation’s goal.

Corporate Security and Administration (CSA)

Given its position in the industry, it is vital for Bajqj
Electricals to provide a secure and safe working
environment for its employees. With an aim to herald
a cultural change in terms of inculcating discipline,
process implementation and to plug leakages in
security cum administration by streamlining processes,
Bajaj Electricals formed its Corporate Security and
Administration (CSA) department in FY 2017-18. The
Company’s security and administration was also brought
under one umbrella, thereby relieving operations to focus
on their core business areas. The CSA department has
been established as a strong security and administration
grid across Indiai.e.in Head Office, Branches, Warehouses
and at Project sites.

This has enabled the Company to maintain strong
surveillance across its operations in terms of access
control, asset protection, risk mitigation, disaster
management, fire and electrical safety, surveillance grid,
loss prevention, travel management, space management,
employee engagement etc. The Company has also
established a Global Surveillance Operational Centre,
with a proper blend of physical security and digital system.
This has enabled it to increase overall efficacy, facilitated
Fraud Detection, Investigations, Crisis Management, and
reduced risk while ensuring an incident free environment.

The security teams have been trained and re-skilled to
understand a changing business environment. They are
not only trained to address incidents and emergencies,
but are also qualified to assess internal and external
threats. This has enabled business units to prevent losses

by implementing standard operating procedures.

To enhance its environment, health and safety (EHS)
policy, in August 2018, the Company had created a
separate EHS vertical, with the aim to deliver better
results. The objective was to bring transparency,
increase accountability and refine SOPs to protect the
environment and ensure the health, safety and welfare
of the employees, as well as agency workers, contractors

and visitors coming to the sites, offices and factories.

Today, EHS is a core component of Company’s overall
business strategy. Going beyond meeting compliance
requirements, EHS has contributed in protecting and
enhancing company’s reputation. It has also strengthened
the Company’s safety culture by initiating behavioural
change in employees, through training, communication
and use of technology. This has enabled Bajaj Electricals
to reduce the risk of accident and to fulfil its social

responsibility.



‘ 81t Annual Report 2019-20
‘quaj Electricals Limited (BEL)

Cautionary Statement

Certain statements in the MDA section concerning future prospects may be forward-looking statements
which involve a number of underlying identified / non identified risks and uncertainties that could cause
actual results to differ materially. In addition to the foregoing changes in the macro-environment, global
pandemic like COVID-19 may pose an unforeseen, unprecedented, unascertainable and constantly evolving
risk(s), inter-alia, to the Company and the environment in which it operates. The results of these assumptions
made, relying on available internal and external information, are the basis for determining certain facts and
figures stated in the report. Since the factors underlying these assumptions are subject to change over
time, the estimates on which they are based, are also subject to change accordingly. These forward-looking
statements represent only the Company’s current intentions, beliefs or expectations, and any forward-looking
statement speaks only as of the date on which it was made. The Company assumes no obligation to revise or
update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise.
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Business Responsibility Report

As mandated by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), India’s top 1000 listed entities on BSE and NSE based
on their market capitalisation, are required to submit a ‘Business Responsibility Report’ (BRR / BR Report) alongwith

their Annual Report. This report is required to be in line with ‘National Voluntary Guidelines on Social, Environmental and

Economic Responsibilities of Business’ (NVGs), as released by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in July 2011.

Bajaj Electricals Limited (the “Company”) presents its fourth BRR in line with the NVGs and BRR requirement of SEBI.
This BRR presents key initiatives undertaken by the Company, driven on the triple bottom line aspects.

Section A - General Information about the Company

Sr. Particulars

Company Information

No.

1.  Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company L31500MH1938PLC009887

2. Name of the Company BAJAJ ELECTRICALS LIMITED

3. Registered address 45/47, Veer Nariman Road, Mumbai 400 001

4. Website www.bajajelectricals.com

5. E-mail ID legal@bajajelectricals.com

6. Financial Year reported April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2020

7. Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in Consumer Durables and Engineering, Procurement and

Construction (EPC)

8. List three key products/ services that the Company
manufactures/ provides (as in balance sheet)

Lighting, Consumer Durables and EPC

9. Total number of locations where business activity is
undertaken by the Company

The Company operates through its:
» Registered and Corporate office situated at Mumbai;

« 18 branches (Ahmedabad, Bangalore, Bhubaneshwar,
Chandigarh, Chennai, Cochin, Delhi, Guwahati,
Hyderabad, Indore, Jaipur, Kolkata, Lucknow, Mumbai,
Nagpur, Patna, Pune & Raipur);

« 7 Depots (Dehradun, Goa, Kundli, Parwanoo, Ranchi,
Vijayawada & Zirakhpur);

» 4 Central Warehouses (Banur, Daman, Mumbai & Vapi);

+ 3 Regional Distribution Centres (Bengaluru, Delhi &
Kolkata); and

« 5Overseas Representative / Liaison Offices / Projects
(China, Dubai, Zambia, Kenya & Togo)

10. Markets served by the Company - Local/ State/
National/ International

India and 32 countries across the world.

Section B - Financial details of the Company

(Z in crore)
Sr. Particulars Amount
No.
1.  Paid-up Capital* 22.75
2. Total Turnover* 497709
3.  Total profit after taxes* (0.13)
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(T in crore)

Sr.

No.

4.

Particulars Amount

Total Spending on Corporate Social Responsibility Refer Annexure C to the Directors’ Report on CSR
(CSR) as percentage of average net profit of the Activities.
Company for last 3 financial years

List of activities in which expenditure in 4 above has been incurred:-

CSR expenditure has been incurred mainly in the activities related to (a) Ensuring Environmental Sustainability
and promoting its education; (b) Promotion of Art and Culture; (c) Promotion of Health Care; (d) Promotion of
Education; and (e) Disaster Relief.

Further details are available in Annexure C to the Directors’ Report on CSR Activities in the Annual Report 2019-20.

* As per standalone financial statements for the financial year 2019-20.

Section C - Other details

1. Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company/Companies? Yes

2. Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies participate in the BR Initiatives of the parent company? If yes,  No
then indicate the number of such subsidiary company(s).

3. Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors etc.) that the Company does business with, No

participate in the BR initiatives of the Company? If yes, then indicate the percentage of such entity/
entities? [Less than 30%, 30-60%, More than 60%].

Section D: Business Responsibility (BR) Information

1.

a.

Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR

Details of the Director(s) responsible for implementation of the Business Responsibility Policy/Policies (‘BR
Policy/Policies’)

Sr. Particulars Details
No.

1. DIN Number (if applicable)
2. Name

00089358
Shekhar Bajqj
Chairman & Managing Director

3. Designation

Details of the BR head

Shri Shekhar Bajaj, Chairman & Managing Director of the Company, oversees the BR implementation. The Company
does not have a BR head as of now.

Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy/Policies (Reply in Yes/No)

The BR Policy/Policies of the Company addresses the following 9 principles as per the NVGs, released by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs, which have been duly approved by the Board of Directors and adopted by the Company:

NVGs Principle:
P1: Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability.

P2: Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their
life cycle.

P3: Business should promote well-being of all employees.
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P4: Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who

are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalised.

PS: Business should respect and promote Human Rights.

Pé6: Business should respect, protect, and make efforts to restore the environment.

P7: Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner.

P8: Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development.

P9: Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner.

The responses regarding the above 9 principles (P1 to P9) are given below:

Sr. Questions Pl P2 P3 P4 PS P6 P7 P8 P9
No.
1. Do you have policy / policies for: Yes
2. Has the policy being formulated in consultation with relevant All the policies have been formulated in
stakeholders? consultation with the Management of the
Company and are approved by the Board.
3. Does the policy conform to any national/international All the policies are compliant with
standards? If yes, specify? respective principles of NVG guidelines.
4. Has the policy being approved by the Board? If yes, has it been All the policies have been approved by
signed by the MD / Owner / CEO / appropriate Board Director? the Board and signed by the Managing
Director
5. Does the company have a specified committee of the Board / The Board has appointed Shri Shekhar
Director / Official to oversee the implementation of the policy? Bajaj, Chairman & Managing Director, to
oversee policy implementation.
6. Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online? Copies will be made available on receipt
of written request from shareholders.
7.  Has the policy been formally communicated to all relevant The policies have been formally
internal and external stakeholders? communicated to internal stakeholders.
The external stakeholders will be
communicated in due course.
8. Does the company have in-house structure to implement the Yes.
policy / policies?
9. Does the company have a grievance redressal mechanism Yes.
related to the policy/policies to address stakeholder’s
grievances to the policy / policies?
10. Has the company carried out independent audit/evaluation of No. It will be done in due course.

the working of this policy by an internal or external agency?

Governance related to BR

Information with reference to BR framework:

1

2.

Frequency of review, by the BR committee to assess the BR performance: Annual.

Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this report? How

frequently it is published?

The Company is publishing the BR Report for the fourth time and the same is available on the website of the

Company: www.bajajelectricals.com. No sustainability report is published by the Company.
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Section E: Business Responsibility (BR)
Information

Principle 1: Businesses should conduct and
govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and
Accountability

1

Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and
corruption cover only the company? Yes/No. Does
it extend to the Group/ Joint Ventures/ Suppliers/
Contractors/ Non-Governmental Organisations
(NGOs)/Others?

The Company has defined Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics (‘Code’) for Directors as well as
all employees of the Company that covers issues,
inter-alia, related to ethics, bribery and corruption.
It also covers all dealings with suppliers, customers
and other business partners and other stakeholders.
The Code forms an integral part of the induction of
new employees.

The Company also has a Whistle Blower Policy (‘Policy’)
which enables its directors and employees to report
their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or
suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code
and provides safeguards against victimisation of
director(s)/employee(s), who avail of the mechanism.

The Company also has policies for (a) Determining
Materiality of Events and Information, to ensure
disclosure of any event or information which,
pursuant to SEBI regulations is material to determine
whether an event or information is material or
not and to ensure timely, accurate, uniform and
transparent disclosure; and (b) Prevention of Insider
Trading and protection of the unpublished price
sensitive information.

The copies of all the above-mentioned policies are
available on the website of the Company: www.
bajajelectricals.com.

How many stakeholder complaints have been
received in the past financial year and what
percentage was satisfactorily resolved by the
management? If so, provide details thereof, in about
50 words or so.

There were no cases of violation of the Company’s
Code of Conduct in financial year 2019-20. No
case was reported under the Company’s Whistle
Blower Policy during the year. The Company has
ensured prompt public disclosure of unpublished
price sensitive information in order to make such

information generally available and is in compliance
with the SEBI Insider Trading Regulations. There
was 1 shareholder compliant pending at the
start of financial year 2019-20 which was also
resolved subsequently. Further, 2 new complaints
were received from the shareholders during the
financial year ended on March 31, 2020, 1 of which
was attended and resolved during the year and
1 compliant remained pending as on March 31,
2020. The pending compliant was also resolved
subsequently, and as on the date of this Report, no
complaint is remaining unresolved.

The Company has different mechanisms for
receiving and dealing with complaints from various
stakeholders like investors, customers, employees
and suppliers, etc.

Principle 2: Businesses should provide goods and
services that are safe and contribute to sustainability
throughout their life cycle

1

List upto 3 of your products or services whose
design has incorporated social or environmental
concerns, risks and/or opportunities and for each
such product, provide the details in respect of
resource use (energy, water, raw material, etc.) per
unit of product (optional).

a) Fans

For the first time in Indiq, the Premium range of
Bajaj ceiling fans bring anti-germ and bye-bye
dust features, powered by Advanced Polymer
Technology. These fans are also stylishly
designed, with an emphasis on providing flair
and elegance to your room, along with providing
maximum functionality. Also, the Company's 5
star rated Fan named ‘Kassels Star’ runs on 50-
54 watts, as compared to a regular ceiling fan
(non-BEE star rated) which consumes 75 watts,
whereby the user of the fan will be able to save
the electricity consumption.

b) Bajaj LED lightings

Bajaj LED range lighting solution is widely known
as one of the best in the market. The Company
makes no compromise on the standards it delivers
in its products and every product is manufactured
with utmost care given to every component.

To make a general comparison, the Company'’s
7-watts LED bulb delivers as much as 600
lumens more output than a normal 60 watts GLS
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lamp. All this while saving as much as 85% more
electricity than conventional lighting systems.
Due to high standards maintained by the
Company, Bajaj LED bulbs are able to last for an
impressive lifetime of upto 25000 hours. Further,
none of Bajaj LED lights use any chemical
compounds that are potentially detrimental to
the environment. This is in contrast to the CFL
or mercury lamps. The Company’s range of LED
lightning is also safe for domestic usage as it
does not emit harmful radiation like ultraviolet
light or infrared radiation, chronic exposure,
which cause serious health complications.

Also, in view of regular electricity related issues
like power cuts or load shedding, especially in
the non-metropolitan regions, the range of Bajaj
LED lightings is developed to deal with random
voltage fluctuations or abrupt discontinuation
of electricity. Many of electric LED bulbs have
a built-in voltage surge protection mechanism,
which safeguards it against surges up to 2 kV.
Bajaj LED lights consume less energy that
besides keeping the electricity bills light on
customers’ pockets also helps reduce carbon
footprints.

c) High Mast & Transmission Line Towers

The Company has one of the best Transmission
Line Towers (TLT) manufacturing facilities at
Ranjangaon in Pune districts of Maharashtra,
which manufactures a range of towers of
110/132/220/400/765 kV single/double circuit
power transmission lines.

The manufacturing facility is 1ISO 14000 and
ISO 9001 certified and is equipped with the
most sophisticated, computer controlled state-
of-art machineries. The galvanising bath of size
13 mtr length x 1.5 mtr width and 2.5 mtr depth
is the biggest and most sophisticated plant in
India with automatic CNC control machines and
with totally enclosed radio remote controlled
galvanising plant imported from Gimeco, Italy.
The Company’s world class TLT manufacturing
facility has been approved and appreciated by
Power Grid Corporation of India and all reputed
Electricity Boards across the country.

The Company is committed to environment
sustainability and therefore it works toward reduction
and optimal utilisation of energy, water, raw material,
logistics etc. by incorporating new techniques and
innovative ideas.

4.
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Does the Company have procedures in place for
sustainable sourcing (including transportation)?
If yes, what percentage of your input was sourced
sustainably?

The Company endeavours to focus on protection
of environment, stakeholders’ interest and cost
effectiveness while procuring any raw material or
goods. The main raw materials are procured from
manufacturers / producers who are well reputed
keeping in mind the need for quality and consistency.
Adequate steps are taken for safety during
transportation and optimisation of logistics, which,
in turn, helps to mitigate the impact on climate.

Has the Company taken any steps to procure goods
and services from local & small producers, including
communities surrounding their place of work? If yes,
what steps have been taken to improve the capacity
and capability of local and small vendors?

The Company outsources the processing activity
to small vendors, which help in creation of
job opportunities in semi urban area. Also, for
procurement of goods, priority is given to nearby
small vendors. In order to improve the capacity of
the local and small producers, the Company provides
them technical assistance, which includes training for
CTQ (Critical to Quality) parameters. Frequent visits
are also arranged by the officials of the Company to
the work stations of these local and small vendors
for betterment of processes and quality of products.

Does the Company have a mechanism to recycle
products and waste? If yes, what is the percentage
of recycling of products and waste (separately as
<5%, 5-10%, >10%). Also, provide details thereof, in
about 50 words or so.

The Company is consciously trying to reduce its
carbon footprints, minimise waste generation and
manage water resources better. Effective waste
management is accomplished through a host of well-
laid-out and continuously monitored procedures.

The Company has been producing fresh casting by
melting rejected aluminium die casting products.
The Company has also been using recovery powder
for powder coating its products.

The Company endeavours to manage the environmental
impacts of organisational activities, products and
services. The percentage of recycling of products and
waste falls in the range of 5-10%. The Company has
also developed gardens at its Chakan and Ranjangaon
units to spread awareness on global warming.
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Principle 3: Businesses should promote the wellbeing of
all employees

1

Please indicate the total number of on roll employees:
3,007 (including 14 international employees)

Please indicate the total number of employees hired
on temporary / casual basis: 772

Please indicate the number of permanent women
employees: 176

Please indicate the number of permanent employees
with disabilities: Nil

Do you have an employee association that is
recognised by the management: Yes

What percentage of your permanent employees is
members of this recognised employee association?
3.09%

Please indicate the number of complaints relating to
child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual
harassment in the last financial year and pending, as
on the end of the financial year.

Sr. Category No. of No. of
No. complaints complaints
filed pending as

during the on end of

financial the financial
year year
1.  Child labour/ Nil Nil
forced labour/
involuntary labour
2. Sexual harassment 2 Nil
3. Discriminatory Nil Nil

employment

What percentage of your under mentioned
employees were given safety & skill upgradation
training in the last year?

(a) Permanent Employees: 83%

(b) Permanent Women Employees: 86%

(c) Casual/Temporary/Contractual Employees: 85%
(d) Employees with Disabilities: NA

Principle 4: Businesses should respect the interests
of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders,
especially those who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and
marginalised

1

Has the company mapped its internal and external
stakeholders? Yes/No: Yes

Out of the above, has the company identified
the disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalised
stakeholders: Yes

Are there any special initiatives taken by the
company to engage with the disadvantaged,
vulnerable and marginalised stakeholders? If so,
provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

The Company’s approach for identifying and
engaging with stakeholders includes shareholders,
customers, employees, suppliers, communities, civil
society and the government. The Company believes
that an effective stakeholder engagement process
is necessary for achieving its sustainability goal of
inclusive growth.

As a CSR project, the Company is working with the
rural, semi-urban schools which caters to students
from underprivileged communities. The project
emphasis is on to improve school infrastructure,
education, training and soft skills of the students
and teachers, provide vocational skills and livelihood,
and promote health care by continued support to
anti-tobacco programme and campaign.

The Company, being committed towards
environmental sustainability, has also undertaken
projects such as large scale tree plantation,
restoration and conservation of water bodies,
environmental education, waste management, solar
powered electrification for off grid rural schools.

Principle 5: Businesses should respect and promote
human rights

1

Does the policy of the company on human rights
cover only the company or extend to the Group /
Joint Ventures / Suppliers / Contractors /| NGOs /
Others?

The BR Policy covers the aspects on human rights
for the Company. The Company’s BR policies
covering various principles ranging from freedom
of association to freedom from harassment,
applied across operations is the testimony to its
commitment. The Company’s actions emanating
from these policies speak louder than its intentions.
Not only is the Company compliant with all the
statutory laws and regulations, but it has grievance
redressal mechanism in place for violations, if any.

How many stakeholder complaints have been
received in the past financial year and what percent
was satisfactorily resolved by the management?
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During the reporting year, there were no human
rights violation or complaints, relating either to
child, forced and involuntary labour or discriminatory
employment, received against the Company. The
details of sexual harassment complaints received
during the financial year 2019-20 have been given in
this Report at Para 7 under Principle 3.

Principle 6: Business should respect, protect, and make
efforts to restore the environment

1

Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the
Company or extends to the Group/Joint Ventures/
Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/others?

The Company's policy on environment, health
and safety encourages its employees to be more
ecologically aware and to be more cautious in
preempting potential threats by developing relevant
measures to address them.

It is the Company’s policy:

« To contribute to sustainable development
through the establishment and implementation
of environment, health and safety standards
that meet the requirement of relevant laws,
regulations and codes of practice;

«  To take into account environment, occupational
health and safety aspects in planning and
decision-making;

+ To provide appropriate training to employees
as well as service providers’ employees and
implement best practices;

+ To instil a sense of duty in every employee
including those of service providers at the
Company’s premises, towards their personal
safety, as well as that of their co-workers;

+ To ensure adoption of resource efficient and
cleaner production methods;

+ To continue to increase the contribution from
renewable energy sources towards meeting
overall energy demand.

Does the Company have strategies/initiatives to
address global environmental issues such as climate
change, global warming, etc.? Yes/No. If yes, please
give hyperlink for webpage etc.

The Company is vigilant of the emerging challenges
like climate change, global warming and investing
in measures that convert these challenges into
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opportunities. With the production of energy
efficient products, conservation measures, reducing
dependence on limited resources, the Company not
only reducing the burden on the environment, but
also on its operational costs.

The Company’s green must do’s are: Ensure statutory
compliance, optimise natural resources, effect
continuous improvement in environment management,
manufacture energy efficient products, innovate
greener technologies and processes and spread green
awareness across internal and external stakeholders.

Does the Company identify and assess potential
environmental risks? Yes/No

Yes. The Company has an environmental policy
which guides the Company’s efforts to manage its
environmental impacts and continually improve
its environmental performance. The Company'’s
Ranjangaon plant is certified to 1SO 14000
Environmental Management Systems (EMS)
standard. As a part of EMS implementation, potential
environmental risks are identified and appropriate
mitigation strategies are planned.

Does the Company have any project related to Clean
Development Mechanism? If so, provide details
thereof, in about 50 words or so. Also, if yes, whether
any environmental compliance report is filed?

The Company has invested significantly in green
energy, principal amongst which is its investment
in wind energy. The Company’s Wind Farm located
at Village Vankusawade in Satara District of
Maharashtra has generated 3070920 electrical
units during the year under review as compared to
2221110 electrical units in the previous year.

Has the company undertaken any other initiatives
on —clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable
energy, etc. Yes/No. If yes, please give hyperlink for
web page etc.

Refer point Nos. P6(2) & P6(4) above and point Nos.
A & B of Annexure H to the Directors Report.

Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the company
within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB
for the financial year being reported?

Yes.

Number of show cause/legal notices received from
CPCB/SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to
satisfaction) as on end of Financial Year:

None.
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Principle 7: Businesses, when engaged in influencing
public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible
manner

1. Isyourcompany a member of any trade and chamber
or association? If Yes, Name only those major ones
that your business deals with.

Some of the key associations of which the Company
is member are:

i. Bihar Chamber of Commerce & Industries;

ii. Chhattisgarh  State Renewable Energy
Development Agency;

iii. Common Effluent Treatment Plant (Thane-
Belapur) Association;

iv. Confederation of Indian Industry;
v. IMC Chamber of Commerce and Industry;

vi. Deccan Chamber of Commerce Industries &
Agriculture, Pune;

vii. Electric Lamp & Component Manufacturers
Association of India;

viii. Ewaysindia Inc;

ix. National Safety Council, Mumbai;

x.  Northern Mathura Industries Association;
xi. Exports Promotion Council of Indig;

xii. Ranjangaon Industries Association; and

xiii. The Associated Chamber of Commerce and
Industry of India.

2. Have you advocated/lobbied through above
associations for the advancement or improvement
of public good? If yes, specify the broad areas (drop
box: Governance and Administration, Economic
Reforms, Inclusive Development Policies, Energy
Security, Water, Food Security, Sustainable Business
Principles, Others)

The Company responsibly and actively engages
in policy advocacy. The Company contributes its
views in the setting of new industry standards
and regulatory developments, in areas such as
governance and administration, economic reforms,
inclusive development policies, etc.

Principle 8: Businesses should support inclusive growth
and equitable development

1. Does the Company have specified programmes/
initiatives/projects in pursuit of the policy related to
Principle 8? If yes, details thereof.

The Company undertakes projects in the following
areas:

+ Ensuring environmental sustainability &
promoting its education;

»  Education, employment, enhancing vocational
skills and livelihoods;

«  Promoting preventing health care; and

. Promotion of art & culture.

These projects are in accordance with section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made
thereunder.

Are the programmes/projects undertaken through
inhouse team/own foundation/external NGO/
government structures/any other organisation?

The CSR programmes and projects are undertaken by
the Company both, directly as well as in collaboration
with NGOs, educational institutions, associations,
civic bodies, etc. The Company has also formed Bajqj
Electricals Foundation to mainly further the cause of
Company’s CSR initiative. Please refer the Company’s
‘Annual CSR Report 2019-20" for details on various
community development programmes and partnerships.

Have you done any impact assessment of your
initiative?

Yes. The Company assesses the impact of the
various community interventions through its CSR
department. Also, whenever required, periodic
impact assessments are conducted through
external agencies and the outcome thereof forms
a critical input to the community development plan
preparation and implementation.

What is your Company’s direct contribution to
community development projects - Amount in INR
and the details of the projects undertaken?

Please refer the Company’'s ‘Annual CSR Report
2019-20' for details on various community development
programmes undertaken during the reporting period.

Have you taken steps to ensure that this community
development initiative is successfully adopted by
the community? Please explain in 5O words, or so.

Most of the projects involve community participation
and are designed by NGOs with due consultation
with the communities. The Company initially works
with NGO partner on pilot basis and then designs
programmes on periodical basis. The project lifecycle
tries to address all components including sustainability.
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To ensure successful implementation of community
development programmes in collaboration with
community members, the Company adopts following
approaches:

a. Rapport building with community leaders and
opinion makers;

b. Project identification and design in association
with community members and NGOs;

c. Involvement of community members in project
implementation;

d. Maintaining continuous and close interaction
with community members through field teams;

e. Impact assessment and perception survey to
measure impact of social initiatives; and

f. Necessary approvals are taken from the
community prior to the start of work.

Principle 9: Businesses should engage with and provide
value to their customers and consumers in a responsible
manner

1

What percentage of customer complaints/consumer
cases are pending as on the end of financial year?

The Company follows a robust way of tracking
customer complaints and focus has been to
make it easy for customer voices to be heard and
accordingly, a well-established escalation matrix
has been developed on the Company’s website.

Some mechanisms through which the Company
engages with customers are described in Table
below:

Engagement Details

mechanism
Customer To gauge customers’ satisfaction
meets level regarding products and services.
Customer To analyse customer feedback
satisfaction and take suitable measures for
feedback upgrading products and services.
A system of collecting feedback
through feedback cards, e-mails,
telephonic surveys, etc.
Customer 24x7 toll-free number for receiving
Care Cell and redressing customer complaints.
‘Bajaj Paddy’ To stimulate conversations with
— Virtual consumers and to help them report
assistant on a problem with an appliance,
the website request a demo or schedule an
of the appointment with a technician for
Company installation and generate consumer

complaint instantly in real time.
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Engagement Details

mechanism

Product To address customers’ concerns
check-up and complaints.

and customer

meets

The Company also keeps its eyes open to the
social media and any customer complaints on any
website is picked up immediately. All customer
complaints are attended to with utmost seriousness
and the entire organisation focusses on addressing
and reducing complaints. Of the total customer
complaints/requests, 0.36% were pending at the end
of the year.

Does the Company display product information on
the product label, over and above what is mandated
as per local laws?

The Company displays detailed information
for all its products, which also complies with all
applicable labelling codes and specifications. The
products are sold with an owner’s manual which
includes safety checking mechanisms, how to use
guidance, thus encouraging consumers to use the
Company’s products in a responsible manner. The
customers have access to the Company’s website
which provides host of information on products
and services. The customer is educated about the
features of products & services, etc. Information
is also disseminated to customers through display
boards at point of sale or service as well.

Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against
the company regarding unfair trade practices,
irresponsible advertising and/or anti-competitive
behaviour during the last five years and pending
as on end of financial year? If so, provide details
thereof, in about 50 words or so.:

None.

Did your Company carry out any consumer survey/
consumer satisfaction trends?

The Company takes consistent feedback from
customers and immediately addresses the issues,
if any. In the reporting year, the Company employee
representatives continued to seek suggestions in
person, from customers. The Company’s product
responsibility policy also directs its employees
to be receptive towards customer’s needs and
concerns.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Bajaj Electricals Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS
financial statements of Bajaj Electricals Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31
March 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including
the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash
Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone
Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, its loss
including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of ourreport. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for
the financial year ended 31 March 2020. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed
to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements.

. « Financial Statements ‘
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

A. Cost to complete estimates in the EPC business segment (Refer Note 1D(3) of the standalone Ind AS financial

statements)

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised
based on the stage of completion determined with
reference to the actual costs incurred up to reporting
date on the construction contract and the estimated
cost to complete the project. Cost estimates involves
judgments including those relating to cost escalations;
assessment of technical, political, regulatory and other
related contract risks and their financial estimation;
scope of deliveries and services required for fulfilling the
contractually defined obligations and expected delays,
if any.

Accordingly, cost to complete estimates have been
considered as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:

e Performed procedures to test the design and
operating effectiveness of controls relating to cost
estimation;

» Selected projects by applying audit sampling
techniques and examined whether the cost
estimates for these projects are in line with the
supplier quotations obtained by the management
and other internal estimates where latest supplier
quotations are not available.

+  Examined whether the future supply quantities are
in line with the contractual BOQ / survey conducted
by the management. Further, also performed audit
tests in respect of erection and other overhead
costs considered in the project.

+  Examined the contingencies identified by the
management in these projects and corroborated the
same with internal / external evidence available with
the management.

* Examined project contractual terms and customer
correspondences to determine any adjustments to
be considered to the project margins.

« Evaluated management impact on account of
COVID-19 on potential delays and cost increases.

B. Impairment allowance on trade receivables pertaining to operationally closed projects in Power Distribution
(PD) and Transmission Line Tower (TLT) business (Refer Note 1D(2) and Note 6 of the standalone Ind AS financial

statements)

As at 31 March 2020, trade receivables of 318,580 lakhs
(net of impairment allowance of 35,727 lakhs) related to
amounts collectible in respect of operationally closed
projects in the PD and TLT business.

In determining whether an impairment allowance is
required, the management takes into consideration
the ageing status and likelihood of collection based
on contractual terms, past experience, customer
correspondences etc. Based on such assessment,
specific allowances are made for receivables that are
unlikely to be collected.

Due to the involvement of high level of management
judgement and materiality of the amounts involved, we
have considered the same as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the following

«  Examined management basis for identification
of amounts which are ‘overdue’ and ‘not due’ for
operationally closed projects where the receivables
were material. For these samples, assessed whether
the rationale behind the management’s judgment in
determining the impairment provisions are adequate.

« Examined the provisions made for these receivables
by evaluatingthe overdue balancesthrough customer
correspondences, material reconciliations (where
done during the year) and post year-end payments.
Additionally, we also examined corroborative
evidence including correspondence supporting any
disputes between the parties involved.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters
C. Recoverability of advances to joint venture and recognition of liability for guarantee given for loans taken by
the joint venture (Refer Notes 5.1, 5.2, 7, 10, 14 and 40a(ix) of the standalone Ind AS financial statements)

As at 31 March 2020, the Company has the following
exposure in respect of Starlite Lighting Limited (‘SLL),
other than those provided for in the books: -

» Trade advances of 5,215 lakhs

 Financial guarantee given by the Company for loans
taken by SLL from the banks

(outstanding balance of such loans taken by SLL is
321,665 lakhs as on 31 March 2020)

SLL has been making losses over the past several years.
Management has performed a fair value assessment
by forecasting and discounting future cash flows
which involve significant estimates and judgment and
determined that: -

a) No further impairment is required to be recorded for
the year ended 31 March 2020.

b) No liability is probable on the financial guarantee
given by the Company for loans taken by SLL.

Accordingly, it has been determined as a key audit
matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:

Obtained management’s future cash flow forecasts
(including COVID 19 considerations) along with the
discounted cash flow working for SLL and tested
the mathematical accuracy of the underlying
calculations.

Compared historical actual results to those
budgeted and inquired with management on the
reasons for significant deviations, to assess the
quality of management’s forecasts.

Assessed the key assumptions used in the fair value
assessment, comprising sales growth rates with
reference to the contractual arrangements with
SLL, gross profit margin, net profit margin, perpetual
growth rate and discount rates.

Examined the valuation report obtained by the
management from external valuation specialists.
Also, examined the independence and objectivity of
the specialists involved.

Assessed the headroom calculation by reviewing
the sensitivity analysis of key assumptions used,
including management assessment on the impact
on change in assumptions.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
business responsibility report, corporate governance
report and management discussion and analysis,
but does not include the standalone Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon, which we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and
the message from chairman and directors’ report which
is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
such other information is materially inconsistent with
the standalone Ind AS financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section
133 ofthe Actread withthe Companies(Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;

. « Financial Statements ‘

selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Independent Auditor’s Report ‘

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

«  Conclude onthe appropriateness of management’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure
and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the standalone Ind
AS financial statements for the financial year ended 31
March 2020 and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
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law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the

matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we

determine that a matter should not be communicated in

our report because the adverse consequences of doing

so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report
that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of
those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit
and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow
Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind
AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors as on 31 March 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none
of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2020 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these standalone
Ind AS financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for
the year ended 31 March 2020 has been paid
| provided by the Company to its directors in
accordance with the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position
inits standalone Ind AS financial statements
— Refer Note 40 to the standalone Ind AS
financial statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as
required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material

foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term

contracts including derivative contracts;

ii. There has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company.

For SRBC &COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Vikram Mehta

Partner

Membership Number: 105938
UDIN: 20105938AAAACQ6983
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 19 June 2020
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An nexure 1 referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date

O]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) All fixed assets have not been physically verified
by the management during the year but there is
a regular programme of verification which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets.
No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations
given by the management, the title deeds of
immovable properties included in property, plant
and equipment/fixed assets are held in the
name of the Company.

The management has conducted physical
verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such physical verification. Inventories
lying with third parties have been confirmed by them
as at year end and no material discrepancies were
noticed in respect of such confirmations.

According to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Act.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and
(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company
and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, provisions of section 185
and 186 of the Act in respect of loans to directors
including entities in which they are interested and in
respect of loans and advances given, investments
made and, guarantees, and securities given have
been complied with by the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within
the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the

(vi)

Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014
(as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account
maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules made by the Central Government for the
maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013, related to the manufacture
its products, and are of the opinion that prima facie,
the specified accounts and records have been made
and maintained. We have not, however, made a
detailed examination of the same.

(vii) (@) The Company is generally regular in depositing

with  appropriate  authorities  undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise,
value added tax, goods and service tax, cess
and other statutory dues applicable to it. The
payment of Goods and Services Tax amounting
to 64244 |lakhs for the month of March 2020
has been paid subsequent to due date without
any interest in accordance to Notification
No0s.31/2020 and 32/2020 dated 03.04.2020
issued by the Govt. of Indiq, Ministry of Revenue
(Department of Revenue), Central Board of
Indirect Taxes and Customs.

(b) According to the information and explanations
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax,
duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax,
goods and service tax, cess and other statutory
dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a
period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(c) According to the records of the Company, the
dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty
of custom, duty of excise, value added tax and
cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:
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R in Lakhs)
Matter Year Forum where dispute is pending
Dy. Commissioner Appellate/ Tribunal High Total
| Commissioner / Revision court
Jt. Commissioner
Appeals
Entry Tax 2010-13 115 - - - 115
2015-16 1.70 - - - 1.70
Sales tax 2005-07 37.80 - 8.39 - 4619
2007-10 2708 - 281 - 29.89
2010-12 19.60 - - 6.40 26.00
2012-14 473.25 - 111481 4196 1,63002
2014-15 85.33 350 19.38 - 10821
2015-17 7271.83 8398 10.79 - 7366.60
Service Tax 2005-10 13914 - - - 13914
Customs 2016-17 - - 15.49 - 1549
Grand total 8,056.88 8748 1,171.67 48.36 9,364.39

(viii)In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans
or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or dues
to debenture holders. The Company did not have any
outstanding loans or borrowing dues to government
during the year.

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given by the management, the
Company has utilised the monies raised by way of
further public offer (Rights Issue) for the purposes
for which they were raised. The Company has not
raised any money way of debt instruments and term
loans.

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the
purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financialstatements andaccordingtotheinformation
and explanations given by the management, we

report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud /
material fraud on the Company by the officers and
employees of the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given
by the management, the managerial remuneration
has been paid / provided in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi Company.
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order
are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given
by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of
the Act where applicable and the details have been
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disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given
to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under
review and hence, reporting requirements under
clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company and,
not commented upon.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given
by the management, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him as referred to in section
192 of the Act.

Independent Auditor’s Report ‘

(xvi)According to the information and explanations given
to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the
Company.

ForSRBC &COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Registration number: 324982E/E300003

per Vikram Mehta

Partner

Membership Number: 105938
UDIN: 20105938AAAACQ6983
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 19 June 2020
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An nexure 2 referred to in Paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of Bajaj Electricals Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal
Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to the Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and,
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over

financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial
control over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and
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that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements, including the possibility
of collusion orimproper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone financial statements
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting with reference
to these standalone financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Independent Auditor’s Report ‘

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements were operating effectively as
at 31 March 2020, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForSRBC &COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Registration number: 324982E/E300003

per Vikram Mehta

Partner

Membership No.: 105938

UDIN: 20105938AAAACQ6983
Place: Mumbai

Date: 19 June 2020
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020

(& in Lakhs)
Particulars Notes As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 2 28,088.11 31,801.26
Capital work in progress 2 936.70 69319
Right-of-use assets 3 12,047.28 -
Intangible assets 4 285.28 42742
Intangible assets under development 4 156.70 23931
Investments in subsidiary, associate and joint venture 51 399985 399985
Fi ial Assets
i) Investments 52 1,286.23 1,074.33
ii)  Trade receivables 6 48,754.67 5196254
iii) Loans 7 4,186.80 1,606.76
iv) Other financial assets 8 2,684.46 2,326.25
Deferred tax assets (net) 9 4,530.57 6,376.66
Non-current tax assets (net) 9,738.85 5,349.84
Other non-current assets 10 10,340.99 12,146.49
Total Non-Current Assets 127,036.49 118,003.90
Current Assets
Inventories 11 6907713 82,102.84
Fi ial Assets
i) Trade receivables 6 204,898.71 262,294.08
ii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 10,160.64 111974
iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 12 30755 482.52
iv) Loans 7 257 202
v)  Other current financial assets 13 479.55 258.88
Other current assets 14 33,04890 32,559.25
Contract assets 41 10,592.55 1898743
Assets classified as held for sale 15 250.19 21941
Total Current Assets 328,817.79 398,026.17
Total Assets 455,854.28 516,030.07
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 16 227535 2,04799
Other Equity 17 135,65095 105,721.61
Share application money pending allotment 0.02 7.84
Total Equity 137,926.32 107,777.44
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
i)  Borrowings 18 799145 21,262.12
ii) Lease liabilities 3 731657 -
iii)  Other financial liabilities 19 159.61 65898
Provisions 20 2,23843 1,644.33
Employee benefit obligations 21 714107 6,133.02
Total Non-Current Liabilities 24,847.13 29,698.45
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
i)  Borrowings 18 6575717 136,491.98
ii) Lease liabilities 3 254631 -
iii) Trade payables 22
Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises & small enterprises 742099 2,241.67
Total Outstanding dues of other than micro enterprises & small 82,608.59 106,971.37
enterprises
iv) Other current financial liabilities 19 63,312.04 38,381.09
Provisions 20 8,734.79 896378
Employee benefit obligations 21 577751 6,06991
Current tax liabilities (net) 96247 96256
Contract liabilities 41 37,046.31 63,123.25
Other current liabilities 23 18,914.65 15,348.57
Total Current Liabilities 293,080.83 378,554.18
Total Liabilities 31792796 408,252.63
Total Equity & Liabilities 455,854.28 516,030.07
Si y of significant accounting policies 1B

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report attached of even date

ForSRBC & COLLP
ICAI Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003
Chartered Accountants

per Vikram Mehta Ajay Nagle

Partner Executive Vice President
Membership No.105938 Legal & Company Secretary
Mumbai, June 19, 2020 Mumbai, June 19, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of directors

Shekhar Bajaj
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00089358

Anuj Poddar
Executive Director
DIN: 01908009

Anant Purandare

Shailesh Haribhakti

President & Chairman - Audit Committee

Chief Financial Officer DIN: 00007347
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Balance Sheet & Statement of Profit and Loss |

statement Of PrOfit a nd LOSS for the year ended 31st March 2020

®in Lakhs)
Particulars Notes 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Income:
Revenue from operations 24 497,708.58 66731419
Other income 25 5,263.32 6,542.85
Total Income 502,971.90 673,857.04
Expenses:
Cost of raw materials consumed 26 30,512.34 46,921.03
Purchases of traded goods 293,82896 446,134.80
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, finished goods, traded 26 8,79748 (21,670.75)
goods
Erection & subcontracting expenses 27 31,063.45 44,375.75
Employee benefit expenses 28 38,340.32 35,665.73
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 6,801.17 3,846.31
Other expenses 30 74,473.60 81,05277
Finance cost 31 16,915.53 11,587.66
Total Expenses 500,732.85 647913.30
Profit before tax 2,239.05 25943.74
Income tax expense:
Current tax 32 11900 8,030.00
Deferred tax 9 213321 1,207.06
Total tax expenses 2,252.21 9,237.06
(Loss) / profit for the year (13.16) 16,706.68
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods
Remeasurement (gains)/losses on defined benefit plans 21 114081 65975
Tax impacts on above 9 (28712) (230.54)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 853.69 429.21
Total Comprehensive Income, net of tax (866.85) 16,277.47
Earnings per equity share (face value per share 32) 39
Basic (0.01) 1617
Diluted (0.01) 1613
Summary of significant accounting policies 1B

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report attached of even date

ForSRBC &COLLP
ICAI Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003

Chartered Accountants
per Vikram Mehta Ajay Nagle
Partner Executive Vice President

Membership No.105938
Mumbai, June 19, 2020

Legal & Company Secretary
Mumbai, June 19, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of directors

Shekhar Bajaj
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00089358

Anuj Poddar
DIN: 01908009

Anant Purandare

Executive Director

Shailesh Haribhakti

President & Chairman - Audit Committee

Chief Financial Officer DIN: 00007347
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COSh FIOW statement for the year ended 31st March 2020

(R in Lakhs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before income tax 2,239.05 25943.74
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 6,801.17 3,846.31
Employee share-based payment expense 521.24 389.30
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (27.86) 31.37
Measurement of financial assets held at fair value through Profit or Loss 3813 28.54
Measurement of financial assets and liabilities held at amortised cost (462.51) (406.00)
Measurement of provisions at fair value (30951) (162.65)
Income from financial guarantee contracts = (676.01)
Impairment of property, plant & equipment (24.61) 729.36
Finance costs 16,915.53 11,587.66
Interest income (1,660.55) (1,22519)
Impairment allowance for doubtful debts & advances (net of write back) (1,990.70) (2,405.50)
Bad debts and other irrecoverable debit balances written off 348.61 1,606.63
22,38799 39,286.56
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (current & non-current) 62,564.65 (111,757.14)
(Increase)/decrease in financial and other assets (current & non- 10,881.85 (21,654.62)
current)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 13,025.70 (24,186.78)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, provisions, employee benefit (41,611.03) 72,00219
obligations, other financial liabilities and other liabilities (current & non-
current)
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 67,249.16 (46,309.79)
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) (4,508.01) (13,882.06)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities 62,741.15 (60,191.85)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including capital work in (2921.22) (5460.34)
progress and capital advances
Purchase of intangible assets including intangible assets under (13.82) (24519)
development
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment including 96.87 98.69
advances received
Loans and advances (given) / repaid by subsidiary, associate and joint (2,232.86) (3,442.21)
venture (net)
Purchase of investments (161.31) (3,57297)
(Increase)/decrease in bank deposits 116.38 (81.00)
Interest received 49408 1691
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from investing activities (4,621.88) (12,685.11)

« Financial Statements ‘

Cash Flow Statement ‘

COSh Flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2020

(R in Lakhs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issues of shares (net of issue expenses) 34,816.83 945.62
Proceeds from borrowings 29,518.69 101,966.09
Repayment of borrowings (92,628.59) (16,003.31)
Payment of lease liabilities (2,206.65) -
Interest paid (14,256.31) (10,789.60)
Dividends paid to Company'’s shareholders (3,585.26) (3,56906)
Tax on dividend paid (737.08) (735.01)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from financing activities (49,078.37) 71,814.73
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 9,040.90 (1,062.23)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 111974 2,18197
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 10,160.64 1,119.74
Change in liability arising from financing activities (R in Lakhs)
Year Ended
31st March 2020
Borrowings as on the beginning of the year 158,220.52
Proceeds from borrowings * 29518.69
Repayment of borrowings (92,628.59)
Foreign exchange movement 604.60
Borrowings as on the end of the year 95,715.22

* Proceeds from borrowings includes 36,500.00 lakhs towards non-current borrowings.

Summary of significant accounting policies (Note 1B)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report attached of even date

ForSRBC &COLLP
ICAI Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003
Chartered Accountants

per Vikram Mehta Ajay Nagle

Partner Executive Vice President
Membership No.105938 Legal & Company Secretary
Mumbai, June 19, 2020 Mumbai, June 19, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of directors

Shekhar Ba,

jaj

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00089

Anant Purai
President &
Chief Finan:

358

ndare

cial Officer

Anuj Poddar
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Shailesh Haribhakti
Chairman - Audit Committee
DIN: 00007347
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NOtes to FinGHCial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

Note:1

1A GENERAL INFORMATION.

1B

Bajaj Electricals Limited (‘the Company’) is an
existing public limited company incorporated on
14th July 1938 under the provisions of the Indian
Companies Act, 1913 and deemed to exist within
the purview of the Companies Act, 2013, having
its registered office at 45/47, Veer Nariman Road,
Mumbai-400 001. The Company deals in Consumer
Segments (CP) (which includes appliances, fan and
consumer lighting products). The Company also
deals in Engineering and projects (EPC) (which
includes supply and erection of transmission line
towers, high masts, poles, special projects including
rural electrification projects and luminaires). The
equity shares of the Company are listed on BSE
Limited (“BSE”) and National Stock Exchange of
India Limited (“NSE”). The financial statements are

presented in Indian Rupee (INR).

The financial statements are approved for issue by
the Company’s Board of Directors on June 19, 2020.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented

1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and other
relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements are prepared under
the historical cost convention except for the
following:

. certain financial assets and liabilities
(including derivative instruments) that are
measured at fair value;

. assets held for sale which are measured at
lower of carrying value and fair value less
cost to sell;

« defined benefit plans where plan assets are
measured at fair value; and

« share-based payments at fair value as
on the grant date of options given to
employees.

Estimates, judgements and assumptions
used in the preparation of the financial
statements and disclosures are based upon
management’s evaluation of the relevant
facts and circumstances as of the date of the
financial statements, which may differ from the
actual results at a subsequent date. The critical
estimates, judgements and assumptions are
presented in Note no. 1D.

The Company presents assets and liabilities
in the balance sheet based on current / non-
current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

« Expected to be redlised or intended to be
sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

+ Expected to be readlised within twelve
months after the reporting period, or

+ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted
from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

« It is expected to be settled in normal
operating cycle

. It is due to be settled within twelve months
after the reporting period, or

»  There is no unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other liabilities as classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their
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realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The
Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Revenue from contract with customers:

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of the goods or
services are transferred to the customer at
an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. The
Company has generally concluded that it is the
principal in its revenue arrangements, because
it typically controls the goods or services before
transferring them to the customer.

The recognition criteria for sale of products and
construction contracts is described below

(1) Sale of products

Revenue from sale of products is recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset
is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the product to the customer’s
destination.The Company considers whether
there are other promises in the contract
that are separate performance obligations
to which a portion of the transaction price
needs to be allocated (e.g. customer loyalty
points and warranties). In determining the
transaction price for the sale of product, the
Company considers the effects of variable
consideration, the existence of significant
financing components, and consideration
payable to the customer (if any).

The Company provides volume rebates
to certain customers once the quantity
of products purchased during the period
exceeds athreshold specifiedinthe contract.
Rebates are offset against amounts
payable by the customer. To estimate the
variable consideration for the expected
future rebates, the Company applies the
most likely amount method. The selected
method that best predicts the amount of
variable consideration is primarily driven by
the number of volume thresholds contained
in the contract.
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Generally, the Company receives short-
term advances from its customers. Using
the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, the
Company does not adjust the promised
amount of consideration for the effects
of a significant financing component if it
expects, at contract inception, that the
period between the transfer of the promised
good or service to the customer and when
the customer pays for that good or service
will be one year or less.

The Company has a loyalty points program,
“Retailer Bonding Program”, which allows
customers to accumulate points that can
be redeemed for free products. The loyalty
points give rise to a separate performance
obligation as they provide a material right to
the customer. A portion of the transaction
priceisallocatedtotheloyalty points awarded
to customers based on relative stand-alone
selling price and recognised as deferred
revenue until the points are redeemed.
Revenue is recognised upon redemption of
products by the customer. When estimating
the stand-alone selling price of the loyalty
points, the Company considers the likelihood
that the customer will redeem the points.
The Company updates its estimates of the
points that will be redeemed on a quarterly
basis and any adjustments to the deferred
revenue are charged against revenue.

The Company provides a warranty beyond
fixing defects that existed at the time of
sale. These service-type warranties are
bundled together with the sale of products.
Contracts for bundled sales of products
and a service-type warranty comprise
two performance obligations because the
product and service-type warranty are
both sold on a stand-alone basis and are
distinct within the context of contract.
Using the relative stand-alone selling price
method, a portion of the transaction price is
allocated to the service-type warranty and
recognised as deferred revenue. Revenue for
service-type warranties is recognised over
the period in which the service is provided
based on the time elapsed.
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(2) Construction contracts

Performance obligationincase of construction
contracts is satisfied over a period of time,
as the Company creates an asset that the
customer control and the Company has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date if it meets the agreed
specifications. Revenue from construction
contracts is recognised based on the stage
of completion determined with reference
to the actual costs incurred up to reporting
date on the construction contract and the
estimated cost to complete the project. Cost
estimates involves judgments including those
relating to cost escalations; assessment
of technical, political, regulatory and other
related contract risks and their financial
estimation; scope of deliveries and services
required for fulfilling the contractually defined
obligations and expected delays, if any.
Provision for foreseeable losses/ construction
contingencies on said contracts is made
based on technical assessments of costs
to be incurred and revenue to be accounted
for. The Company pays insurance and bank
guarantee charges for each contract that
they obtain for supply of materials and
erection services. The Company amortises
the same over the period of the contract. The
Company has long-term receivables from
customers. The transaction price for such
contracts is discounted, using the rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Company and its
customers at contract inception, to take
into consideration the significant financing
component

(3) Contract balances
Contract asset

A contract asset is the right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services transferred
to the customer. If the Company performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or
before payment is due, a contract asset is
recognised for the earned consideration
that is conditional.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s
right to an amount of consideration that
is unconditional (i.e, only the passage of
time is required before payment of the
consideration is due).

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer
for which the Company has received
consideration (oranamount of consideration
is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays consideration before the Company
transfers goods or services to the customer,
a contract liability is recognised when the
payment is made or the payment is due
(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract.

Leases:

Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases including
evaluating the substance of transactions
involving the legal form of a Lease. The standard
sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to account for all
leases under a single on-balance sheet model.

LessoraccountingunderIind AS116is substantially
unchanged under Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue
to classify leases as either operating or finance
leases using similar principles as in Ind AS 17.
Therefore, Ind AS 116 did not have an impact for
leases where the Company is the lessor.

As a lessee:
Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at
the commencement date of the lease (ie, the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costsincurred, and lease

payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Unless
the Company is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the leased asset at the end of the
lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to
impairment test.

The Company determines the lease term as the
non-cancellable term of the lease, together with
any periods covered by an option to extend the
lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or
any periods covered by an option to terminate the
lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised

The Company has determined leasehold lands
also as, right of use assets and hence the same
has been classified from property, plant and
equipment to right of use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the
Company recognises lease liabilities measured
at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend
on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to
be paid under residual value guarantees. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as expense in
the period on which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Company uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
(i.e.,, those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also

applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases that are considered of low
value (i.e, below %500,000). Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Transition to Ind AS 116

The Company has adopted modified
retrospective approach as per para C8 (c)(ii)
of IND AS 116 - Leases, effective from annual
reporting period beginning 1st April, 2019. This
has resulted in recognising a right of use asset
of ?10,22016 lakhs (adjusted by the prepaid
lease rent of R209.24 lakhs) and lease liability of
37,354.86 lakhs, as at 1st April, 2019.

As a lessor:

The Company has leased certain tangible
assets and such leases where the Company has
not substantially transferred all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as operating
leases. Lease income on such operating leases
are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss
on a straight line basis over the lease term which
is representative of the time pattern in which
benefit derived from the use of the leased asset
is diminished. Initial direct costs are recognised
as an expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the period in which are they are incurred.

For the year ended March 31, 2019, the lease
accounting has been done as per Ind AS 17 as
stated below:

The determination of whether an arrangement is
(or contains) a lease is based on the substance
of the arrangement at the inception of the
lease. The arrangement is (or contains) a lease
if fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset
or assets, even if that right is not explicitly
specified in an arrangement.

As a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that
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1)

(2)

A)

transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership to the Company
are classified as a finance lease. Payments
made under operating leases are charged to
the Statement of Profit & Loss on a straight line
basis over the period of the lease.

As a lessor

The Company has leased certain tangible
assets and such leases where the Company has
not substantially transferred all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as operating
leases. Lease income on such operating leases
are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss
on a straight line basis over the lease term which
is representative of the time pattern in which
benefit derived from the use of the leased asset
is diminished. Initial direct costs are recognised
as an expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the period in which are they are incurred.

Other income:

Interest income on financial asset is recognised
using the effective interest rate method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset
to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Company estimates the expected cash
flows by considering all the contractual terms of
the financial instruments.

Others:

The Company recognises other income (including
rent, income from sale of power generated,
income from scrap sales, income from claims
received, etc.) on accrual basis. However, where
the ultimate collection of the same is uncertain,
revenue recognition is postponed to the extent
of uncertainty.

Property, plant and equipment :
Asset class:

i) Freehold land is carried at historical cost
including expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the land.

B)

i)

iii)

iv)

v)

All other items of property, plant and
equipment (including capital work in
progress) are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Capital goods manufactured by the
Company for its own use are carried at
their cost of production (including duties
and other levies, if any) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of
any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the statement of profit or loss during the
year in which they are incurred.

Losses arising from the retirement of,
and gains or losses arising from disposal
of property, plant and equipments which
are carried at cost are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation:

i)

i)

iii)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their cost, net of
their residual values, over their estimated
useful lives. Premium of Leasehold land and
leasehold improvements cost are amortised
over the primary period of lease.

100% depreciation is provided in the month
of addition for temporary structure cost at
project site

Where a significant component (in terms of
cost) of an asset has an economic useful
life different than that of it's corresponding
asset, the component is depreciated over
it's estimated useful life.
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iv) The Company, based on internal technical
assessments and management estimates,
depreciates certain items of property, plant
& equipment over the estimated useful
lives and considering residual value which
are different from the one prescribed in
Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. The
management believes that these estimated
useful lives and residual values are realistic
and reflect fair approximation of the period
over which the assets are likely to be used.

v) Useful life of asset is as given below:

Asset block Useful Lives (in

years)

Leasehold Land Over the period

of the lease

Building - Office 5to 70
Building - Factory 3to 30
Ownership Premises 60
Plant & Machinery 1to 22
Furniture & Fixtures 1to 15
Electric Installations 1to 10
Office Equipment 2to 10
Vehicles 8 to 10
Dies & Jigs 1t0 10
Leasehold Improvements 5to 10
Roads & Borewell 3to21
IT hardware 2to 10
Laboratory equipments 1to 10

vi) The residual values, useful lives and
methods of depreciation of property,
plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

Intangible assets:

An intangible asset shall be recognised if, and
only if:

(a) it is probable that the expected future
economic benefits that are attributable to
the asset will flow to the Company; and

(b) the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Notes to Financial Stotements‘
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Intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment.
Intangible assets are amortised over their
respective individual estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis, from the date that they are
available for use.

Asset class & depreciation:

Computer softwares / licenses are carried at
historical cost. They have an expected finite
useful life of 3 years and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Computer licenses which are purchased
on annual subscription basis are expensed off in
the year of purchase.

Trademarks are carried at historical cost. They
have an registered finite useful life of 10 years
and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at
each balance sheet date if there is any indication
of impairment based on internal/external factors.
An asset is impaired when the carrying amount
of the asset exceeds the recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).
Impairment loss is charged to the Statement of
Profit & Loss Account in the year in which an
asset is identified as impaired. An impairment
loss recognised in the prior accounting periods is
reversed if there has been change in the estimates
used to determine the assets recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised

Financial instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives
rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.
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I. Financial Assets

A)

B)

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at
fair value plus, in the case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement,
financial assets are classified in four
categories:

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the
amortised cost if both the following
conditions are met:

+  The asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold
assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

+ Contractual terms of the asset
give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to
the Company. After initial measurement,
such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in otherincome in
the statement of profit and loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in
the profit or loss. This category generally
applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instruments at fair value through

other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at
the FVTOCI if both of the following
criteria are met:

NOtes to FinGHCial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

«  The objective of the business model
is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets, and

+  The asset’s contractual cash flows
represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the
FVTOCI category are measured initially
as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. Fair value movements are
recognised in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). On derecognition of the
asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from
the equity to statement of profit and
loss. Interest earned whilst holding
FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as
interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instruments at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt
instruments. Any debt instrument,
which does not meet the criteria for
categorisation as at amortised cost or
as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect
to designate a debt instrument, which
otherwise meets amortised cost or
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However,
such election is allowed only if doing so
reduces or eliminates a measurement
or recognition inconsistency (referred
to as ‘accounting mismatch’). Debt
instruments included within the FVTPL
category are measured at fair value
with all changes recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments measured at fair

value through other comprehensive

income (FVTOCI)

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS
109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading and
contingent consideration recognised by
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C)

an acquirer in a business combination to
which Ind AS103 applies are classified as
at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments,
the Company may make an irrevocable
electionto present in other comprehensive
income subsequent changes in the fair
value. The Company makes such election
on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an
equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then
all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognised
in the OCI. There is no recycling of the
amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale
of investment. However, the Company
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity.

Equity instruments included within the
FVTPL category are measured at fair
value with all changes recognised in the
P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable,
a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from
the Company'’s balance sheet) when:

« The rights to receive cash flows
from the asset have expired, or

+ The Company has transferred
its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either
(a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

A)

D)

When the Company has transferred
its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass
through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the
risks and rewards of ownership. When
it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of
the asset, the Company continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Company’'s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company
also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes
the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could
be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI
debt instruments. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase
in credit risk. For trade receivables only,
the Company applies the simplified
approach permitted by Ind AS 109
Financial Instruments, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial

recognition, as financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss, loans and

borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
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B)

designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially
at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification, as described
below:

. Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss include financial liabilities
held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as
held for trading if they are incurred
for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Company that are not
designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS
109. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognised
in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss are designated as such at
the initial date of recognition, and only if
the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For
liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value
gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognised in OCI.
These gains/ loss are not subsequently
transferred to P&L. However, the Company
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All other changes in fair
value of such liability are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and Borrowings

This is the category most relevant to
the Company. After initial recognition,
interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are  subsequently  measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit and
loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued
by the Company are those contracts
that require a payment to be made
to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognised initially as
a liability at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is
measured at the higher of the amount
of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS
109 and the amount recognised less
cumulative amortisation.

The fair value of financial guarantees is
determined as the present value of the
difference in net cash flows between
the contractual payments under the
debt instrument and the contractual
payments that would be required
without the guarantee, or the estimated
amount that would be payable to a third
party for assuming the obligations.
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C) De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

lll. Reclassification of financial assets / liabilities

After initial recognition, no reclassification
is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For
financial assets which are debt instruments,
a reclassification is made only if there is a
change in the business model for managing
those assets. Changes to the business
model are expected to be infrequent. The
Company’s senior management determines
change in the business model as a result
of external or internal changes which are
significant to the Company’s operations.

IV. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet where there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of Company or the
counterparty.

V. Derivatives and hedging activities

The company enters derivatives like forwards
contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value on the date a derivative contract is
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entered into and are subsequently marked to
market at the end of each reporting period
with profit/loss being recognised in statement
of profit and loss. Further, the Company
has also entered into put and call options
in respect of its investment in its subsidiary
which are initially recognised at fair value with
subsequent changes in fair value recognised
in the statement of profit and loss. Derivative
assets/liabilities are classified under “other
financial assets/other financial liabilities”.
Profits and losses arising from cancellation of
contracts are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

Fair value measurements:

The Company measures financial instruments at
fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either:

« In the principal market for the asset or
liability, or

» In the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Company. The fair
value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial
asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that
are appropriate in the circumstances and for
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which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for
which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market
prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

10.

maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Inventories:

Raw materials and stores, work in progress,
traded and finished goods are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
raw materials and traded goods comprises cost
of purchases. Cost of work-in-progress and
finished goods comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of variable
and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being
allocated on the basis of normal operating
capacity. Cost of inventories also include all
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Costs

12.

Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax
rate for the jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unabsorbed depreciation.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss except to the
extent it relates to items recognised directly
in equity or other comprehensive income, in
which case it is recognised in equity or other
comprehensive income.

A. Current income tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences and unused
tax losses only if it is probable that future
taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised
outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

¢ Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which are assigned to individual items of inventory on The current income tax charge is calculated 13. Borrowing costs
: ‘s siqnifi on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
the lowest level input that is significant to the weighted average basis. Net realisable value . . .
: : substantively enacted at the end of the General and specific borrowing costs that
the fair value measurement is unobservable is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of reporting period. The Company establishes are directly attributable to the acquisition,
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in ot d th imoted R provisions, wherever appropriate, on the construction or production of a qualifying asset
the financial statements on a recurring basis, :omps I:: cml ¢ estimated costs necessary basis of amounts expected to be paid to the are capitalised during the period of time that
the Company determines whether transfers © Make the saie. tax authorities. is required to complete and prepare the asset
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy 11. Foreign currency transactions: S for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets
by re-assessing categorisation (based on the Current tax .ossets and liabilities cre.offset are assets that necessarily take a substantial
lowest level input that is significant to the fair ltems included in the financial statements are when there is a legally enforcec?ble right to period of time to get ready for their intended use
value measurement as a whole) at the end measured using the currency of the primary set ?'Fflc':t{rrent tax assets against current or sale. Borrowing costs also include exchange
of each reporting period. External valuers are economic environment in which the Company tax liabilities. difference arising from foreign currency
involved for valuation of significant assets, such operates (‘the functional currency’). The B. Deferred tax borrowings to the extent they are regarded as
as properties and unquoted financial assets. financial statements are presented in Indian ) an adjustment to interest costs. Investment
_ ) Rupee (INR), which is the Company’s functional Deferred tax is provided using the liability income earned on the temporary investment of
For the purpose of fcl.r value disclosures, the and presentation currency. method, on temporary differences arising specific borrowings pending their expenditure
Comp.ch' hos determined .closses of assets o o ) between the tax bases of assets and on qualifying assets is deducted from the
and |I0bl|'ltl'eS on t'he basis of the r\ct.u.re, a) On |n|t|q| recognition, all foreign curr'ency liabilities and their carrying amounts in the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other
characteristics and risks ?f the osse.t or liability transactions are recorded at the functional financial statements. Deferred income tax is borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
cmd| ‘Fhedle\gel of the fair value hierarchy as :urrenc?c/. sy:.ott rot?f. ot.f the do'tte. the determined using tax rates (and laws) that which they are incurred.
explained above. ransaction first qualifies for recognition. have been enacted or substantially enacted N . o .
by th d of th » iod and 14. Provisions, contingentliabilities and contingent
This note summarises accounting policy for fair b) Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign Yy the end of the reporting period and are assets
value. Other fair value related disclosures are currency outstanding at the close of expected to apply when the related deferred .
income tax asset is realised or the deferred A. Provisions

given in the relevant notes.
Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance
sheet and for the purpose of the statement of
cash flows, include cash on hand, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original

reporting date are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange
at the reporting date.

c) Exchange differences arising on settlement
of translation of monetary items are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

income tax liability is settled.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect changes in probability
that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

A provision is recognised if

« the Company has present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of an
event in the past;

« it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and
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« the amount of the obligation has been
reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the management’s
best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the obligation at the end of the reporting
period. If the effect of the time value of money
is material, provisions are discounted to reflect
its present value using a current pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provision for warranty related costs are
recognised when the product is sold to the
customer. Initial recognition is based on
historical experience. The estimate of warranty
related costs is revised annually.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there
is a possible obligation arising from past events,
the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company or a present obligation
that arises from past events where it is either
not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent assets

A contingent asset is a possible asset that
arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the entity.

A contingent asset is not recognised but
disclosed where an inflow of economic benefit is
probable.

Employee benefits
Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits that are expected to be settled

wholly within 12 months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related
service are recognised in the same period in
which the employees renders the related service
and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when the liabilities are settled.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave
are not expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service. They
are therefore measured as the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect
of services provided by employees up to the end
of the reporting period using the projected unit
credit method. The benefits are discounted using
the market yields at the end of the reporting
period that have terms approximating to the
terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements
as a result of experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

Post-employment obligations

The company operates the following post-
employment schemes

(a) defined benefit plans - gratuity and obligation
towards shortfall of Provident Fund Trusts

(b) defined contribution plans - Provident fund
(RPFC Contributions), superannuation and
pension

Defined benefit plans:

The liability or asset recognised in the balance
sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation
at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets excluding non-qualifying
asset (reimbursement right). The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows by reference to market yields at
the end of the reporting period on government
bonds that have terms approximating to the

. « Financial Statements ‘

terms of the related obligation. The net interest
cost is calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets.
This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the statement of profit and loss.
Remeasurement gains and losses arising
from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in
retained earnings in the statement of changes
in equity and in the balance sheet.

Insurance policy held by the company from
insurers who are related parties are not
qualifying insurance policies and hence the right
to reimbursement is recognised as a separate
assets under other non-current and/or current
assets as the case may be.

Changes in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation resulting from  plan
amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans :

In respect of certain employees, the Company
pays provident fund contributions to publicly
administered provident funds as per local
regulations. The Company has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. Such contributions are accounted for
as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Defined contribution to superannuation fund
is being made to Life Insurance Corporation of
India (LIC) as per the scheme of the Company.
Defined contribution to Employees Pension
Scheme 1995 is made to Government Provident
Fund Authority whereas the contributions for
National Pension Scheme is made to Stock
Holding Corporation of India Limited

Employee stock option scheme

The Company operates a number of equity
settled, employee share based compensation
plans, under which the Company receives
services from employees as consideration for
equity shares of the Company.

16.
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The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the options is
determined by reference to the fair value of the
options as at the Grant Date and is recognised
as an ‘employee benefits expense’ with a
corresponding increase in equity. The total
expense is recognised over the vesting period
which is the period over which the applicable
vesting condition is to be satisfied. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted
excluding the impact of any service vesting
conditions.

At the end of each year, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the service vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

If at any point of time after the vesting of the
share options, the right to the same expires
(either by virtue of lapse of the exercise period
or the employee leaving the Company), the fair
value of the options accruing in favour of the
said employee are written back to the General
Reserve in the reporting period in which the right
expires.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the
Company that engages in business activities
from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses, whose operating results are regularly
reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision
maker to make decisions about resources to
be allocated to the segment and assess its
performance and for which discrete financial
information is available.

Operating segments often exhibit similar long-
term financial performance if they have similar
economic characteristics. Two or more operating
segments are aggregated by the Company
into a single operating segment if aggregation
is consistent with the core principle of Ind
AS 108, the segments have similar economic
characteristics, and the segments are similar in
aspects as defined by Ind AS.



‘ 81t Annual Report 2019-20

‘Bajaj Electricals Limited (BEL)

NOtes to FinGHCial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

17.

18.

19.

The Company reports separately, information
about an operating segment that meets any
of quantitative thresholds as defined by Ind
AS. Operating segments that do not meet any
of the quantitative thresholds, are considered
reportable and separately disclosed, only if
management of the Company believes that
information about the segment would be useful
to users of the financial statements

Information about other business activities and
operating segments that are not reportable
separately are combined and disclosed in an ‘all
other segments’ category

Dividends

The Company recognises a liability to pay
dividend to equity holders when the distribution
is authorised and is no longer at the discretion of
the Company. As per the corporate laws in Indiq,
a distribution is authorised when it is approved
by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is
recognised directly in equity. Interim dividends are
recorded as a liability on the date of declaration
by the Company’s Board of Directors.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the
Company’s earnings per share is the net profit
for the period. The weighted average number
equity shares outstanding during the period
and all periods presented is adjusted for events,
such as bonus shares, other than the conversion
of potential equity shares, that have changed
the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings
per share, the net profit of loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of share outstanding
during the period is adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares.

Allamounts disclosed inthe financial statements
and notes have been rounded off to the nearest

lakh (upto two decimals) as per the requirement
of Schedule lll, unless otherwise stated.

1C ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE

D

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new
standard or amendments to the existing standards.
There is no such notification which would have been
applicable from April 1, 2020.

SUMMARY OF CRITICAL ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS
AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of financial statements requires the
use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. The management
also needs to exercise judgment in applying the
Company’s accounting policies. This note provides an
overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, and of items which are more
likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
assumptions turning out to be different than those
originally assessed. Detailed information about each
of these estimates and judgments is included below.

1

Warranty provision

The Company generally offers 1 to 2 year
standard warranties for its consumer products.
Based on the evaluation of the past warranty
trends, management has estimated that
warranty costs for 25% of sales arises in the
year of sale itself, warranty costs for 50% of
the sales in Year 1 and the balance 25% in Year
2. Based on the same, the related provision for
future warranty claims has been determined.

The Company also sells lighting fitting to its
customers. In few lighting fittings products, the
drivers are an essential part and are expected
to last for a longer period. In such cases, the
Company provides warranties beyond fixing
defects that existed at the time of sale. Basis
this, the Company recognises this as a separate
performance obligation and recognises revenue
only in the period in which such service is provided
based on time elapsed.

The assumptions made in relation to serviceable
sales and related standard or serviceable
warranty provision for the current period are
consistent with those in the prior years.

. « Financial Statements ‘

Impairment allowance for trade receivables

The Company makes allowances for doubtful
accounts receivable using a simplified approach
which is a dual policy of an ageing based
provision and historical / anticipated customer
experience. Management believes that this
simplified model closely represents the expected
credit loss model to be applied on financial
assets as per Ind AS 109. Further, in case of
operationally closed projects, Company makes
specific assessment of the overdue balances
by considering the customer’s historical
payment patterns, latest correspondences with
the customers for recovery of the amounts
outstanding and credit status of the significant
counterparties where available. Accordingly, a
best judgment estimate is made to record the
impairment allowance in respect of operationally
closed projects

Project revenue and costs

Revenue from construction contracts is
recognised based on the stage of completion
determined with reference to the actual costs
incurred up to reporting date on the construction
contract and the estimated cost to complete the
project. The percentage-of-completion method
places considerable importance on accurate
estimates to the extent of progress towards
completion and may involve estimates on the
scope of deliveries and services required for
fulfilling the contractually defined obligations.
These significant estimates include total
contract costs, total contract revenues, contract
risks, including technical, political and regulatory
risks, and other judgments. The Company re-
assesses these estimates on periodic basis and
makes appropriate revisions accordingly.

Fair value measurement

When the fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using
appropriate valuation techniques. The inputs
for these valuations are taken from observable
sources where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in

Notes to Financial Stotements‘
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establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of various inputs including
liquidity risk, credit risk, volatility etc. Changes
in  assumptions/judgements about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments. Refer Note 34 of financial
statements for the fair value disclosures and
related sensitivity.

Employee benefits

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan
and other post-employment leave benefits and
the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in
the future. These include the determination of
the discount rate, future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in
the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed
at each reporting date. The mortality rate is
based on publicly available mortality tables. Those
mortality tables tend to change only at interval in
response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases are based on expected future inflation
rates. Refer note 21

Leases

The application of Ind AS 116 requires Company to
make judgements and estimates that affect the
measurement of right-of-use assets and liabilities.
In determining the lease term, all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive
to exercise renewal options (or not exercise
termination options) have to be considered.

Assessing whether a contract includes a lease
also requires judgement. As per Ind AS 116, the
Company has used the practical expedient
available and has not applied this standard to
contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease as per Ind AS 17

Estimates are required to determine the
appropriate discount rate used to measure
lease liabilities. The Company cannot readily
determine the interest rate implicit in the lease,
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Impairment of non-financial assets

7

therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate
(IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the
rate of interest that the Company would have

In case of non-financial

estimates asset’s recoverable amount, which is

to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with

higher of an asset’s or Cash Generating Units

a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain

(CGU’s) fair value less costs of disposal and

an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use

its value in use. In assessing value in use, the

asset in a similar economic environment. The

estimated future cash flows are discounted to

IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would

their present value using pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific

have to pay’, which requires estimation when
no observable rates are available or when they

need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and

to the asset. In determining fair value less costs

conditions of the lease. The Company estimates

of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account, if no such transactions can
be identified, an appropriate valuation model is

interest rates, bank rates to the Company for
a loan of a similar tenure, etc). The Company

the IBR using observable inputs (such as market

used.

For judgements relating to contingent liabilities,
refer note 40(a).

8

has applied a single discount rate to a portfolio
of leases of similar assets in similar economic

environment with a similar end date.



| 81° Annual Report 2019-20
‘Bajaj Electricals Limited (BEL)

Notes to Fir\GHCial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

Note 2 : Property, plant and equipment (Contd..)
(i) Leased assets

The Company has given few assets on operating lease to third parties. The gross block, accumulated depreciation and
net book value is as mentioned below:

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Plant and Machinery
Cost / Deemed cost 718.52 718.52
Accumulated depreciation 28976 22040
Net carrying amount 42876 498.12

(ii) Property, plant and equipment pledged as security

Refer to note 18 for information on property, plant and equipment pledged as security by the Company.

(iii) Contractual obligations

Refer to note 40(b) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
(iv) Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress mainly comprises of Electrical Installations and Dies & Jigs amounting to ¥501.22 lakhs and
324521 lakhs respectively, pending for installation. For the previous year, capital work-in-progress mainly comprises
of Furnitures & Fixtures and IT Hardware amounting to 44144 lakhs and 11918 lakhs respectively, pending for
installation.

(v) Impairment

The operations at Kosi unit have been discontinued since 2016. The Company is evaluating potential use of the
existing facilities and is also exploring selling opportunities. Accordingly, based on assessment performed, the plant
and machinery amounting to ¥729.36 lakhs has been impaired in financial year 2019. In the current year, the Company
has sold few of these assets and accordingly, the impairment charge of ¥24.60 lakhs has been reversed and profit on
sale of assets has been recognised.

(vi) Title deeds

The title deeds of immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the Company.

. . « Financial Statements ‘
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Note 3 : Right of use assets and Lease liabilities
The details of the right-of-use asset held by the Company is as follows:

Right-of-use assets

X in Lakhs)
Particulars Buildings Leasehold land Total
Gross block recognised on transition date 7,564.10 2,822.49 10,386.59
(April 1, 2019)
Additions for the period 514148 - 514148
Asset classified as held for sale - (16.80) (16.80)
Deletions for the period (458.97) - (458.97)
Closing gross block as on Mar 31, 2020 12,246.61 2,805.69 15,052.30
Accumulated amortisation recognised on - 166.44 166.44
transition date (April 1, 2019)
Depreciation for the period 2930.54 3738 296792
Asset classified as held for sale - (16.80) (16.80)
Deletions for the period (112.54) - (112.54)
Closing accumulated amortisation as on March 2,818.00 187.02 3,005.02
31, 2020
Net carrying value of right of use assets as on 9,428.61 2,618.67 12,047.28
March 31, 2020
The details of the lease liabilities held by the Company is as follows:
Lease liabilities
Particulars (% in Lakhs)
Amount recognised on transition date (April 1, 2019) 7,354.86
Additions for the period 507780
Deletions for the period (363.13)
Finance cost for the period 1,07396
Lease instalments paid for the period (3,280.61)
Closing lease liabilities as on Mar 31, 2020 9,862.88
- classified as current 2,546.31
- classified as non-current 731657

For maturity profile of lease liabilities, refer Note 35 (B)(ii)
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Note 4: Other Intangible Assets

®in Lakhs)
Particulars Trade Marks Computer Total
Software

Opening gross block as at 1st April 2018 0.51 377.39 37790
Additions - 28940 28940
Closing gross block as at 31st March 2019 0.51 666.79 667.30
Additions - 9643 9643
Closing gross block as at 31st March 2020 0.51 763.22 763.73
Opening accumulated amortisation as at 1st 0.15 49.77 4992
April 2018

Amortisation charge for the year 0.05 18991 18996
Closing accumulated amortisation as at 31st 0.20 239.68 239.88
March 2019

Amortisation charge for the year 0.05 238.52 238.57
Closing accumulated amortisation as at 31st 0.25 478.20 478.45
March 2020

Closing Net carrying amount as at 31st March 0.31 42711 427.42
2019

Closing Net carrying amount as at 31st March 0.26 285.02 285.28
2020

Note

Intangible assets under development mainly comprises of IT softwares amounting to ¥156.70 lakhs (March 31, 2019

Note 5.1: Investments in subsidiary, associate and joint venture

- ¥239.31 lakhs).

®in Lakhs)
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Investment in equity instruments of subsidiary, associate & joint
venture (fully paid up) Unquoted
Measured at cost
Non-current equity investments (unquoted) in Nirlep Appliances Pvt Ltd
- 593,724 (March 31, 2019 - 593,724) equity shares of I100 each 3,070.42 3,070.42
Fair Value of the call and put options on equity shares of Nirlep 24490 24490
Appliances Private Ltd held by non-controlling shareholders ***
3,315.32 3,315.32
Non-current equity investments (unquoted) in Hind Lamps Limited.
- 1,140,000 (March 31, 2019 - 1,140,000) equity shares of 325 each ** 1,684.53 1,684.53
Accumulated impairment allowance in value of investments in Hind (1,000.00) (1,000.00)
Lamps Limited
684.53 684.53
Non-current equity investments (unquoted) in Starlite Lighting Ltd.
- 5,875,000 (March 31, 2019 - 5,875,000) equity shares of 710 each 1,63719 1,63719
Accumulated impairment allowance in value of investments in Starlite (1,637.19) (1,637.19)
Lighting Ltd
Total investments in subsidiary, associate & joint venture 3,999.85 3,999.85

« Financial Statements ‘

Notes to Financial Statements ‘

Notes to FiHOHCial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

Note 5.2 : Financial assets (Investments)

5.2 (a) Investment in equity instruments

(R in Lakhs)
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Investment in equity shares
Unquoted
Measured at fair value through profit and loss
Non-current equity investments (unquoted) in M. P. Lamps Limited * = -
- 48,000 (March 31, 2019 - 48,000) equity shares of ?10/- each;
(Partly paid shares - ¥2.50/- Per share paid up, Called up 35.00/- per
share)
- 95997 (March 31, 2019 - 95997) equity shares of ¥10/- each;
(Partly paid shares - %1.25 Per share paid up, Called up 5 per share).
Non-current equity investments (unquoted) in Mayank Electro Ltd. 0.10 0.10
- 100 (March 31, 2019 - 100) equity shares of 3100/- each
Total equity instruments 0.10 0.10
5.2 (b) Investment in debt instruments
®in Lakhs)
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Investment in venture capital fund
Unquoted
Measured at fair value through profit and loss
Units of Bharat Innovation Fund 35227 22910
Investment in preference shares (fully paid up)
Unquoted
Measured at fair value through profit and loss
10,000,000 - 9% cumulative redeemable preference shares (unquoted) 950.83 950.83
of ¥10/- each of Starlite Lighting Ltd, redeemable on June 30, 2024
Accumulated Impairment Allowance on Preference Shares (950.83) (950.83)
5,000,000 - 9% cumulative redeemable preference shares (unquoted) 406.79 40679
of ¥10/- each of Starlite Lighting Ltd, redeemable on June 30, 2025
Accumulated Impairment Allowance on Preference Shares (406.79) (406.79)
Measured at amortised cost
2,800,000 - 0% redeemable preference shares (Unquoted) of 325/- 933.86 84513

each of Hind Lamps Ltd, redeemable at the end of term of 10 years, at a
premium of 20/~ per share (date of allotment December 26, 2012)**




| 81° Annual Report 2019-20
‘Bajaj Electricals Limited (BEL)

Notes to Fir\GHCial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

Note 5.2 : Financial assets (Investments) (Contd..)

®in Lakhs)

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

30,000,000 - 0% redeemable preference shares (unquoted) of ¥10/- 4,294.18 4,29418
each of Starlite Lighting Ltd, redeemable in 3 equal tranches at an yield
of 10% on June 30, 2026, 30 June, 2027 and June 30, 2028 respectively

Accumulated Impairment Allowance on Preference Shares (4,294.18) (4,294.18)

Total debt instruments 1,286.13 1,074.23

Total non-current investments 1,286.23 1,074.33

* In respect of Investments made in M. P. Lamps Ltd., calls of 2.50 per share on 48,000 equity shares and 3.75 per share on 95,997 Equity Shares
aggregating to 34.80 lakhs have not been paid by the Company. On principles of prudence the entire investment in M.P. Lamps Ltd. is considered
as impaired and accordingly carried at ¥ NIL.

** The Board of Directors of Bajaj Electricals Limited (“BEL’, “the Company”, “the Resulting Company”), on their meeting held on November 23,
2015, had approved the proposed Scheme of Arrangement for Demerger of the manufacturing undertaking of the Company’s associate Hind
Lamps Limited (“HLL", “the Demerged Company”) into the Company under section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016. In this regard, the Scheme of Arrangement was filed by the Company before the
Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“NCLT Mumbai”) and Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench (“NCLT
Allahabad”) in the year 2018. The NCLT Allahabad, by its order dated January 07, 2020 had approved the Scheme of Arrangement between the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company and their respective shareholders and creditors.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, The NCLT Mumbai, by its order dated May 21, 2020 has now approved the same. Pursuant to the provisions
of Regulation 30 read with Schedule Il of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Company has made necessary disclosures to BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. The Company
has obtained True Copy of the said Order duly certified by the Assistant Registrar of NCLT Mumbai on June 09, 2020. We have been directed
by NCLT Mumbai to lodge the certified copy of this Order along with a copy of the Scheme of Arrangement with the concerned Registrar of
Companies, Mumbai electronically in e-form INC-28 on a date (“effective date”) within 60 days from the issuance of a certified copy of this
Order and the Company is in the process of completing the filing requirements as instructed by NCLT Mumbai. As a result of this, the proposed
Scheme of Arrangement stands duly approved and sanctioned from the Appointed Date i.e.,, from March 31, 2014 for all tax and other regulatory
purposes and the scheme shall be accounted in the books of the Company in accordance with the accounting treatment included in the
Scheme i.e basis Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) 103 — Business Combination from the effective date.

*** During the previous financial year, Company acquired 79.85% equity shares in Nirlep Appliances Private Limited, for a cash consideration
of ¥30.70 crore. The Company has a call option to purchase another 20% equity shares or part thereof in the future at an option price. Further,
the non controlling shareholders have a put option to sell balance 20% equity shares or part thereof anytime within 60 business days post
expiry of 3 years of closing date i.e Aug 31, 2018 at an option price. The option price formula is the same for the call and the put option and is
as mentioned in the agreement.

As the option does not give present access to the returns associated with the ownership interest, the call and put option over the shares in
the acquired subsidiary has been initially recognised at its fair value, with subsequent changes in the fair value recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

For fair value measurement disclosures, refer note 34.

Note 6 : Trade receivables

R in Lakhs)

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Current 204,898.71 262,294.08

Non-current 48,754.67 51962.54

253,653.38 314,256.62

Unsecured, considered good 253,653.38 314,256.62

Unsecured, credit impaired 12,791.43 14,371.22

Total 266,444.81 328,627.84

Impairment allowance, credit impaired (allowance for bad and doubtful (12,791.43) (14,371.22)
debts)

Total trade receivables (net of impairment allowance) 253,653.38 314,256.62

. . « Financial Statements ‘

Notes to Financial Statements ‘

Notes to FinanCiaI statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

Note 6 : Trade receivables (Contd..)

Transferred receivables

The carrying amount of trade receivables, include receivables which are subject to factoring arrangements and channel
financing facilities. Under this arrangement the Company has transferred the relevant receivables to the factor in
exchange for cash. The said facilities are with recourse to company. The Company therefore continues to recognise
the transferred assets in their entirety in its balance sheet. The amount repayable under the factoring agreement is
presented as unsecured borrowings / other financial liabilities.

®in Lakhs)

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Transferred receivables 35,051.40 37,503.83
Unsecured borrowing (Note 18) 788.22 541114
Other financial liabilities (Note 19) 34,263.18 32,092.69

Trade receivable are non-interest bearing and are generally on term of 30-90 days from the time they are contractually
due. No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly
with any other person. For trade and other receivables due from firms or private companies in which any director is a
partner, a director or a member, refer note 38.

Note 7: Loans
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

®in Lakhs)
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Non Current
Unsecured, considered good 4186.80 1,606.76
Unsecured, credit impaired 280.00 280.00
Total 4,466.80 1,886.76
Impairment allowance, credit impaired (280.00) (280.00)
Total Non-current loans 4,186.80 1,606.76

Unsecured, considered good, consists of loans given to Nirlep Appliances Pvt Limited (Subsidiary of the Company) and
Hind Lamps Limited (Associate of the Company), for meeting its working capital requirements.

Unsecured, credit impaired loan is given to Starlite Lighting Limited (Joint Venture of the Company), for meeting its
working capital requirements.

Particulars Amount Interest Rate Tenure
(Z in Lakhs)

Nirlep Appliances Pvt Ltd - repayment in 8 equal 1,600.00 11% 5 years
instalments of 3200 lakhs each commencing from

June 30, 2022 till March 31, 2024.

Nirlep Appliances Pvt Ltd - repayment in 8 equal 400.00 11% 5 years
instalments of 350 lakhs each commencing from

June 30, 2022 till March 31, 2024.

Nirlep Appliances Pvt Ltd 600.00 11% 5 years
Hind Lamps Limited * 1,57700 6% S years

* Rate of interest charged to Hind Lamps Limited, is as directed by BIFR.
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Note 7: Loans (Contd..)

®in Lakhs)
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Current
Secured, considered good 257 2.02
Total current loans 2.57 2.02
Note 8 : Other financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
®in Lakhs)
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Security deposits, considered good 2,40773 2,201.52
Security deposits, credit impaired 623.64 64295
Impairment allowance for credit impaired security deposits (623.64) (64295)
2,407.73 2,201.52
Fixed deposit under lien 62.58 1293
Fair value of call option (Refer Note 5.1) 213.00 10895
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 115 2.85
Total non-current other financial assets 2,684.46 2,326.25
For breakup of financial assets carried at amortised cost, refer note 34.
Note 9 : Deferred tax assets (net)
®in Lakhs)
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Deferred tax assets 748255 9710.09
Deferred tax liabilities (295198) (3,333.43)
Total deferred tax assets (net) 4,530.57 6,376.66
Deferred tax assets comprise of the following:
®in Lakhs)
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Employee benefit obligations (gratuity) 162.83 206.65
Employee benefit obligations (leave obligations) 803.28 966.80
Impairment allowance (allowance for doubtful debts and advances) 4140.20 6,295.07
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 31.49 143.60
Assets held for sale 54295 46676
Others 1,801.80 1,631.21
Total deferred tax assets 7,482.55 9,710.09
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Note 9 : Deferred tax assets (net) (Contd..)

Movement in deferred tax assets

®in Lakhs)
Particulars Employee Employee Impairment Financial Assets Others Total
benefit benefit allowance assets held for
obligations obligations (allowance for measured at sale
(gratuity) (leave doubtful debts amortised
obligations) and advances) cost
At 31st March, 2018 - 1,307.72 7133.17 26794 485.09 1,314.63 10,508.55
(Charged) / Credited :
to statement of profit and 173.06 (34092) (838.10) (124.34) (18.33) 11963 (1,02900)
loss
to other comprehensive 33.59 - - - - 19695 230.54
income
At 31st March, 2019 206.65 966.80 6,295.07 143.60 46676 1,631.21 9,710.09
(Charged) / Credited:
to statement of profit and (12952) (163.52) (2,154.87) (11211) 7619 (30.83) (2,514.66)
loss
to other comprehensive 85.70 - - - - 201.42 28712
income
At 31st March, 2020 162.83 803.28 4,140.20 31.49 54295 1,801.80 7,482.55
Deferred tax liabilities comprise of the following:
®in Lakhs)
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Property, plant and equipment 2,114.38 314754
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 100.86 10693
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 8998 7896
Others 646.76 -
Total deferred tax liabilities 295198 3,333.43
Movement in deferred tax liabilities
®in Lakhs)
Particulars Property, Financial Financial Employee Others Total
plant and Assets Liabilities benefit
equipment measured at measured at  obligations
Amortised Amortised (gratuity)
Cost Cost
At 31st March, 2018 2977.35 7976 66.53 31.73 - 3,155.37
Charged / (credited) :
to Statement of Profit or Loss 17019 2717 12.43 (31.73) - 178.06
to other comprehensive income - - - - - -
At 31st March, 2019 3,147.54 10693 7896 - - 3,333.43
Charged / (credited) :
to Statement of Profit or Loss (1,033.16) (6.07) 11.02 - 64676 (381.45)
to other comprehensive income - - - - - -
At 31st March, 2020 2,114.38 100.86 8998 - 646.76 2,951.98
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Note 10 : Other non-current assets

®in Lakhs)

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Capital advances 430.22 34493

Impairment allowance for credit impaired capital advances (21.56) -

408.66 34493

Sales tax recoverables 3,89193 5,235.07

Balances with government authorities 15.00 15.00

Right to reimbursement against employee benefit obligations for 3,389.61 2,79598
insurers who are related parties (Non-qualifying insurance policies)

Advance to Starlite Lighting Limited 2,200.00 2,200.00

Others * 3,168.06 4,276.04

13,073.26 14,867.02

Impairment allowance for doubtful advances (532.27) (520.53)

Impairment allowance for advances to Starlite Lighting Limited (2,200.00) (2,200.00)

Total other non-current assets 10,340.99 12,146.49

*Others mainly include prepaid expenses of 341.03 lakhs (31 March 2019 %68.09 lakhs) and advances to suppliers of ¥3,104.57 lakhs (31 March
2019 %4,20795 lakhs).

Note 11 : Inventories

®in Lakhs)

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Raw material 769646 11,949.33
Work-in-progress 1,30395 1,764.60
Finished goods 3,627.10 295114
Traded goods 52,65714 61,88992
Material in Transit (traded goods) 3,551.44 3,331.44
Stores and spares 241.04 21641
Total Inventories 69,077.13 82,102.84

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value amounting to ¥898.40 lakhs (31 March 2019 - 3,276.25 lakhs) was
recognised as an expense during the year.

Note 12 : Cash and cash equivalents

®in Lakhs)
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Balances with banks
in current accounts 1,323.43 78134
in cash credit accounts 8,765.37 2940
Cheques in hand - 214.63
Cash on hand 71.84 Q437
Total cash and cash equivalents 10,160.64 1,119.74

There are no restrictions with regards to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and prior period.
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Note 12 : Bank balances

®in Lakhs)
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Unpaid Dividend Accounts 85.87 94.81
Deposits with maturity of more than three months & less than twelve 22134 38771
months
Others 034 -
Total other bank balances 307.55 482.52
Note 13 : Other current financial assets
®in Lakhs)
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 12.82 12.36
Security deposits 22398 18946
Receivable from gratuity fund = 50.02
Derivative asset 24275 704
Total other current financial assets 479.55 258.88
Note 14 : Other current assets
®in Lakhs)
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Advance to Hind Lamps Ltd (associate) 3,75595 2,140.17
Advance to Starlite Lighting Limited (joint venture) 521477 4,64615
Advance to Nirlep Appliance Pvt Ltd (subsidiary) 155.86 500.00
Export benefits 55273 283.83
Balances with government authorities 15,033.37 18,597.12
Right to reimbursement against employee benefit obligations for 1,61344 1,366.59
insurers who are related parties (Non-qualifying insurance policies)
Others* 672278 5,025.39
Total other current assets 33,048.90 32,559.25

*Others mainly includes prepaid expenses of 31,977.89 lakhs (31 March 2019 31,989.86 lakhs) and advances to suppliers of 33,652.75 lakhs (31
March 2019 %1,742.17 lakhs)

Note 15 : Assets classified as held for sale

(®in Lakhs)

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Buildings 25019 21941
Total assets classified as held for sale 250.19 21941

1) Upon relocation of Company’s employees to new office premises in Mumbai, the erstwhile leasehold immovable
property together with buildings and structure standing thereon was lying vacant. Therefore, the Board of
Directors of the Company approved the sale and transfer of leasehold rights therein in favour of the purchaser
vide Resolution dated March 23, 2015 subject to the permissions from the appropriate authorities and accordingly
the said transaction of sale and transfer of leasehold rights was to be completed within one (1) year. However,
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Note 15 : Assets classified as held for sale

2)

on account of delay in getting the requisite permissions from the appropriate local / municipal authorities the
transaction execution is pending. The purchaser and the Company are committed for the transaction to sail
through. The asset held for sale are not attached to any reported business segment but part of other unallocable
assets. The Company has received an advance of I800 lakhs from the purchaser in relation to this sale and is
expected to be completed in FY 2020-21. The same is shown as a liability under other current liabilities.

Further in the current year, the Board of Directors have passed resolutions on October 3, 2019 and November 30,
2019 to sell commercial premises at two locations. The Company has already identified the buyers and have also
received part of the sale proceeds in advance. Both parties stay committed to close the transfer. The Company
expects the same to be closed in the next financial year.

Note 16 : Equity share capital

(R in Lakhs)
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Amount Amount
Authorised

20,00,00,000 equity shares (March 31, 2019 - 20,00,00,000) of ?2/- each. 4,000.00 4,000.00

i) Movement in Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Equity Share Capital
No of Shares Amount
As at 31st March 2018 102,037,501 2,040.75
Exercise of Options under employee stock option scheme 362,100 724
As at 31st Mar 2019 102,399,601 2,04799
Exercise of Options under employee stock option scheme 80,150 1.60
Issued under rights issue (refer note iii below) 11,287956 22576
As at 31st Mar 2020 113,767,707 2,275.35
Cadlls in arrears @ 32 per share, under rights issue (refer note iii below) (63) (0.00)
As at 31st Mar 2020 113,767,644 2,275.35

ii)

iii)

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 32/- per share. Each holder of equity shares
is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be
entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution
will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Issue of shares under Rights Issue:

The meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company held on January 6, 2020, approved the offer and issue of
11,290,142 fully paid-up equity shares of the Company by way of a rights issue to eligible shareholders of the
Company as on the record date in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital
and Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended and other applicable laws, at a price of 3310 per
share including a premium of ¥308 per share.
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Note 16 : Equity share capital (Contd..)

Pursuant to the finalisation of the basis of allotment of the Issue in consultation with BSE Limited, the designated
stock exchange for the Issue, the Rights Issue Committee at its meeting held on March 13, 2020 considered and
approved the allotment of 11,287,956 Rights Equity Shares, at an issue price of ¥310 per Rights Equity Share,
including a premium of 308 per Rights Equity Share to the eligible applicants in the Issue.

In light of the Ministry of Finance (Department of Financial Services) (Banking Division) and Reserve Bank of India
imposing a moratorium on Yes Bank Limited ("Yes Bank") with effect from 18.00 hours on March 5, 2020 until April
3, 2020, 2186 Rights Equity Shares of applicants who have made application in the Rights Equity Shares using
Applications Supported by Blocked Amount ("ASBA") facility of Yes Bank, have been kept in abeyance which shall
be allotted post receipt of the requisite funds. The Company has received funds for 7 shares, which is lying in share
application money pending allotment account. The Company has allotted these shares at the subsequent rights
issue committee meeting held on May 14, 2020. The Company has forfeited the remainder 2,179 shares.

Further, with regards to 63 shares, the Company has received final certificates from the Banks who have blocked
the funds using ASBA Facility. However these Banks are yet to transfer the funds to the Company.

iv) The Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares:
Name of the Shareholder As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019
Nos. % Holding Nos. % Holding
Jamnalal Sons Private Limited 22,395,260 19.69 20,172,830 1970
Bajaj Holdings & Investment Limited 18,793,840 16.52 16,697,840 16.31
Kiran Bajaqj 5,912,179 5.20 5,252,819 513
HDFC Small Cap Fund 8,769,682 771 720,000 0.70

v)

Share reserved for issue under employee stock option scheme

For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee share based payment plan of the Company, please
refer Note 33.

Note 17: Other Equity

in Lakhs)

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

i) Securities premium reserve 60,139.79 2546114
ii) Debenture redemption reserve 4,625.00 4,625.00
iii) General reserve 43,256.34 43,163.78
iv) Share options outstanding account 1,261.09 91377
v) Retained earnings 26,223.02 3141221
vi) Capital reserve 10.00 10.00
vii) Capital redemption reserve 13571 13571
Total reserves and surplus 135,650.95 105,721.61
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Note 17 : Other Equity (Contd..)

i) Securities premium reserve

®in Lakhs)
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Opening Balance 2546114 2413909
Exercise of options - proceeds received 200.66 95199
Exercise of options - transferred from shares options outstanding 81.36 370.06
account
Securities premium proceeds received on issue of equity shares 34,766.71 -
(Note 16(iii))
Rights issue expenses (370.08) -
Closing Balance 60,139.79 25,461.14
ii) Debenture redemption reserve
®in Lakhs)
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Opening Balance 4,625.00 -
Add / (Less): Transferred from / to General Reserve - 4,625.00
Closing Balance 4,625.00 4,625.00
iii) General Reserve
®in Lakhs)
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Opening Balance 43163.78 47,725.16
Add : Transferred from debenture redemption reserve - (4,625.00)
Add : Transferred from stock options reserve for vested cancelled 92.56 63.62
options
Closing Balance 43,256.34 43,163.78
iv) Shares options outstanding account
®in Lakhs)
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Opening Balance 91377 95815
Add : Employee stock option expense 521.24 389.30
Less : Transferred to general reserve for vested cancelled options (92.56) (63.62)
Less : Transferred to securities premium for exercise of options (81.36) (370.06)
Closing Balance 1,261.09 913.77
v) Retained earnings
®in Lakhs)
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Opening Balance 31,412.21 1944471
Net profit for the period (13.16) 16,706.68
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) (853.69) (429.21)
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Note 17: Other Equity (Contd..)

®in Lakhs)
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Less: Dividend on equity shares (3,585.26) (3,574.96)
Less: Dividend distribution tax (737.08) (735.01)
Closing Balance 26,223.02 31,412.21
vi) Capital reserve
®in Lakhs)
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Opening Balance 10.00 10.00
Closing Balance 10.00 10.00
vii) Capital redemption reserve
®in Lakhs)
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Opening Balance 13571 13571
Closing Balance 135.71 135.71

Nature and purpose of reserves

Securities Premium

Securities Premium Reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares and is utilised in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Debenture Redemption Reserve

The Indian Companies Act requires companies that issue debentures to create a debenture redemption reserve
(DRR) from annual profits until such debentures are redeemed. Companies are required to maintain 25% as a
reserve of outstanding redeemable debentures. Accordingly, the Company creates DRR at 25% in the penultimate
year to the year in which the repayment obligation arises on the Company. The amounts credited to the debenture
redemption reserve will not be utilised except to redeem debentures.

General Reserve

General Reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from Retained Earnings for appropriation purposes.
As the General Reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item
of other comprehensive income, items included in the General Reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to
statement of profit and loss.

Share options outstanding account

The fair value of the equity-settled share based payment transactions is recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss with corresponding credit to Employee Stock Options Outstanding Account.
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Note 17 : Other Equity (Contd..)

Dividends paid and proposed

R in Lakhs)
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Cash dividends on equity shares declared and paid:
Final dividend paid for the year ended 31 March 2019 of 3.5 per share 3,585.26 3,57496
(31 March 2018 - 3.5 per share)
Dividend distribution tax on final dividend 73708 73501
Dividend not recognised at the end of the reporting period (*)
Proposed dividend of % Nil (31 March 2019 - 3.5 per share) - 3,58399
Dividend distribution tax on proposed dividend = 736.87

*The proposed dividend on equity shares is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting and hence is not
recognised as a liability (including DDT thereon) at the end of the reporting period.

Note 18 : Borrowings

®in Lakhs)

Note No. 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Non-current
Unsecured
Sales tax deferral liability Note a 35278 680.71
Non-convertible redeemable debentures Note ¢ * - 18,500.00
Foreign currency term loan Note d 1138.67 2,08141
Rupee term loans Note e 6,500.00 -
Total unsecured non-current borrowings 7991.45 21,262.12
Current
Secured
Cash credits Note b 1,513.82 936143
Supplier's credit (foreign currency loan) - 1,517.67
Working capital rupee loan Note f 15,771.49 1,500.00
Total secured current borrowings 17,285.31 12,379.10
Unsecured
Short term borrowings Note g 5,000.00 29000.00
Sales bills discounting Note i 788.22 S5411.14
Commercial papers - 22,202.50
Packing credit rupee loan - 13,500.00
Buyer's credit (foreign currency loan) Note h 6,551.26 -
Foreign currency term loan Note d - -
Hundi acceptances Note i 36,132.38 53,999.24
Total unsecured current borrowings 48,471.86 124,112.88
Total current borrowings 65,757.17 136,491.98

* In respect of the non-convertible redeemable debentures, the Company has to comply with certain loan covenants as per the terms of issue
of debentures. At the end of the reporting period, the Company has not met some of the debt covenants as required by the debenture trust
deed. The Company has written to the lender for waiver of these debt covenants. Pending the receipt of such confirmation from the lender as
on the reporting date, the Company has classified the 15,000 lakhs of non convertible redeemable debentures as part of other current financial
liabilities (refer note 19).
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Note 18 : Borrowings (Contd..)
Refer Note J for security details. The maturity dates of the loans and their interest rates are as given below:
Note a:

Sales tax deferral liability is interest free and repayable over predefined instalments from the initial date of deferment
of liability, as per the respective schemes as given below:

(X in Lakhs)
31-Mar-20
Non-current
FY 2021-22 22851
FY 2022-23 107.63
FY 2023-24 16.64
352.78
Current (note 19)
FY 2020-21 32793
680.71
Note b:
Cash credits are secured, repayable on demand and bear interest in the range of 915% to 13.35%.
Note c: Unsecured NonConvertible Redeemable Debentures
Lending Bank Maturity Date Interest rate % * Liability In ¥ Lakhs
as on 31-Mar-20
%7500 Lakhs - Redeemable at premium at
HEDC Mutual Fund ;;35—83—5035 ?RlSd,81,775t.)7|4 p;:-r deb?nturi
akhs - edeemable at premium a
f I f ¥10,00,000 1 0.00
(face value of 10,00,000 per 20-08-2021 ** 213,08,77470 per debenture S
debenture) -
%3500 Lakhs - Redeemable at premium at
19-02-2021 ** 312,39,630.40 per debenture

* NCD's are issued at Zero Coupon corresponding to YTM of 11.50% p.a. compounded annually. Post downgrading of credit rating by ICRA Ltd.
the YTM has been increased by 0.50% p.a. with effect from 18th November 2019.
** shown under current maturities of long term borrowings (note 19)

Note d: Foreign currency term loans is as per the following terms

Lending Bank Maturity Date Interest rate % Liability In ¥ Lakhs
as on 31-Mar-20
9-Nov-20
Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd ov 6M LIBOR + 225 bps 227734
9-May-21

The foreign currency term loan is to be repaid in two equal instalment of USD 15,04,884.10 each. Of the above, 31,138.67
lakhs is shown under other current financial liabilities.
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Note 18 : Borrowings (Contd..)

Note e: Rupee term loan is as per the following terms

Lending Bank Maturity Date Interest rate % Liability In ¥ Lakhs

as on 31-Mar-20
IDFC First Bank Ltd * 23-Oct-20 10.75% 665.00
IDFC First Bank Ltd * 23-Jan-21 10.75% 1,335.00
IDFC First Bank Ltd 23-May-21 10.75% 3,000.00
Bank of Bahrain & Kuwait B.S.C. 17-Aug-21 925% 1,16700
Bank of Bahrain & Kuwait B.S.C. 17-Aug-22 9.25% 1,167.00
Bank of Bahrain & Kuwait B.S.C. 17-Aug-23 925% 1,166.00
Total 8,500.00

* shown under current maturities of long term borrowings (note 19)

Note f: Working capital (rupee loan) is as per the following terms

Lending Bank Maturity Date Interest rate % Liability In ¥ Lakhs

as on 31-Mar-20
State Bank of India 17-Apr-20 925% 4,000.00
HDFC Bank Ltd. 19-Apr-20 815% 7149
State Bank of India 22-Apr-20 925% 1,700.00
ICICI Bank Ltd. 21-May-20 945% 1,819.00
ICICI Bank Ltd. 21-May-20 Q45% 1,181.00
HDFC Bank Ltd. 26-May-20 8.50% 1,800.00
HDFC Bank Ltd. 11-Jun-20 8.15% 2,200.00
Union Bank of India 17-Jun-20 10.50% 3,000.00
Total 15,771.49

Note g: Short term borrowings is as per the following terms

Name of the Subscriber Date of Maturity Interest rate % Liability In ¥ Lakhs

as on 31-Mar-20
Axis Bank Ltd. 11-Sep-20 8.20% 2,500.00
Axis Bank Ltd. 23-Sep-20 820% 250000
Total 5,000.00

Note h: Buyer’s credit (foreign currency loan) is as per the following terms

Name of the Subscriber Date of Maturity Interest rate % Liability In ¥ Lakhs

as on 31-Mar-20
SCB UK 6-Apr-20 3.39% 37229
SCB UK 10-Apr-20 343% 44248
SCB UK 17-Apr-20 3.38% 629.81
SCB UK 21-Apr-20 3.38% 386.78
SCB UK 30-Apr-20 3.37% 75979
SCB UK 11-May-20 3.37% 685.24
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Note 18 : Borrowings (Contd..)

Name of the Subscriber

Date of Maturity Interest rate % Liability In ¥ Lakhs

as on 31-Mar-20

SCB UK 15-May-20 3.37% 36548
SCB UK 19-Jun-20 4L4.42% 361.05
SCB UK 22-Jun-20 L42% 37240
SCB UK 2-Jul-20 4.39% 68240
SCB UK 13-Jul-20 4.37% 40892
SCB UK 17-Jul-20 4.33% L4743
SCB UK 31-Jul-20 4.26% 63719

6,551.26

Note i: Sales bill discounting and Hundi acceptances

The Company has arrangements with Banks for sales bill discounting . These loans are unsecured and carry interest of
8.50% to 9.25% and for a period of 45 to 60 days.

The Company also has arrangement with various banks for purchase bill discounting. These are also unsecured and

carry an interest rate in the range of 7Z.50% p.a. to 8.50% p.a. and are for a period of upto 90 days

Note J : Charge on secured borrowings is as given below

a

First pari passu charge by way of hypothecation of inventories, book debts and all movable assets under the head
'property, plant and equipment'.

First pari passu charge on the Company's immovable properties at
i) Wardha premises - Plot no. 36, Block no. 17, Mouza no. 225, Bacharaj road, Gandhi Chowk, Wardha
ii) Hari Kunj - Flat No. 103 and 104, 'B' wing, Sindhi Society, Chembur East, Mumbai - 400071

Second pari passu charge over present and future property, plant and equipment of the Company, situated at;
i) Ranjangaon Units : Village Dhoksanghvi, Taluka Shirur, Ranjangaon, Dist. Pune - 412210;

ii) Chakan Unit : Village Mahalunge, Chakan Talegaon Road, Khed, Pune - 410501,

iii  Wind Farm : Village Vankusawade, Tal. Patan, Dist. Satara, Maharashtra 415206;

iv) Showroom on Ground floor and Office Premises on Second Floor at Bajaj Bhawan 226, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021.

v) Delhi Office : No. DSM-514 to DSM-521, DLF Tower, Sth Floor, 15 Shivaji Marg, Nazafgarh Road Industrial Area,
Delhi - West, Delhi -110015

vi) Office Premises No : 001, 502, 701 and 801, 'Rustomjee Aspiree', Bhanu Shankar Yagnik Marg, Off Eastern
Highway, Sion (East), Mumbai - 400 022

vii) Kosi Factory Unit at Khasra No.647,648, NH 02, Km 109 Mile Stone, Village Dautana, Chhatta, Kosi Kallan,
Mathura 281403.

viii) R & D centre at Plot no. 27/ pt 2/ at Millennium Business Park, TTC Industrial area, Mahape, Navi Mumbai

These securities also extend to the various credit facilities including Bank Guarantees and Letters of Credit of
3176904.53 lakhs (Previous year 3229,033.50 lakhs) executed on behalf of the Company in the normal course of
business.

The Company has not defaulted on any loans which were due for repayment during the year.
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Note 19 : Other Financial Liabilities
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Note 20 : Provisions (Contd..)

®in Lakhs)
Movement in provisions is as given below:

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 (% in Lakhs)
Non Current Particulars E - Waste Service Legal Other
Deposits received 6.05 6.05 Provision = Warranties Claims matters
Ac.crued premium on.redemption of non convertible debenture but not due = 21744 Opening balance as on 1st April, 2018 _ 5723.20 525.17 1,350.00
Fair value of put option (Note 51) TS 43549 Arising during the year . 530853 1775 167700
Total other non-current financial liabilities 159.61 658.98 Unwinding of discount (finance cost) _ 9209 - _

Utilised during the year - (4,085.63) - -
R in Lakhs) Closing balance as on 31st March, 2019 - 7,038.19 54292 3,027.00
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 Arising during the year 4375 6,749.17 212 18746
Unwinding of discount (finance cost) - 166.78 - -
Current Utilised during the year - (4,845.61) - (193856)
Current maturities of Non Convertible Debenture (NCD) * 18,500.00 - Closing balance as on 31st March, 2020 4375 910853 54504  1,27590
Current maturities of foreign currency loan 1138.67 - *Refer note 1D(1)
Accrued interest on Non Convertible Debenture but not due 2,320.73 - **The Company has made provisions for litigation cases and pending assessments in respect of taxes, the outflow of which would depend on
Current maturities of sales tax deferral liability (Note 18) 32793 L6O6L2 the cessation of the respective events.
Current maturities of long term rupee loans 2,000.00 -
Capital creditors 2331 42753 Note 21 : Employee Benefit Obligations

Unpaid dividends 85.87 94.81 ®in Lakhs)
Trade deposits (dealers, vendors etc.) 996.62 951.35 Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Interest (payable) acerued and not (.jue 20k 40757 Current  Non Current Total Current  Non Current Total
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 167.53 188.42
Channel financing liability (Note 6) 34,263.18 32,092.69 Leave obligations 785.75 240593 3,191.68 586.80 217992 276672
Derivative liability = 14693 Interest rate guarantee on = 31973 31973 - 230.08 230.08
Other payables 3,280.12 3,605.37 provident fund
Total other current financial liabilities 63,312.04 38,381.09 Gratuity 1,276.25 4,374.00 5,650.25 1,043.79 3,710.16 475395

Employee benefit liabilities 3,715.51 4141 3,75692 443932 12.86 445218
All the above financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost except for derivative liabilities (forward exchange Total employee benefit 5,777.51 7141.07 12,918.58 6,06991 6,133.02 12,20293

contracts) which are fair valued through profit and loss and financial guarantee contracts which are initially recognised obligations

at fair value.

* Includes current maturities of 3,500 lakhs which are to be paid in Feb 2021. The balance 315000 lakhs have been reclassified from non-current
borrowings to current maturities as the Company has not met some of the debt covenants as required by the debenture trust deed . (Refer
Note 18)

Disclosure of defined benefit plans are as given below:

A. Gratuity:

Note 20 : Provisions The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India (Funded) for its employees, which requires contribution

®in Lakhs)
to be made to a separately administered fund.
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Current  Non Current Total Current  Non Current Total The gratuity benefit payable to the employees of the Company is greater of the two : (i) The provisions of the
) ) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 or (ii) The Company’s gratuity scheme as described below.

Service warranties* 6,870.10 2,23843 910853 539386 1,644.33 7038.19
Legal claims S45.04 - S45.04 54292 - 54292 (i) The provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 :
Other matters** 1,27590 - 127590  3,02700 - 3,02700
E-Waste Management 4375 - 4375 - - - Benefits as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
Total Provisions 8,734.79 2,238.43 10,973.22 8,963.78 1,644.33 10,608.11

Salary for calculation of Gratuity (GS)
Gratuity Service (SER)

Last drawn basic salary including dearness allowance (if any)

Completed years of Continuous Service with part thereof in
excess of six months

SYears #

15/26 * GS * SER

Vesting period
Benefit on normal retirement
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Note 21 : Employee Benefit Obligations (Contd..)

(i)

Benefits as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

Benefit on early retirement / termination /
resignation / withdrawal

Same as normal retirement benefit based on the service
upto the date of exit.

« Financial Statements ‘
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Note 21 : Employee Benefit Obligations (Contd..)

Changes in the Present Value of Obligation are as given below (Amounts in INR) :

Benefit on death in service

Same as normal retirement benefit and no vesting period
condition applies.

Limit

32,000,000

Notes to FiHGHCial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

The Company’s gratuity scheme :

Benefits as per the Company’s Gratuity Scheme for HO Employees ( Category S - Staff )

Salary for calculation of Gratuity (GS)

Basic Salary + Special Pay + Personal Pay + Variable
Dearness Allowance + Fixed Dearness Allowance

Gratuity Service (SER)

Completed years of Continuous Service with part thereof in
excess of six months

Vesting period

5Years #

Benefit on normal retirement

21/26 * GS * SER

Benefit on early retirement / termination /
resignation / withdrawal

Same as normal retirement benefit based on the service
upto the date of exit.

Benefit on death in service

Same as normal retirement benefit and no vesting period
condition applies.

Limit

No Limit

Benefits as per the Company’s Gratuity Scheme for HO (Category E - Executives, Category PSG -
Project Services Group and Category Factory Staff - Chakan & Ranjangaon Employees)

Salary for calculation of Gratuity (GS)

HO Category E & PSG: Basic Salary
Factory Staff : Basic Salary + DA, if any

Gratuity Service (SER)

Completed years of Continuous Service with part thereof in
excess of six months

Vesting period

5Years #

Benefit on normal retirement

Service Benefits
Between 5 & 9 years 60% x GS x SER
Between 10 & 14 years 70% x GS x SER
Between 15 & 24 years 80% x GS x SER

25 years & Above GS x SER

Benefit on early retirement / termination /
resignation / withdrawal

Service Benefits

60% x GS x SER
70% x GS x SER
80% x GS x SER
Q0% x GS x SER

Between 5 & 9 years
Between 10 & 14 years
Between 15 & 24 years

25 years & Above

Benefit on death in service

HO Category E & PSG: GS x SER
Factory Staff : Same as normal retirement benefit based on
the service upto the date of exit.

Limit

No Limit

# Completion of 240 days during the 5th year can be treated as completion of 1 year of continuous service.

In case of employees with age above the retirement age, the retirement is assumed to happen immediately

and valuation is done accordingly.

Particulars For the year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning 507,442,068 489564944
Current Service Cost 67,781,379 61,005,839
Interest Cost 36,867,773 37,180,525
Re-measurement (gain) / loss arising from:
- change in demographic assumptions (71,310) (720,276)
- change in financial assumptions 25,797354 8,483,622
- experience adjustments (i.e. Actual experience vs 3,446,344 416,226
assumptions)
Benefits Paid (42,923,538) (88,488,812)
Present Value of Obligation as at the end 598,340,070 507,442,068
Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets is as given below (Amounts in INR) :
Particulars For the year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the beginning 32,280,217 32,114,822
Investment Income 2,345,291 2438993
Employer's Contribution 700,000 219,245
Benefits Paid (1,640,592) (1,664,365)
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in interest 34,260 (828,478)
(expense)/income
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end 33,719,176 32,280,217
Changes in the Fair Value of Reimbursement Right is as given below * (Amounts in INR) :
Particulars For the year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Fair Value of Reimbursement Right as at the beginning 416,256,896 466,633,252
Investment Income 30,242,791 35,438,954
Employer's Contribution 100,000,000 1,614,032
Benefits Paid (41,282947) (86,824,447)
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in interest (4,911,749) (604,895)
(expense)/income
Fair Value of Reimbursement Right as at the end 500,304,991 416,256,896

* Reimbursement right is a non-qualifying insurance policy under Ind AS 19 as it is with Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Co. Ltd (a related
party of Bajaj Electricals Limited). The same has been disclosed in Note 10 and Note 14 of the financials statements
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Note 21 : Employee Benefit Obligations (Contd..) Note 21 : Employee Benefit Obligations (Contd..)

Amount recognised in balance sheet is as given below (Amounts in INR) : The significant actuarial assumptions are as follows:

Financial Assumptions

Particulars As on
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 Particulars As on
Present Value of Obligation 598,340,070 507442068 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Fair Value of P.IO.n Assets 33,719,176 32,280,217 Discount rate (per annurm) 6.35% 725%
Surplus / (Deficit) (564,620,894) (475,161,851) Salary growth rate (per annum) 850% 850%
Effects of Asset Ceiling, if any - -
Net Actuarially Valued Asset / (Liability) (564,620,894) (475,161,851)
Liability on an actual basis for employees at foreign branches (404,135) (233,575) Demographic Assumptions
Total Net Asset / (Liability) (565,025,029) (475,395,426)
Particulars As on
Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income is as given below 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
(Amounts in INR) : Mortality Rate 100% of IALM % of IALM 06-08
12-14
Particulars For the year ended Withdrawal rates, based on age: (per annum) :
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 Up to 30 years 21.00% 21.00%
. 31 - 44 years 14.00% 14.00%
Costs charged to statement of profit and loss : Above 44 years 1200% 1200%
Current Service Cost 67,781,379 61,005,839
Interest Expense or Cost 36,867,773 37,180,525
Investment Income (32,588,082) (37,877947) Summary of Membership Status
Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 72,061,070 60,308,417
Re-measurement (gain) / loss arising from: Particulars As on
Change in demographic assumptions (71,310) (720,276) 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Change in financial assumptions 25,797354 8,483,622
Experience adjustments (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) 3,446,344 416,226 Number of employees 3,035 3,206
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in interest 4,877,489 1,433,372 Total monthly solo_ry ® CRer(E e 83044,768
. Average past service (years) 601 5.29
expense/(income)
(Income) / Expense recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 34,049,877 9,612,944 Average age (.ye.ors) — ESHEE 35.32
Total Expense Recognised during the year 106,110,947 69,921,361 Average remaining working life (years) 2213 22.69
Number of completed years valued 18,232 16,966
Decrement adjusted remaining working life (years) 6.03 601
Major categories of Plan Assets & Reimbursement Right (as percentage of Total Assets) Normal retirement age 58 years * 58 years *
* The standard retirement date for executive employees is June 30 and the April 1st for the staff employees. In case of employees
Particulars As on with age above the normal retirement age indicated above, the retirement is assumed to happen immediately and valuation is done
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 accordingly.
Funds managed by Insurer 100% 100% Sensitivity Analysis
Total 100% 100%

The sensitivity analysis is determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at

As the funds are managed wholly by the insurance company, the break-up of the plan assets is unavailable the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. (Amounts in INR)

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base) 598,340,070 507442,068




‘ 81t Annual Report 2019-20
‘Bajaj Electricals Limited (BEL)

Notes to Fir\GHCial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020
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Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Result of Result of Result of Result of

decrease increase decrease increase
Discount Rate (- / + 1%) 630,380978 569,788,859 533,493,122 484,144,765
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 54% -4.8% 51% -4.6%
Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%) 571,835,108 627409108 485,748,484 531,172,830
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -4.4% 49% -4.3% 47%
Attrition Rate (- / + 50% of attrition rates) 667945,627 561,876,148 554,390,615 482,011,371
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 11.6% -61% 93% -50%
Mortality Rate (- / + 10% of mortality rates) 598,232,949 598,446,811 507297596 507,586,021
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

The description of plans ability to affect the amount, timing and uncertainty of the entity’s future cash flows

a) Funding arrangements and Funding Policy

The scheme is managed on funded basis. Payment for present liability of future payment of gratuity is
being made to approved gratuity fund, which fully covers the same under Cash Accumulation Policies of
the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) and Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company Ltd. (BALIC). Every
year, the insurance company carries out a funding valuation based on the latest employee data provided
by the Company. Any deficit in the assets arising as a result of such valuation is funded by the Company.

b) Expected Contribution during the next annual reporting period (Amounts in INR)

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
The Company’s best estimate of Contribution during the 125,815,561 114,335,594
next year

c) Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation (Amounts in INR)

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Weighted average duration (based on discounted cashflows) 5 years 5 years

Expected cash flows over the next 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

(valued on undiscounted basis):
1year 161,344,410 136,659,338
More than 1 and upto 2 years 62,388,582 53,335,138
More than 2 and upto 5 years 156,113,754 147,833,730
More than 5 and upto 10 years 216,766,009 191,222,320
More than 10 years 295,336,476 266,992,883
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Note 21 : Employee Benefit Obligations (Contd..)

d) Asset liability matching strategies

For gratuity, the Company has purchased insurance policy, which is basically a year-on-year cash
accumulation plan in which the interest rate is declared on yearly basis and is guaranteed for a period
of one year. The insurance company, as part of the policy terms, makes payment of all gratuity outgoes
happening during the year (subject to sufficiency of funds under the policy). The policy, thus, mitigates
the liquidity risk. However, being a cash accumulation plan, the duration of assets is shorter compared
to the duration of liabilities. Thus, the Company is exposed to movement in interest rate (in particular,
the significant fall in interest rates, which should result in a increase in liability without corresponding
increase in the asset)

Provident Fund (Defined Benefit Plan) :

Bajaj Electricals Limited operates in two schemes for the compliance of provident fund statute - (i) Bajqj
Electricals Limited Employees' Provident Fund Trust & Matchwel Electricals (India) Ltd Employees' Provident Fund
Trust (defined benefit plan) and (ii) RPFC Contributions for provident fund (defined contribution plan).

For exempt provident fund, the defined benefit obligation of the Company arises from the possibility that during
anytime in the future, the scheme may earn insufficient investment income to meet the guaranteed interest rate
declared by government / EPFO / relevant authorities as well as for fund assets shortfall as against the liabilities
of the Trusts

The net defined benefit obligation as at the valuation date represents the excess of accumulated fund value
(determined on actuarial basis) plus interest rate guaranteed liability over the fair value of plan assets or vice-a-
versa

The benefit valued under PF obligation are summarised below:

Normal Retirement Age 58 Years *
Accrued Account Value

Benefit on normal retirement

Benefit on early retirement / termination / resignation / withdrawal Accrued Account Value
Accrued Account Value

Benefit on death in service

* The standard retirement date for executive employees is June 30th of every year and the same is April 1st of every year for the staff
employees.

The company's compliances for provident fund is governed by Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952. Responsibility for governance of the plans, including investment decisions and contribution
schedules lies jointly with the company and the board of trustees. The board of trustees are composed of
representatives of the company and plan participants in accordance with the plan's regulations

Changes in the Present Value of Obligation of Trusts are as given below (Amounts in INR) :

Particulars For the year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning 1,356,553,733 1,254,066,329
Interest Cost 114,531,031 102,653,602
Current Service Cost 66,495,243 63,439,084
Employee's Contributions 147904,847 135,903,838
Transfer In / (out) of the liability 51,180,535 34,455,692
Benefits Paid (173,963,577) (236,529,317)
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Particulars For the year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Re-measurement (gain) / loss arising from:
- experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions), 8,964,885 2,564,505

loss if positive

Present Value of Obligation as at the end

1,571,666,697

1,356,553,733

Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets of Trusts are as given below (Amounts in INR) :

Particulars

For the year ended

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the beginning 1,315,938,179 1,283,207,575
Investment Income 113,828,652 97,523,776
Employer's Contributions 66,495,243 63,439,084
Employee's Contributions 147904,847 135,903,838
Transfers In 51,180,535 37,532,807
Benefits Paid (173963,577) (236,529,317)
Return on plan assets , excluding amount recognised in interest (67,065,054) (65,139,584)
(expense)/income
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end 1,454,318,825 1,315,938,179

A deterministic approach is considered to estimate the value of Interest Rate Guarantee on the Exempt Provident
Fund. The per annum cost of guarantee at which Interest Rate Guarantee Liability has been valued is mentioned
below

Amount recognised in balance sheet of Trusts is as given below:

Matchwel Electricals (India) Ltd Employees' Provident Fund Trust (for Chakan unit employees) (Amounts in INR) :

Particulars As on

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Present Value of Obligation 35,138,231 28,545,685
Fair Value of Plan Assets 73,912,596 64,286,938
Surplus / (Deficit) 38,774,365 35,741,253
Effects of Asset Ceiling, if any = -
Net Asset / (Liability) 38,774,365 35,741,253

The present value of obligation of Matchwel Electricals (India) Ltd Employees' Provident Fund Trust represents
the aggregate of accumulated fund value of 334,423,393 (As on March 31, 2019 - 328,061,523) and interest rate
guarantee 3714,838 (As on March 31, 2019 - %484,162). Of the above, the interest rate guarantee is recognised as
provision in the Company's books, while the accumulated fund value is recognised by the Trust. The interest rate
guarantee so recognised in the Company's books is considered as non-current liability

. . « Financial Statements ‘

Notes to Financial Statements ‘

Notes to FiHGHCial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

Note 21 : Employee Benefit Obligations (Contd..)

Bajaj Electricals Limited Employees' Provident Fund Trust (for H.O. employees) (Amounts in INR) :

Particulars As on

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Present Value of Obligation 1,536,528,466 1,328,008,048
Fair Value of Plan Assets 1,380,406,362 1,251,651,241
Surplus / (Deficit) (156,122,104) (76,356,807)
Effects of Asset Ceiling, if any - -
Net Asset / (Liability) (156,122,104) (76,356,807)

The present value of obligation of Bajaj Electricals Limited Employees' Provident Fund Trust represents the
aggregate of accumulated fund value of ¥1,505,269970 (As on March 31, 2019 - 1,305,483,761) and interest rate
guarantee 331,258,496 (As on March 31, 2018 - 322,524,287). Of the above, the interest rate guarantee is recognised
as provision in the Company's books, while the accumulated fund value is recognised by the Trust. The interest rate
guarantee so recognised in the Company's books is considered as non-current liability.

Since interest rate guarantee is already accounted in BEL's books, the liability of ¥124,863,608 which is Accumulated
Fund Value of 31,505,269970 in excess of Fair Value of Plan Assets of ¥1,380,406,362 is accounted by BEL as payable
to Trust on shortfall of plan assets. This liability has arisen mainly on account of negative return on plan assets
contributed by negative return on Trust's investment in IL&FS as well as DHFL (including interest foregone by Trust)
and the same is recognised as actuarial loss in the Other Comprehensive Income of BEL

Bajaj Electricals Limited can offset an asset relating to one plan against a liability relating to another plan when,
and only when, Bajaj Electricals Limited has a legally enforceable right to use a surplus in one plan to settle
obligations under the other plan; and intends either to settle the obligations on a net basis, or to realise the
surplus in one plan and settle its obligation under the other plan simultaneously. However the two trusts namely
Matchwel Electricals (India) Ltd Employees' Provident Fund Trust (for Chakan employees) and Bajaj Electricals
Limited Employees' Provident Fund Trust (for HO. employees) are independent trusts. Accordingly, surplus assets
of trust for Chakan employees cannot be offset against liability relating to trust for HO. employees

Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income of Trusts is as given below
(Amounts in INR) :

Particulars For the year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Costs charged to statement of profit and loss :

Current Service Cost 66,495,243 63,439084

Interest Cost 114,531,031 102,653,602

Investment Income (113,828,652) (97,523,776)

Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 67,197,622 68,568,910

Re-measurement (gain) / loss arising from:

Experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) * 8,964,885 2,564,505

Return on plan assets , excluding amount recognised in interest 67,065,054 65,139,584

expense/(income)

Expense recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Total Expense Recognised during the year

76,029,939
143,227,561

67,704,089
136,272,999

* included in other comprehensive income in the statement of profit and loss
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The significant actuarial assumptions are as follows :

Financial and Demographic Assumptions

Particulars As on
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

HO Unit Chakan Unit HO Unit  Chakan Unit
Discount rate (per annum) 6.65% 6.65% 7.63% 7.63%
Interest rate guarantee (per annum) 8.50% 8.50% 8.65% 8.65%
Discount Rate for the Remaining Term to 6.65% 6.65% 7.63% 7.63%
Maturity of the Investment (p.a.)
Average Historic Yield on the Investment 844% 844% 8.62% 8.62%
(p.a.)
Mortality Rate 100% of IALM 2012-14 100% of IALM 2006-08
Particulars As on

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Attrition Rate, based on ages:

Live Employees

Live Employees

- Upto 30 years 499% 3.33%
- 31to 44 years 3.63% 4.21%
- 45 to 57 years 3.62% 3.69%
- Above 57 years 0.38% 0.73%
Summary of Membership Status:
Particulars As on
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Dormant/Inoperative Employees 3,300 3,192
Live Number of employees 1,928 2,096
Total Number of employees 5,228 5,288
Average age (years) 39.24 37.36
Major categories of Plan Assets (as percentage of Total Plan Assets)
Particulars As on
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Government of India securities 57% 3.6%
State Government securities 40.0% 36.8%
High quality corporate bonds 34.5% 40.0%
Equity shares of listed companies 0.0% 0.0%
Public Sector Bonds 0.0% 0.0%
Special Deposit Scheme 10.5% 11.6%
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Particulars As on

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Funds managed by Insurer 0.0% 0.0%
Bank balance 1.0% 0.2%
Other Investments 85% 77%
Total 100% 100%

Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analysis is determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the
end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. (Amounts in INR)

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Defined Benefit Obligation (Base) 1,571,666,697 1,356,553,733
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Result of Result of Result of Result of
decrease increase decrease increase
Discount Rate (- / + 1%) 1,588,146964  1,555,856,820 1,374,962,805 1,337,124,861
(% change compared to base due to 1.05% -101% 1.36% -143%
sensitivity)
Interest rate guarantee (- / + 1%) 1,539,693,363 1,664,883954 1,329,870,110 1,292,815,528
(% change compared to base due to -2.03% 593% -197% -4.70%
sensitivity)

Th